
Chief Executive’s Office 

Continued…. 
 

� (01257) 515151   Fax (01257) 515150 www.chorley.gov.uk 

Please ask for: Mr A Uren 
Direct Dial: (01257) 515122 
E-mail address: tony.uren@chorley.gov.uk 
Date: 20 June 2006  
 

Chief Executive:  Donna Hall 
 

 
 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
EXECUTIVE CABINET - THURSDAY, 29TH JUNE 2006 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the Executive Cabinet to be held in the Council Chamber, 
Town Hall, Chorley on Thursday, 29th June 2006 at 5.00 pm. 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 1. Apologies for absence   

 
 2. Declarations of any Interests   

 
  Members of the Cabinet are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 

personal interest in respect of matters contained in this agenda in accordance with 
the provisions of the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s Constitution and 
the Members’ Code of Conduct.  If the personal interest is a prejudicial interest, 
then the individual Member should not participate in a discussion on the matter 
and must withdraw from the Council Chamber and not seek to influence a decision 
on the matter. 
 

 3. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 8) 
 

  To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Executive Cabinet 
held on 25 May 2006 (enclosed). 
 

 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ITEM (INTRODUCED BY THE FORMER CHAIR OF THE 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, COUNCILLOR J WALKER) 
 

 4. Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report, 2005/06  (Pages 9 - 26) 
 

  To consider the 2005/06 Annual Report presented to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 27 June 2006 (enclosed).  
 

 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ITEM (INTRODUCED BY THE CHAIR OF THE 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (COUNCILLOR D EDGERLEY) AND THE 
CHAIR OF THE FORMER CUSTOMER OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
(COUNCILLOR MRS S WALSH)) 
 

 5. Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement Scrutiny Inquiry  (Pages 27 - 62) 
 

  To consider the enclosed Inquiry report of the former Customer Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel and the recommendations of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
following its consideration of the report at its meeting on 27 June 2006.  

Town Hall 
Market Street 

Chorley 
Lancashire 

PR7 1DP 

 



2 

 
 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ITEMS (INTRODUCED BY THE CHAIR OF THE 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, COUNCILLOR D EDGERLEY) 
 

 6. Future of Mental Health Services in Lancashire - Consultation  (Pages 63 - 
64) 

 
  The Council’s views have been requested by the Lancashire Joint Primary Care 

Trust on proposals for changes to the way mental health services are provided in 
Lancashire.  Representations are required by 14 July 2006.    
 
A copy of the Consultation Document is attached separately for Executive 
Cabinet Members, but other copies are available for perusal in the Members’ 
Room. 
 
These proposals were considered by the Environment and Community Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel at its meeting on 8 June 2006, whose views and 
recommendations are summarised in the attached minute extract. The 
recommendations will be presented to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 
27 June and the Committee’s final recommendations will be reported verbally to 
the Executive Cabinet meeting.        
 

 7. Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2006/07  (Pages 65 - 74) 
 

  Report of the Chief Executive (copy enclosed) 
 

 RESOURCES ITEMS (INTRODUCED BY THE EXECUTIVE MEMBER, COUNCILLOR 
G MORGAN) 
 

 8. Capital Programme, 2005/06 - Outturn  (Pages 75 - 98) 
 

  Report of Director of Finance (enclosed). 
 

 9. Revenue Budget   
 

  a) Revenue Outturn, 2005/06  (Pages 99 - 106) 
 

   Report of Director of Finance (enclosed). 
 

  b) Revenue Budget, 2006/07 - Monitoring  (Pages 107 - 114) 
 

   Report of Director of Finance (enclosed). 
 

 10. Tender for the Renewal of Council Insurances  (Pages 115 - 122) 
 

  Report of Director of Finance (enclosed). 
 

 11. External Funding Strategy for 2006 and beyond  (Pages 123 - 136) 
 

  Report of Director of Finance (enclosed). 
 

 CORPORATE POLICY AND PERFORMANCE ITEM (INTRODUCED BY THE 
EXECUTIVE MEMBER, COUNCILLOR MRS P CASE) 
 

 12. Quarterly Performance Indicators, 2005/06 - End of Year Monitoring Report  
(Pages 137 - 176) 

 



3 

  To consider the enclosed monitoring report which sets out the Council’s 
performance against key and Best Value performance indicators for the year 
ending 31 March 2006. 
 

 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION ITEMS (INTRODUCED BY THE 
EXECUTIVE MEMBER, COUNCILLOR P MALPAS) 
 

 13. Statement of Community Involvement - Inspector's Report and Adoption  
(Pages 177 - 222) 

 
  Report of Director of Development and Regeneration (enclosed). 

 
 14. Householder Design Guidance Supplementary Planning Document  (Pages 

223 - 254) 
 

  Report of Director of Development and Regeneration (enclosed). 
 

 15. Central Lancashire City - Local Development Framework Core Strategy - 
Joint Issues and Options Paper  (Pages 255 - 296) 

 
  Report of Director of Development and Regeneration (enclosed).  

 
 RESOURCES AND STREETSCENE, NEIGHBOURHOODS & ENVIRONMENT ITEM 

(INTRODUCED BY THE EXECUTIVE MEMBERS, COUNCILLORS G MORGAN AND E 
BELL) 
 

 16. Buchanan Street, Chorley - Environmental Improvement Scheme  (Pages 297 
- 302) 

 
  Report of Director of Streetscene, Neighbourhoods and Environment (enclosed).  

 
 STREETSCENE, NEIGHBOURHOODS AND ENVIRONMENT ITEM (INTRODUCED BY 

THE EXECUTIVE MEMBER, COUNCILLOR E BELL) 
 

 17. Termination of Lancashire Highways Partnership - Financial and Legal 
Implications  (Pages 303 - 306) 

 
  Report of Director of Streetscene, Neighbourhoods and Environment (enclosed).  

 
 18. Any other item(s) that the Chair decides is/are urgent   

 
 19. Exclusion of Press and Public   

 
  To consider the exclusion of the press and public for the following item of business 

on the ground that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in Paragraph 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act, 1972.      
 

 20. Steps to becoming an excellent Council - Draft Restructure of Policy and 
Performance Directorate  (Pages 307 - 312) 

 
  Report of Chief Executive (enclosed). 

 
 
 
 
 
 



4 

 
 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Chief Executive 
 
 
ENCS 
 
 
 
 
Distribution 
 
1. Agenda and reports to all Members of the Executive Cabinet and Chief Officers for attendance. 
 
 

This information can be made available to you in larger print 

or on audio tape, or translated into your own language.  

Please telephone 01257 515118 to access this service. 
 

 
 

 

 
 

01257 515822 

01257 515823 



Executive Cabinet 1  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 25 May 2006 

Executive Cabinet 
 

Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 25 May 2006 
 

Present: Councillor Peter Goldsworthy (Executive Leader in the Chair), Councillor Mrs Pat Case 
(Deputy Leader of the Council) and Councillors Eric Bell, Peter Malpas, Greg Morgan, 
Mark Perks and John Walker 
 
Also in attendance 
Lead Members: Councillors Peter Baker, Francis Culshaw, David Dickinson, Mrs Marie Gray, 
Harold Heaton and Geoffrey Russell 
 
Other Members: Councillors Terence Brown, Dennis Edgerley, Anthony Gee, Keith Iddon, 
Roy Lees, Adrian Lowe and John Wilson 

 
 

06.EC.77 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS  
 

There were no declarations of personal or prejudicial interests by any of the Executive 
Members in any of the agenda items. 
 

06.EC.78 MINUTES  
 

The minutes of the meeting of the Executive Cabinet held on 30 March 2006 were 
accepted as a correct record for signature by the Executive Leader. 
 

06.EC.79 APPOINTMENT AND COMPOSITION OF AD-HOC EXECUTIVE CABINET 
COMMITTEES  

 
The Executive Cabinet was requested to confirm the re-appointment and composition 
of a number of ad-hoc Cabinet Committees. 
 
Decision taken: 
 
That the following Committees/Sub-Committee of the Executive Cabinet be 
appointed to comprise the membership indicated: 
 
(a) Human Resources Appeals Committee (4 members) 
 
 Councillor J Walker (Chair) and Councillors A Cain, M Lees and M 

Muncaster. 
 
(b) Indoor Leisure Committee (3 members) 
 
 Councillor M Perks (Chair) and Councillors A Gee and Mrs I Smith. 
 
(c) Special Sub-Committee on Waste Recycling Contract 
 
 Councillors E Bell, P Goldsworthy and S Smith 
 
Reason for decision: 
 
To establish the bodies responsible for the implementation of a number of executive 
functions. 
 
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected: 
 
None.  

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 1



Executive Cabinet 2  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 25 May 2006 

 
06.EC.80 IMPLEMENTING E-GOVERNMENT (IEG) STATEMENT NO. 6  
 

The Executive Cabinet received a report of the Head of Information and 
Communication Technology seeking endorsement of the Council’s e-Government 
Statement 2006 submitted to the Government Office for the North West.  The statutory 
return detailed the Council’s progress in terms of the Government’s defined Priority 
Outcome programme, the Best Value Performance Indicator (BVPI) for corporate 
electronic service delivery and efficiency targets. 
 
The Statement confirmed that the Council had achieved the BVPI target of delivering 
100% e-enabled services by 31 December 2005.  Significant progress had also been 
made in the achievement of all other targets, particularly in relation to the achievement 
of 27 of the 29 required Priority Outcomes.  Of the two outstanding outcomes, one 
was the responsibility of the County Council and the second was being considered 
with the Shared Services Contact Centre project. 
 
The report intimated that, although it was unlikely that any further Government grants 
would be available, work would need to continue on the achievement of all Priority 
Outcomes and ensuring that the IT infrastructure was ‘fit for purpose’. 
 
In response to comments at the meeting, the Members accepted the need to review 
and revise the Council’s website in order to simplify and encourage greater use and 
improve facilities for on-line transactions.  The IEG Statement did, in fact, recognise 
that a redesigned website would be key to the delivery of the strategy. 
 
Decision made: 
 
That the Council’s Implementing e-Government Statement No 6, as now 
presented, be approved. 
 
Reason for decision 
 
The Borough Council is statutorily required to produce an annual e-Government 
Statement for submission to the Government. 
 
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected: 
 
None. 
 

06.EC.81 DISCRETIONARY HOUSING PAYMENTS  
 

The Director of Finance presented a report seeking endorsement of the procedures 
and criteria to be applied in relation to applications for Discretionary Housing 
Payments (DHP) in the light of amended housing benefit/Council tax benefit 
regulations. 
 
The Discretionary Finance Assistance Regulations 2001 gave local authorities the 
discretion to make discretionary housing payments to claimants whose 
housing/Council tax benefit was less than their full liability. 
 
The Council’s current policy allowed the disregard of the first £3,000 capital savings of 
claimants under 60 years of age and the first £6,000 capital savings of claimants over 
60 years of age in the calculation of DHPs.  New regulations recommended that the 
first £6,000 of any savings held by benefit claimants of all ages should be disregarded 
in calculations.  The report, however, recommended the Council to disregard only the 
first £3,000 of all claimants’ capital in order to achieve a more equitable distribution of 
the available monies and a consistent approach for all applicants. 
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 2



Executive Cabinet 3  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 25 May 2006 

Decision made: 
 
That the first £3,000 of the capital savings of all claimants for Discretionary 
Housing Payments, irrespective of age, be disregarded in the calculation of the 
payment, and the relevant policy be amended accordingly. 
 
Reason for decision: 
 
The revision of the policy will ensure that available grant monies are distributed 
equitably and the scheme is applied consistently for all applicants. 
 
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected: 
 
An increase of the capital disregard to £6,000 for all applicants would impact on the 
number of DHP applications that could be paid, owing to the overall cash limit applied 
to the scheme. 
 

06.EC.82 INTRODUCTION OF BANKRUPTCY, CHARGING ORDER AND WINDING UP 
PROCEEDINGS TO RECOVER LARGE DEBTS  

 
The Executive Cabinet considered a report of the Director of Finance recommending 
authorisation of the introduction of bankruptcy, charging orders and winding up 
proceedings for unpaid Council Tax, Business Rates and other large debts owed to 
the Council. 
 
The recovery methods currently in use were deemed unsuitable and ineffective to 
recover arrears from a number of debtors, such as self-employed persons or 
unemployed persons not claiming relevant benefits.  In these cases, the instigation of 
bankruptcy proceedings against debtors owing more than £750 or applications for a 
charging order against debtors owing in excess of £1,000 might be expedient. 
 
The Director of Finance indicated that, mindful of potential costs to the Authority, all 
potential cases would be selected after careful vetting with the Land Registry and a 
credit reference agency.  The results of the first test cases would be subjected to a 
cost/benefit analysis before any additional bankruptcy proceedings were instigated. 
 
The Executive Cabinet was also requested to consider an approach to other 
precepting Authorities to ascertain if they would share the risks and costs of 
introducing the new recovery method. 
 
Decisions made: 
 
(1) That approval be given to the introduction of bankruptcy, charging orders 
and winding up proceedings in appropriate cases to recover unpaid Council 
Tax, Business Rates and other debts. 
(2) That appropriate publicity be afforded to the introduction of the new debt 
recovery methods. 
(3) That other precepting authorities (ie Lancashire County Council, the Police 
Authority and the Lancashire Fire and Rescue Service) be requested to 
contribute to the costs of implementing the new debt recovery proceedings. 
 
Reason for decision: 
 
The introduction of additional debt recovery methods will assist the Council in 
maximising outstanding income. 
 
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected: 
 
None. 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 3



Executive Cabinet 4  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 25 May 2006 

 
06.EC.83 HUMAN RESOURCES POLICIES AND PROCEDURES - FLEXITIME POLICY  
 

The Executive Cabinet considered a report of the Director of Human Resources 
seeking approval of the implementation of a revised Flexitime Policy for Council 
employees. 
 
The proposals for the amended policy had emerged from the Staff Forum set up in 
October 2005 to examine and advise on all employee policies and procedural issues. 
 
The report outlined the major projected changes within the proposed new scheme, 
highlighting the proposals to abolish core working time; alter the band width within 
which staff are allowed to work from 8.00am - 6.00pm to 8.00am - 7.00pm; and allow 
two days flexi leave to be taken in one four week period (subject to a maximum of 13 
days per annum). 
 
The scheme had been revised in order to modernise staffs’ flexible working 
arrangements in line with other organisations’ successful policies and the Director of 
Human Resources assured the Members that efficient management and monitoring of 
the new scheme would not affect service delivery. 
 
It was proposed to introduce the scheme for a trial period of six months, at the expiry 
of which the scheme would be analysed from a cost/benefit viewpoint to determine 
whether the scheme should be made permanent. 
 
Decisions made: 
 
(1) That approval be given to the implementation of the revised Flexi time policy, 
as now presented, on a six months trial basis. 
(2) That the new policy be monitored through the measurement of reductions in 
staffs’ time off in lieu, overtime and sickness absence. 
(3) That information on potential savings be made available to Members 
following the six months trial period. 
 
Reasons for decision: 
 
In order to comply with best practice; ensure that all Directorates are operating in a 
fair and consistent manner; and ensure that agreed policies and procedures are in 
place. 
 
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected: 
 
None. 
 

06.EC.84 REGIONAL AND SUB-REGIONAL STRATEGY - UPDATE  
 

The Executive Cabinet considered a report of the Director of Development and 
Regeneration seeking endorsement of the Central Lancashire City Sub-Regional 
Strategy and the Central Lancashire City Vision. 
 
The Central Lancashire City Sub-Regional Strategy had been commissioned by the 
Chorley, Preston and South Ribble Councils to provide a spatial framework to ensure 
that opportunities defined in the Central Lancashire City Vision are delivered 
alongside principles of sustainable development.  The Strategy was also aimed at 
informing the development of regional spatial planning, economic development and 
housing policies, by developing strategic solutions to key issues and realising the 
potential for growth. 
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 4



Executive Cabinet 5  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 25 May 2006 

The report also clarified how the Sub-Regional Strategy and City Vision were inter-
linked with and related to the various other extant strategies and action plans that 
were linked to the draft Regional Spatial Strategy (ie the Regional Economic Strategy, 
Lancashire Economic Strategy and Sub-Regional Action Plan for 2006, Central 
Lancashire City Region Development Programme, Lancashire West Sub-Regional 
Housing Strategy Framework and Ambition Lancashire, 2005-25) 
 
The strategic framework outlined for the sub-region would provide the context for 
Chorley Council’s response to the consultation on the Regional Spatial Strategy.  It 
would also provide the basis for further collaboration with Preston and South Ribble 
Councils on the alignment of the three Councils’ respective Local Development 
Framework Core Strategies and Economic Development Strategies and action plans. 
 
Decision made: 
 
That the Central Lancashire City Sub-Regional Strategy and the Central 
Lancashire City Vision, as now presented, be endorsed as the context for the 
delivery of the sustainable economic growth envisaged in the Borough 
Council’s adopted Economic Regeneration Strategy, and that the documents be 
submitted to the Government Office for the North West in support of the joint 
Regional Spatial Strategy response. 
 
Reason for decision: 
 
The Sub-Regional Strategy and the City Vision are key documents that will assist the 
Council in the delivery of sustainable growth in partnership with the other core 
authorities (Preston and South Ribble Councils) and maintain the role of the Core area 
within the City Region. 
 
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected: 
 
None, as the need for a planned, strategic approach to sustainable growth has been 
established. 
 

06.EC.85 REGIONAL SPATIAL STRATEGY - SUBMITTED DRAFT  
 

The Director of Development and Regeneration presented a report recommending 
endorsement of the draft response compiled jointly by the Chorley, Preston and South 
Ribble Councils to the revised draft Regional Spatial Strategy. 
 
Representations on the revised draft Strategy, which had been submitted to the 
Government Office for the North West, had been invited by 12 June 2006.  An 
Examination in Public was expected in November 2006, in advance of the anticipated 
final approval of the Strategy in late 2007. 
 
The interim draft Strategy contained some 60 policies within seven topic areas (ie 
Development principles; Spatial Framework; Working; Living; Transport; Enjoying and 
Managing; and Sub-Regional Policy Framework) and the report outlined and 
commented on each topic area. 
 
The suggested response from the Central Lancashire City Authorities to the draft 
Regional Spatial Strategy requested, inter alia, the amendment of the policies and text 
of the Strategy to recognise the status of the Central Lancashire City area as a key 
location for sustainable economic growth that supports the wider Central Lancashire 
City Region. 
 
Decision made: 
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 5



Executive Cabinet 6  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 25 May 2006 

That the comments set out in Appendix A to the submitted report as compiled 
by the Central Lancashire City authorities of Chorley, Preston and South Ribble 
be agreed as this Council’s representations on the draft Regional Spatial 
Strategy, subject to any major changes proposed by Preston or South Ribble 
Councils being approved by an appropriate Executive Member. 
 
Reason for decision: 
 
To ensure that the final content of the Regional Spatial Strategy reflects the views and 
economic potential of the Central Lancashire City authorities. 
 
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected 
 
Separate representations from the three respective Authorities are unlikely to 
generate as much influence as a joint response. 
 

06.EC.86 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS  
 

Decision made: 
 
That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 
the following item of business on the ground that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 1 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

06.EC.87 STREETSCENE, NEIGHBOURHOODS AND ENVIRONMENT DIRECTORATE - 
RESTRUCTURE  

 
The Executive Cabinet considered a report from the Director of Streetscene, 
Neighbourhoods and Environment on proposals to (i) revise the senior management 
structure of the Streetscene, Neighbourhoods and Environment Directorate following 
the amalgamation of the Public Space Services Unit, Environmental Services Unit and 
part of the Corporate and Policy Unit; and (ii) implement changes in the Directorate as 
a consequence of the impending termination of the Lancashire Highways Partnership 
on 1 July 2006 in order to effect both savings and the resources necessary to provide 
a sustainable street scene organisation. 
 
The report contained a schedule identifying the posts that would transfer to the 
Lancashire County Council on the closure of the Highways Partnership, together with 
a summary of other proposed changes to the structure, which were expected to effect 
an annual saving of £119,000.  In addition, the projected alteration of the middle 
management structure was anticipated to effect a further annual saving of £53,000.  
The report indicated, however, that a proportion of the total envisaged savings may 
need to be re-invested into technical staff under the next phase of the Directorate’s 
restructure. 
 
Decisions made: 
 
(1) That the proposals to revise the middle management structure of the 
Streetscene, Neighbourhoods and Environment Directorate, as outlined in the 
submitted report, be approved for consultation with staff and trade unions. 
(2) That approval be given to the transfer of the staff identified in 
Appendix 2 to the submitted report to the Highways Authority under the terms 
of the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations. 
 
Reason for decisions: 
 
The proposals are aimed at providing a ‘fit for purpose’ structure of the Streetscene, 
Neighbourhoods and  Environment Directorate. 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 6



Executive Cabinet 7  
Public Minutes of meeting held on Thursday, 25 May 2006 

 
Alternative option(s) considered and rejected: 
 
The range of optional structures considered were rejected on the grounds that either 
they did not fulfil the objectives and requirements of the new Directorate or had 
additional cost implications. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Executive Leader 
 

Agenda Item 3Agenda Page 7



Agenda Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY  

ANNUAL REPORT 2005/2006 

Councillor John Walker -   Chair Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Councillor Thomas McGowan -  Chair Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Councillor Mark Perks -  Chair Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel  
Councillor Mrs Stella Walsh -  Chair Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

 

 

JUNE 2006 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 9



CONTENTS 
 

 Page No 
 
1. Introduction  1 
 
 
2. What is Scrutiny?  2 
 
 
3. Overview and Scrutiny in Chorley - A Background  3 
 
 
4. Overview and Scrutiny Structure, Functions and Responsibilities 4 
 
 
5. The Achievements and Activities 
 
 (a) Overview and Scrutiny Committee  5-7 
 
 (b) Community Overview and Scrutiny  8-9 
 
 (c) Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel  10-11 
 
 (d) Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel  12-13 
 
 
6. What has the work of Overview and Scrutiny led to?  14 
 
 
6. The Way Forward  15-16 
 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 10



 

 1 

1. Introduction 
 
 Welcome to the third annual report on the work of the Overview and Scrutiny at Chorley.  It 

covers the period from May 2005 to April 2006. 
 
 It has been a pleasure to continue as Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for a 

further year. 
 
 I feel we have continued with effective work and scrutinised in a constructive, robust and 

purposeful way. 
 
 We continued with scrutiny of the Business Plans of all the departments of the Council along 

with other reviews which were submitted to the Executive Cabinet for approval. 
 
 After a disappointing scrutiny of the budget last year we decided to scrutinise the three 

highest spending departments which proved to be very successful and also a learning 
experience for all the Members.  We hope to continue this format for all departments this 
coming year. 

 
 We held a self assessment evening in October which highlighted several areas of success 

and also areas for improvement in the scrutiny process which we hope will be incorporated in 
this years work and training. 

 
 Finally, I would like to thank my fellow Chairs, Members and Officers for their dedication and 

hard work during the last year and hopefully the scrutiny process will continue to benefit all 
aspects of Council business. 

 
 Thank you. 
 
 Regards. 
 
 
 Councillor John Walker 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 11



 

 2 

2. What is Scrutiny? 
 
 Overview and Scrutiny was introduced as part of the modernisation agenda for local 

government and the Local Government Act 2000 requires Councils to have at least one 
overview and scrutiny committee. 

 
 In 1999 the government commenced plans to reform and modernise the way local authorities 

operate. 
 
 This was designed to streamline and improve decision making, make elected members more 

mobile and accountable and improve services. 
 
 In particular the proposals required local authorities such as Chorley to replace its Committee 

system with Leader within Cabinet, Elected Mayor and Cabinet or Elected Mayor and 
Cabinet or Elected Mayor and Council Manager system.  Chorley chose the option of having 
a Leader with Cabinet.  In a ‘Cabinet’ system, a small number of Councillors are responsible 
for implementing the Council’s policies and for service delivery, which should make it easier 
for people to see who is responsible for making decisions. 

 
 The main role of Overview and Scrutiny is to help improve the Council’s performance through 

monitoring and review, to look at decisions taken by the Cabinet to help develop and monitor 
the Council’s policies and strategies.  Overview and Scrutiny is based upon the model of 
Select Committees at Westminster.  It is an effective method by which Councillors who are 
not on the Cabinet can challenge and influence those making decisions. 

 
 There is no single definition of overview and scrutiny.  It therefore should be viewed as an 

umbrella term covering a wide range of possible roles. However, the four key legislative roles 
are: 

 
 � holding the Executive to account 
 � policy development and review 
 � best value reviews 
 � external scrutiny for example the health service 
 
 This suggests an emphasis towards: 
 
 � acting as a watchdog for Executive decision making 
 � checking on whether existing policies are effective and helping to share and develop 

new ones 
 � contributing toward the continuous improvement of Council services 
 � reviewing the investigating matters of particular concern either within the Council or 

within the community. 
 
 The scrutiny role also provides new opportunities for public involvement and debate.  This 

can support elected members in taking a community-orientated approach and bring new 
ideas and experience to scrutiny. 

 
 Council members and officers continue to learn about the best way forward for the Scrutiny 

process and are continually seeking to improve.  One of the biggest challenges remains how 
to generate more interest with the public, press and partners, by demonstrating that effective 
Scrutiny can make a difference. 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 12



 

 3 

3. Overview and Scrutiny in Chorley - A Background 
 
 The Council first established and appointed Overview and Scrutiny Committees in 

September 1999 as part of the proposals for the introduction of a new system of Executive 
Leader and Cabinet style of local governance.  Chorley was one of the first authorities to 
introduce its new political management arrangements.   

 
 The Council has recognised the key role Overview and Scrutiny has to play within its new 

modernised structure.  This role is emphasised in the overarching objectives for the Council’s 
overview and scrutiny functions. 

 
 The Council initially appointed two Overview and Scrutiny Committees to discharge the 

functions covering the whole of the Council’s services (one Committee overseeing the 
Service Group A and the other overseeing Service Group B) comprising 17 members, 
excluding those members who have Executive responsibilities and serve on the Executive 
Cabinet. 

 
 In May 2003, the Council established and appointed an Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

and three standing Overview and Scrutiny Panels.  The three standing panels were the 
Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel, the Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel and 
the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel.  The purpose of the Committee was to 
discharge the functions conferred by Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000 and any 
Regulations made by the Secretary of State under Section 32 of the Local Government Act 
2000.  The Committee and the Panels were expected to play an important role in ensuring 
that all the services of the Council are efficient and effective and meet the needs of the local 
community.   

 
 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee would normally refer a matter falling within the cross-

cutting theme of any of the Panels to the appropriate Panel for investigation and reference 
back to the Committee with recommendations.  As well as the Standing Panels, the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee could appoint additional ad hoc Overview and Scrutiny 
Panels to assist it in carrying out its functions should the need arise. 

 
 More recently the Council decided in May of this year to reduce the number of Panels down 

to two to bring them in line with the Council’s management structure for providing services - 
the Corporate and Customer Panel and the Environment and Community Panel. 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 13



 

 4 

4. Overview and Scrutiny Structure, Functions and Responsibilities  
 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 
The Committee has an overall responsibility for all 
scrutiny work including that undertaken by the three 
standing scrutiny panels.  
 
The Committee may exercise the full range of 
overview and scrutiny powers and functions 
including the ‘call-in’ of executive decisions. It  may 
consider any topic appropriate for scrutiny but will 
normally focus on: 

• Holding the Executive to account 

• Performance, resources and corporate 
governance matters 

• Consideration of recommendations from the 
standing scrutiny panels 

• Making recommendations to the Executive and/ 
or the Council flowing from its own work and that 
of the scrutiny panels 

• Setting and monitoring the annual scrutiny work 
programmes. 

• Selection of inquiry topics and approval of 
project outlines and plans. 

 
Matters falling within the crosscutting themes of the  
standing scrutiny panels will normally be referred to  
the relevant panel for full investigation and 
consideration. 
 
The Committee may appoint ad hoc scrutiny panels  
to assist it in carrying out its functions should the 
need arise.  

10 Members 
(including Chair + 3 Associate Chairs) 

* Associate Chair of Customer Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel is the Council’s 
representative on the County Council 
Committee responsible for the Health 
Scrutiny function. 
 

Community Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel 

 
Carries out scrutiny inquiries/tasks 
and make recommendations on 
findings to O&S Ctte in relation to: 
 

• Community Safety 

• Social Inclusion & Community 
Development. 

• Housing Strategy and Renewal 

• Economic Development/Tourism 

• Culture & Leisure  
 

10 Members 
(including 1 Associate Chair) 

Environment Overview and  
Scrutiny Panel 

 
Carries out scrutiny inquiries/tasks 
and make recommendations on 
findings to O&S Ctte in relation to: 
 

• Planning Matters 

• Highways and Transportation 

• Environment  

• Public Space 

• Sustainability 
 
 

10 Members 
(including 1 Associate Chair 

Customer Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel 

 
Carries out scrutiny inquiries/tasks 
and make recommendations on 
findings to O&S Ctte in relation to: 
 

• Customer Service  

• Housing Management 

• Service Standards  

• Customer Charter 

• E-Government 

• Health Matters* 
 

10 Members 
(including 1 Associate Chair) 

Ad Hoc Overview and Scrutiny 
Panels 

 
If appointed, carry out task and 
finish investigations and make 
recommendations on findings to 
O&S Ctte. 

The Structure of Overview and Scrutiny in Chorley for the period 2005/06.  This will be amended following its  
restructure in May 2006. 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 14



 

 5 

5. The Achievements and Activities 
 
 (a) Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
     Members 
     Councillor Eric Bell 
     Councillor Mrs Pat Case 
     Councillor Michael Davies 
     Councillor Peter Goldsworthy 
     Councillor Thomas McGowan (Associate Chair) 
     Councillor Raymond Parr 
     Councillor Mrs Stella Walsh (Associate Chair) 
     Councillor Mark Perks (Associate Chair 
     Councillor Mary Wilson 
  Chair 
  John Walker 
 
  Training and Development 
 
  The Committee continued to receive update reports on the training and development 

for Members.  It has highlighted the need for Members to have training in order to 
develop their existing skills and equip them to carry out their scrutiny roles in a robust 
and effective manner. 

 
  The Member Development Steering Group was established and the Council has 

developed training sessions for Members on a regular basis with a Member Learning 
Hour and training sessions prior to meetings of Development Control and sessions for 
members involved in Licensing activities. 

 
  It is envisaged that the Council will be seeking the award of the North West Elected 

Member Development Charter later this year. 
 
  Monitoring of Sickness Absence 
 
  The Committee received six monthly update reports from the Director of Human 

Resources on the sickness absence across the authority and the process of reducing 
absence within the authority. 

 
  There continues to be a reduced trend in sickness absence levels and improvements in 

the health and well-being of employees as well as the targeting of short-term persistent 
absence. 

 
  Inquiry into the Provision of Youth Activities in Chorley 
 
  At the beginning of the Municipal Year the Committee received from the Community 

Overview and Scrutiny Panel its draft final report and recommendations into the 
provision of youth activities in the Borough. 

 
  The recommendations contained in the report were aimed to enhance and complement 

facilities for sports, arts and cultural activities for young people by facilitating more 
effective co-ordination and co-operation between service providers and funding bodies 
and encouraging maximum use of current facilities. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 15



 

 6 

  Inquiry into the One Stop Shop 
 
  At the same time as the above report the Committee received the draft final report and 

recommendations of the Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel inquiry into the 
Council’s One Stop Shop. 

 
  The recommendations contained in the report had been formulated by the Panel to 

assess the effectiveness of the One Stop Shop in improving Customer Service and to 
identify improvements to customer service. 

 
  Budget Timetable and the Involvement of Overview and Scrutiny in the Budget Process 
 
  In September the Committee’s views were sought on the future role and involvement of 

the non-Executive Members in the scrutiny of the budget setting and monitoring 
process. 

 
  Members were reminded of the revised guidance in relation to the new Comprehensive 

Performance Assessment regime, which places greater emphasis and relevance on 
Authorities’ financial management processes and an internal ‘value for money’ 
assessment of the use of resources.  The Members of the Committee were asked to 
identify any particular area or key issue on which non-Executive Members should 
concentrate and how much the overview and scrutiny regime might contribute 
effectively to the budget setting process and subsequent performance management. 

 
  Late in January 2006 the Committee received the proposals for the budget for revenue 

spending and Council Tax for the General Fund for the 2006/07 financial year.  The 
purpose was to give initial consideration of the proposals and seek the Committees 
views on the Executive Cabinet draft budget proposals. 

 
  This was part of the consultation exercise and feedback would be received from the 

three Panels and review of the budget consultation documents. 
 
  The key issues and areas that non-executive Members could concentrate on had been 

chosen as the area of Environment Services, Planning Services and Revenues and 
Benefits.  They were examined in detail by the Panels responsible for the particular 
area.  These services had been identified by the Audit Commission as they appeared 
as upper quartile costs in the Value for Money Self Assessment.  A series of 
recommendations for the provision of improved comparative data were submitted to the 
Executive Cabinet in 2006 and were all approved. 

 
  Corporate Improvement Plan 2004 - 2007 
 
  The Committee continued to be consulted on the position in respect of the delivery of 

the Corporate Improvement Plan for 2004 - 2007, which showed good progress had 
been achieved across a broad range of areas and that many of the planned actions 
had been completed. 

 
  Revenue Budget/Capital Budget 2005/06 - Monitoring 
 
  The Committee received regular reports on the financial position of the Council 

compared against the budgets and efficiency saving targets it had set itself for 2005/06. 
 
  Reports on the additional schemes that had been made by the 2005/06 Capital 

Programme were made to the Committee. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 16



 

 7 

  Business Plan and Performance Monitoring 
 
  Every quarter the Committee received updates of the Business Plan relating to 

Corporate and Policy Services, Human Resources, Legal Services and Financial 
Services. 

 
  Members are able to discuss with the Service Head specific areas of concern and 

whether performance is being achieved. 
 
  Performance Management and the Role of Overview and Scrutiny 
 
  The Committee received in September 2005 a report clarifying the different roles and 

responsibilities of Executive and non-Executive Members in relation to performance 
and management.  The role and objectives of Overview and Scrutiny Members was 
identified as: 

 
  � Providing a check on the activities of the Executive through its ‘Call In’ powers. 
  � Involvement in policy development and monitoring and review of policy 

formulation and implementation within the community-planning framework. 
  � Involvement in improvement review. 
  � Scrutiny of external bodies and agencies. 
 
  In order to assist the roles of Members the Committee have received quarterly reports 

on both the Corporate Plan Key Performance Indicators and Best Value Performance 
Indicators (BVPIs).  In addition, quarterly Business Plan updates were presented to the 
Committee and the three Panels. 

 
  Timetable of Meeting 
 
  In February 2006 the Committee was given a chance to comment on the draft timetable 

of meetings for the 2006/07 Municipal Year, proposing the dates for meetings of the 
Council, Executive Cabinet, Overview and Scrutiny Committee/Panels, the various 
Committees, Area  Forum Pilots and Liaison Groups. 

 
  To enable the comments of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be reported to 

and taking into account by the Executive Cabinet, meetings of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee would be held two days prior to the Executive Cabinet. 

 
  Consultation Papers 
 
  Over the months the Committee has been requested for its views and comments on 

various Consultation papers. 
 
  More recently the Committee has been asked to respond to a paper issued by the 

Office of the Deputy Prime Minister entitled ‘Local Strategic Partnership : Shaping their 
Future’ which raised a number of questions in relation to the future role of Local 
Strategic Partnerships (LSP’s) and suggestions as to how the Council should respond 
to the paper. 

 
  Other Consultation papers received related to the changes of the Strategic Health 

Authority, The Primary Care Trusts and the Ambulance Service NHS Trusts in 
Lancashire and Cumbria, and a Consultation paper produced by Lancashire City 
Council entitled ‘Plan for all the Children and Young People in Lancashire’. 

 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 17



 

 8 

(b) Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 
     Members 
     Councillor Thomas Bedford 
     Councillor Andrew Birchall 
     Councillor Peter Buckley 
     Councillor Lesley Brownlee 
     Councillor Francis Culshaw 
     Councillor Mrs Marie Gray 
     Councillor Gregory Morgan 
     Councillor Mrs Iris Smith 
     Councillor Alan Whittaker 
  Chairman 
  Mark Perks 
 
   The areas of responsibility of the Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel relate to: 
 
  ● Community Safety 
  ● Social Inclusion and Community Development 
  ● Housing Strategy and Renewal 
  ● Economic Development and Tourism 
  ● Culture and Leisure 
 
 The Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel met 8 times during 2005/06. 
 
 At the beginning of the year the Panel received an update on the progress that had been 

made to implement the recommendations contained in the Panel’s Inquiry report into 
Juvenile Nuisance.  The actions that had been so far instigated had been pleasing in view of 
the constraints caused by the limited resources and capacity of a number of the 
organisations and agencies with whom collaboration to effect the implementation of a 
number of the recommendations is dependent.  In view of this the Panel urged officers to 
actively encourage these bodies to commit adequate funding for suggested projects. 

 
 Public Participation in the Council’s Decision-Making Process 
 
 Throughout the year the Panel has been charged to examine in depth the process of public 

participation in the Council’s decision-making process. 
 
 The Panel was charged with conducting an investigation into the means by which the Council 

can more effectively engaged with the local community on the provision of services by 
specifically investigating the possible provision of Area Forums or Committees (after taking 
account of the experiences of the 3 Area Forum Pilot Schemes in Clayton-le-Woods North, 
Coppull and Lostock) and introduction of public speaking at meetings of the Council and its 
Committee bodies on a trial basis. 

 
 Two Sub-Groups were established to examine the two separate strands of the inquiry, with 

Members of the two Sub-Groups charged with responsibility to visit a number of surrounding 
local authorities to examine at first hand the operating arrangements and perceived 
effectiveness of the respective Authorities’ specific arrangements and report their findings to 
the Panel.  The Area Forum Working Group established by the Council was invited to 
accompany the Members of the two Sub-Groups on their visits. 

 
 Throughout the year the Panel received reports from a number of Members on their 

reactions to and comments on their visits to a number of Area Forums, Council meetings and 
Planning Committees in surrounding Districts as part of the evidence gathering for the 
inquiry. 

 

 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 18



 

 9 

 Visits had been made to appropriate meetings of Pendle, South Ribble, Hyndburn, Ribble 
Valley and Rossendale Borough Councils and West Lancashire District Council. 

 
 The Panel, after assessing survey evidence and Members experience of neighbouring 

Authorities practices have agreed to support recommendations to allow the public to speak at 
meetings of the Council, Executive Cabinet, Development Control Committee and the 
Overview and Scrutiny bodies within specific parameters.  The Development Control 
Committee has indicated its support of the proposals to allow the public to speak at meetings 
of the Committee within restrictions defined in agreed Procedure Rules. 

 
 Following the changes in the Council’s political leadership and to the Overview and Scrutiny 

structure it is intended that the Scrutiny Inquiry will be concluded by a Special Cabinet Sub-
Committee comprising of former members of the Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel. 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 19



 

 10 

(c) Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 
     Members 
     Councillor Alan Cullens 
     Councillor Mrs Doreen Dickinson 
     Councillor Margaret Lees 
     Councillor Peter Malpas 
     Councillor Miss June Molyneaux 
     Councillor Geoffrey Russell 
     Councillor Edward Smith 
     Councillor Mrs Joyce Snape 
     Councillor Christopher Snow 
  Chair 
  Mrs Stella Walsh 
 
 The areas of responsibilities of the Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel relate to: 
 
 � Customer Service 
 � Housing Management 
 � Service Standards 
 � Customer Charter 
 � e-government 
 � Health Matters 
 
 The Panel met 9 times during 2005/06. 
 
 One Stop Shop Inquiry 
 
 At the beginning of the year the Panel received an update on the actions taken following the 

recommendations from the inquiry into the Council’s ‘One Stop Shop’ service at the Union 
Street offices.  The service objective was ‘to provide customers with a single point of access 
to Council and partner services using their preferred method of contact and to provide a 
quality service that fully meets customer requirements’. 

 
 The Council and its staff have subsequently received an Excellent rating following the 

Customer Access and Focus Best Value Inspection and the award of Chartermark for 
Customer Services. 

 
 Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement Inquiry 
 
 Throughout the year the Panels main focus of attention was on the ongoing Inquiry in to the 

Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement. 
 
 The main objectives of the inquiry was: 
 
 � to investigate the effectiveness of Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement (DPE) 
 � to assess the impact the introduction of the Parkwise scheme has had on residents, 

visitors, motorists, trades and business 
 � to compare with Best Practice elsewhere 
 � to identify any future improvements for customer service 
 
 The Inquiry had been called following the receipt over a period of time of complaints 

regarding the enforcement of car parking in Chorley. 
 
 Several Sub-Groups were established to consider evidence in detail and submitted reports to 

the Panel which formed part of the evidence. 
 

 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 20



 

 11 

 In September 2005 a public survey was undertaken with the results showing that the 
positives outweighed the negatives.  The main challenge for the Panel was to improve the 
public perception of Parking Attendants. 

 
 Through the inquiry there had been articles and letters in the press, with Members feeling 

that some of the comments were not helpful to the vitality of Chorley Town Centre. 
 
 Members visited Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council as Decriminalisation of Parking 

Enforcement had operated for a number of years to consider Best Practice and their lessons 
learned. 

 
 The inquiry report will be submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and to the 

Executive Cabinet on 27 and 29 June 2006 respectively. 
 
 Several of the recommendations, including a sticker to highlight which side of the Blue Badge 

(for disabled drivers) should be displayed, have already been implemented across 
Lancashire. 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 21



 

 12 

(d) Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 
     Members 
     Councillor David Dickinson 
     Councillor Thomas Gray 
     Councillor Henry Caunce 
     Councillor Harold Heaton 
     Councillor Miss Margaret Iddon 
     Councillor Roy Lees 
     Councillor Marion Lowe 
     Councillor Roger Livesey 
     Councillor Shaun Smith 
  Chair 
  Thomas McGowan 
 
 The areas of responsibility of the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel relate to: 
 
 � Planning 
 � Highways and Transportation 
 � Environment 
 � Public Space and Sustainability 
 
 The Environment Overview and Scrutiny Panel has met eight times during the 2005/06 

Municipal Year. 
 
 Accessibility of Cycling as a Leisure Pursuit 
 
 Continuing on from last year the Panel has been gathering evidence for the accessibility of 

cycling as a leisure pursuit with the main objectives being: 
 
 � to assess the dual use of areas (ie recreation grounds, car parks, parkland) 
 � to highlight the areas of development and improvement 
 � to identify the current areas and can they be extended 
 � to reduce confrontation between the various activities 
 
 Several witnesses have been called to give evidence on the various activities associated with 

the inquiry. 
 
 The Panel considered that the Inquiry had gone on long enough and was a topic that could 

run and run without coming to any real conclusion. 
 
 A number of recommendations and findings had come out of the Inquiry.  These will result in 

raising awareness of confrontation between the various leisure activities, as well as bringing 
potential funding for cycling schemes in the Chorley area. 

 
 Business Plan 2005/06 
 
 Like the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and other Panels, Business Plans were submitted 

for Members to comment on the services provided under the responsibility of the Panel. 
 
 Particular attention was paid to the implementation of the Enhanced Recycling Scheme 

following the introduction of the second and final phases and the associated move to attempt 
weekly collection of an increased range of recyclable materials. 

 
 During its implementation the scheme design had been substantially amended which meant 

that promised delivery of the service to the rural and difficult access households could be 
delivered. 

 

 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 22



 

 13 

 
 As part of the 2006/07 Budget process, the Environmental Services budget was chosen to be 

reviewed as the service had been identified to be looked at in more detail because it 
appeared as upper quartile costs in the Value for Money (VFM) Self Assessment undertaken 
by the Audit Commission. 

 
 The Panel received detailed findings of the Audit Commissions review of costs undertaken 

as part of their use of resources value for money review. 
 
 The exercise allowed the Panel the opportunity to establish if the Council’s policy objectives 

are being met and if the benchmark findings are a means of the reality of Member and 
Stakeholders experience. 

 
 A number of comments came out of the review and submitted to the Executive Cabinet as 

part of the 2006/07 budget consultation process.  These would be reviewed over 2006/07. 
 
 Sustainable Resources 
 
 Recently the Panel had been given the task to pursue the use of renewable energy within the 

Borough and the area the Council would take a lead on this issue on a cost neutral basis and 
this matter will be considered during the compilation of the Overview and Scrutiny Work 
Programme for 2006/07. 

 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 23



 

 14 

6. What has the Work of Overview and Scrutiny led to? 
 
 The work of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Panels have led to improvements in 

the Council’s services, in the value for money that it provides. 
 
 Contributions have been made to: 
 
 (a) ensuring that the objectives and actions in the Council’s plans and strategies are more 

focused and relate to the Council’s providers 
 
 (b) ensuring that the Council’s targets and outturns are achieved 
 
 (c) ensuring that performance reports are submitted and that it is easier to see where 

services are improving 
 
 (d) ensuring a greater emphasis on member training 
 
 In addition the work of the Committee and its Panels has identified what the Council is doing 

well and where action is needed to improve the delivery of Customer Services at the One 
Stop Shop and the Council’s grass cutting service. 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 24



 

 15 

7. The Way Forward 
 
 As can be seen from this third Annual Overview and Scrutiny report, like the previous years it 

has been a busy one for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Panels.  A number of 
inquiries have been undertaken and completed as well as smaller reviews.  If Overview and 
Scrutiny is to be see as workable it must be seen to be making a difference to the 
organisation.  The ultimate test of effectiveness of overview and scrutiny is not how much 
work is done but whether the decision (or policies or services) which result from its 
intervention are better than those which would have resulted had that intervention not taken 
place. 

 
 The Comprehensive Performance Assessment identified a number of weaknesses in the 

Overview and Scrutiny processes and these are being addressed. 
 
 The following subjects will assist in the development of Overview and Scrutiny: 
 
 � Continuing the monitoring and progress of the recommendations for inquiries. 
 � Ensure that there is appropriate induction and training for Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee Members especially to any new Members on the Council following the 
elections. 

 � Ensure that there is awareness training to all members and relevant officers to promote 
an understanding of the role and importance of Overview and Scrutiny. 

 � To continue to consider the issues raised from the Comprehensive Performance 
Assessment. 

 � to continue to improve the holding of the Executive to account. 
 
 A positive step forward was made in October 2005 when a workshop session was held for all 

Members of the Council, Management Team and Senior Management Group to complete the 
Centre for Public Scrutiny Self Evaluation framework for the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny 
function and enable the production of an Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan.   

 
 The Self-Assessment provided a picture of how the Scrutiny function was operating, what it 

does well and how improvements could be made. 
 
 Coming out of the Self Evaluation Workshop has been publishing of an Overview and 

Scrutiny Improvement Plan which forms part of the Council’s Performance Management 
process.  The Plan has been compiled taking account of outcomes of the workshop. 

 
 The Improvement Plan identifies 13 actions aimed at improving the delivery of the Council’s 

Overview and Scrutiny action.  The action required to be undertaken in order to: 
 
 � ensure that the Plan adds value to the Council’s wider improvement programme and 

delivery of the Corporate Strategy and Community Strategy; 
 � communicate the potential of scrutiny to local communities; 
 � encourage involvement in the process of scrutiny; 
 � strengthen the confidence of persons undertaking scrutiny activities; 
 � demonstrate the value of the scrutiny role. 
 
 The Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan will be kept up to date and will form the key 

control document for the Executive Cabinet and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 
ensure that our plans are kept on track. 

 
 The Overview and Scrutiny Toolkit will be reviewed to reflect the changes that have been 

made since it was introduced. 
 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 25



 

 16 

 Each of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Panels agree a work programme.  This is 
a standing agenda item for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and in this way Members 
can routinely monitor progress. 

 
 For the next Municipal Year 2006/07 the work programme will be linked to items in the 

Council’s Corporate Strategy. 
 
 The work programme will be based on the following: 
 
 � The issue must be related to the Council’s priorities. 
 � It must be of concern to elected members and members of the public. 
 � It should not be under review by any other body. 
 � It is an issue about which something can be done and which scrutiny can add value. 
 
 The Council continues to meet officers/Councillors from neighbouring authorities by way of 

the North West Scrutiny Support Officers Network and the Lancashire Scrutiny Parties 
Forum. 

 
 The principle source of support is from the Democratic Services Section where all Overview 

and Scrutiny members can seek advice and guidance.  In addition to the traditional 
‘Committee’ functions the officers also provide the research and analysis to Overview and 
Scrutiny. 

 
 Information regarding each Inquiry report and their recommendations as well as the regular 

updates on the Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan can be available for inspection on 
either the Council’s website www.chorley.gov.uk/scrutiny or on deposit in the Democratic 
Services Section. 

 
 

Agenda Item 4Agenda Page 26



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Final Report of the Customer OFinal Report of the Customer OFinal Report of the Customer OFinal Report of the Customer Overview and verview and verview and verview and 

Scrutiny Panel into Decriminalisation of Scrutiny Panel into Decriminalisation of Scrutiny Panel into Decriminalisation of Scrutiny Panel into Decriminalisation of 

Parking Enforcement Parking Enforcement Parking Enforcement Parking Enforcement     

June 2006 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 27



 

 Page 2 

CONTENTS PAGE 
 

1. PREFACE .......................................................................................... 3 

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY/LIST OF RECOMMENDATIONS AND 
COSTS .............................................................................................. 4 

3. INTRODUCTION .............................................................................. 11 

4. METHOD OF INVESTIGATION ....................................................... 12 

5.  FINDINGS ........................................................................................ 15 

6. CONCLUSION ................................................................................. 29 

7. APPENDICES .................................................................................. 30 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 28



 

 Page 3 

1. PREFACE 
 

At the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee the Customer Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel was asked to investigate the effectiveness of the Decriminalisation of 
Parking Enforcement, which came into effect in September 2004.  The Panel was also 
asked to assess the impact the introduction of the Parkwise Scheme had on residents, 
visitors, motorists, traders and businesses in Chorley and to identify any future 
improvements for customer service. 
 
The Panel has now completed the Inquiry and the recommendations will be forwarded to 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for their consideration and then to the Executive 
Committee for final approval. 
 
May I take this opportunity, on behalf of the Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel, to 
thank all who took part in this Inquiry. 

 

STELLA M WALSH 
CHAIR - CUSTOMER PANEL 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 29



 

 Page 4 

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY/LIST OF RECOMMENDATIONS AND COSTS  
 

The Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel undertook a Scrutiny Inquiry into the 
Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement. 
 
The objective of the Inquiry was to investigate the effectiveness of Decriminalisation of 
Parking Enforcement in Chorley, to assess the impact the introduction of the Parkwise 
scheme has had on residents, visitors, motorists, traders and businesses; to compare with 
best practice elsewhere and to identify any future improvements for customer service. 
 
During the late 1980’s, police forces across England and Wales were under increasing 
pressure to provide more officers on the beat and this led to redeployment of Traffic 
Wardens.  As a result of this, Central Government passed the Road Traffic Act 1991.  
Lancashire Constabulary gradually reduced their Traffic Wardens over the years, and in 
2001 gave formal notice to Lancashire County Council that all enforcement of parking by 
police would cease on 5th April 2004.  In response to this, Lancashire County Council, as 
the Highway Authority, and after consultation with all the Districts, applied to Department for 
Transport for the powers to carry out Decriminalised Parking Enforcement across the 
county. This came into effect on 6th September 2004.   
 
Lancashire County Council devolved responsibility to the district Councils for the day to day 
running of Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement.  Operational matters relating to the 
Parking Attendants would be dealt with in each district between the Parking Manager and 
the Area Manager for the contractor (National Car Parks).  Parkwise were a department of 
Lancashire County Council and not a private contractor.   
 
It should be noted that the implementation of Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement in 
Lancashire was the first time a County Council and a number of district councils have 
operated Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement in a partnership arrangement.  As there 
are 12 districts and the County Council this was a complex operation over a large area. 
 
A high proportion of Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement was governed by statute.  
The old system could not be resurrected once it was in place.  The procedure for the 
issuing of Penalty Charge Notices and the way that appeals were dealt with was, in the 
main, set out in statute.  There were road safety reasons for Traffic Regulation Orders such 
as the flow of traffic, pedestrian and driver visibility and to prevent vehicles being an 
obstruction at junctions.  
 
The approach of the Parking Attendants a year in to Decriminalisation of Parking 
Enforcement has developed into a more relaxed style, especially with members of the 
public.  It was noted that some of the initial criticism might have been justified.   
 
The investigations have highlighted key points, including: 

• There were no targets set for the number of Penalty Charge Notices issued.  The 
motorists set the number of Penalty Charge Notices issued as if no one parked in 
contravention no notices would be issued.  

• Less than 1% of Pay and Display tickets bought received a Penalty Charge Notice. 

• A Parking Attendant issued a Penalty Charge Notice based on the information 
available to them.  

 
 

• Ongoing interest from the press must be expected in relation to Decriminalisation of 
Parking Enforcement.  On the day of the site visit to Sefton Borough Council, 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 30



 

 Page 5 

Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement was front-page news in the local paper 
five years after implementation.   

• Preston, Burnley and Lancaster deploy a higher percentage of Parking Attendants 
per head of population than Chorley.  There were 7 Parking Attendants deployed at 
any one time in Chorley. 

• Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement was self-financing and would not cost 
Chorley Borough Council anything as the costs were carried over until it made a 
surplus.   

• Parking Attendants provided other services to the public such as, directions, where 
disabled drivers could and could not park, where to purchase things, lost property 
such as keys and delivered residents parking permits.  Parking Attendants reported 
faulty lighting, broken glass and litter and looked after people if they were taken ill.   

• Blue Badge holders received a high proportion of the Penalty Charge Notices 
issued.  This was partly due to confusion over which side of the badge should be 
displayed.  It was a security risk if people displayed the wrong side as it displayed a 
photograph of the disable person.   

• There are instances where Parking Attendants were physically and verbally 
assaulted.   

• The suggested alternatives to pay and display car parks were not suitable for 
Chorley.   

 
Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel Membership 
Councillor Mrs. S Walsh (Chair) Councillor Miss J Molyneaux 
Councillor A Cullens  Councillor Russell 
Councillor Mrs. D Dickinson Councillor E Smith 
Councillor M Lees  Councillor Mrs. J Snape 
Councillor Malpas Councillor C Snow 
 
Officer Support 
Lead Officer  
Mr. Iain Price  Parking Manager  
 
Democratic Services  
Miss Ruth Hawes Assistant Democratic Services Officer 
 
Contribution of Evidence 
The Panel would like to thank Members of the Public, Chorley Borough Councillors, Parish 
Councillors and representatives of the Disability Liaison Group, the Markets Liaison Group 
and the Town Centre Forum who have provided evidence and contributed to the Inquiry.  
The Panel would also like to thank officers of Sefton Borough Council, representatives from 
the contractor (National Car Parks) and Councillor D Gee (Executive Member for Traffic 
and Transportation) for their contributions to the inquiry.  

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 31



 

 Page 6 

Recommendations  
 
The Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel, after taking account of all the evidence, 
recommend the following: 
 
Recommendations to Chorley Borough Council 
1. That it be noted that in the early stages there was some cause for concern that 

generated media interest.  There have been improvements since the Inquiry has been 
ongoing.  Recommendations 4, 5, 6, 11c have already begun.   

Cost: There are no costs associated with this recommendation.   

2. That the Director of Customer, Legal and Democratic Services be requested to resolve 
the outstanding issues in relation to the agency agreement as soon as possible.  

Cost: Officer time (Chorley Borough Council). 

3. That the Parking Manager liaise with the contractor (National Car Parks) to ensure that 
Parking Attendants make a note of circumstances when a driver returned to their 
vehicle, had been issued with a Penalty Charge Notice and was encouraged by the 
Parking Attendant to follow the appeals procedure.   

Cost: Officer time (Chorley Borough Council/(National Car Parks). 
4. That the Parking Manager liaise with the contractor (National Car Parks) to ensure that 

Parking Attendants record verbal abuse on the hand held equipment and in the pocket 
book.   

Cost: Officer time (Chorley Borough Council/National Car Parks). 

5. That the Parking Manager liaise with the contractor (National Car Parks) to ensure that 
Parking Attendants use a leaflet showing additional information as to why a Penalty 
Charge Notice had been issued to Blue Badge holders, similar to that used in Bolton.   

Cost: Lancashire County Council have taken up this idea and will produce the leaflets 
for all Lancashire districts.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6. That the Parking Manager meet the Parking Attendants on their first day of employment 
to highlight certain points, for example, the importance of customer services. 

Cost: Officer time (Chorley Borough Council). 

7. That the Director of Streetscene, Neighbourhoods and Environment initiate Traffic 
Regulation Orders on the zig zag lines in front of schools in Chorley in conjunction with 
the “safer routes to school” initiative with Lancashire County Council.  

Cost: Officer time, around £500 per advert per Traffic Regulation Order.  There were 
six schools interested in this.  (Chorley Borough Council).   

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 32



 

 Page 7 

 

8. To undertake the following to address the negative perception of the public in relation to 
Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement: 

b, That the Director of Policy and Performance include a question relating to 
Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement on any suitable surveys, with the citizens’ 
panel to identify any concerns that the community have. 
Cost: Officer time. (Chorley Borough Council). 
c, That the Parking Manager distribute of publicity leaflets to local businesses and 
market traders such as, “pavements are for people” and “parking tips” to educate 
drivers that they can return to the vehicle and purchase additional time.   
Cost: The leaflets have been designed and printed in house (Chorley Borough 
Council).   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
d, That the Parking Manager arrange for a sign to be erected on site where revenue 
from Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement had funded projects, for example, 
road safety schemes.  
Cost: £500 per sign, the total cost would depend on the number of funded projects 
(Chorley Borough Council).   
e, That the Parking Manager place a helpline number on all of the car park tariff 
boards to enable the public to report faults or problems to the contractor (National 
Car Parks). 
Cost: £200 in total (Chorley Borough Council).   
f, That a leaflet be produced showing where the Car parks were in Chorley.  The 
leaflet to be produced by an external company but co-designed with the Council 
with sponsored adverts in from local businesses.  The leaflets to be distributed to 
local businesses, Market Traders and the One Stop Shop.   
Cost: Officer time (Chorley Borough Council).  
g, That if an infomercial, or a new corporate video, was produced references should 
be made to Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement. 

Cost: Corporate cost. 

9. That the Parking Manager trial the use of mystery shoppers with Internal Audit.  The 
Panel would monitor the results and regularity of mystery shoppers.  A dispensation 
could be given to allow a vehicle to park in contravention on a car park allowing the 
mystery shopper to assess: 

• Whether a vehicle parked in contravention was issued with a Penalty Charge 
Notice, 

• How the customer was dealt with,  

• The quality of information given by the Parking Attendant and  

• How the appeal was dealt with by Parkwise. 

Cost: £5 levy per Penalty Charge Notice and officer time (Chorley Borough Council) 

10. That the Director of Streetscene, Neighbourhoods and Environment write to all Chorley 
Borough Councillors and Parish Councillors requesting that any requests for parking 
enforcement be made to the Parking Manager on an annual basis.  
Cost: Officer time and postage (Chorley Borough Council).  
 
 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 33



 

 Page 8 

11. That the Parking Manager organise spot checks by Parking Attendants in residents 
parking areas out of hours, especially in the summer months. 

Cost: Officer time (Chorley Borough Council). 

12. To support the recent trial of a Parking Attendant using a scooter in the rural areas.  

 Cost: This information is commercially sensitive. 

13. That the Parking Manager, in conjunction with the Director of Human Resources, create 
a welcome pack for new Parking Attendants, including the Customer Charter and useful 
numbers including the Parkwise helpline, Borough Council Contact Centre and Police.   

Cost: Officer time, in house printing (Chorley Borough Council). 
 

Recommendations to Lancashire County Council  
14. That Lancashire County Council Social Services be requested to highlight which side of 

the Blue Badge should be displayed using a sticker.   
Cost to Lancashire County Council £100 for 3,500 stickers.  (This would commence in 
June 2006).   

8. To undertake the following to address the negative perception of the public in relation to 
Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement: 

a, To request Lancashire County Council to produce a marketing toolkit for use by 
the districts, for example posters, leaflets, bus or radio advertising.   
Cost to Lancashire County Council: The cost would depend on the size of the 
project.  It is estimated between £5 and £10,000. 

15. That Lancashire County Council be requested to create a recognised permit for 
registered carers within Chorley and South Ribble Primary Care Trust area.   

Cost to Lancashire County Council: Officer time, production of permit.    

 
Recommendations to the contractor (National Car Parks)  
16. That the contractor (National Car Parks), in conjunction with Lancashire County Council 

be requested to review the Parking Attendant uniform  

Cost: (The cost would be shared between Lancashire County Council and the 
Districts).  This information is commercially sensitive.   

17. To support the use of technology to enhance service provision, for example, the use of 
electronic hand held devices.  

Cost: Ongoing costs. (The Contractor). 
 

Recommendations to the Department for Transport  
18. To support the following recommendations of the Childs report: 

That the British Parking Association invites the Department for Transport: 
To undertake urgent work to make more widely known the link between road safety, 
free flow of traffic and kerb space management and parking control (R1). 
To seek from Local Authorities a full and audited annual disclosure which identifies 
income, expenditure and those specific areas in which any Decriminalisation of 
Parking Enforcement surpluses have been spent and the benefit they bring to all 
stakeholders and  
Prescribe a national model for how this information should be provided and ensure 
that it was in a form that was easily understood (R2). 
To specifically encourage the adoption of an appropriately balanced Model Contract 
for use by Local Authorities and contractors (R4). 
To require Local Authorities to undertake regular and local public opinion surveys 
into parking controls and Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement and identify key 
concerns the community have (R5).   
To develop a communication strategy around parking control and Decriminalisation 
of Parking Enforcement aimed at improving the public understanding and perception 
of them (R6).  
To consider how parking control and enforcement and the benefits they bring can 
be better represented in the Highway Code (R7).  
To require Local Authorities to undertake regular audits of traffic regulation orders 
and signs to ensure that they remain relevant and necessary and signs are 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 34



 

 Page 9 

accurate, understandable and visible and that changes needed in regulations be 
made within a published time frame (R12).   
To emphasise to Local Authorities the importance of regular reviews of traffic 
regulation orders and signage and seek the publication of a plan to achieve this 
(R13).  
To consider whether through legislation, the name “Parking Attendant” should be 
changed to better reflect the role of such staff on the street (R15). 
To consider ways in which it can be made obligatory to Parking Attendants to have 
undergone independently assessed training e.g. through the new City and Guilds 
qualification, either before appointment or within a set period of being appointed 
(R17).  
To support an approach to the Home Office to explore how the victimisation of 
Parking Attendants might be made a higher priority for the Police (R23).  
To urge Local Authorities to fully investigate and respond to requests to have a 
penalty charge notice withdrawn on receipt of the first communication from the 
driver (R32).  
To urge Local Authorities to reinstate a full 14-day discount period if a road user can 
satisfy them that he/she did not receive the original Penalty Charge Notice (R33). 
To encourage Local Authorities to publish annually the  

• Number of Penalty Charge Notices issued each year 

• Number of Penalty Charge Notices paid at the reduced rate  

• Number of requests for Penalty Charge Notices to be withdrawn before the 
Notice to Owner was issued (R34) 

• Number of formal representation made and allowed 

• Time taken to respond to all requests  
To collaborate with the British Parking Association in undertaking research to 
establish the most effective way of providing National good practice in parking 
control and the development of a good practice guide (R41).  
That the British Parking Association 
Explores the way in which the status and recognition given to Parking Attendants 
can be improved (R14). 
Engages with specialist training advisors and reviews whether the levels of 
interpersonal skills and conflict resolution training in the Parking Attendant training 
syllabus was sufficient for the role they perform (R18).  
Encourage Local Authorities and contractors who employ Parking Attendants, to 
provide specific financial support for those who wish to undertake job related and 
externally validated training, if the employer does not provide suitable training (R19).  
Approach the Association of Chief Police Officers and seek to develop an enhanced 
response in case of Parking Attendant victimisation (R22).  
Considers the establishment of an appropriate qualification for parking managers as 
a development on its work on training for Parking Attendants (R28). 
And  
That there was no change in the level of discretion given to Parking Attendants “on 
the street” (R27). 
Cost: Officer time (Chorley Borough Council). 

19. That the Department for Transport be requested to develop a guide to parking to be 
sent to drivers with their drivers license and to consider parking issues in more detail in 
the driving test.   

Cost: Officer time (Chorley Borough Council). 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 35



 

 Page 10 

Total Cost Implications  
 

Authority  Recommendations  Cost  Total £ 

Chorley Borough 
Council 

2, 3, 4, 6, 7, 18, 19, 
8b, 8c, 8d, 8e, 8f, 
8g, 9, 16, 10, 11, 
13 

Officer time,  
 
 

 

 8b, 8c, 13 In house printing  

 8b, 8c, 13 In house design   

 7,  
 

£500 per advert x 6 
schools = £3,000.  

£3,000. 

 8d,  
 
 

Depending on how 
many projects are 
funded £500 per 
sign  

£500 per sign 

 8e,  £200 in total.  £200 in total. 

 8g Corporate 
Communications  

 

 9,  
 

£5 levy per Penalty 
Charge Notice 

£5 levy per Penalty 
Charge Notice 

 16,  Cost of uniform 
(commercially 
sensitive) 

 

 10, Postage £22 £22 

 12,  Cost of scooter hire 
(commercially 
sensitive) 

 

Lancashire County 
Council 

14, 5, 8a, 16, 15 Officer time,   

 5 
 
 

In-house design 
and printing  
 

 

 14 
 

£100 for 3,500 
stickers 

£100 

 8a,  
 
 

Depending on 
project size £5,000 
to £10,000 

£5,000 to £10,000 

 16, 
 

Cost of uniform  
 

 

 15 Production of 
permit 

 

Contractor 
(National Car 
Parks) 

3, 4, 16,  
 

Officer time,  
 

 

 17 Ongoing costs  

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 36



 

 Page 11 

3. INTRODUCTION 
 

Background 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee referred an Inquiry entitled Decriminalisation of 
Parking Enforcement to the Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel.   
 
The subject of the Inquiry came to the attention of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
on 6 January 2005 after a suggestion by Councillor Mrs I Smith, scoring three for 
importance (Good evidence linking topic to Council’s key aims and priorities) and four for 
impact (Substantial potential benefits community wide or for a significant proportion or 
section of the community) in the scrutiny topic selection assessment criteria set out in the 
Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Toolkit.  
 
Aims/objectives 
The Panel’s aims and objectives for the scrutiny Inquiry were identified as follows: 
 
(a) To investigate the effectiveness of Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement in 

Chorley,  
(b) To assess the impact the introduction of the Parkwise scheme has had on 

residents, visitors, motorists, traders and businesses. 
(c) To compare with Best Practice elsewhere.  
(d) To identify any future improvements for customer service. 
 
Terms of Reference 
The terms of reference for the Inquiry were: 
 
(a) To conduct an investigation into Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement and 

Parkwise and to identify (if any) improvements to the service. 
(b) To assess the current service provision. 
(c) To report on the investigations findings and make recommendation initially to 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee consistent with the Inquiry’s objectives and 
desired outcomes. 

 
Inquiry Project Outline  
The Panel completed the “Overview and Scrutiny Inquiry Project Outline”.  This document 
was Appendix A to this report. 
 
Desired Outcome 
The Panel hoped firstly, to identify methods to show Decriminalisation of Parking 
Enforcement and Parkwise as reasonable and customer friendly to residents and visitors to 
the town and, secondly, to maximize operational efficiency of the service. 

 

General Information 

Information on Chorley Borough Council’s overview and scrutiny toolkit policies and 
procedures can be found on the Council’s website: www.chorley.gov.uk/scrutiny 
 
 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 37



 

 Page 12 

4. METHOD OF INVESTIGATION 
 
Documentary Evidence 

The Panel received and considered several reports and documents, these included:  

• Background information on Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement and Parkwise 

• Penalty Charge Notice statistics: On street/Off street (on car parks), Appeals 
successful/not successful and Appeals by offence 

• Comparisons with other local authorities in Lancashire for numbers of tickets, 
numbers of Parking Attendants, number of Penalty Charge Notices issued and 
cancelled  

• Information relating to Disabled Badge holders  

• A summary of letters to the local press  

• The recommendations of the Childs report (an independent report commissioned by 
the British Parking Association)  

• The training manuals for the Parking Attendants produced by the contractor 

• Evidence submitted by the public  

 
The Scrutiny Inquiry Information Checklist (Appendix B) details the written documents 
assessed by the Panel.  
 
Witnesses 
The Panel consulted the Disability Liaison Group on 21 November 2005, the Town Centre 
Forum on 7 December 2005 and the Markets Liaison Group on 21 February 2006 and 
considered the views and experiences that were shared.  
 
The Panel, at its meeting on 7 December 2005, interviewed the following persons:  

• Contract Manager for Lancashire 

• Contract Supervisor 

• Communications Officer, Chorley Borough Council 

• Accountant for Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement, Chorley Borough 
Council 

The Panel, at its meeting on 22 March 2006, interviewed Councillor Mrs. I Smith and the 
Deputy Director of Legal Services.  On 6 April 2006 the Panel discussed the issues raised 
during the Inquiry and the draft recommendations with Councillor D Gee (Executive 
Member for Traffic and Transportation).  

 
A copy of the Scrutiny Inquiry Witness Checklist was attached to the report as Appendix C.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 38



 

 Page 13 

Research  

 

Members of the public, Chorley Borough Councillors and Parish Councils, completed a 
questionnaire, undertaken by Beacon Research, in relation to Decriminalisation of Parking 
Enforcement.   
 
The Panel undertook a site visit to Sefton Borough Council, as an authority who had 
implemented Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement five years ago.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Members and Officers during the site visit to Sefton Borough Council.  
 
Panel Meetings  
 
The agendas, reports and minutes of the Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel held on 
9 August 2005, 17 August 2005, 7 September 2005, 5 October 2005, 9 November 2005, 
24 November 2005, 7 December 2005, 22 March and 6 April can be found on the 
Councils website: www.chorley.gov.uk 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 39



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 40



2
0
/0

6
/0

6
 

1
5
 

5
.  

F
IN

D
IN

G
S

  
 O

b
je

c
ti

v
e

/K
e

y
 I

s
s

u
e

 1
 T

o
 i

n
v
e

s
ti

g
a

te
 t

h
e

 e
ff

e
c

ti
v
e

n
e

s
s

 o
f 

D
e

c
ri

m
in

a
li

s
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
P

a
rk

in
g

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 C
h

o
rl

e
y
, 

 E
v
id

e
n

c
e
 

F
in

d
in

g
s
  

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 
P

a
n
e
l 
9
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
0
5
 

S
u
b
-G

ro
u
p
 7

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

C
o
n
tr

a
ry

 t
o
 p

o
p
u
la

r 
b
e
lie

f 
P

a
rk

w
is

e
 w

a
s
 a

 d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 n

o
t 
a
 p

ri
v
a
te

 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r.
  
P

ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
c
ri
m

in
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

a
rk

in
g

 E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
4
 t

h
e
re

 h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 1

.5
 f
u
ll 

ti
m

e
 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 

P
o
lic

e
 T

ra
ff

ic
 W

a
rd

e
n
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 o

f 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
. 

 S
in

c
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 t
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 7
 f
u
ll 

ti
m

e
 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 

P
a
rk

in
g

 A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
ts

. 
O

n
e
 P

a
rk

in
g
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
t 
u
s
e
d
 a

 m
o
b
ile

 p
a
tr

o
l 
in

 t
h
e
 

o
u
ts

k
ir
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
. 
 P

a
rk

in
g

 A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
ts

 w
e
re

 
a
s
s
ig

n
e
d
 a

 b
e
a
t 

in
 t
h
e
 t
o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 w

e
re

 
m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 b

y
 t

w
o
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
o
rs

. 
 E

a
c
h
 b

e
a
t 

w
a
s
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
y
 w

e
re

 r
o
ta

te
d
. 
  

1
. 
T

h
a
t 

it
 b

e
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

in
 t

h
e
 e

a
rl
y
 s

ta
g

e
s
 t

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 s

o
m

e
 c

a
u
s
e
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

 t
h
a
t 
g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 m

e
d
ia

 i
n
te

re
s
t.
  
T

h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 
s
in

c
e
 t

h
e
 I

n
q

u
ir
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 o

n
g

o
in

g
. 
 R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 4

, 
5
, 

6
, 

1
1
c
 h

a
v
e
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 b

e
g

u
n
. 
  

C
o
s
t:
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
 c

o
s
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
is

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
  

S
u
b
-G

ro
u
p
 7

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
  

P
ro

s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 P

a
rk

in
g

 A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
ts

 n
o
w

 s
h
a
d
o
w

e
d
 a

 
P

a
rk

in
g
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
t,
 n

o
t 

in
 u

n
if
o
rm

, 
b
e
fo

re
 a

n
y
 f

o
rm

a
l 

tr
a
in

in
g
 t

o
 g

e
t 
a
n
 i
d
e
a
 o

f 
th

e
 j
o
b
. 
 T

h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
P

a
rk

in
g
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
ts

 w
a
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t
h
e
 t

o
u
r 

lo
g

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 l
o
g

, 
w

h
e
th

e
r 

re
g

is
tr

a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 
n
o
te

d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
n
 r

e
c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

a
llo

c
a
te

d
 t
im

e
s
. 
 

F
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 w

a
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 P

a
rk

in
g

 M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

a
n
d
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

. 
 T

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 n
o
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 
s
e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

P
e
n
a
lt
y
 C

h
a
rg

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
s
 

is
s
u
e
d
. 
  

 

P
a
n
e
l 
9
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
0
5
 

P
a
n
e
l 
2
2
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
6
 

T
h
e
 P

a
rk

in
g

 A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
t 

c
o
u
ld

 o
n
ly

 i
s
s
u
e
 a

 P
e
n
a
lt
y
 

C
h
a
rg

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

th
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 t

h
e
m

. 
 A

 P
e
n
a
lt
y
 C

h
a
rg

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

is
s
u
e
d
 i
f 

a
 p

a
y
 a

n
d
 d

is
p
la

y
 t

ic
k
e
t 

w
a
s
 n

o
t 
d
is

p
la

y
e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 v

e
h
ic

le
 o

r 
th

e
 v

e
h
ic

le
 w

a
s
 p

a
rk

e
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 41



 

 
1
6
 

o
f 

a
 T

ra
ff

ic
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
 O

rd
e
r.

  
A

 w
a
rn

in
g

 n
o
ti
c
e
 w

o
u
ld

 
b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
f 

a
 T

ra
ff

ic
 R

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
 O

rd
e
r 

h
a
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 

o
n
ly

 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
. 

 A
 P

a
rk

in
g

 A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
t 

c
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 
c
a
n
c
e
l 
a
 

P
e
n
a
lt
y
 C

h
a
rg

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
 o

n
c
e
 i
t 

h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 o

r 
g

iv
e
 a

 w
a
rn

in
g

. 
 T

h
is

 w
a
s
 t

o
 p

ro
te

c
t 
th

e
 P

a
rk

in
g
 

A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
t 
fr

o
m

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
lle

g
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
b
ri
b
e
ry

. 
 T

h
e
 

a
p
p
e
a
ls

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 w
a
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 r

e
v
e
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
 P

e
n
a
lt
y
 

C
h
a
rg

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
. 
 I
f 
th

e
 

ti
c
k
e
t 
w

a
s
 f

a
c
e
 d

o
w

n
 o

r 
th

e
 p

e
rs

o
n
 c

o
u
ld

 p
ro

v
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 w

e
re

 l
o
a
d
in

g
 o

r 
u
n
lo

a
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 P

e
n
a
lt
y
 C

h
a
rg

e
 

N
o
ti
c
e
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

a
n
c
e
lle

d
. 
 P

a
rk

in
g

 A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
ts

 w
o
u
ld

 
e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 d

ri
v
e
rs

 t
o
 f

o
llo

w
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
e
a
ls

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

. 
  

S
u
b
 G

ro
u
p
 7

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
  

P
a
n
e
l 
2
2
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
5
 

D
u
e
 
to

 
th

e
 
n
a
tu

re
 
o
f 

th
e
 
jo

b
 
it
 
w

a
s
 
d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 
fo

r 
th

e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 r
e
w

a
rd

 t
h
e
ir
 s

ta
ff

, 
a
s
 t

h
e
re

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
 

s
u
g
g

e
s
ti
o
n
 o

f 
in

c
e
n
ti
v
e
s
. 

 P
e
r 

m
o
n
th

 t
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 2
0
0
 

A
rg

o
s
 

p
o
in

ts
 

d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 

w
h
o
le

 
o
f 

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
, 

c
o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 1

4
0
 s

ta
ff

 w
it
h
 a

 m
a
x
im

u
m

 o
f 

2
0
 

p
o
in

ts
 

p
e
r 

P
a
rk

in
g
 

A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
t 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

s
 

o
f 

te
a
m

w
o
rk

, 
in

te
g

ri
ty

, 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

fo
c
u
s
 a

n
d
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g

e
. 
 

O
n
e
 p

o
in

t 
e
q

u
a
te

d
 t
o
 o

n
e
 p

o
u
n
d
. 
 

 

P
a
n
e
l 
9
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

P
a
n
e
l 
2
2
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
6
 

T
h
e
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 o

f 
c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
a
t 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
 w

a
s
 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 o

n
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 p

ri
c
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

p
a
y
 a

n
d
 d

is
p
la

y
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

 t
ic

k
e
ts

 h
a
d
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 t

h
e
 

s
a
m

e
, 
a
n
d
 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
 m

o
n
th

s
 h

a
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
, 
s
in

c
e
 t
h
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

e
c
ri
m

in
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

a
rk

in
g

 
E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t.
  
 

 

S
u
b
-G

ro
u
p
 7

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

P
a
n
e
l 
2
2
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
5
 

A
 P

a
rk

in
g

 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
t 

w
o
u
ld

 t
a
k
e
 a

 p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
 o

f 
th

e
 

is
s
u
e
d
 P

e
n
a
lt
y
 C

h
a
rg

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 w

in
d
s
c
re

e
n
 o

n
 

th
e
 
v
e
h
ic

le
, 

th
e
 
p
a
y
 
a
n
d
 
d
is

p
la

y
 
m

a
c
h
in

e
 
a
n
d
 
th

e
 

re
a
s
o
n
 

w
h

y
 

th
e
 

c
a
r 

w
a
s
 

in
 

c
o
n
tr

a
v
e
n
ti
o
n
; 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
th

e
re

 w
a
s
 n

o
 v

a
lid

 p
a
y
 a

n
d
 d

is
p
la

y
 t

ic
k
e
t.
  

In
 s

o
m

e
 c

a
s
e
s
 l
o
a
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 u

n
lo

a
d
in

g
 w

a
s
 p

e
rm

it
te

d
 

a
n
d
 a

 P
a
rk

in
g

 A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
t 

w
o
u
ld

 a
llo

w
 a

n
 o

b
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

 
p
e
ri
o
d
. 

 I
n
 c

e
rt

a
in

 o
th

e
r 

c
a
s
e
s
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 a
 b

u
s
 

s
to

p
 n

o
 o

b
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 t

im
e
 w

a
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

 P
e
n
a
lt
y
 

C
h
a
rg

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 s

tr
a
ig

h
t 

a
w

a
y
. 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 42



 

 
1
7
 

S
u
b
-G

ro
u
p
 7

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

P
a
n
e
l 
2
2
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
6
 

P
re

s
to

n
, 

B
u
rn

le
y
 a

n
d
 L

a
n
c
a
s
te

r 
d
e
p
lo

y
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
P

a
rk

in
g
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
ts

 p
e
r 

h
e
a
d
 o

f 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 t

h
a
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
. 
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 7
 P

a
rk

in
g
 

A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
ts

 d
e
p
lo

y
e
d
 a

t 
a
n
y
 o

n
e
 t

im
e
 i
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
, 

u
n
le

s
s
 t
ra

in
in

g
 w

a
s
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 o

r 
a
 P

a
rk

in
g

 A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
t 

w
a
s
 b

e
in

g
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
e
d
. 
  

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

P
a
rk

in
g

 A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
ts

 h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
is

e
d
 

a
ft

e
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

s
, 
T

ra
ff

ic
 

R
e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
 O

rd
e
rs

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 p
a
rk

in
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
. 
 

T
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 

o
ri
g

in
a
lly

 s
u
g
g

e
s
te

d
 1

4
, 

b
u
t 
th

is
 w

a
s
 r

e
-e

v
a
lu

a
te

d
 a

s
 t
h
e
 r

in
g
 r

o
a
d
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 

re
m

o
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
. 
  

 

P
a
n
e
l 
2
2
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
6
 

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

a
g

e
n
c
y
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
th

a
t 
w

a
s
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 L

e
g

a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

  

2
. 
T

h
a
t 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r,

 L
e
g

a
l 
a
n
d
 D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

e
 

re
q

u
e
s
te

d
 t

o
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
 t

h
e
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 s

o
o
n
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

 
C

o
s
t:
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

ti
m

e
 (

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

. 
S

u
b
-G

ro
u
p
 7

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

T
h
e
 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

P
e
n
a
lt
y
 
C

h
a
rg

e
 
N

o
ti
c
e
s
 
is

s
u
e
d
 
b

y
 

P
a
rk

in
g
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
ts

 i
n
 e

rr
o
r 

h
a
d
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

in
c
e
 t

h
e

 
fi
rs

t 
fe

w
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 
  

 

S
u
b
-G

ro
u
p
 7

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

D
e
c
ri
m

in
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 
o
f 

P
a
rk

in
g

 
E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

w
a
s
 
s
e
lf
-

fi
n
a
n
c
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

w
o
u
ld

 
n
o
t 

c
o
s
t 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 

B
o
ro

u
g

h
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n

y
th

in
g

 a
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
s
ts

 w
e
re

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

v
e
r 

u
n
ti
l 
it
 

m
a
d
e
 a

 s
u
rp

lu
s
. 

 A
ll 

c
o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 w

e
re

 h
e
ld

 i
n
 a

 
s
e
p
a
ra

te
 t
ra

d
in

g
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t.
  
 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 43



 

 
1
8
 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

/K
e

y
 I

s
s

u
e

 2
 T

o
 a

s
s

e
s

s
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a
c

t 
th

e
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
rk

w
is

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 h

a
s

 h
a

d
 o

n
 r

e
s

id
e

n
ts

, 
v
is

it
o

rs
, 

m
o

to
ri

s
ts

, 
tr

a
d

e
rs

 a
n

d
 b

u
s

in
e
s

s
e

s
. 

 
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 

F
in

d
in

g
s
  

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 

P
a
n
e
l 
2
2
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
5
 

L
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 1

%
 o

f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 w
h
o
 u

s
e
d

 t
h
e
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

s
 i
n
 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 
w

e
re

 
is

s
u
e
d
 
w

it
h
 a

 P
e
n
a
lt
y
 C

h
a
rg

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
. 
 

T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
a
y
 a

n
d
 d

is
p
la

y
 t

ic
k
e
ts

 d
id

 n
o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
 

B
lu

e
 B

a
d
g

e
 h

o
ld

e
rs

 (
fo

r 
d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

) 
a
s
 t

h
e
y
 d

o
 

n
o
t 

h
a
v
e
 t

o
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 a

 p
a
y
 a

n
d
 d

is
p
la

y
 t

ic
k
e
t.
  

O
f 

th
is

 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

5
0
%

 
o
f 

th
e
 

P
e
n
a
lt
y
 

C
h
a
rg

e
 

N
o
ti
c
e
s
 

w
e
re

 
is

s
u
e
d
 f

o
r 

n
o
t 

d
is

p
la

y
in

g
 a

 t
ic

k
e
t 

o
r 

n
o
t 

p
u
rc

h
a
s
in

g
 a

 
ti
c
k
e
t 
a
t 
a
ll.

  

 

P
a
n
e
l 
9
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
  

T
h
e
 i

n
s
ta

n
c
e
s
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 p
a
rk

in
g

 i
n
 a

 s
e
lf
is

h
 m

a
n
n
e
r,

 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t

w
o
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 h

a
d
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

in
c
e
 

th
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

D
e
c
ri
m

in
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

P
a
rk

in
g
 

E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t.
  

It
 w

a
s
 n

o
w

 e
a
s
ie

r 
to

 f
in

d
 a

 c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 

s
p
a
c
e
 a

t 
b
u
s
y
 t

im
e
s
. 

 

S
u
b
-G

ro
u
p
 7

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

P
a
n
e
l 
2
2
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
5
  

P
a
rk

in
g
 

A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
ts

 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

o
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

to
 

th
e
 

p
u
b
lic

 
s
u
c
h
 

a
s
, 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
s
, 

w
h
e
re

 
d
is

a
b
le

d
 

d
ri
v
e
rs

 
c
o
u
ld

 a
n
d
 c

o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

p
a
rk

, 
w

h
e
re

 t
o
 p

u
rc

h
a
s
e
 t

h
in

g
s
, 

lo
s
t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
s
 
k
e
y
s
 
a
n
d
 
d
e
liv

e
re

d
 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 
p
a
rk

in
g

 p
e
rm

it
s
. 

 P
a
rk

in
g

 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 f

a
u
lt
y
 

lig
h
ti
n
g
, 

b
ro

k
e
n
 g

la
s
s
 a

n
d
 l

it
te

r,
 l

o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 i
f 

th
e
y
 w

e
re

 t
a
k
e
n
 i

ll 
a
n
d
 l

ia
is

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

lo
s
e
d
 C

ir
c
u
it
 

T
e
le

v
is

io
n
 

o
p
e
ra

to
rs

 
to

 
k
e
e
p
 

a
n
 

e
y
e
 

o
n
 

c
a
r 

d
o
o
rs

/w
in

d
o

w
s
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 l

e
ft

 o
p
e
n
. 

 T
a
x
 w

a
rn

in
g
 

n
o
ti
c
e
s
 w

e
re

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
f 
th

e
 v

e
h
ic

le
 t

a
x
 w

a
s
 o

u
t 

o
f 
d
a
te

. 

 

P
a
n
e
l 
9
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

A
 s

u
rv

e
y
 w

a
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

f 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

 
d
u
ri
n
g
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 w

it
h
 3

6
5
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 t
o
 

e
x
a
m

in
e
 t

h
e
 a

tt
it
u
d
e
s
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 p

a
rk

in
g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
. 
In

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r,
 t
h
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 l
o
o

k
e
d
 

a
t 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

p
a
rk

in
g

 
a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 v

a
s
t 
m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
re

s
p
o
n
d
e
n
ts

 (
7
6
.3

%
) 

a
g
re

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
P

a
rk

in
g

 A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
ts

 w
e
re

 a
lw

a
y
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

 v
is

ib
le

 d
e
te

rr
e
n
t 
to

 i
lle

g
a
l 
p
a
rk

in
g
, 
w

it
h
 

4
6
.3

%
 a

g
re

e
in

g
 t
h
a
t 
P

a
rk

in
g

 A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
ts

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 44



 

 
1
9
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 o

u
te

r 
a
n
d
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 

a
re

a
s
. 
 O

p
in

io
n
s
 w

e
re

 d
iv

id
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

o
f 

P
a
rk

in
g
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
ts

 a
s
 m

ig
h
t 

b
e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
. 
  

P
a
n
e
l 
2
4
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

P
a
n
e
l 
2
2
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
6
 

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
D

e
c
ri
m

in
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
P

a
rk

in
g

 E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
T

ra
ff

ic
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
 O

rd
e
rs

 a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 s

ig
n
s
 w

e
re

 
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 a
n
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 a

u
d
it
. 
 T

h
e
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 p

a
y
 

a
n
d
 d

is
p
la

y
 m

a
c
h
in

e
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
g

u
la

rl
y
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
. 
 T

h
e
 

p
a
y
 a

n
d
 d

is
p
la

y
 m

a
c
h
in

e
s
 w

e
re

 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 e

a
c
h
 d

a
y
 t

o
 

b
e
 w

it
h
in

 o
n
e
 m

in
u
te

 o
f 

th
e
 P

a
rk

in
g

 A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
ts

 w
a
tc

h
. 
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
t 

p
a
rk

in
g
 a

re
a
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 
p
a
rk

in
g
 i
n
 l
im

it
e
d
 w

a
it
in

g
 b

a
y
s
. 

 C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 

fr
o
m

 a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 P

a
rk

in
g

 A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
ts

 f
o
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 p
a
rk

in
g

 p
e
rm

it
s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
. 

 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 45



 

 
2
0
 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

/K
e

y
 I

s
s

u
e

 3
 T

o
 c

o
m

p
a

re
 w

it
h

 B
e

s
t 

P
ra

c
ti

c
e
 e

ls
e
w

h
e

re
. 

 E
v
id

e
n

c
e
 

F
in

d
in

g
s
  

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 

P
a
n
e
l 
7
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

S
it
e
 v

is
it
 9

 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

P
a
n
e
l 
2
2
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
5
 

T
h
e
 a

p
p
e
a
ls

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 w
a
s
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 
in

 R
e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
. 
 

T
h
e
 f

a
c
t 
th

a
t 
P

e
n
a
lt
y
 C

h
a
rg

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
s
 w

e
re

 c
a
n
c
e
lle

d
 

s
h
o
w

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
a
p
p
e
a
ls

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
. 

 T
h
e
 a

p
p
e
a
ls

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

 l
a
id

 d
o
w

n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 R

o
a
d
 

T
ra

ff
ic

 A
c
t 
1
9
9
1
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 f
o
llo

w
e
d

 a
t 

e
a
c
h
 s

ta
g

e
. 
 T

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 
s
ta

g
e
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 A

c
t 
w

a
s
 t

h
e
 

fo
rm

a
l 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 o

f 
th

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
 t

o
 

O
w

n
e
r.

  
A

t 
th

is
 p

o
in

t 
th

e
 c

h
a
rg

e
 r

e
v
e
rt

e
d
 t
o
 i
ts

 f
u
ll 

a
m

o
u
n
t 
o
f 

£
6
0
. 
 P

a
rk

w
is

e
 d

o
 a

c
c
e
p
t 
in

fo
rm

a
l 

c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 o

f 
th

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
 t

o
 O

w
n
e
r.

  
W

h
ils

t 
th

is
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
t,
 P

a
rk

w
is

e
 

tr
e
a
ts

 t
h
is

 a
s
 “

b
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
” 

in
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 w

it
h
 m

o
s
t 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
. 

3
. 
T

h
a
t 
th

e
 P

a
rk

in
g
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

lia
is

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
(N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

a
r 

P
a
rk

s
) 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
P

a
rk

in
g

 A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
ts

 m
a
k
e
 a

 n
o
te

 o
f 

c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 

w
h
e
n
 a

 d
ri
v
e
r 

re
tu

rn
e
d
 t
o
 t

h
e
ir
 v

e
h
ic

le
, 

h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 P
e
n
a
lt
y
 

C
h
a
rg

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 w

a
s
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 P

a
rk

in
g
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
t 
to

 f
o
llo

w
 t

h
e
 

a
p
p
e
a
ls

 p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

. 
  

C
o
s
t:
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

ti
m

e
 (

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il/

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

a
r 

P
a
rk

s
).

 
4
. 

T
h
a
t 

th
e
 

P
a
rk

in
g

 
M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

lia
is

e
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
(N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

s
) 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

P
a
rk

in
g

 A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
ts

 r
e
c
o
rd

 v
e
rb

a
l 
a
b
u
s
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 h

a
n
d
 

h
e
ld

 e
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

o
c
k
e
t 
b
o
o
k
. 
  

C
o
s
t:
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

ti
m

e
 (

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il/

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

a
r 

P
a
rk

s
).

 

 

S
u
b
-G

ro
u
p
 1

7
 

A
u
g

u
s
t 

2
0
0
5
 

P
a
n
e
l 
7
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

S
u
b
-G

ro
u
p
 7

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

S
it
e
 v

is
it
 9

 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

 

B
lu

e
 B

a
d
g

e
 h

o
ld

e
rs

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

 h
ig

h
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

P
e
n
a
lt
y
 C

h
a
rg

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 
 T

h
is

 w
a
s
 p

a
rt

ly
 d

u
e
 

to
 c

o
n
fu

s
io

n
 o

v
e
r 

w
h
ic

h
 s

id
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

a
d
g

e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

d
is

p
la

y
e
d
. 

 I
t 
w

a
s
 a

 s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 r
is

k
 i
f 

p
e
o
p
le

 d
is

p
la

y
e
d
 

th
e
 w

ro
n
g
 s

id
e
 a

s
 i
t 
d
is

p
la

y
e
d
 a

 p
h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
is

a
b
le

 p
e
rs

o
n
. 
 I
n
 i
n
s
ta

n
c
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 a
 P

e
n
a
lt
y
 C

h
a
rg

e
 

N
o
ti
c
e
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 t

h
e
 B

lu
e
 B

a
d
g

e
 h

a
d
 

b
e
e
n
 d

is
p
la

y
e
d
 i
n
c
o
rr

e
c
tl
y
 t

h
e
 P

e
n
a
lt
y
 C

h
a
rg

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
 

w
o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

a
n
c
e
lle

d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

o
ff

e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 a

 l
e
tt

e
r 

s
e
n
t 

e
x
p
la

in
in

g
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 B

lu
e
 B

a
d
g

e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

d
is

p
la

y
e
d
. 

 T
h
e
 D

is
a
b
le

d
 D

ri
v
e
rs

 A
s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 h

a
d
 

lo
b
b
ie

d
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

B
lu

e
 B

a
d
g

e
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
a
rg

e
-s

c
a
le

 a
b
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

b
a
d
g

e
s
. 

 

1
4
. 
T

h
a
t 

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

S
o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
e
s
te

d
 t
o
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
t 

w
h
ic

h
 s

id
e
 o

f 
th

e
 B

lu
e
 B

a
d
g
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

is
p
la

y
e
d
 u

s
in

g
 a

 s
ti
c
k
e
r.

  
C

o
s
t:
 £

1
0
0
 f
o
r 

3
,5

0
0
 s

ti
c
k
e
rs

 (
L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il)

. 
 (

T
h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 
c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
6
).

  
 

5
. 

T
h
a
t 

th
e
 

P
a
rk

in
g

 
M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

lia
is

e
 

w
it
h
 

th
e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
(N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

s
) 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

P
a
rk

in
g
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
ts

 u
s
e
 a

 l
e
a
fl
e
t 

s
h
o
w

in
g

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 t

o
 w

h
y
 a

 P
e
n
a
lt
y
 C

h
a
rg

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 i

s
s
u
e
d
 t

o
 B

lu
e
 

B
a
d
g

e
 h

o
ld

e
rs

, 
s
im

ila
r 

to
 t

h
a
t 

u
s
e
d
 i
n
 B

o
lt
o
n
. 
  

C
o
s
t:

 L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
v
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 u

p
 t

h
is

 i
d
e
a
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 p
ro

d
u
c
e

 
th

e
 l
e
a
fl
e
t 
fo

r 
a
ll 

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 D

is
tr

ic
ts

).
 

 

S
it
e
 v

is
it
 9

 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

T
h
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 P

a
rk

in
g
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
ts

 d
id

 
h
a
v
e
 a

 m
o
d
u
le

 o
n
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
, 

b
u
t 

it
 w

a
s
 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

P
a
rk

in
g

 
M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

c
o
u
ld

 s
tr

e
s
s
 p

o
in

ts
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 

im
p
o
rt

a
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

  
P

a
rk

in
g

 A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 
s
e
c
o
n
d
e
d
 o

u
t 
to

 o
th

e
r 

d
is

tr
ic

ts
 i
n
 

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g

h
 i
f 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 P

a
rk

in
g

 A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
ts

 

6
. 
T

h
a
t 
th

e
 P

a
rk

in
g
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

m
e
e
t 
th

e
 P

a
rk

in
g
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
ts

 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 f

ir
s
t 

d
a
y
 

o
f 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
to

 h
ig

h
lig

h
t 

c
e
rt

a
in

 p
o
in

ts
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
th

e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

C
o
s
t:
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

ti
m

e
 (

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

. 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 46



 

 
2
1
 

fr
o
m

 o
th

e
r 

d
is

tr
ic

ts
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
, 
b
y
 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 P

a
rk

in
g
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r.

  
 

S
it
e
 v

is
it
 9

 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

P
a
n
e
l 
5
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

T
h
e
re

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

 l
o
t 

o
f 

v
e
h
ic

le
s
 p

a
rk

e
d
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 i
n
 

fr
o
n
t 

o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 a
n
d
 e

n
d
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l.
  
T

h
is

 
w

a
s
 a

 r
o
a
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 i
s
s
u
e
. 
  

7
. 
T

h
a
t 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

S
tr

e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
, 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 a

n
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

in
it
ia

te
 T

ra
ff

ic
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
 O

rd
e
rs

 o
n
 t
h
e
 z

ig
 z

a
g
 l
in

e
s
 i
n
 f
ro

n
t 
o
f 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 “

s
a
fe

r 
ro

u
te

s
 t
o
 s

c
h
o
o
l”
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 w

it
h
 

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il.

  

C
o
s
t:

 O
ff
ic

e
r 

ti
m

e
, 

a
ro

u
n
d
 £

5
0
0
 p

e
r 

a
d
v
e
rt

 p
e
r 

T
ra

ff
ic

 R
e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
 O

rd
e
r.

  
T

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 s
ix

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
te

re
s
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
is

. 
 (

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

. 
  

P
a
n
e
l 
2
4
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

T
h
e
 

B
ri
ti
s
h
 

P
a
rk

in
g

 
A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 

a
n
 

in
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

re
p
o
rt

 e
n
ti
tl
e
d
 t

h
e
 “

C
h
ild

s
 r

e
p
o
rt

”.
  

T
h
e
 

re
p
o
rt

 
w

a
s
 

a
n
 

o
v
e
rv

ie
w

 
o
f 

D
e
c
ri
m

in
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

P
a
rk

in
g

 E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t.
  

T
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

n
e
g

a
ti
v
e
 

p
e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

th
e
 

p
u
b
lic

 
in

 
re

la
ti
o
n
 

to
 

D
e
c
ri
m

in
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

P
a
rk

in
g

 
E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

w
a
s
 

a
n
 

is
s
u
e
 t

h
a
t 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
. 

 T
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 t

h
e
 

is
s
u
e
 o

f 
v
e
rb

a
l 

a
n
d
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

a
b
u
s
e
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 P

a
rk

in
g
 

A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
ts

. 
  

 

1
8
. 
T

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

s
 r

e
p
o
rt

: 
T

h
a
t 
th

e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 P

a
rk

in
g
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 i
n
v
it
e
s
 t

h
e
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

: 
T

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 u

rg
e
n
t 
w

o
rk

 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 m

o
re

 w
id

e
ly

 k
n
o
w

n
 t

h
e
 l
in

k
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 

ro
a
d
 s

a
fe

ty
, 
fr

e
e
 f

lo
w

 o
f 

tr
a
ff

ic
 a

n
d
 k

e
rb

 s
p
a
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p

a
rk

in
g

 
c
o
n
tr

o
l 
(R

1
).

 
T

o
 s

e
e
k
 f
ro

m
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

 f
u
ll 

a
n
d
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
d
is

c
lo

s
u
re

 w
h
ic

h
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 i
n
c
o
m

e
, 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 a
n
d
 t

h
o
s
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 a
re

a
s
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 a

n
y
 

D
e
c
ri
m

in
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

a
rk

in
g

 E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
s
u
rp

lu
s
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

p
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
th

e
y
 b

ri
n
g

 t
o
 a

ll 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
n
d
  

P
re

s
c
ri
b
e
 a

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
m

o
d
e
l 
fo

r 
h
o
w

 t
h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

a
n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

it
 w

a
s
 i
n
 a

 f
o
rm

 t
h
a
t 

w
a
s
 e

a
s
ily

 u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 (

R
2
).

 
T

o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 t

h
e
 a

d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 b

a
la

n
c
e
d
 M

o
d
e
l 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
fo

r 
u
s
e
 b

y
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 (

R
4
).

 
T

o
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
u
b
lic

 o
p
in

io
n
 

s
u
rv

e
y
s
 i
n
to

 p
a
rk

in
g

 c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 D

e
c
ri
m

in
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

a
rk

in
g

 
E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 k
e
y
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 h

a
v
e
 (

R
5
).

  
 

T
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

ro
u
n
d
 p

a
rk

in
g

 c
o
n
tr

o
l 
a
n
d
 

D
e
c
ri
m

in
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

a
rk

in
g

 E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
im

e
d
 a

t 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
m

 (
R

6
).

  
T

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

h
o
w

 p
a
rk

in
g
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
a
n
d
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 t
h
e
y
 

b
ri
n
g
 c

a
n
 b

e
 b

e
tt

e
r 

re
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 H

ig
h
w

a
y
 C

o
d
e
 (

R
7
).

  
T

o
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
a
u
d
it
s
 o

f 
tr

a
ff

ic
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
 

o
rd

e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ig
n
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 r

e
m

a
in

 r
e
le

v
a
n
t 

a
n
d
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 a
n
d
 

s
ig

n
s
 a

re
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
, 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
a
b
le

 a
n
d
 v

is
ib

le
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 

c
h
a
n
g

e
s
 n

e
e
d
e
d
 

in
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 w

it
h
in

 a
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 t

im
e
 f
ra

m
e
 (

R
1
2
).

  
 

T
o
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

e
 t

o
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
re

g
u
la

r 
re

v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
tr

a
ff

ic
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
 o

rd
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ig
n
a
g

e
 a

n
d
 s

e
e
k
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 p

la
n
 t

o
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t

h
is

 (
R

1
3
).

  
T

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
ro

u
g

h
 l
e
g

is
la

ti
o
n
, 
th

e
 n

a
m

e
 “

P
a
rk

in
g
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
t”

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 47



 

 
2
2
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

h
a
n
g

e
d
 t

o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

re
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

s
u
c
h
 s

ta
ff

 o
n
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 

(R
1
5
).

 
T

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

w
a
y
s
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
t 

c
a
n
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 o

b
lig

a
to

ry
 t

o
 P

a
rk

in
g
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
ts

 
to

 h
a
v
e
 u

n
d
e
rg

o
n
e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 e

.g
. 
th

ro
u
g

h
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 
C

it
y
 a

n
d
 G

u
ild

s
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
, 

e
it
h
e
r 

b
e
fo

re
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 
o
r 

w
it
h
in

 a
 s

e
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
b
e
in

g
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 (

R
1
7
).

  
T

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H

o
m

e
 O

ff
ic

e
 t
o
 e

xp
lo

re
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 

v
ic

ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

a
rk

in
g

 A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
ts

 m
ig

h
t 
b
e
 m

a
d
e
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

P
o
lic

e
 (

R
2
3
).

  
T

o
 u

rg
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 f

u
lly

 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 t

o
 r

e
q

u
e
s
ts

 t
o
 

h
a
v
e
 a

 p
e
n
a
lt
y
 c

h
a
rg

e
 n

o
ti
c
e
 w

it
h
d
ra

w
n
 o

n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
th

e
 f

ir
s
t 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 d

ri
v
e
r 

(R
3
2
).

  
T

o
 u

rg
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 r

e
in

s
ta

te
 a

 f
u
ll 

1
4
-d

a
y
 d

is
c
o
u
n
t 
p
e
ri
o
d
 i
f 

a
 

ro
a
d
 u

s
e
r 

c
a
n
 s

a
ti
s
fy

 t
h
e
m

 t
h
a
t 
h
e
/s

h
e
 d

id
 n

o
t 
re

c
e
iv

e
 t

h
e
 o

ri
g

in
a
l 
P

e
n
a
lt
y
 

C
h
a
rg

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
 (

R
3
3
).

 
T

o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t
o
 p

u
b
lis

h
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

 t
h
e
  

•
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

P
e
n
a
lt
y
 C

h
a
rg

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 e

a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

•
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

P
e
n
a
lt
y
 C

h
a
rg

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
s
 p

a
id

 a
t 
th

e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 r

a
te

  

•
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

q
u
e
s
ts

 f
o
r 

P
e
n
a
lt
y
 C

h
a
rg

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 w

it
h
d
ra

w
n
 

b
e
fo

re
 t

h
e
 N

o
ti
c
e
 t
o
 O

w
n
e
r 

w
a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 (

R
3
4
) 

•
 

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fo

rm
a
l 
re

p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 m

a
d
e
 a

n
d
 a

llo
w

e
d
 

•
 

T
im

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t
o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 a

ll 
re

q
u
e
s
ts

  
T

o
 c

o
lla

b
o
ra

te
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 P

a
rk

in
g
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 i
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 r

e
s
e
a
rc

h
 

to
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 w

a
y
 o

f 
p
ro

v
id

in
g

 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 

p
a
rk

in
g
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 g

o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 g

u
id

e
 (

R
4
1
).

  
T

h
a
t 
th

e
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 P

a
rk

in
g
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 

E
x
p
lo

re
s
 t

h
e
 w

a
y
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 s

ta
tu

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
g

n
it
io

n
 g

iv
e
n
 t

o
 P

a
rk

in
g

 
A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
ts

 c
a
n
 b

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 (

R
1
4
).

 
E

n
g

a
g

e
s
 w

it
h
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

tr
a
in

in
g

 a
d
v
is

o
rs

 a
n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 
o
f 

in
te

rp
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
fl
ic

t 
re

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 P

a
rk

in
g
 

A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 s

y
lla

b
u
s
 w

a
s
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 r

o
le

 t
h
e
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

 (
R

1
8
).

  
E

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 w

h
o
 e

m
p
lo

y
 P

a
rk

in
g
 

A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
ts

, 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 w

is
h
 t

o
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 j
o
b
 r

e
la

te
d
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
lly

 v
a
lid

a
te

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

, 
if
 t
h
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
r 

d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 t
ra

in
in

g
 (

R
1
9
).

  
A

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
h
e
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

h
ie

f 
P

o
lic

e
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

e
e
k
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 i
n
 c

a
s
e
 o

f 
P

a
rk

in
g

 A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
t 
v
ic

ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n
 (

R
2
2
).

  

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 48



 

 
2
3
 

C
o
n
s
id

e
rs

 t
h
e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

a
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
rs

 a
s
 a

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 i
ts

 w
o
rk

 o
n
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f

o
r 

P
a
rk

in
g
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
ts

 
(R

2
8
).

 
A

n
d
  

T
h
a
t 
th

e
re

 w
a
s
 n

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

d
is

c
re

ti
o
n
 g

iv
e
n
 t

o
 P

a
rk

in
g
 

A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
ts

 “
o
n
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
t”

 (
R

2
7
).

 
C

o
s
t:
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

ti
m

e
 (

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

. 
1
9
. 
T

h
a
t 
th

e
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 b
e
 r

e
q

u
e
s
te

d
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 g
u
id

e
 t

o
 

p
a
rk

in
g
 t

o
 b

e
 s

e
n
t 
to

 d
ri
v
e
rs

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
ir
 d

ri
v
e
rs

 l
ic

e
n
s
e
 a

n
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 m

o
re

 d
e
ta

il 
in

 t
h
e
 d

ri
v
in

g
 t
e
s
t.
  
 

C
o
s
t:
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

ti
m

e
 (

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

. 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 49



 

 
2
4
 

O
b

je
c

ti
v
e

/K
e

y
 I

s
s

u
e

 4
 T

o
 i

d
e

n
ti

fy
 f

u
tu

re
 i

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
c

u
s
to

m
e

r 
s

e
rv

ic
e

. 
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 

F
in

d
in

g
s
  

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

 

S
it
e
 v

is
it
 9

 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

P
a
n
e
l 
7
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

P
a
n
e
l 
9
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

T
h
e
re

 h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 p

re
s
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 

D
e
c
ri
m

in
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

a
rk

in
g

 E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t.
  
T

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 

a
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 h

ig
h
lig

h
t 
to

 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 t
h
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 
p
o
s
it
io

n
. 
 

O
n
 t
h
e
 d

a
y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
 v

is
it
 t

o
 S

e
ft

o
n
 t
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 f
ro

n
t-

p
a
g

e
 s

to
ry

 a
b
o
u
t 
D

e
c
ri
m

in
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

a
rk

in
g
 

E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
y
e
a
rs

 5
 a

ft
e
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
. 
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
a
t 

S
e
ft

o
n
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 t

h
a
t 
if
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t

a
lk

e
d
 d

o
w

n
 

p
a
rk

in
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

re
s
s
 t
h
is

 w
a
s
 n

e
g

a
ti
v
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 t
o
w

n
 

c
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 b
a
d
 f

o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
. 
T

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

d
e
fi
n
e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

P
e
n
a
lt
y
 

C
h
a
rg

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 a

s
 t

h
e
 m

o
to

ri
s
ts

 
d
ic

ta
te

 t
h
is

. 
 T

h
is

 a
ls

o
 a

p
p
lie

s
 t

o
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
. 
  

8
. 
T

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
u
b
lic

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 D

e
c
ri
m

in
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

a
rk

in
g

 E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t:
 

a
, 
T

o
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

to
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 a

 m
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 t

o
o
lk

it
 f

o
r 

u
s
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 d

is
tr

ic
ts

, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

 p
o
s
te

rs
, 

le
a
fl
e
ts

, 
b
u
s
 o

r 
ra

d
io

 a
d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
. 
  

C
o
s
t:

 T
h
e
 c

o
s
t 

w
o
u
ld

 d
e
p
e
n
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

iz
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t.
  

It
 i

s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 £

5
 a

n
d
 £

1
0
,0

0
0
 (

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il)

. 
b
, 
T

h
a
t 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 

to
 D

e
c
ri
m

in
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

a
rk

in
g
 E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 a

n
y
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 s
u
rv

e
y
s
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 c

it
iz

e
n
s
’ 
p
a
n
e
l 
to

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
y
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 t

h
a
t 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 h

a
v
e
. 

C
o
s
t:
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

ti
m

e
. 
(C

h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

. 
c
, 
T

h
a
t 
th

e
 P

a
rk

in
g

 M
a
n
a
g

e
r 

d
is

tr
ib

u
te

 o
f 

p
u
b
lic

it
y
 l
e
a
fl
e
ts

 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
rk

e
t 
tr

a
d
e
rs

 s
u
c
h
 a

s
, 
“p

a
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

” 
a
n
d
 

“p
a
rk

in
g

 t
ip

s
” 

to
 e

d
u
c
a
te

 d
ri
v
e
rs

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
y
 c

a
n
 r

e
tu

rn
 t
o
 t
h
e
 v

e
h
ic

le
 a

n
d
 

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
ti
m

e
. 
  

C
o
s
t:
 T

h
e
 l
e
a
fl
e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 a

n
d
 p

ri
n
te

d
 i
n
 h

o
u
s
e
 (

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

. 
  

d
, 
T

h
a
t 
th

e
 P

a
rk

in
g
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

a
rr

a
n
g

e
 f

o
r 

a
 s

ig
n
 t
o
 b

e
 e

re
c
te

d
 o

n
 s

it
e
 

w
h
e
re

 r
e
v
e
n
u
e
 f

ro
m

 D
e
c
ri
m

in
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

a
rk

in
g

 E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
h
a
d
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
ro

a
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
. 
 

C
o
s
t:
 £

5
0
0
 p

e
r 

s
ig

n
, 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
c
o
s
t 
w

o
u
ld

 d
e
p
e
n
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fu

n
d
e
d
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 (
C

h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

. 
  

e
, 
T

h
a
t 
th

e
 P

a
rk

in
g
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

p
la

c
e
 a

 h
e
lp

lin
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
n
 a

ll 
o
f 
th

e
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

 
ta

ri
ff

 b
o
a
rd

s
 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 t
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 f
a
u
lt
s
 o

r 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 t
o
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
(N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

a
r 

P
a
rk

s
) 

C
o
s
t:
 £

2
0
0
 i
n
 t
o
ta

l 
(C

h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

. 
  

f,
 T

h
a
t 
a
 l
e
a
fl
e
t 

b
e
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 s

h
o
w

in
g

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 C

a
r 

p
a
rk

s
 w

e
re

 i
n
 

C
h
o
rl
e
y
. 

 T
h
e
 l
e
a
fl
e
t 
to

 b
e
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 a

n
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
 b

u
t 
c
o
-

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
it
h
 s

p
o
n
s
o
re

d
 a

d
v
e
rt

s
 i
n
 f
ro

m
 l
o
c
a
l 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 l
e
a
fl
e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t

o
 l
o
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 

M
a
rk

e
t 

T
ra

d
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 O

n
e
 S

to
p
 S

h
o
p
. 
  

C
o
s
t:
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

ti
m

e
 (

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

. 
 

g
, 
T

h
a
t 

if
 a

n
 i
n
fo

m
e
rc

ia
l,
 o

r 
a
 n

e
w

 c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 v

id
e
o
, 

w
a
s
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 D

e
c
ri
m

in
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
P

a
rk

in
g
 E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t.
 

C
o
s
t:
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 c

o
s
t.
 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 50



 

 
2
5
 

S
u
b
-G

ro
u
p
 1

7
 

A
u
g

u
s
t 

2
0
0
5
 

T
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
c
o
n
c
re

te
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 h

o
w

 
P

a
rk

in
g
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
ts

 d
e
a
l 
w

it
h
 c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 f
a
c
e
 t
o
 f

a
c
e
. 
  

9
. 
T

h
a
t 
th

e
 P

a
rk

in
g
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

tr
ia

l 
th

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
m

y
s
te

ry
 s

h
o
p
p
e
rs

 w
it
h
 

In
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
. 
 T

h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
w

o
u
ld

 m
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
g

u
la

ri
ty

 o
f 

m
y
s
te

ry
 s

h
o
p
p
e
rs

. 
 A

 d
is

p
e
n
s
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 g

iv
e
n
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 a
 v

e
h
ic

le
 t

o
 

p
a
rk

 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o

n
 a

 c
a
r 

p
a
rk

 a
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 m

y
s
te

ry
 s

h
o
p
p
e
r 

to
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
: 

•
 

W
h
e
th

e
r 

a
 v

e
h
ic

le
 p

a
rk

e
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 P
e
n
a
lt
y
 

C
h
a
rg

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
, 

•
 

H
o
w

 t
h
e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

w
a
s
 d

e
a
lt
 w

it
h
, 

 

•
 

T
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 g

iv
e
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 P

a
rk

in
g

 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
t 
a
n
d
  

•
 

H
o
w

 t
h
e
 a

p
p
e
a
l 
w

a
s
 d

e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 b

y
 P

a
rk

w
is

e
. 

C
o
s
t:

 
£
5
 

le
v
y
 

p
e
r 

P
e
n

a
lt
y
 

C
h
a
rg

e
 

N
o
ti
c
e
 

a
n

d
 

o
ff

ic
e
r 

ti
m

e
 

(C
h
o
rl
e
y 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

 

S
u
b
-G

ro
u
p
 7

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

T
h
e
 b

a
s
ic

 u
n
if
o
rm

 w
a
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
ty

 a
n
d
 d

is
tr

ic
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
lo

g
o
s
 w

e
re

 
th

e
n
 p

u
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 u

n
if
o
rm

. 
 T

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 c
y
c
le

 o
f 

c
h
a
n
g

e
 

fo
r 

u
n
if
o
rm

s
. 

1
6
. 
T

h
a
t 
th

e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
(N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

a
r 

P
a
rk

s
),

 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

b
e
 r

e
q

u
e
s
te

d
 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 P

a
rk

in
g

 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
t 

u
n
if
o
rm

  

C
o
s
t:

 (
T

h
e
 c

o
s
t 

w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

h
a
re

d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 L

a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 D

is
tr

ic
ts

).
  
T

h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
lly

 s
e
n
s
it
iv

e
. 
  

P
a
n
e
l 
9
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
  

P
a
n
e
l 
2
2
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
6
  

A
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
 

to
 

p
a
y
 

a
n
d
 

d
is

p
la

y
 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

s
 

w
e
re

 
c
o
n
s
id

e
re

d
. 

 T
h
e
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
s
 s

u
g
g

e
s
te

d
 w

e
re

 p
a
y
 o

n
 

e
x
it
 
a
n
d
 
p
a
y
 
o
n
 
fo

o
t.
 
 
P

a
y
 
o
n
 
E

x
it
 
re

lie
d
 
o
n
 
s
ta

ff
 

m
a
n
n
in

g
 e

x
it
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

, 
v
e
ri
fy

in
g

 t
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

ti
m

e
 t

h
e
 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

 
a
n
d
 

c
h
a
rg

in
g
 

a
c
c
o
rd

in
g

ly
. 

T
im

e
 b

a
n
d
s
 w

e
re

 o
ft

e
n
 s

e
t 

a
t 

h
a
lf
 h

o
u
r 

in
te

rv
a
ls

. 
It

 
w

a
s
 

e
x
p
e
n

s
iv

e
 

to
 

in
s
ta

ll 
a
n
d
 

o
p
e

ra
te

, 
s
in

c
e
 i

t 
w

a
s
 l

a
b
o
u
r 

in
te

n
s
iv

e
. 

O
th

e
r 

m
a
jo

r 
d
ra

w
b
a
c
k
s
 

a
s
 f

o
r 

“P
a
y
 o

n
 F

o
o
t.
” 

P
a
y
 o

n
 F

o
o
t 

w
a
s
 a

 v
e
ry

 s
im

ila
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 a

s
 a

b
o
v
e
, 

w
it
h
 

b
a
rr

ie
rs

 a
t 

th
e
 e

n
tr

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 e

x
it
s
, 

b
u
t 

w
it
h
 c

e
n
tr

a
lis

e
d
 

p
a
y
 s

ta
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

p
a
id

 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 p

a
rk

in
g
 

o
n
 

th
e
 

w
a
y
 

b
a
c
k
 

to
 

th
e
ir
 

v
e
h
ic

le
. 

A
g

a
in

, 
it
 

w
a
s
 

e
x
p
e
n
s
iv

e
 t

o
 i

n
s
ta

ll,
 a

n
d
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

, 
w

h
ils

t 
n
o
t 

a
s
 

h
ig

h
 a

s
 P

a
y
 o

n
 E

x
it
, 

w
o
u

ld
 s

ti
ll 

b
e
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 c

u
rr

e
n
t,
 

a
s
 t

h
e
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

 o
ff

ic
e
 w

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e

 t
o
 b

e
 m

a
n
n
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

th
e
 h

o
u
rs

 o
f 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
. 

D
ra

w
b
a
c
k
s
 o

f 
b
o
th

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 w

e
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 r

e
ly

 o
n
 a

 
s
e
c
u
re

 
la

y
o
u
t 

o
n
 

th
e
 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

s
 

to
 

p
re

v
e
n
t 

u
n
a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 e

g
re

s
s
 b

y
p
a
s
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 b

a
rr

ie
r.

 T
h
e
re

fo
re

 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 51



 

 
2
6
 

th
e
 l

a
y
o
u
t 

o
f 

th
e
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

 w
a
s
 i

m
p
o
rt

a
n
t.
 I

n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 

c
o
s
ts

 
w

e
re

 
h
ig

h
, 

a
s
 

a
 

b
a
rr

ie
r 

is
 

re
q

u
ir
e
d
 

a
t 

th
e
 

e
n
tr

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 e

x
it
 p

o
in

ts
, 

w
it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

ir
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

b
a
rr

ie
rs

 
a
n
d
 

in
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

lo
o
p
 

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 

to
 

p
re

v
e
n
t 

a
c
c
id

e
n
ta

l 
a
c
ti
v
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 b

a
rr

ie
r 

w
h
e
n
 a

 v
e
h

ic
le

 i
s
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 l

o
o
p
. 

S
u
it
a
b
le

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i

s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 s

ta
ff

, 
e
it
h
e
r 

a
t 

th
e
 e

x
it
 p

o
in

ts
 (

p
a
y
 o

n
 e

x
it
) 

o
r 

a
 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
ro

o
m

 f
o
r 

p
a
y
 o

n
 f

o
o
t.

 S
p
a
c
e
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 l
o

s
t 

o
n
 

th
e
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

s
 t

o
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 t
h
is

. 
T

h
e
 p

a
y
 o

f 
fo

o
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 

re
q

u
ir
e
d
 

p
a
y
 

s
ta

ti
o
n
s
 

to
 

b
e
 

lo
c
a
te

d
 

a
t 

c
o
n
v
e
n
ie

n
t 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 
a
n
d
 
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 
a
 
s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 
ri
s
k
. 

T
h
e
y
 w

o
u

ld
 n

e
e
d

 s
o
m

e
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

. 
A

 r
o
b
u
s
t 

tr
a
ff

ic
 s

u
rv

e
y
 w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t,
 

b
u
t 

a
t 

p
e
a
k
 

ti
m

e
s
 

th
e
 

c
o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
c
e
s
 

o
f 

v
e
h
ic

le
s
 

q
u
e
u
in

g
 t

o
 g

a
in

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

 c
o
u
ld

 c
a
u
s
e
 

s
e
v
e
re

 
d
is

ru
p
ti
o
n
 
to

 
th

e
 
to

w
n
’s

 
ro

a
d
 
n
e
tw

o
rk

. 
 
T

h
e
 

P
a
n
e
l 

w
e
re

 
n
o
t 

a
w

a
re

 
o
f 

a
n
y
 

s
u
rf

a
c
e
 

c
a
r 

p
a
rk

s
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g

 a
 p

a
y
 o

n
 f

o
o
t 

s
y
s
te

m
. 

 R
e
c
e
n
tl
y
, 

a
 p

a
y
 o

n
 

fo
o
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 w

a
s
 i
n
s
ta

lle
d
 o

n
 a

 m
u
lt
i 
s
to

re
y
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

 i
n
 

P
re

s
to

n
 a

t 
a
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

a
p
p
ro

x
. 

£
7
0
K

, 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 t
a
ri
ff

s
 w

e
re

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

h
o
rt

ly
 a

ft
e
rw

a
rd

s
. 

P
a
n
e
l 
2
2
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
6
  

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 P
a
rk

in
g
 a

re
a
s
 i
n
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
w

e
re

 t
o
 b

e
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
a
r 

fu
tu

re
. 
 C

a
r 

p
a
rk

s
 w

e
re

 f
re

e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 6

p
m

 a
n
d
 8

a
m

. 
  

 

P
a
n
e
l 
2
2
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
6
 

T
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 n

o
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
d
 p

e
rm

it
 f
o
r 

re
g

is
te

re
d
 c

a
re

rs
 

w
it
h
in

 C
h
o
rl
e
y
 a

n
d
 S

o
u
th

 R
ib

b
le

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 T
ru

s
t 

a
re

a
s
. 

1
5
. 
T

h
a
t 

L
a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

b
e
 r

e
q

u
e
s
te

d
 t

o
 c

re
a
te

 a
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
d
 

p
e
rm

it
 f

o
r 

re
g

is
te

re
d
 c

a
re

rs
 w

it
h
in

 C
h
o
rl
e
y
 a

n
d
 S

o
u
th

 R
ib

b
le

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 
T

ru
s
t 
a
re

a
. 
  

C
o
s
t:
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

ti
m

e
, 
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
e
rm

it
. 
(L

a
n
c
a
s
h
ir
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il)

. 
 

P
a
n
e
l 
5
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

S
u
b
 G

ro
u
p
 7

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
 

P
a
n
e
l 
6
 A

p
ri
l 

2
0
0
6
  

 
 

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 a
re

a
s
 i
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 t

h
a
t 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 a

t 
c
e
rt

a
in

 t
im

e
s
 a

n
d
 d

a
y
s
. 
 T

h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

P
e
n
a
lt
y
 C

h
a
rg

e
 N

o
ti
c
e
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
n
 r

u
ra

l 
a
re

a
s
 w

a
s
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
. 
 T

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 m
o
b
ile

 p
a
tr

o
l 
th

a
t 

e
n
fo

rc
e
d
 t

h
e
 r

u
ra

l 
a
re

a
s
, 
b
u
t 
th

is
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

e
n
o
u
g

h
 t

o
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
. 
A

 t
ri
a
l 
w

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 

o
u
t 

u
s
in

g
 a

 s
c
o
o
te

r 
(3

 –
 1

5
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
6
).

  
 

 T
h
e
re

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i

m
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 i

n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

1
0
. 
T

h
a
t 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
S

tr
e
e
ts

c
e
n
e
, 
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 a

n
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

w
ri
te

 t
o
 a

ll 
C

h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 a
n
d
 P

a
ri
s
h
 C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 r
e
q

u
e
s
ti
n
g
 

th
a
t 
a
n
y
 r

e
q

u
e
s
ts

 f
o
r 

p
a
rk

in
g

 e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

b
e
 m

a
d
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 P

a
rk

in
g

 
M

a
n
a
g

e
r.

  
C

o
s
t:
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

ti
m

e
 a

n
d
 p

o
s
ta

g
e
 (

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

. 
 

1
1
. 
T

h
a
t 
th

e
 P

a
rk

in
g
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

e
 s

p
o
t 

c
h
e
c
k
s
 b

y
 P

a
rk

in
g

 A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
ts

 
in

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 p
a
rk

in
g
 a

re
a
s
 o

u
t 
o
f 

h
o
u
rs

, 
e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

m
o
n
th

s
. 

C
o
s
t:
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

ti
m

e
 (

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

. 

1
2
. 
T

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 r

e
c
e
n
t 
tr

ia
l 
o
f 

a
 P

a
rk

in
g

 A
tt

e
n
d
a
n
t 

u
s
in

g
 a

 s
c
o
o
te

r 
in

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 52



 

 
2
7
 

s
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 l
o
n
e
 w

o
rk

in
g

 a
ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 h
a
v
in

g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

P
a
rk

in
g

 
A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
ts

 
a
lo

n
e
 

in
 

ru
ra

l 
a
re

a
s
. 

 
R

is
k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 w
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
. 
  

If
 a

 P
a
rk

in
g

 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
t 

w
a
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

ro
p
p
e
d
 o

ff
 i

n
 t

h
e
 

o
u
te

r 
c
o
re

 t
h
e
 h

a
n
d
 h

e
ld

 e
q

u
ip

m
e
n
t 

w
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 t

o
 b

e
 

tr
ia

lle
d
 
in

 
re

la
ti
o
n
 
to

 
th

e
 
ra

d
io

 
b
e
in

g
 
a
b
le

 
to

 
re

a
c
h
 

b
a
s
e
. 
  

M
o
p
e
d
s
 
h
a
d

 
p
ro

v
e
n
 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 
in

 
c
it
y
 
c
e
n
tr

e
s
. 

 
T

h
e
 

v
is

ib
ili

ty
 

o
f 

a
 

P
a
rk

in
g

 
A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
t 

it
s
e
lf
 

w
o
u
ld

 
m

o
v
e
 

p
e
o
p
le

 o
n
 w

h
o
 h

a
d
 p

a
rk

e
d
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
v
e
n
ti
o
n
. 

th
e
 r

u
ra

l 
a
re

a
s
. 
 

C
o
s
t:
 T

h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
lly

 s
e
n
s
it
iv

e
. 

 

P
a
n
e
l 
2
2
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
0
6
 

T
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 n

o
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

in
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

p
a
c
k
 f

o
r 

n
e
w

 P
a
rk

in
g

 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
t 

a
s
 t

h
e
y
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 

th
e
ir
 d

u
ti
e
s
 i
n
 C

h
o
rl
e
y
. 

  

1
3
. 
T

h
a
t 
th

e
 P

a
rk

in
g
 M

a
n
a
g

e
r,

 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
u
m

a
n
 

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
, 
c
re

a
te

 a
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
 p

a
c
k
 f
o
r 

n
e
w

 P
a
rk

in
g
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
e
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

C
h
a
rt

e
r 

a
n
d
 u

s
e
fu

l 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 P

a
rk

w
is

e
 h

e
lp

lin
e
, 

B
o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

C
o
n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 P

o
lic

e
. 
  

C
o
s
t:
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

ti
m

e
, 
in

 h
o
u
s
e
 p

ri
n
ti
n
g
 (

C
h
o
rl
e
y
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

. 

S
u
b
-G

ro
u
p
 7

 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
5
  

 

T
h
e
re

 
w

e
re

 
p
la

n
s
 

to
 

s
to

p
 

th
e
 

P
a
rk

in
g

 
A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
ts

 
u
s
in

g
 

n
o
te

b
o
o
k
s
 

a
n
d
 

u
s
e
 

e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 
h
a
n
d
 

h
e
ld

 
d
e
v
ic

e
s
 

m
o
re

 
e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
ly

. 
 

T
h
is

 
h
e
lp

e
d
 

if
 

it 
w

a
s
 

ra
in

in
g

 a
n
d
 m

e
a
n
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
 d

e
v
ic

e
s
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 v

ie
w

e
d
 i
n
 

‘r
e
a
l 
ti
m

e
’.
  

D
ig

it
a
l 
c
a
m

e
ra

s
 w

e
re

 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 

q
u
a
lit

y
 p

h
o
to

g
ra

p
h
s
 t
o
 h

e
lp

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
e
a
l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
  

1
7
. 
T

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
te

c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 t

o
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
th

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 h
a
n
d
 h

e
ld

 d
e
v
ic

e
s
. 
 

C
o
s
t:
 O

n
g
o
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

. 
(T

h
e
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r)
. 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 53



Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 54



20/06/06 29 

6. CONCLUSION  
 
General observations  
 
After taking account of all the documentary and verbal evidence presented and the 
outcome of the visit to Sefton Borough Council the Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
has identified a number of recommendations which, if implemented, the Members consider 
will enhance the service provided to the Public.   
 
It has become clear, throughout the Inquiry, that Parking Enforcement is an emotive issue 
both locally and nationally.  It is a complex topic, governed by statute with a lot of 
processes and background information to understand.   
 
Lessons learned for Scrutiny  
 
The site visit to Sefton Borough Council was helpful in many ways and proved how 
important site visits are when undertaking an Inquiry.  The Citizens Panel would be asked 
to take part in any future surveys.   
 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 55



 

 30 

7. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix A Overview and Scrutiny Project Outline  
Appendix B  Scrutiny Inquiry Information Checklist 
Appendix C  Scrutiny Inquiry Witness Checklist 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 56



 

 31 

 
 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY INQUIRY PROJECT OUTLINE 
 

 

Review Topic:   
Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement  
 

Investigation by:   
Customer Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel  

    Type:  Inquiry  

  

Objectives:   
 

1. To investigate the effectiveness of 
Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement in 
Chorley,  

2. To assess the impact the introduction of the 
Parkwise scheme has had on residents, 
visitors, motorists, traders and businesses. 

3.  To compare with Best Practice elsewhere.  
4.  To identify any future improvements for 

customer service. 

Desired Outcomes:   
 

1. To identify methods to show 
Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement 
and Parkwise as reasonable and 
customer friendly to residents and 
visitors to the town.  

2. To maximize operational efficiency of the 
Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement 
service. 

 

  

Terms of Reference:   
 
1.  To conduct an investigation into Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement and Parkwise and 

to identify (if any) improvements to the service. 
2.  To assess the current service provision. 
3.  To report on the investigations findings and make recommendation initially to Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee consistent with the Inquiry’s objectives and desired outcomes. 
  

Key Issues:  
 
1. Off Street Parking  
2. On Street Parking 
3. Customers experience and satisfaction. 
4. Experience of Staff, e.g. security, training. 
5.  The publics understanding of the regulations 
6. The publicity of the regulations and 

Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement 
service.  

7. How appeals are managed.  
8.  Best Practice in other Authorities.  

Risks:   
 
1. The Council must comply with 1991 

Road Traffic Act and Lancashire County 
Council Procedure Manual in relation to 
DPE. 

2. Finance and resource implications. 

3. Having desired outcomes beyond the 
capacity to deliver. 

4. Town centre viability/perception of 
Chorley Borough Council  

 

 
  

Venue(s):   Timescale:   6 months  
 

Town Hall, Chorley; agreed site visits 
 

Start:   July 2005 
 

 Finish:   January 2005 
 

 

 
Appendix A 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 57



 

 32 

Information Requirements and Sources: 
 
     Documents/evidence: (what/why?) 

• Background information on Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement and Parkwise 

• Ticket statistics: On Street/Off Street, Appeals: successful/not successful,  

• Tickets and Appeals by type of offence 

• Training manuals for Parking Attendants 

• Regulations and relevant contracts  

• Comparisons with other areas for numbers of tickets, numbers of Penalty Charge Notices 
issued/cancelled and numbers of Parking Attendants.  

• Comparisons with rural and urban settings 

• Best Practice in other Authorities.  

 
     Witnesses: (who, why?) 

• Head of Public Space Services 
• Executive Member for Traffic and Transportation 
• Chorley Borough Councillors, including Councillor Mrs I Smith  
• Representative from contractor (National Car Parks)/ Parking Attendants 
• Representative from Chorley Chamber of Trade, Disability Liaison Group, Markets Liaison 

Group 
• Members of the Public/residents? 

 
     Consultation/Research: (what, why, who?) 

• Letters to the local press 

• Views of Town Centre Forum  

• Questionnaire by Members of the Public, Councillors, Parish Councillors  

• Parking Attendants 

 
      Site Visits: (where, why, when?) 

• Town Centre 
• A neighbouring authority or an authority outside of Lancashire: to be determined 
• A Parking Attendant training session  

 
 

Officer Support: 
 
Lead Officer:   Alan Capstick  
 
 
Democratic Services:  Ruth Hawes  
 
 
Corporate Policy Officer:  To be identified as 

required 
 

Likely Budget Requirements: 
Purpose                                           £ 
 
Site visits                                              50 
Questionnaire  1,100 
Postage and administration       50 
 
Total   1,200 

 

 

Target Body1 for Findings/Recommendations  
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

  

                                            
 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 58



 

 33 

 
 

 

SCRUTINY INQUIRY INFORMATION CHECKLIST 
 

 

Name of Inquiry: Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement  
 
Scrutiny Body: Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel  
 

 
Ref. 

 
Information Required 

 
Date 

 
Venue 

 
1 
 
 

Background information on Decriminalisation of 
Parking Enforcement and Parkwise 

9 Aug 05 Union Street 

 
2 
 
 

Ticket Statistics On Street/Off Street, Appeals 
Successful/Not Successful, Appeals By Offence 

9 Aug 05 Union Street 

 
3 
 
 

Comparisons with other areas for numbers of tickets, 
numbers of Parking Attendants, number of Penalty 

Charge Notices issued and cancelled 
9 Aug 05 Union Street 

 
4 
 
 

Articles regarding two reports on the public perception 
of Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement (Childs 
report and report by the University of Birmingham) 

7 Sept 05 Town Hall 

 
5 
 
 

Information relating to Disabled Badge holders 7 Sept 05 Town Hall 

 
6 
 
 

An example of a Penalty Charge Notice 7 Sept 05 Town Hall 

 
7 
 
 

Publicity information to raise awareness for drivers who 
park inconsiderately 

7 Sept 05 Town Hall 

 
8 
 
 

Comparison with rural and urban areas within Chorley 5 Oct 05 Town Hall 

 
9 
 
 

Result of questionnaire in relation to Decriminalisation 
of Parking Enforcement undertaken by members of the 

public, Councillors and Parish Councils 
9 Nov 05 Town Hall 

 
10 
 
 

Summary of letters to the local press 9 Nov 05 Town Hall 

 
11 

 
Best practice from other Authorities 9 Nov 05 Town Hall 

 
12 
 
 
 

Consideration of the recommendations of the Childs 
report 

24 Nov 05 Town Hall 

Appendix B 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 59



 

 34 

 
13 
 

Consideration of Mid-Bedfordshire, Westminster and 
Sefton Parking Services Scrutiny Report 

24 Nov 05 Town Hall 

 
14 
 

Consideration of the Parking Attendant Tours Log 7 Dec 05 Duxbury 

 
15 
 

Consideration of evidence submitted by the public 7 Dec 05 Duxbury 

 
16 
 

Training Manuals for the Parking Attendants 7 Dec 05 Duxbury 

 
17 
 

Additional Information leaflet for Blue Badge holders  
22 March 

06 
Town Hall  

 
18 
 

Comments received with applications for residents 
parking permits  

22 March 
06 

Town Hall 

 
19  
 

Comparison of car parking charges  
22 March 

06 
Town Hall 

 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 60



 

 35 

 
 

 

SCRUTINY INQUIRY WITNESS CHECKLIST 
 

 

Name of Inquiry: Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement (DPE) 
 
Scrutiny Body: Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel  
 

 
Ref. 

 
Witness 

 
Information Required 

 
Date 

 
Venue 

 
1 
 
 

Members of the Public 

Feedback on 
experiences/suggestions for 

possible improvements. 
 

Sept 05 
 
 

Dec 05 

By means of a 
questionnaire 

Consideration of 
letters/emails 

 
2 
 

Chorley Borough 
Councillors/ Parish 

Councils 

Feedback on 
experiences/suggestions for 

possible improvements 
Sept 05 

By means of a 
questionnaire 

 
3 
 

Disability Liaison Group 
Feedback on 

experiences/suggestions for 
possible improvements 

21 Nov 05 Town Hall 

 
4 

 

Representative from the 
contractor (National Car 

Parks) 
Identified questions  7 Dec 05 Duxbury 

 
5 

 

Parking Attendant 
Supervisor 

Identified questions  7 Dec 05 Duxbury 

 
6 
 

Communications Officer  Identified questions 7 Dec 05 Duxbury 

7 
Accountant for 

Decriminalisation of 
Parking Enforcement 

Identified questions 7 Dec 05 Duxbury 

 
8 

 
Town Centre Forum 

Feedback on 
experiences/suggestions for 

possible improvements 
7 Dec 05 Town Hall 

 
9 

 
Markets Liaison Group 

Feedback on 
experiences/suggestions for 

possible improvements 
21 Feb 06 Town Hall 

10 Councillor I Smith  
Feedback on 

experiences/suggestions for 
possible improvements 

22 March 
06 

Town Hall 

 
11 

 

Deputy Director of Legal 
Services  

Update on Legal Issues  
22 March 

06 
Town Hall 

 
12 
 

Executive Member for 
Traffic and 

Transportation 

Consideration of draft 
recommendations and 
feedback as Executive 

Member 

4 April 06 Town Hall  

 

 

Appendix C 

Agenda Item 5Agenda Page 61



Agenda Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 1  
Thursday, 8 June 2006 

MINUTES/ENV 

Environment and Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 

Thursday, 8 June 2006 
 

Present:   Councillor Alan Cullens, Peter Baker, Alan Cain, Michael Davies, Doreen Dickinson, 
Anthony Gee, Daniel Gee, Keith Iddon, Miss Margaret Iddon, Roy Lees and Edward Smith 
 
 

 
05.DC.21 WORKING TOGETHER TO IMPROVE MENTAL HEALTH IN LANCASHIRE - 

CONSULTATION ON MODERNISATION OF HOSPITAL SERVICES  
 
The Panel received a consultation document compiled by the Lancashire Joint 
Primary Care Trust requesting the authority to respond to their proposals by 14 July 
2006. 
 
Ms J Faux, Chief Executive of Chorley and South Ribble Primary Care Trust attended 
the meeting and gave a presentation consulting and advising Members of the mental 
health public consultation. 
 
In summary the changes will affect people over the age of 16 years who live in 
Lancashire who come into contact with mental health services. 
 
The Primary Care Trust wanted to develop services that help and support people in 
their own homes and communities.  The Government supports the PCT’s views. 
 
In summary the PCT wanted mental health services to: 
 
● support people in their recovery from the effects of their mental health problems. 
● provide more mental health services to people in their homes and communities. 
● provide more support to help people with their own personal development and 

help them to have access to the same opportunities enjoyed by all citizens. 
● promote positive mental health and well-being in all communities. 
● provide better support to carers. 
 
There were currently 15 specialist adult and older mental health service hospital sites 
across Lancashire which will be directly affected by the proposed changes.  They are 
of various size and generally the buildings are of poor quality and inadequate. 
 
The new community mental health services will, in the near future, reduce the need for 
people to go into hospital.  Because of this we would need fewer hospital beds.  At the 
moment there are 707 beds and PCT think they will need about 450 in the future.  
However, the final number of beds will be worked out locally.  It would cost less 
money to build new hospital sites, than it would to improve the current units. 
 
Having new hospital sites would allow the PCT to make huge improvements and offer 
hotel-like quality rooms and facilities.  Also the PCT could offer more specialist 
hospital services like a young person unit and services for people who are disabled. 
 
The PCT want to develop local crisis and respite houses as alternatives to going into 
hospital.  Any money saved from hospital changes will go into these types of new 
community mental health services. 
 
The PCT are seeking your views on the following proposals to: 
 
● provide more services to local communities to support people at home or as 

near to home as possible. 
 

06.ECOS.21 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 63



ENVIRONMENT AND COMMUNITY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 2  
Thursday, 8 June 2006 

MINUTES/ENV 

● fewer NHS beds. 
 
● build three new state-of-the-art mental health hospital sites, one in each of the 

following areas: 
 
 ○ Central and West Lancashire 
 ○ East Lancashire 
 ○ Fylde Coast 
 
● The 15 existing mental health hospital units provided by Lancashire Care NHS 

trust will no longer be needed. 
 
The proposals were not about saving money but investing and improving the mental 
health service in Lancashire. 
 
The PCT had requested the Council’s views on their proposals for change to mental 
health services in Lancashire and opinions on the following questions, by answering 
either yes, no or don’t know. 
 
1. Do you agree with the general principles for improving mental health services? 
 
2. Do you agree with our proposals to convert or close the existing mental health 

units, create three new mental health in-patient sites and release funding to 
provide improved community services such as crisis support and respite 
services? 

 
3. Do you agree that the main elements of a good mental health crisis service are 

provided by a range of professionals from different health and social care 
agencies? 

 
4. Do you have any other ideas for improving and modernising mental health 

services which you think that we should consider? 
 
Members welcomed the proposals for care in the community and to increase the 
standard and better service for mental health and raised several issues and welcomed 
the fact that there would be no impact on existing Primary Care Trust arrangements.  
 
In general the Panel supported the proposals. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair 
 

Agenda Item 6Agenda Page 64



 

 

 

 
 

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Chief Executive 
(Introduced by the Chair of the 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee – Cllr Edgerley) 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Executive Cabinet 

27 June 2006 

29 June 2006 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2006/07 
over 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1. To seek approval to the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme for 2006/07, which 
identifies the proposed areas of work to be undertaken by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and the two Panels during the current municipal year. 

 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

 
2. The implementation of the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme will assist the Council 

to achieve the Corporate Objective of being a performing organisation which is continually 
striving to improve. 

 
RISK ISSUES 
 
3. The issue raised and recommendations made in this report involve risk considerations in 

the following categories: 
 

Strategy X Information  
Reputation  Regulatory/Legal  
Financial  Operational X 
People  Other  

 
4. It is essential that a corporate and strategic approach is adopted towards improvements 

in the operation of the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny function. The Work Programme 
will be linked to items in the Corporate Strategy and provide a mechanism to measure the 
performance and delivery of key targets in the Strategy. 

 
 BACKGROUND 
 
5. In view of the issues raised in the Council’s CPA assessment relating to the ineffective 

Overview and Scrutiny role, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Executive 
Cabinet gave approval to a workshop being held to complete the self - evaluation 
framework for Overview and Scrutiny produced by the Centre for Public Scrutiny (CfPS). 

 
6. Members of the Council and the Senior Management Group attended a workshop session 

held on 20 October 2005 at the Woodlands Conference Centre, Chorley to complete the 
CfPS framework and, during the exercise Members and Officers were requested to 
demonstrate evidence of achievement, identify areas for improvement, and highlight 
potential barriers to improvement for inclusion in an Overview and Scrutiny Improvement 
Plan. 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 7Agenda Page 65



7. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Executive Cabinet approved the content of 
the Improvement Plan in March 2006, which  identifies 13 actions to improve the delivery of 
the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Function. An update on the progress made on the 
Improvement Plan will be submitted to the next meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and the Executive Cabinet. 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2006/07 

 
8. One of the key actions in the Improvement Plan is the production of an annual Overview and 

Scrutiny work programme which should be linked to the outcomes, measures and targets in 
the Corporate Strategy. This will ensure that the scrutiny topics: 

 ● relate to the Council’s priorities 
 ● relate to the concerns of the members of the public 
 ● are not under review by the any other body such as the Audit Committee 
 ● are issues about which something can be done and which scrutiny can provided added 

value. 
 
9. The Chairs of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the two Panels (Councillors 

Edgerley, A Cullens and G Russell) have met the Strategy Group Officers to consider the   
content of the Corporate Strategy and identify potential topics for inclusion in the Work 
Programme. The proposed topics are as follows: 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 ● The Council’s current performance against the key lines of enquiry to be assessed by the 
Audit Commission during the Comprehensive Performance Assessment and Direction of 
Travel. 

 ● The effectiveness of the Community Safety Partnership in the delivery of reduced levels 
of crime within the Borough.  

 
     Corporate and Customer Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

 ● Job Evaluation 
 ● Contact Centre Efficiencies and Partnership with Lancashire County Council 
 ● Gershon Efficiencies 
 ● Staff Sickness Absences 
 

      Environment and Community Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

 ● Neighbourhood Working 
 ● Town Centre Strategy 
 ● Inequalities in the Borough 

 

10. A copy of the draft Overview and Scrutiny Programme is attached (Appendix 1) and the 
Committee is requested to determine the order of priority for the implementation of the 
scrutiny inquiries listed in paragraph 9 above. Thereafter, the Committee and appropriate 
Panel will be requested to complete the Scrutiny Inquiry Project Outline (see Appendix 2) for 
the first scrutiny inquiry selected. 

 
11. The draft Overview and Scrutiny Programme also identifies the need for the Committee and  
 Panels to undertake the following tasks in addition to the scrutiny inquiries: 

 ● Hold the Executive Cabinet to account by the consideration of Directorate business plans 
and operational performance management data 

 ● Scrutiny of the Budget  
 ● Policy Development and Review 
 ● Monitoring of the implementation of approved recommendations in previous scrutiny 

inquiries 
 

Agenda Item 7Agenda Page 66



12. The timetable element within the Scrutiny Inquiry Project Outline to be completed for each 
scrutiny inquiry selected, will need to take into account the need for the issues set out above 
to be undertaken 

 
13. It is essential that the scrutiny inquiries commenced in 2006/07 are timetabled for completion 

by the end of this Council year. 
 

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
14. There are no HR implications attached to this report.  However, training for members of 

Overview and Scrutiny is vital to ensure that the process is robust and is meeting the needs 
of the authority. 

 
COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
15. There are no financial implications associated with this report, other than the cost of training 

and undertaking the scrutiny, the costs of which should be contained within current 
budgetary provision. 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
16. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is recommended to: 
 
 (1) Undertake the following scrutiny inquiries during 2006/07 in the order set out and 

complete  the Scrutiny Inquiry Project Outline document (Appendix 2) for the first priority 
inquiry at its next meeting. 

 
  ● The Council’s current performance against the key lines of enquiry to be assessed by 

the Audit Commission during the Comprehensive Performance Assessment and 
Direction of Travel. 

  ● The effectiveness of the Community Safety Partnership in the delivery of reduced 
levels of crime within the Borough. 

 
 (2) Determine the order of priority for the implementation of the proposed scrutiny inquiries 

for the two Panels set out in paragraph 9 above and request the Panels to complete  the 
Scrutiny Inquiry Project Outline document (Appendix 2) for the first priority inquiry at their 
next meeting. 

 
 (3) Approve the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme for 2006/07. 
 
17. The Executive Cabinet is recommended to note the content of the Overview and Scrutiny
 Work Programme for 2006/07. 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
(If the recommendations are accepted) 
 
18. To ensure that the Overview and Scrutiny work programme is linked to the outcomes, 

measures and targets in the Corporate Strategy. This will ensure that the scrutiny topics 
relate to the Council’s priorities and can provided added value to the delivery of services 

Agenda Item 7Agenda Page 67



 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
 
19. None 
 
 
 
DONNA HALL 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
 

Background Papers 

Document Date File Place of Inspection 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Improvement Plan 

 

Corporate Strategy 

  

Democratic Services 

Town Hall, Chorley 

 

As above 

 

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Steve Pearce 5196 15 June 2006 ADMINREP/92823LM 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 7Agenda Page 68



ADMINGEN/TOOLKIT/91252AJS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME – 2006/07 
 

 

Function/topic 
Assigned 

to 
 
J 

 
A 

 
S 

 
O 

 
N 

 
D 

 
J 

 
F 

 
M 

 
A 

 
M 

 
J 

1. Holding the Executive to Account              

 Annual Budget Consultation OSC     3 3 3      

 Provisional full year Performance Indicator OSC         3    

ECOSP   �  �    �   
  Business Plan and Performance Indicator 

Updates CCOSP   �  �    �   
 

 OSC   �   �   �    

 BVPP (Corporate Plan overall performance) OSC   �      �    

 Monitoring of Sickness Absence (6 monthly 
update) 

OSC    �       
 

� 

2. Policy Development and Review OSC   �          

 Overview and Scrutiny Improvement Plan 
2006/07 

OSC   �   �   �  
 

� 

 Corporate Improvement Plan 2004-2007 
Update (Corporate Strategy) 

OSC       �    
  

3. Scrutiny Inquiries              

Scrutiny topics to be identified in accordance 
with the programme list set out overleaf 

OSC 
CCOSP 
ECOSP 

  �

�

� 

�

�

� 

�

�

� 

� �

�

� 

� �

�

� 

  �

�

� 

Budget Scrutiny 
OSC 

CCOSP 
ECOSP 

        �

�

� 

   

LCC’s arrangement for the Scrutiny of health 
function – Periodic Review (to be determined) 

CCOSP 
            

4.  Monitoring of Inquiries              

 Housing Maintenance Appointments System CCOSP   �      �    

 Flooding, Flood Prevention and Contingency 
 Plan/Proposals 

ECOSP      �      � 

 Chorley Markets - Occupancy of Stalls & 
 Associated Matters 

CCOSP   �      �    

 Juvenile Nuisance  ECOSP            � 

 Grass Cutting ECOSP      �      � 

 Provision of Youth Activities in Chorley ECOSP         �    

 One-Stop Shop CCOSP       3      

 Accessibility of Cycling as a Leisure Pursuit ECOSP            � 

 Parkwise Scheme  CCOSP             
5. Monitoring of Budget Scrutiny 

Recommendations 
             

 Environmental Services ECOSP    3   3      

 Revenues and Benefits CCOSP    3   3      

 Planning Services ECOSP    3   3      

6. Other              

 O & S Training Programme OSC   3      �    

Public Participation/Communication*              
 

OSC      -  Overview and Scrutiny Committee                        ECOSP      -  Environment and Community 
                                                                                                                     Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
CCOSP       - Corporate and Customer Overview 
and Scrutiny Panel 
 

 

 

*responsibility transferred to Special Cabinet Sub-Committee - June 2006 
JUNE 2006 

 

  
 

 
 

Appendix 1 

Agenda Item 7 Agenda Page 69



 A
D

M
IN

G
E

N
/T

O
O

L
K

IT
/9

1
2
5
2
A

J
S

 

 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 S
c

ru
ti

n
y
 T

o
p

ic
s

/I
s

s
u

e
s

 t
o

 b
e

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d

 
 

R
e
f 

T
o

p
ic

/I
s
s
u

e
 T

it
le

 
D

a
te

 
In

c
lu

d
e
d

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
S

c
o

re
 

S
o

u
rc

e
 

 
 F

u
ll
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 I
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
 

 O
v

e
rv

ie
w

 a
n

d
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 

 C
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 k

e
y
 l
in

e
 

o
f 

e
n
q
u

ir
y
 t

o
 b

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d

it
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 d

u
ri

n
g
 C

P
A

 a
n
d
 D

ir
e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
T

ra
v
e
l.
 

 T
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 

le
v
e
ls

 o
f 

c
ri
m

e
 i
n
 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 a
n

d
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
P

a
n

e
l 

 J
o
b
 E

v
a

lu
a
ti
o

n
 

C
o
n
ta

c
t 

C
e
n
tr

e
: 
E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 L

C
C

 
G

e
rs

h
o
n
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s
 

S
ta

ff
 S

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 A

b
s
e
n
c
e
s
 

  E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

 N
e
ig

h
b
o

u
rh

o
o
d
 W

o
rk

in
g
 

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

In
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h

 
    

   J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
6
 

 

   A
ll 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 

   C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

 

 

Agenda Item 7 Agenda Page 70



ADMINREP/92823BLM ANNEX 6 

 
 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY INQUIRY PROJECT OUTLINE 
 

 

Review Topic:   
 

Investigation by:   
 

 Type:   
 

  

Objectives:   

 

 

 

Desired Outcomes:   

  

Terms of Reference:   
 
 
 
 
 

  

Key Issues:  
 
 
 

Risks:   
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Venue(s):   Timescale:   
 

 Start:   
 

 Finish:   
 

 

 

APPENDIX 2 

Agenda Item 7 Agenda Page 71



 

ADMINREP/92823BLM ANNEX 6 

Information Requirements and Sources: 
 
     Documents/evidence: (what/why?) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     Witnesses: (who, why?) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
     Consultation/Research: (what, why, who?) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
      Site Visits: (where, why, when?) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Likely Budget Requirements: 
 

  Purpose                                           £ 
 
 
 
   Total                                                
 

Officer Support: 
 
Lead Officer: 
 
 
Committee Administrator: 
 
 
Corporate Policy Officer: 
 
 

   

 

Target Body1 for Findings/Recommendations  
(Eg Executive Cabinet, Council, PCT) 

 
 

                                                           

 

Agenda Item 7 Agenda Page 72



 A
D

M
IN

R
E

P
/9

2
8

2
3
B

L
M

 
A

N
N

E
X

F
O

R
M

 7
 

 
 

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 I

N
V

E
S

T
IG

A
T

IO
N

 –
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 P
L

A
N

 
 T

O
P

IC
: 

 
 

S
T

A
G

E
 A

N
D

 T
A

S
K

 
 

J
a

n
 

F
e

b
 

M
a

r 
A

p
r 

M
a

y
 

J
u

n
 

J
u

l 
A

u
g

 
S

e
p

 
O

c
t 

N
o

v
 

D
e

c
 

J
a

n
 

F
e

b
 

M
a

r 

 1
. 
 T

O
P

IC
 S

E
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 2
. 
S

C
O

P
E

 I
N

Q
U

IR
Y

 
� ���
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 p

ro
je

ct
 o

u
tl

in
e 

� ���
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 p

ro
je

ct
 p

la
n

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 3
. 
C

O
L

L
E

C
T

 E
V

ID
E

N
C

E
 

� ���
 s

o
u

rc
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 4
. 
C

O
N

S
ID

E
R

 E
V

ID
E

N
C

E
 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 5
. 
C

O
M

P
L

E
T

IO
N

 O
F

 
R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

A
T

IO
N

S
 

A
N

D
 P

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 O
F

 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 6
. 
F

E
E

D
B

A
C

K
 &

 A
C

T
IO

N
 

   

     

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 7
. 
M

O
N

IT
O

R
 

   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

Agenda Item 7 Agenda Page 73



Agenda Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

ADMINREP/REPORT 
 

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Executive Director – Corporate & 
Customer and the Director of Finance 
(Introduced by the Executive Member 
for Resources, Councillor G Morgan) 

Executive Cabinet 29 June 2006 

 

DRAFT PROVISION CAPITAL OUTTURN 2005/06 AND 2006/07 

MONITORING 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1. To report to members the provisional outturn figures for the Council’s Capital budget for 
the financial year 2005/06. 

 

2. To update members of the progress of the 2006/07 Capital Programme and also to outline 
the progress made by the Capital Programme Board. 

 
3. To seek member approval and support for a number of recommendations from the Capital 

Programme Board. 

 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

 
4. The schemes within the Capital Programme contribute to the achievement of all the 

Council’s corporate priorities. 
 
RISK ISSUES 
 
5. The issue raised and recommendations made in this report involve risk considerations in 

the following categories: 
 

Strategy � Information  
Reputation � Regulatory/Legal  
Financial � Operational  
People  Other  

 
6.  The Capital Programme sets out the Council’s strategic investment plans and if these are 

not delivered it will not fully achieve its strategic objectives, running the risk of damaging 
the Council’s reputation. 

 
7. The Capital Programme also carries a significant financial risk. This is in terms of ensuring 

value for money, maximising resources available, and managing the performance to 
ensure that the  impact on the General Fund or HRA revenue budgets is affordable. There 
may be an adverse impact on revenue budgets if capital expenditure exceeds the 
approved total to a significant degree, or estimated capital receipts or external 
contributions are not achieved in full. Should unplanned borrowing be required to meet a 
resource shortfall, there would be a cost to revenue in subsequent years. 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 75



BACKGROUND 
 
8. During the financial year the Executive Cabinet received regular monitoring reports 

forecasting the likely Capital Programme outturn for 2005/06.  This final monitoring report 
for 2005/06 indicates an in year overspend of £489,114 (General Fund schemes 
£254,169; Housing Revenue Account schemes £234,945). 

 
9.  The figures outlined in the report are provisional and are subject to final checking and 

external audit. However it is not expected that these figures will change significantly, if at 
all. If subsequently any material differences arise these will be reported back to members. 

 
 Capital Outturn 2005/06 

 

10. The original Capital Programme for 2005/06 allowed for expenditure of £7,854,000 
including both the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account Category A and B 
schemes. Subsequently budget holders identified delays to the completion of some 
schemes and slippage to 2006/07 plus supplementary schemes were approved, leaving 
an approved capital programme of £10,541,950. 

 
11. The provisional outturn of 11,031,064 is £489,114 more than the approved programme. 

Attached in Appendix 1 is a detailed analysis of the provisional outturn against the 
approved programme. This appendix also presents the proposed financing of the 2005/06 
Capital Programme. Despite the overspending on General Fund schemes, it should be 
possible to finance that programme without use of borrowing in 2005/06. However, there 
will be a knock-on effect of the overspending, because capital receipts that could have 
been used in future years instead of borrowing will be used in 2005/06. The prudential 
borrowing of £269,389 indicated in Appendix 1 is in respect of Housing Revenue Account 
capital schemes. Though the balance in-hand at 31 March 2006 of capital receipts 
restricted to housing purposes exceeds the borrowing, these capital receipts are required 
in future years for budgeted purposes. 

 

12. Whilst there were some minor under spends in completed schemes, there were also 
some overspends, some of which are within acceptable tolerances, others which were 
more significant, namely: 

 

 £ 
Town Hall Disabled Access and Refurbishment 253.093 
Capitalised Restructuring Costs 26,237 
Traffic Calming/Estate Improvements  36,974 
Disabled Facilities Grants 25,798 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 234,945 

 

Consultants have been appointed in order to review the issues surrounding the Town Hall 
project and also to investigate the possibility of recovering some of the costs from the 
contractor due to delays. The outturn figure takes account of the accrued recovery of 
some costs: should this not be achieved there would be a further financial impact. 

 

The other major area of overspending is the Housing Revenue Account. There was a 
delay in implementing the Cotswold House CCTV installation, so expenditure of £34,730 
on this scheme will need to slip to 2006/07. Excluding this project from the analysis, the 
overspending on all other HRA schemes was £269,675. It is proposed that this 
overspending is financed by borrowing to avoid the reduction in capital receipts restricted 
to housing purposes that are required to finance the Housing Improvement Programme in 
2006/07 and subsequent years. In order to offset the impact of this borrowing, it is 
proposed that the 2006/07 HRA Capital Programme is reduced to use only the Major 
Repairs Allowance for the year. (This proposal is shown in Appendix 3.) 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 76



 

 The Cabinet is required to approve the financing of the Capital Programme.  

 

Capital Receipts Monitoring 

  

13. The provisional outturn for usable capital receipts is presented in Appendix 2. The use of 
unrestricted capital receipts in the proposed financing of the programme has increased by 
£195,360 because of overspending. This means that the balance of usable receipts that 
would have been available in 2006/07 will be less than intended.  

 

HOW ARE WE PERFORMING? 
 
14. The Capital Programme Board has made good progress over the past year. Previously 

the Capital Programme has seen year-end under spends with many schemes slipping to 
following year and therefore not completed as intended. The introduction of the Capital 
Programme Board and the project management toolkit have lead to a more controlled and 
successful delivery of the programme this year. However members must recognise that 
there are only limited resources devoted to this, and there is still a lot of work to do. 

 

(A)  Key Performance Indicators 

 
15. High level monitoring of the Capital Programme is carried out through four performance 

indicators, which have been described in previous Executive Cabinet reports. The table 
below lists these and shows targets and year-end results against the performance last 
reported to Executive Cabinet on 9 March 2006. 

 

Performance Performance Indicator Target 
2005/06 At March 06 Year End 

05/06 

 
 
1. The % of the Capital Programme budget 

actually spent. 
 
2. The % of capital schemes intended to be 

completed during the year actually 
completed. 

 
3. The % of project using the toolkit. 
 
4. The % of successful projects. 

% 
 

80 
 
 

80 
 
 

50 
 

80 

% 
 

92 
 
 

67 
 
 

29 
 

100 

% 
 

105 
 
 

82 
 
 

34 
 

100 
 

 
16. At the end of 2005/06 three of the four performance indicators have exceeded target.  

        

In recent years the Capital Programme has struggled to deliver. This year the outturn 
shows a year end overspend in the Capital Programme of 5%, with 82% of schemes 
which we intended to complete within the financial year actually completed.  
 

17. The percentage of projects using the toolkit is below target. Although disappointing it was 
an ambitious target, with project management only before used for eGovernment projects. 
Also our last report indicated that we were behind target and that it will take time to fully 
embed the project management methodology therefore the result was expected.  

 
18. Take up for use of the toolkit in 2006/07 looks promising. A popular and effective training 

programme is now underway with over 30 staff attending since February and another 20 
booked on over the coming months. Also the number of good quality business cases 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 77



being submitted to the Capital Programme Board is increasing. The target for 2006/07 is 
70%, and the board are confident of meeting this.  

 

 The expected increase in use of the toolkit will inevitably also lead to improved results in 
all the other performance indicators. 

 
In addition continual improvements are being made to the toolkit based of feedback from 
users, and benchmarking against methods used by other local authorities. This had lead 
to our toolkit becoming well respected within the North West. 

 
19. While the percentage of successful projects is an important measure, which will increase 

in value during 2006/07, the year-end figure has little meaning this year due to the small 
number of schemes who have set and measured success criteria.   

 
 Capital Monitoring 2006/07  
 
20. The latest Capital Programme forecast for 2006/07 shows a reduction in total budget to 

£12,160,320. The table below summarises the changes. Appendix 3 presents the 2006/07 
programme in detail and Appendix 4 show the estimated capital receipts totals. 

 

Executive Cabinet 
Date 

Details £ 

30/03/06 
 
 
 
 
 
29/06/06 

Approved Capital Programme  
 
Less 
Slippage to 2006/07 
Other changes 
 
Revised Capital Programme 

£12,351,330 
 
 

£127,110 
 (£318,120) 

 
£12,160,320 

 

 
21. The slippage of £127,110 from 2005/06 had been reported to Executive Cabinet on 9 

March 2006 but had not so far been added to the 2006/07 programme. 
 
22. Of the other changes, the most significant is the proposed reduction of Housing Revenue 

Account capital expenditure by £264,330, to match the Major Repairs Allowance for the 
year. The budgets for Computer Network Improvements and Capitalised Redundancy 
Costs are reduced by £3,400 and £26,240 respectively, because the expenditure was 
incurred in 2005/06 instead of 2006/07. It is recommended that the budget for S106 
funded Transport Improvements is reduced by £24,150 because the S106 resources were 
required in 2005/06 instead. 

 
23. The budget for Duxbury Park Golf Course Capital Investment moves from Category B to 

Category A because expenditure has now started. 
 
PROGRAMME BOARD RECOMENDATIONS 
 
24. Set out below are a summary of requests received at the last meeting of the Capital 

Programme Board on the 5 June 2006, and in each case the Board’s recommendations.  

 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 78



New Schemes and Projects 
 

25. A number of business cases for new schemes or projects have been submitted to the 
Board for consideration. These have been uploaded onto the Loop and can be found 
here, http://theloop/section.asp?sectionType=list&catid=12334, under ‘New Projects for 
Consideration’. 

 

Project Priorities Outcome Estimated Budget 

Integration Software Performance 
  

6.2 £40,000 

Union Street/Market S/St 
Thomas’s Road Mini Roundabouts 
and Zebra Crossings 

Prosperity, 
People, Place 

1.3 
4.1 
5.4 

£114,000 

APP/Civica Housing Assessment 
Module 

People, 
Place, 
Performance 

2.1 
5.2 
6.3 

£6,218 

 
26. The Board recommends that each of the new projects listed in the table above be included 

as a category 'C' schemes and as such on the reserve list for future consideration when 
resources become available. 

 
Project Priority Outcome Financing 

Euxton Villa Football 
Club 

People & Place 2.2 
3.1 
5.1 
5.3 

CBC Match Pot Funding - £10,000 
Football foundation grant - £231,075 
Euxton Parish Council - £5,000 
Private individual - £35,000 
Harris Trust - £5,000 
Foundation for sport and arts - £1,000 
Euxton Villa Football Club - £68,425 
 
Total Cost £355,500 

Music Café Project People & Place 2.2 
3.1 
5.4 

CBC Match Pot Funding - £20,000 
 

Gillibrand Street Site 
Assembly 

Prosperity 1.2 £370,000 – to be funded through a 
back to back agreement with the 
developer 

Affordable Housing 
Project 

Place & People 2.3 
3 
5.1 

£980,000 – to be funded through a 
back to back agreement with the 
developer 

Website Refresh Performance 6.4 £50,000 – to be funded from the 
eWorkforce reserve. 

Migration to OS 
Master Map 

Performance 6.3 £29,262 – to be funded from the 
Planning Delivery Grant 

eDevelopment and 
Building Control 
Project 

People, Prosperity 
& Place 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 

£152,000 – to be funded from the 
Planning Delivery Grant 

Pedestrian 
Improvements to 
Southport Road and 
St Thomas’s Road 
Chorley 

People & Place 3.1 
4.2 
5.4 
 

£30,000 – to be funded from the traffic 
calming budget 

Section 106 Funded 
– Various Highway 
Improvements linked 

People & Place 3.1 
5.4 
 

£100,000 – to be funded from S106 
money. 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 79



to Gillibrand Estate 
and Southlands High 
School 

Various Traffic 
Calming/Local Road 
Safety Schemes 

People & Place 3.1 
5.4 
 

CBC Traffic Calming Budget - £18,000 
LCC Contribution - £50,000 
 
Total Cost - £68,000 

Litter/Dog 
Waste/On-street 
Recycling Bins 

People 4 £42,940 – to be funded from a DEFRA 
Grant. 

 
27. The Board recommends that the new projects shown in the table above, be included as a 

Category B scheme on the 2006/07 Capital Programme.  

 
COMMENTS OF THE HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
35. There are no comments from the Head of Human Resources. 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
29. That the outturn be noted 
 
30. That members approve the financing of the Capital Programme. 
 
31. That members approve the reduction in the HRA budget for 2006/07 due to the 

overspending in 2005/06. 
 
32. That members approve the Capital Programme for 2006/07 be reduced to £12,160,320, 

as presented in Appendix 3. 
 
33. That the following recommendations of the Capital Programme Board be approved: 
 
 New Capital Schemes and Projects 
 
 (e) That the following new schemes be placed on the reserve list (Category C) for 

future consideration when resources become available: 

 
1. Integration Software 
2. Union Street/Market S/St Thomas’s Road Mini Roundabouts and Zebra 

Crossings 
3. APP/Civica Housing Assessment Module 

 

(f) That the following new scheme be placed in Category B of the 2006/07 Capital 
Programme: 

 

1. Euxton Villa Football Club 
2. Music Café Project 
3. Gillibrand Street Site Assembly 
4. Affordable Housing Project 
5. Website Refresh 
6. Migration to OS Master Map 
7. eDevelopment and Building Control Project 
8. Pedestrian Improvements to Southport Road and St Thomas’s Road 

Chorley 
9. Section 106 Funded – Various Highway Improvements linked to Gillibrand 

Estate and Southlands High School 
10. Various Traffic Calming/Local Road Safety Schemes 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 80



11. Litter/Dog Waste/On-Street Recycling Bins 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
(If the recommendations are accepted) 
 
34. The financing of the 2005/06 Capital Programme as presented avoids the use of 

borrowing to finance General Fund schemes in part by maximising the use of external 
contributions such as S106 commuted sums. Borrowing has been restricted to financing 
the HRA schemes to avoid an adverse impact on the General Fund revenue budget. 

 
35. The Capital Programme for 2006/07 needs to be updated to take account of slippage and 

other changes. 

 

36. To bring forward new schemes which members may consider for inclusion in the future 
Capital Programme. 

 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
 
37. Prudential borrowing to finance HRA schemes in 2005/06 could be avoided by using 

restricted capital receipts. This has been rejected because those receipts are required to 
finance the General Fund Housing Investment Programme from 2006/07 onwards. 

 
 
 
 
PAUL MORRIS 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR – CORPORATE & CUSTOMER 
 
GARY HALL 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 

There are no background papers to this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Rebecca Ostapski  
Michael Jackson 

5779 
5490 

16 June 2006 Capital Outturn Report 200506 

 

Agenda Item 8Agenda Page 81



Agenda Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
2
9
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
6

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1

C
a

p
it

a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 2
0

0
5

/0
6

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 f

ro
m

 

B
u

d
g

e
t

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
B

C
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

S
c
h

e
m

e
£

£
£

£
£

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 S
C

H
E

M
E

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 -

 e
-G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 &

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts

 e
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t

1
1
3
,0

8
0

1
1
3
,0

8
0

0
1
1
3
,0

8
0

0

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ys

te
m

s
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
s
 (

P
A

R
IS

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 s

ys
te

m
)

2
2
,7

0
0

2
2
,7

3
4

3
4

2
2
,7

3
4

0

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
c
o
re

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ys

te
m

s
4
6
,2

0
0

4
6
,2

3
3

3
3

0
4
6
,2

3
3

D
ig

it
is

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
R

e
c
o
rd

s
8
7
,3

3
0

8
7
,2

7
8

(5
2
)

8
7
,2

7
8

0

C
o
m

p
u
te

r 
N

e
tw

o
rk

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 (
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y)

7
4
,0

7
0

7
7
,7

0
2

3
,6

3
2

1
2
,1

2
7

6
5
,5

7
5

e
-D

e
m

o
c
ra

c
y 

S
o
ft

w
a
re

2
6
,0

0
0

2
7
,4

1
7

1
,4

1
7

2
7
,4

1
7

0

P
S

S
 C

o
m

p
u
te

r 
A

id
e
d
 D

e
s
ig

n
 S

ys
te

m
s

5
2
0

5
2
2

2
0

5
2
2

P
S

S
 D

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
Im

a
g
e
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
2
4
,0

0
0

2
0
,0

5
2

(3
,9

4
8
)

2
0
,0

5
2

0

P
S

S
 F

le
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

ys
te

m
1
5
,0

0
0

1
1
,0

3
0

(3
,9

7
0
)

0
1
1
,0

3
0

In
tr

a
n
e
t 
R

e
d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 U

p
d
a
te

3
3
,7

9
0

3
3
,7

8
4

(6
)

0
3
3
,7

8
4

A
n
n
u
a
l 
le

a
v
e
 &

 f
le

x
it
im

e
 s

ys
te

m
1
3
,2

5
0

1
3
,2

4
3

(7
)

0
1
3
,2

4
3

IT
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 (
in

c
l.
 s

a
la

ry
 c

a
p
it
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
)

7
5
,8

2
0

7
5
,5

9
0

(2
3
0
)

7
5
,5

9
0

0

R
e
c
o
rd

s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

6
0
0

5
9
0

(1
0
)

5
9
0

0

P
a
y 

M
o
d
e
lle

r 
S

ys
te

m
 r

e
 J

o
b
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n

2
8
,0

5
0

2
8
,0

5
0

0
0

2
8
,0

5
0

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
L
a
n
d
 &

 P
ro

p
e
rt

y 
G

a
z
e
tt
e
e
r

1
,5

9
0

1
,5

9
0

0
1
,5

9
0

0

In
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

R
M

 &
 W

o
rk

fl
o
w

 w
it
h
 B

a
c
k
 O

ff
ic

e
5
0
,0

0
0

2
9
,1

6
3

(2
0
,8

3
7
)

2
9
,1

6
3

0

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 I
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n

3
0
,0

0
0

6
,1

8
0

(2
3
,8

2
0
)

6
,1

8
0

0

A
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 h

o
m

e
/r

e
m

o
te

 &
 m

o
b
ile

 w
o
rk

in
g
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s

3
0
,0

0
0

4
4
,2

5
4

1
4
,2

5
4

4
4
,2

5
4

0

In
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 t
o
 L

a
n
d
 &

 P
ro

p
e
rt

y 
G

a
z
e
tt
e
e
r

2
2
,5

0
0

1
3
,0

4
5

(9
,4

5
5
)

1
3
,0

4
5

0

M
ic

ro
s
o
ft

 U
p
g
ra

d
e

1
,4

1
0

0
(1

,4
1
0
)

0
0

P
la

n
n
in

g
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 G
ra

n
t-

fu
n
d
e
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
4
,6

3
0

4
,6

3
0

0
4
,6

3
0

0

G
IS

 S
e
rv

e
r

0
4
,4

3
8

4
,4

3
8

4
,4

3
8

0

B
e
n
g
a
l 
S

tr
e
e
t 
C

yb
e
r 

C
a
fé

0
7
,3

6
5

7
,3

6
5

7
,3

6
5

0

T
o

ta
l 
- 

e
-G

o
v

e
rn

m
e
n

t
7
0
0
,5

4
0

6
6
7
,9

7
0

(3
2
,5

7
0
)

4
6
9
,5

3
3

1
9
8
,4

3
7

Agenda Item 8 Agenda Page 83



E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
2
9
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
6

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1

C
a

p
it

a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 2
0

0
5

/0
6

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 f

ro
m

 

B
u

d
g

e
t

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
B

C
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

S
c
h

e
m

e
£

£
£

£
£

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 -

 O
ff

ic
e
 A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

 

B
e
n
g
a
l 
S

tr
e
e
t 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
C

C
T

V
 a

n
d
 N

e
w

 B
u
ild

in
g

1
5
0
,2

3
0

1
4
7
,3

3
6

(2
,8

9
4
)

0
1
4
7
,3

3
6

T
o
w

n
 H

a
ll 

D
is

a
b
le

d
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t

1
,4

5
2
,9

1
0

1
,7

0
6
,8

1
3

2
5
3
,9

0
3

1
6
,0

0
0

1
,6

9
0
,8

1
3

G
ill

ib
ra

n
d
 S

tr
e
e
t 
A

n
n
e
x
e
 R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 
2
0
0
5
/0

6
2
9
,6

3
0

3
0
,4

0
2

7
7
2

0
3
0
,4

0
2

U
n
io

n
 S

tr
e
e
t 
O

ff
ic

e
s
 -

 R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t

1
7
,5

8
0

1
7
,5

7
9

(1
)

0
1
7
,5

7
9

U
n
io

n
 S

tr
e
e
t 
O

ff
ic

e
s
 H

e
a
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 V

e
n
ti
la

ti
o
n

1
,5

0
0

2
,9

2
0

1
,4

2
0

0
2
,9

2
0

T
o

ta
l 
O

ff
ic

e
 A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

1
,6

5
1
,8

5
0

1
,9

0
5
,0

5
0

2
5
3
,2

0
0

1
6
,0

0
0

1
,8

8
9
,0

5
0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 M
e
a
s
u

re
s

C
a
p
it
a
lis

e
d
 R

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g
 C

o
s
ts

5
6
,5

2
0

8
2
,7

5
7

2
6
,2

3
7

0
8
2
,7

5
7

P
ro

je
c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 C
a
p
it
a
lis

a
ti
o
n

4
0
,0

0
0

4
0
,0

0
0

0
0

4
0
,0

0
0

E
G

L
R

 -
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 H

o
ly

 C
ro

s
s
 A

W
 P

it
c
h

2
5
0
,0

0
0

2
5
0
,0

0
0

0
2
5
0
,0

0
0

0

E
G

L
R

 -
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
m

it
ig

a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

s
1
2
0
,0

0
0

1
1
4
,7

4
5

(5
,2

5
5
)

1
1
4
,7

4
5

0

O
D

P
M

 e
-V

o
ti
n
g
 2

0
0
4
/0

5
 -

 2
0
0
5
/0

6
9
0
3
,8

8
0

9
0
3
,8

7
9

(1
)

9
0
3
,8

7
9

0

T
o

ta
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 M
e
a
s
u

re
s

1
,3

7
0
,4

0
0

1
,3

9
1
,3

8
1

2
0
,9

8
1

1
,2

6
8
,6

2
4

1
2
2
,7

5
7

L
e
is

u
re

 a
n

d
 C

u
lt

u
ra

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

R
e
p
la

c
e
 f

ilt
e
r 

B
ri
n
s
c
a
ll 

s
w

im
m

in
g
 p

o
o
l

1
9
,1

8
0

1
9
,1

7
6

(4
)

0
1
9
,1

7
6

A
ll 

S
e
a
s
o
n
s
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
 R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t

9
,6

3
0

9
,6

3
2

2
0

9
,6

3
2

A
s
tl
e
y 

H
a
ll 

R
e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 
(P

h
a
s
e
 I
 s

lip
p
a
g
e
 &

 I
I)

1
7
,7

2
0

2
9
,5

6
3

1
1
,8

4
3

0
2
9
,5

6
3

A
s
tl
e
y 

H
a
ll 

G
a
s
 S

u
p
p
ly

1
2
,0

0
0

7
,5

9
4

(4
,4

0
6
)

0
7
,5

9
4

Y
V

P
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

B
ri
d
g
e
s

9
5
,6

6
0

7
5
,9

3
3

(1
9
,7

2
7
)

9
,2

9
3

6
6
,6

4
0

L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

3
9
,7

5
0

2
7
,2

0
8

(1
2
,5

4
2
)

0
2
7
,2

0
8

L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 D

D
A

 W
o
rk

s
7
,3

5
0

0
(7

,3
5
0
)

0
0

T
o

ta
l 
L

e
is

u
re

 a
n

d
 C

u
lt

u
ra

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
0
1
,2

9
0

1
6
9
,1

0
6

(3
2
,1

8
4
)

9
,2

9
3

1
5
9
,8

1
3

Agenda Item 8 Agenda Page 84



E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
2
9
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
6

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1

C
a

p
it

a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 2
0

0
5

/0
6

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 f

ro
m

 

B
u

d
g

e
t

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
B

C
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

S
c
h

e
m

e
£

£
£

£
£

P
u

b
li
c
 S

p
a
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

T
ra

ff
ic

 C
a
lm

in
g
/E

s
ta

te
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

5
5
,3

6
0

9
2
,3

3
4

3
6
,9

7
4

3
6
,9

7
4

5
5
,3

6
0

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
B

o
ro

u
g
h
 B

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 S
ig

n
s

5
,8

9
0

5
,2

9
0

(6
0
0
)

0
5
,2

9
0

E
x
te

n
s
io

n
 t
o
 C

h
o
rl
e
y 

C
e
m

e
te

ry
 (

n
e
w

 b
u
ri
a
l 
a
re

a
)

7
8
,5

4
0

8
3
,9

2
0

5
,3

8
0

0
8
3
,9

2
0

C
e
m

e
te

ry
 m

e
m

o
ri
a
l 
s
a
fe

ty
1
,1

3
0

1
,1

7
5

4
5

0
1
,1

7
5

R
e
s
u
rf

a
c
e
 F

o
o
tp

a
th

s
 C

h
o
rl
e
y 

a
n
d
 A

d
lin

g
to

n
 C

e
m

e
te

ri
e
s

2
,6

2
0

2
,1

8
1

(4
3
9
)

0
2
,1

8
1

C
a
r 

p
a
rk

in
g
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 n

e
w

 C
h
o
rl
e
y 

In
te

rc
h
a
n
g
e

1
6
,7

0
0

1
5
,3

7
9

(1
,3

2
1
)

0
1
5
,3

7
9

P
u
rc

h
a
s
e
 a

n
d
 e

re
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
b
u
s
 s

h
e
lt
e
rs

1
0
,0

0
0

9
,6

7
2

(3
2
8
)

0
9
,6

7
2

T
e
s
c
o
 s

u
p
e
rs

to
re

 c
yc

le
 p

a
th

6
3
,0

0
0

4
9
,0

8
0

(1
3
,9

2
0
)

4
9
,0

8
0

0

T
o

ta
l 
P

u
b

li
c
 S

p
a
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
3
3
,2

4
0

2
5
9
,0

3
1

2
5
,7

9
1

8
6
,0

5
4

1
7
2
,9

7
7

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

N
e
w

 a
n
d
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
L
it
te

r 
a
n
d
 D

o
g
 W

a
s
te

 b
in

s
1
8
,6

1
0

2
1
,3

7
6

2
,7

6
6

0
2
1
,3

7
6

D
E

F
R

A
 2

0
0
4
/0

5
1
1
6
,4

2
0

1
1
6
,4

1
9

(1
)

1
1
0
,7

1
0

5
,7

0
9

P
u
b
lic

 T
o
ile

ts
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 a

n
d
 R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
1
0
6
,0

0
0

1
1
5
,3

8
5

9
,3

8
5

0
1
1
5
,3

8
5

R
e
c
yc

lin
g
 b

in
s
, 
b
o
x
e
s
, 
lid

s
 a

n
d
 s

a
c
k
s
 2

0
0
5
/0

6
1
5
3
,3

3
0

1
5
3
,3

3
2

2
1
8
,2

5
3

1
3
5
,0

7
9

T
o

ta
l 
E

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

3
9
4
,3

6
0

4
0
6
,5

1
2

1
2
,1

5
2

1
2
8
,9

6
3

2
7
7
,5

4
9

Agenda Item 8 Agenda Page 85



E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
2
9
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
6

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1

C
a

p
it

a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 2
0

0
5

/0
6

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 f

ro
m

 

B
u

d
g

e
t

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
B

C
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

S
c
h

e
m

e
£

£
£

£
£

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
)

V
a
c
a
n
t 
P

ro
p
e
rt

y 
In

it
ia

ti
v
e

3
6
,0

0
0

2
8
,3

7
8

(7
,6

2
2
)

0
2
8
,3

7
8

G
ill

ib
ra

n
d
 D

is
a
b
le

d
 A

d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
s
 (

S
1
0
6
 f

u
n
d
e
d
)

1
0
,0

0
0

1
0
,0

0
0

0
1
0
,0

0
0

0

D
is

a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
ts

3
9
9
,1

3
0

4
2
4
,9

2
8

2
5
,7

9
8

2
4
0
,1

8
7

1
8
4
,7

4
1

H
o
m

e
 R

e
p
a
ir
 A

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 &

 E
n
e
rg

y 
G

ra
n
ts

2
8
0
,0

0
0

2
6
7
,4

3
8

(1
2
,5

6
2
)

0
2
6
7
,4

3
8

H
a
n
d
y 

P
e
rs

o
n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
1
5
,0

0
0

1
5
,0

0
0

0
0

1
5
,0

0
0

G
ro

u
p
 R

e
p
a
ir
 S

c
h
e
m

e
s

2
4
,5

0
0

2
4
,8

9
0

3
9
0

0
2
4
,8

9
0

S
lu

m
 C

le
a
ra

n
c
e

3
4
,0

0
0

3
6
,4

1
3

2
,4

1
3

0
3
6
,4

1
3

T
o

ta
l 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
)

7
9
8
,6

3
0

8
0
7
,0

4
7

8
,4

1
7

2
5
0
,1

8
7

5
5
6
,8

6
0

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 &
 P

o
li
c
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

A
d
lin

g
to

n
 C

C
T

V
 C

a
m

e
ra

s
4
0
,0

0
0

3
8
,3

0
4

(1
,6

9
6
)

3
8
,2

7
1

3
3

C
o
p
p
u
ll 

S
p
e
n
d
m

o
re

 L
a
n
e
 C

C
T

V
 C

a
m

e
ra

s
3
0
,0

5
0

3
1
,8

0
6

1
,7

5
6

3
1
,8

0
6

0

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 C

C
T

V
/C

o
n
tr

o
l 
R

o
o
m

 e
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

9
,8

2
0

9
,8

2
2

2
4
,5

8
6

5
,2

3
6

T
o

ta
l 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 &

 P
o

li
c
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

7
9
,8

7
0

7
9
,9

3
2

6
2

7
4
,6

6
3

5
,2

6
9

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

S
e
rv

ic
e
 C

e
n
tr

e
 o

n
 P

o
rt

la
n
d
 S

t 
C

a
r 

P
a
rk

5
,3

7
0

5
,3

6
8

(2
)

0
5
,3

6
8

A
c
k
h
u
rs

t 
L
o
d
g
e
 R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t

8
5
,8

9
0

8
9
,2

2
8

3
,3

3
8

0
8
9
,2

2
8

T
o

ta
l 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

9
1
,2

6
0

9
4
,5

9
6

3
,3

3
6

0
9
4
,5

9
6

Agenda Item 8 Agenda Page 86



E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
2
9
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
6

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1

C
a

p
it

a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 2
0

0
5

/0
6

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 f

ro
m

 

B
u

d
g

e
t

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
B

C
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

S
c
h

e
m

e
£

£
£

£
£

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
&

 R
e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n

C
h
a
p
e
l 
S

tr
e
e
t 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
E

n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t

2
9
6
,4

5
0

3
0
5
,4

6
9

9
,0

1
9

1
0
5
,8

0
7

1
9
9
,6

6
2

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e
g
io

n
a
l 
S

it
e

2
,2

8
1
,3

0
0

2
,2

9
4
,8

7
2

1
3
,5

7
2

1
9
3
,4

3
0

2
,1

0
1
,4

4
2

D
e
s
ig

n
 F

e
e
s

1
0
3
,5

5
0

1
0
3
,5

5
0

0
0

1
0
3
,5

5
0

A
s
tl
e
y 

P
a
rk

 H
e
ri
ta

g
e
 L

o
tt
e
ry

 P
ro

je
c
t

1
7
6
,2

1
0

1
4
8
,1

0
3

(2
8
,1

0
7
)

1
1
7
,8

7
9

3
0
,2

2
4

G
ro

u
n
d
w

o
rk

 P
ro

je
c
ts

3
0
,0

0
0

3
0
,5

0
0

5
0
0

0
3
0
,5

0
0

T
o

ta
l 
D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
&

 R
e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
2
,8

8
7
,5

1
0

2
,8

8
2
,4

9
4

(5
,0

1
6
)

4
1
7
,1

1
6

2
,4

6
5
,3

7
8

T
O

T
A

L
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 F
U

N
D

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

E
8
,4

0
8
,9

5
0

8
,6

6
3
,1

1
9

2
5
4
,1

6
9

2
,7

2
0
,4

3
3

5
,9

4
2
,6

8
6

H
o

u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t)

A
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 D

e
c
e
n
t 
H

o
m

e
s
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

3
5
3
,0

0
0

4
8
1
,0

4
2

1
2
8
,0

4
2

2
2
5
,2

2
3

2
5
5
,8

1
9

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
W

in
d
o
w

s
 &

 D
o
o
rs

7
1
6
,0

0
0

7
5
3
,7

5
7

3
7
,7

5
7

7
5
3
,7

5
7

0

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

S
a
fe

ty
4
2
,0

0
0

7
9
,4

1
4

3
7
,4

1
4

4
6
,4

1
4

3
3
,0

0
0

E
s
ta

te
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 &
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

9
3
,0

0
0

1
1
7
,2

9
2

2
4
,2

9
2

9
9
,2

9
2

1
8
,0

0
0

A
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

D
is

a
b
le

d
1
9
4
,0

0
0

2
5
4
,5

7
7

6
0
,5

7
7

4
7
,9

6
4

2
0
6
,6

1
3

M
a
jo

r 
V

o
id

 W
o
rk

s
3
7
3
,0

0
0

4
4
8
,8

0
0

7
5
,8

0
0

3
9
6
,8

0
0

5
2
,0

0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
S

it
e
 W

o
rk

s
2
1
7
,0

0
0

2
3
2
,7

9
3

1
5
,7

9
3

2
2
9
,7

9
3

3
,0

0
0

C
a
p
it
a
lis

e
d
 S

a
la

ri
e
s

1
1
0
,0

0
0

0
(1

1
0
,0

0
0
)

0
0

C
o
ts

w
o
ld

 H
o
u
s
e
 C

C
T

V
3
5
,0

0
0

2
7
0

(3
4
,7

3
0
)

0
2
7
0

T
O

T
A

L
 H

O
U

S
IN

G
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

2
,1

3
3
,0

0
0

2
,3

6
7
,9

4
5

2
3
4
,9

4
5

1
,7

9
9
,2

4
3

5
6
8
,7

0
2

T
O

T
A

L
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

 2
0
0
5
/0

6
1
0
,5

4
1
,9

5
0

1
1
,0

3
1
,0

6
4

4
8
9
,1

1
4

4
,5

1
9
,6

7
6

6
,5

1
1
,3

8
8

Agenda Item 8 Agenda Page 87



E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
2
9
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
6

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1

C
a

p
it

a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 2
0

0
5

/0
6

2
0
0
5
/0

6
 

C
u

rr
e
n

t 

B
u

d
g

e
t

P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
 f

ro
m

 

B
u

d
g

e
t

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
B

C
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

S
c
h

e
m

e
£

£
£

£
£

F
in

a
n

c
in

g
 t

h
e
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

P
ru

d
e
n
ti
a
l 
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

0
2
6
9
,3

8
9

2
6
9
,3

8
9

0
2
6
9
,3

8
9

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
2
,9

6
1
,9

9
0

3
,1

5
7
,3

5
0

1
9
5
,3

6
0

0
3
,1

5
7
,3

5
0

C
a
p
it
a
l 
re

c
e
ip

t 
e
a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 f

o
r 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 R
e
g
io

n
a
l 
S

it
e

2
,0

8
7
,8

7
0

2
,1

0
1
,4

4
2

1
3
,5

7
2

0
2
,1

0
1
,4

4
2

H
o
u
s
in

g
 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 R

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
7
3
5
,6

9
0

7
0
6
,1

7
3

(2
9
,5

1
7
)

0
7
0
6
,1

7
3

E
x
t.
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 -

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

6
1
3
,4

8
0

6
5
5
,4

8
5

4
2
,0

0
5

6
5
5
,4

8
5

0

E
x
t.
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 -

 L
o
tt
e
ry

 B
o
d
ie

s
1
3
5
,1

9
0

1
1
7
,8

7
9

(1
7
,3

1
1
)

1
1
7
,8

7
9

0

E
x
t.
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 -

 O
th

e
r 

L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

5
2
,1

6
0

7
1
,4

6
0

1
9
,3

0
0

7
1
,4

6
0

0

E
x
t.
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 -

 R
e
g
io

n
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
A

g
e
n
c
y 

e
tc

1
1
4
,4

3
0

1
1
4
,4

3
0

0
1
1
4
,4

3
0

0

E
x
t.
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 -

 O
th

e
r

8
0
,0

5
0

7
8
,4

9
4

(1
,5

5
6
)

7
8
,4

9
4

0

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
G

ra
n
ts

 -
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
O

n
 L

in
e

4
6
4
,9

0
0

4
6
4
,9

0
3

3
4
6
4
,9

0
3

0

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
G

ra
n
ts

 -
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 G
ra

n
t

4
,6

3
0

4
,6

3
0

0
4
,6

3
0

0

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
G

ra
n
ts

 -
 e

-V
o
ti
n
g
 S

c
h
e
m

e
s

9
0
3
,8

8
0

9
0
3
,8

7
9

(1
)

9
0
3
,8

7
9

0

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
G

ra
n
ts

 -
 D

E
F

R
A

 R
e
c
yc

lin
g

1
2
8
,9

6
0

1
2
8
,9

6
3

3
1
2
8
,9

6
3

0

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
G

ra
n
ts

 -
 D

is
a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
ts

2
0
6
,4

8
0

2
0
8
,7

2
7

2
,2

4
7

2
0
8
,7

2
7

0

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t 
- 

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 o

r 
B

u
d
g
e
ts

1
3
4
,2

4
0

1
2
7
,0

3
4

(7
,2

0
6
)

0
1
2
7
,0

3
4

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t 
- 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t

1
5
0
,0

0
0

1
5
0
,0

0
0

0
0

1
5
0
,0

0
0

M
a
jo

r 
R

e
p
a
ir
s
 A

llo
w

a
n
c
e

1
,7

6
8
,0

0
0

1
,7

7
0
,8

2
6

2
,8

2
6

1
,7

7
0
,8

2
6

0

T
O

T
A

L
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

1
0
,5

4
1
,9

5
0

1
1
,0

3
1
,0

6
4

4
8
9
,1

1
4

4
,5

1
9
,6

7
6

6
,5

1
1
,3

8
8

Agenda Item 8 Agenda Page 88



E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

2
9

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
6

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 o
f 

U
s

a
b

le
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
R

e
c

e
ip

ts
 2

0
0

5
/0

6

U
n

re
s

tr
ic

te
d

H
IP

 R
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
T

o
ta

l 
U

s
a

b
le

R
e

c
e

ip
ts

R
e

c
e

ip
ts

R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
S

it
e

R
e

c
e

ip
ts

£
£

£
£

B
a

la
n

c
e

 b
ro

u
g
h

t 
fo

rw
a

rd
 1

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0

5
2

,0
0

8
,3

4
1

1
,0

5
3

,0
8

5
0

3
,0

6
1

,4
2

6

R
e

c
e

ip
ts

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

d
 t

o
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

6
1

,2
5

0
,8

7
5

6
8

8
,9

9
8

2
,1

0
1

,4
4

2
4

,0
4

1
,3

1
5

T
o

ta
l 
U

s
a

b
le

 R
e

c
e

ip
ts

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
3

,2
5

9
,2

1
6

1
,7

4
2

,0
8

3
2

,1
0

1
,4

4
2

7
,1

0
2

,7
4

1

R
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

c
a

p
it
a

l 
fi
n

a
n

c
in

g
(3

,1
5

7
,3

5
0

)
(7

0
6

,1
7

3
)

(2
,1

0
1

,4
4

2
)

(5
,9

6
4

,9
6

5
)

E
s

ti
m

a
te

d
 b

a
la

n
c

e
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

6
1

0
1

,8
6

6
1

,0
3

5
,9

1
0

0
1

,1
3

7
,7

7
6

N
o

te
:

T
h

e
 'H

IP
 R

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 R

e
c
e

ip
ts

' a
re

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

c
a

p
it
a

l 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 o
n

ly
. 

T
h

e
y
 a

re
 a

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
R

T
B

 s
a

le
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
a

l 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e

p
o

o
lin

g
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
re

c
e

ip
ts

, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

p
p

ly
 f

ro
m

 2
0

0
4

/0
5

 t
o

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

. 
S

u
c
h

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
 r

e
c
e

ip
ts

 c
a

n
 b

e

fo
r 

n
o

n
-h

o
u

s
in

g
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
 b

u
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 f

o
r 

u
s
e

 i
n

 l
a

te
r 

y
e

a
rs

. 
T

h
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d

re
c
e

ip
ts

 h
a

s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
e

n
 t

a
k
e

n
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
in

 t
h

e
 2

0
0

6
/0

7
 t

o
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
.

Agenda Item 8 Agenda Page 89



Agenda Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank



E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
2
9
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
6

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3

C
a

p
it

a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

2
0
0
6
/0

7
S

li
p

p
a
g

e
2
0
0
6
/0

7
C

u
rr

e
n

t 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

C
h

a
n

g
e
 o

f 

C
a
te

g
o

ry

fr
o

m
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

O
th

e
r 

C
h

a
n

g
e
s

R
e
v

is
e
d

 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
B

C
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

S
c
h

e
m

e
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

C
A

T
E

G
O

R
Y

 A
 S

C
H

E
M

E
S

P
e
o

p
le

 -
 R

e
d

u
c
e
 P

o
c
k
e
ts

 o
f 

In
e
q

u
a
li
ty

L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 D

D
A

 W
o
rk

s
1
3
9
,6

5
0

1
3
9
,6

5
0

1
3
9
,6

5
0

1
3
9
,6

5
0

0
0

0
1
3
9
,6

5
0

0
1
3
9
,6

5
0

P
e
o

p
le

 -
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
d

 A
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 P

u
b

li
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

1
,3

3
5
,2

5
0

2
0
,0

0
0

1
,3

5
5
,2

5
0

1
,3

5
5
,2

5
0

E
x
te

n
s
io

n
 t
o
 C

h
o
rl
e
y 

C
e
m

e
te

ry
 (

n
e
w

 b
u
ri
a
l 
a
re

a
)

1
0
,0

0
0

1
0
,0

0
0

1
0
,0

0
0

1
,3

4
5
,2

5
0

0
2
0
,0

0
0

0
1
,3

6
5
,2

5
0

0
1
,3

6
5
,2

5
0

P
la

c
e
 -

 D
e
v

e
lo

p
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
&

 F
e
e
l 
O

f 
C

h
o

rl
e
y

A
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 D

e
c
e
n
t 
H

o
m

e
s
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 (
C

o
u
n
c
il 

D
w

e
lli

n
g
s
)

2
,0

5
4
,0

0
0

(2
6
4
,3

3
0
)

1
,7

8
9
,6

7
0

1
,7

8
9
,6

7
0

0

D
is

a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
ts

3
0
0
,0

0
0

3
0
0
,0

0
0

1
8
0
,0

0
0

1
2
0
,0

0
0

H
o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
n
e
w

a
l

3
5
3
,6

6
0

3
5
3
,6

6
0

3
5
3
,6

6
0

A
s
tl
e
y 

P
a
rk

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 -
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

1
,6

6
3
,9

7
0

1
,6

6
3
,9

7
0

1
,3

4
7
,2

8
0

3
1
6
,6

9
0

K
e
rb

s
id

e
 R

e
c
yc

lin
g
 S

c
h
e
m

e
s

1
1
2
,4

9
0

1
1
2
,4

9
0

1
1
2
,4

9
0

D
u
x
b
u
ry

 P
a
rk

 G
o
lf
 C

o
u
rs

e
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

0
9
2
,9

2
0

9
2
,9

2
0

9
2
,9

2
0

4
,4

8
4
,1

2
0

9
2
,9

2
0

0
(2

6
4
,3

3
0
)

4
,3

1
2
,7

1
0

3
,3

1
6
,9

5
0

9
9
5
,7

6
0

Agenda Item 8 Agenda Page 91



E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
2
9
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
6

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3

C
a

p
it

a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

2
0
0
6
/0

7
S

li
p

p
a
g

e
2
0
0
6
/0

7
C

u
rr

e
n

t 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

C
h

a
n

g
e
 o

f 

C
a
te

g
o

ry

fr
o

m
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

O
th

e
r 

C
h

a
n

g
e
s

R
e
v

is
e
d

 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
B

C
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

S
c
h

e
m

e
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 -

 E
n

s
u

re
 C

B
C

 i
s
 a

 P
e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

C
o
m

p
u
te

r 
N

e
tw

o
rk

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 (
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y)

3
,4

0
0

(3
,4

0
0
)

0
0

3
,4

0
0

0
0

(3
,4

0
0
)

0
0

0

T
O

T
A

L
 C

A
T

E
G

O
R

Y
 A

 S
C

H
E

M
E

S
5
,9

7
2
,4

2
0

9
2
,9

2
0

2
0
,0

0
0

(2
6
7
,7

3
0
)

5
,8

1
7
,6

1
0

3
,3

1
6
,9

5
0

2
,5

0
0
,6

6
0

C
A

T
E

G
O

R
Y

 B
 S

C
H

E
M

E
S

P
e
o

p
le

 -
 G

e
tt

in
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 I
n

v
o

lv
e
d

 i
n

 T
h

e
ir

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s

P
a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 P

la
y 

A
re

a
s
 R

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t

4
3
,4

7
0

4
3
,4

7
0

4
3
,4

7
0

C
h
o
rl
e
y 

P
la

y 
F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 (

S
1
0
6
 f

u
n
d
e
d
)

3
0
,0

0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

0

E
u
x
to

n
 P

la
y 

F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 (

S
1
0
6
 f

u
n
d
e
d
)

5
1
,8

8
0

5
1
,8

8
0

5
1
,8

8
0

0

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o
 P

it
c
h
 D

ra
in

a
g
e
 B

is
h
o
p
 R

a
w

s
th

o
rn

e
 S

c
h
o
o
l

1
9
,9

5
0

1
9
,9

5
0

1
9
,9

5
0

0

1
4
5
,3

0
0

0
0

0
1
4
5
,3

0
0

1
0
1
,8

3
0

4
3
,4

7
0

P
e
o

p
le

 -
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
d

 A
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 P

u
b

li
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
F

u
n
d
in

g
 P

o
t

5
0
,0

0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

A
d
lin

g
to

n
 R

a
il 

S
ta

ti
o
n
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 (
S

1
0
6
 f

u
n
d
e
d
)

7
,5

0
0

7
,5

0
0

7
,5

0
0

0

5
7
,5

0
0

0
0

0
5
7
,5

0
0

7
,5

0
0

5
0
,0

0
0

Agenda Item 8 Agenda Page 92



E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
2
9
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
6

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3

C
a

p
it

a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

2
0
0
6
/0

7
S

li
p

p
a
g

e
2
0
0
6
/0

7
C

u
rr

e
n

t 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

C
h

a
n

g
e
 o

f 

C
a
te

g
o

ry

fr
o

m
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

O
th

e
r 

C
h

a
n

g
e
s

R
e
v

is
e
d

 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
B

C
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

S
c
h

e
m

e
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

P
ro

s
p

e
ri

ty
 -

 P
u

t 
C

h
o

rl
e
y
 a

t 
H

e
a
rt

 o
f 

R
e
g

io
n

a
l 
E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 (
S

1
0
6
 f

u
n
d
e
d
)

1
7
5
,5

3
0

(2
4
,1

5
0
)

1
5
1
,3

8
0

1
5
1
,3

8
0

0

E
a
v
e
s
 G

re
e
n
 L

in
k
 R

o
a
d
 (

S
1
0
6
 f

u
n
d
e
d
)

4
,3

0
0
,0

0
0

4
,3

0
0
,0

0
0

4
,3

0
0
,0

0
0

0

4
,4

7
5
,5

3
0

0
0

(2
4
,1

5
0
)

4
,4

5
1
,3

8
0

4
,4

5
1
,3

8
0

0

P
la

c
e
 -

 D
e
v

e
lo

p
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

r 
&

 F
e
e
l 
O

f 
C

h
o

rl
e
y

In
v
e
s
t 
in

 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
 -

 G
ill

ib
ra

n
d
 S

c
h
e
m

e
7
5
7
,3

0
0

7
5
7
,3

0
0

7
5
7
,3

0
0

D
u
x
b
u
ry

 P
a
rk

 G
o
lf
 C

o
u
rs

e
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
in

v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

9
2
,9

2
0

(9
2
,9

2
0
)

0
0

Y
V

P
 E

x
te

n
s
io

n
 F

lo
o
d
 A

lle
v
ia

ti
o
n

2
,5

0
0

2
,5

0
0

2
,5

0
0

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 -
 D

e
s
ig

n
 F

e
e
s

1
0
3
,2

2
0

1
0
3
,2

2
0

1
0
3
,2

2
0

G
ro

u
n
d
w

o
rk

 P
ro

je
c
ts

1
5
,0

0
0

1
5
,0

0
0

1
5
,0

0
0

E
lw

o
o
d
 I
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 (

g
ra

n
ts

 f
o
r 

tr
e
e
 p

la
n
ti
n
g
 &

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t)

1
0
1
,6

7
0

1
0
1
,6

7
0

1
0
1
,6

7
0

C
h
a
p
e
l 
S

tr
e
e
t 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
E

n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t

0
2
0
,0

0
0

2
0
,0

0
0

2
0
,0

0
0

T
ra

ff
ic

 C
a
lm

in
g

1
2
8
,0

0
0

1
2
8
,0

0
0

1
2
8
,0

0
0

1
,2

0
0
,6

1
0

(9
2
,9

2
0
)

2
0
,0

0
0

0
1
,1

2
7
,6

9
0

0
1
,1

2
7
,6

9
0

Agenda Item 8 Agenda Page 93



E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
2
9
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
6

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3

C
a

p
it

a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

2
0
0
6
/0

7
S

li
p

p
a
g

e
2
0
0
6
/0

7
C

u
rr

e
n

t 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

C
h

a
n

g
e
 o

f 

C
a
te

g
o

ry

fr
o

m
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

O
th

e
r 

C
h

a
n

g
e
s

R
e
v

is
e
d

 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
B

C
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

S
c
h

e
m

e
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 -

 E
n

s
u

re
 C

B
C

 i
s
 a

 P
e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

IT
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 (
in

c
l.
 s

a
la

ry
 c

a
p
it
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
)

3
0
,0

0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

e
-E

n
a
b
lin

g
 H

R
 s

ys
te

m
s
 -

 T
ra

in
in

g
3
0
,0

0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

3
0
,0

0
0

P
S

S
 P

la
n
ti
n
g
 S

c
h
e
m

e
s

3
,5

0
0

3
,5

0
0

3
,5

0
0

P
S

S
 C

o
m

p
u
te

ri
s
e
d
 C

e
m

e
te

ry
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
0

1
3
,6

7
0

1
3
,6

7
0

1
3
,6

7
0

T
e
le

p
h
o
n
y

4
2
,1

0
0

4
2
,1

0
0

4
2
,1

0
0

e
-C

la
im

s
 t
ra

v
e
l 
a
n
d
 s

u
b
s
is

te
n
c
e

6
,0

0
0

6
,0

0
0

6
,0

0
0

S
in

g
le

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t

0
1
3
,5

0
0

1
3
,5

0
0

1
3
,5

0
0

P
la

n
n
in

g
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 G
ra

n
t-

fu
n
d
e
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
1
2
3
,3

7
0

1
2
3
,3

7
0

1
2
3
,3

7
0

0

U
n
io

n
 S

tr
e
e
t 
O

ff
ic

e
s
 H

e
a
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 V

e
n
ti
la

ti
o
n

2
5
,0

0
0

2
5
,0

0
0

2
5
,0

0
0

P
ro

je
c
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 C
a
p
it
a
lis

a
ti
o
n

4
0
,0

0
0

4
0
,0

0
0

4
0
,0

0
0

C
a
p
it
a
lis

e
d
 R

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g
 C

o
s
ts

0
5
9
,9

4
0

(2
6
,2

4
0
)

3
3
,7

0
0

3
3
,7

0
0

P
la

n
n
e
d
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
F

ix
e
d
 A

s
s
e
ts

2
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

2
0
0
,0

0
0

4
9
9
,9

7
0

0
8
7
,1

1
0

(2
6
,2

4
0
)

5
6
0
,8

4
0

1
2
3
,3

7
0

4
3
7
,4

7
0

T
O

T
A

L
 C

A
T

E
G

O
R

Y
 B

 S
C

H
E

M
E

S
6
,3

7
8
,9

1
0

(9
2
,9

2
0
)

1
0
7
,1

1
0

(5
0
,3

9
0
)

6
,3

4
2
,7

1
0

4
,6

8
4
,0

8
0

1
,6

5
8
,6

3
0

T
O

T
A

L
 C

A
T

E
G

O
R

Y
 A

 A
N

D
 C

A
T

E
G

O
R

Y
 B

 S
C

H
E

M
E

S
1
2
,3

5
1
,3

3
0

0
1
2
7
,1

1
0

(3
1
8
,1

2
0
)

1
2
,1

6
0
,3

2
0

8
,0

0
1
,0

3
0

4
,1

5
9
,2

9
0

Agenda Item 8 Agenda Page 94



E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
2
9
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
6

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3

C
a

p
it

a
l 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 -

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

2
0
0
6
/0

7
S

li
p

p
a
g

e
2
0
0
6
/0

7
C

u
rr

e
n

t 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

C
h

a
n

g
e
 o

f 

C
a
te

g
o

ry

fr
o

m
 

2
0
0
5
/0

6

O
th

e
r 

C
h

a
n

g
e
s

R
e
v

is
e
d

 

E
s
ti

m
a
te

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

F
u

n
d

in
g

C
B

C
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

S
c
h

e
m

e
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

F
in

a
n

c
in

g
 t

h
e
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 -

 C
a
te

g
o

ry
 A

 &
 B

 S
c
h

e
m

e
s

P
ru

d
e
n
ti
a
l 
B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

1
,7

2
3
,5

0
0

(4
9
,9

1
0
)

1
,6

7
3
,5

9
0

1
,6

7
3
,5

9
0

U
n
re

s
tr

ic
te

d
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
1
,7

7
5
,1

6
0

9
9
,9

4
0

2
0
,2

7
0

1
,8

9
5
,3

7
0

1
,8

9
5
,3

7
0

H
o
u
s
in

g
 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 R

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
R

e
c
e
ip

ts
5
8
7
,9

9
0

(1
1
4
,3

3
0
)

4
7
3
,6

6
0

4
7
3
,6

6
0

E
x
t.
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 -

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

4
,5

8
4
,8

6
0

(2
4
,1

5
0
)

4
,5

6
0
,7

1
0

4
,5

6
0
,7

1
0

0

E
x
t.
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 -

 L
o
tt
e
ry

 B
o
d
ie

s
1
,3

4
7
,2

8
0

1
,3

4
7
,2

8
0

1
,3

4
7
,2

8
0

0

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
G

ra
n
ts

 -
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 G
ra

n
t

1
2
3
,3

7
0

1
2
3
,3

7
0

1
2
3
,3

7
0

0

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
G

ra
n
ts

 -
 D

is
a
b
le

d
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
ts

1
8
0
,0

0
0

1
8
0
,0

0
0

1
8
0
,0

0
0

0

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
G

ra
n
ts

 -
 M

a
jo

r 
R

e
p
a
ir
s
 A

llo
w

a
n
c
e

1
,7

8
9
,6

7
0

1
,7

8
9
,6

7
0

1
,7

8
9
,6

7
0

0

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t 
- 

S
p
e
c
if
ic

 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 o

r 
B

u
d
g
e
ts

8
9
,5

0
0

2
7
,1

7
0

1
1
6
,6

7
0

1
1
6
,6

7
0

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 B

u
d
g
e
t 
- 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t

1
5
0
,0

0
0

(1
5
0
,0

0
0
)

0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 R

E
S

O
U

R
C

E
S

 -
 A

 &
 B

 S
C

H
E

M
E

S
1
2
,3

5
1
,3

3
0

0
1
2
7
,1

1
0

(3
1
8
,1

2
0
)

1
2
,1

6
0
,3

2
0

8
,0

0
1
,0

3
0

4
,1

5
9
,2

9
0

Agenda Item 8 Agenda Page 95



Agenda Page 96

This page is intentionally left blank



E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 C
a

b
in

e
t 

2
9

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

0
6

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 4

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 o
f 

U
s

a
b

le
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
R

e
c

e
ip

ts
 2

0
0

6
/0

7

U
n

re
s

tr
ic

te
d

H
IP

 R
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
T

o
ta

l 
U

s
a

b
le

R
e

c
e

ip
ts

R
e

c
e

ip
ts

R
e

c
e

ip
ts

£
£

£

B
a

la
n

c
e

 b
ro

u
g
h

t 
fo

rw
a

rd
 1

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0

6
1

0
1

,8
6

6
1

,0
3

5
,9

1
0

1
,1

3
7

,7
7

6

E
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 U

s
a

b
le

 R
e

c
e

ip
ts

 i
n

 y
e

a
r

1
,7

9
3

,5
0

4
2

7
1

,8
7

0
2

,0
6

5
,3

7
4

T
o

ta
l 
e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 U

s
a

b
le

 R
e

c
e

ip
ts

1
,8

9
5

,3
7

0
1

,3
0

7
,7

8
0

3
,2

0
3

,1
5

0

R
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

c
a

p
it
a

l 
fi
n

a
n

c
in

g
(1

,8
9

5
,3

7
0

)
(4

7
3

,6
6

0
)

(2
,3

6
9

,0
3

0
)

E
s

ti
m

a
te

d
 b

a
la

n
c

e
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
0

7
0

8
3

4
,1

2
0

8
3

4
,1

2
0

N
o

te
:

T
h

e
 'H

IP
 R

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 R

e
c
e

ip
ts

' a
re

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f

o
r 

c
a

p
it
a

l 
e

x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 o
n

ly
. 

T
h

e
y
 a

re
 a

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
R

T
B

 s
a

le
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
a

l 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e

p
o

o
lin

g
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
re

c
e

ip
ts

, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

p
p

ly
 f

ro
m

 2
0

0
4

/0
5

 t
o

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

. 
S

u
c
h

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d
 r

e
c
e

ip
ts

 c
a

n
 b

e

fo
r 

n
o

n
-h

o
u

s
in

g
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
 b

u
t 

c
a

n
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 f

o
r 

u
s
e

 i
n

 l
a

te
r 

y
e

a
rs

. 
T

h
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

s
e

 r
e

s
tr

ic
te

d

re
c
e

ip
ts

 h
a

s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 b

e
e

n
 t

a
k
e

n
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
in

 t
h

e
 2

0
0

6
/0

7
 t

o
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
 c

a
p

it
a

l 
p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
.

Agenda Item 8 Agenda Page 97



Agenda Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

Updated Template April 2006  

 

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Finance 
(Introduced by the Executive 

Member for Resources) 

Executive Cabinet 29th June 2006 

 

PROVISIONAL REVENUE OUTTURN 2005/06 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1. To report to Members the provisional outturn figures for the Council’s budget for the 
financial year 2005/06.  The report contains information on both the General Fund and 
Housing Revenue Account, including the building maintenance direct service. 

   
2. The accounts are now subject to final checking and scrutiny by the Council’s external 

auditor.  Should there be any significant changes to the outturn as a result of either of 
these processes I shall submit a further report to Executive Cabinet. 

 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
3. The Revenue budgets are an expression of the Council’s priorities in financial terms. 

   

RISK ISSUES 

 
4. The issue raised and recommendations made in this report involve risk considerations in 

the following categories: 

 

Strategy  Information  
Reputation  Regulatory/Legal  
Financial 4 Operational  

People  Other  

 
5. The report is concerned with the process for managing the financial and operational risks 

associated with the running of the Council.  Failure to deliver a balanced budget has 
consequences for the future financial stability of the authority. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 
6. During the financial year the Executive Cabinet received monitoring reports with the 

financial forecast indicating a small in year overspend of £13k.  This position was in line 
with the budget set at the beginning of the financial year, which also required the use of 
£250k of working balances/reserves. 

   
7. During the setting of the 2006/07 budget I identified that the specific reserve set aside for 

the cost of stock transfer was no longer required as the Council had managed to get the 
cost underwritten by the preferred Partner, Adactus.  Consequently I recommended, and 
the Council agreed, that this money may be used to replenish the level of working 
balances as there remained some key risks in the budget, particularly around the cost of 
concessionary travel and benefits. 

 

Agenda Item 9aAgenda Page 99



PROVISIONAL OUTTURN GENERAL FUND 

 
8. The Council’s budget for 2005/06 included real cash savings targets of £228k from 

vacancy management and £100k from efficiency and procurement.  The overall target of 
saving £328k in year was achieved through a combination of efficiency savings, 
predominantly in the Pay to Procure process and vacancy management. 

 
9. During the year I reported initially that unless action was taken to reduce spending, it was 

likely that the Council would overspend against its overall budget.  I am pleased to report 
that, in line with original expectations, the Council’s expenditure broadly matched that 
budgeted with a total underspend of £44k or –0.3% of the original budgeted cash figure. 

 
10. Consequently working balances are at the level anticipated when the budget was set.  

The transfer back to working balances from the stock transfer reserves increased working 
balances to £1m, which is in line with the levels indicated and approved in the Council’s 
Financial Strategy. 

 
11. An analysis of the main variations over and above those previously reported in monitoring 

is shown in the table below: 

 

Significant variations since last monitoring report 

 

Costs £’000 
  
Employee  16 
Insurance  16 
Pension Act Payments 78 
Use of bad debt provisions (123) 
Other minor overspends 40 
  
Income  
  
Increased fee and other income (52) 
 (25) 

 
12. The main reason for the variations are as follows: 

 

• For employee costs, the recharge into capital salaries for staff in the property unit was 
less than anticipated due to less work being done on the enhancement of the 
Council’s leisure assets.   

• Pension Act payments are ongoing costs to the Council of early retirements, the 
increase over budget is mainly due to the number of retirements in the year as a one 
off charge is made in the year of retirement which is significantly greater than the 
ongoing costs. 

• The Council provides for bad debt write off in benefit overpayments that are 
recovered.  The policy has been to have a high proportion of such debts covered by 
the provision.  However collection rates are good and it is intended to reduce the 
provision over a period.  Following a review at the year end it has been possible to 
write back more than was originally anticipated. 

• For income, additional fees have been generated predominantly from planning fees.   

 

Agenda Item 9aAgenda Page 100



13. Below the net service line are a number of cash budgets of a more technical nature 
relating to the financing of capital expenditure, cashflow and the use of reserves and 
balances. 

   
NET FINANCING COSTS 
 
14. During the year I reported that up until the final quarter of the year it was expected that the 

costs of net financing would be greater than budgeted, due mainly to a negative cashflow 
position caused by the Council being more successful in spending its capital monies and 
the fact that capital receipt cash was less than anticipated, and the proportion charged to 
the HRA has decreased.  Overall this resulted in net financing cost being £94k greater 
than anticipated with the last quarter of the year being particularly poor in cashflow terms. 

 
RESERVES 

 
15. Elsewhere on the Executive Cabinet Agenda is a report outlining the results of the recent 

tender exercise for the Council’s Insurances.  The report contained details regarding a 
specific reserve set up to finance the Council self-insuring itself.  In the event I have 
recommended that the self insurance option is not appropriate and as such the reserve 
money can be written back to revenue totalling £147k. 

   
16. As a consequence of the change in the Council’s cash position and the related 

movements in reserve, the Council are in the position of having surplus funds available 
over and above that budget, by a sum of £161k.  Set out below are my recommendations 
on how this money should be used: 

 
SLIPPAGE 
 
17. Each year the Council will commit itself to incurring expenditure that may not always be 

incurred in the accounting period.  It is custom and practice to allow Directorates who can 
demonstrate that commitment has been made, to carry forward cash to pay for such 
items, should the overall financial position of the Council allow it.  Accordingly I have 
received the following slippage requests which I support, some requests have been 
denied on the basis that the costs can be accommodated within the 2006/07 cash 
budgets. 

 

Details £’000 
  
Transfer of budget and additional costs of 
completing the Property Services 
outsourcing exercise 

 
 

28 
  
Budget underspend on Contact Centre 
staffing  needed for staffing in the Contact 
Centre 

 
 

17 
  
Budget underspend on ICT needed to 
complete telecommunications tendering 
exercises and purchase of required 
hardware 

 
 
 

19 
  
Underspend on Community Safety budget 
committed to Scarlet Street car park 
lighting scheme 

 
9.4 

  
Completion of Charter Mark application 4 
 

77.4 

Agenda Item 9aAgenda Page 101



18. Should Members approve the slippage then a further £83.6k (£161k - £77k) would be 
available as yet unallocated.  I suggest that this is used in the following ways: 

   
19. There are a number of volatile expenditure areas within the Council’s base budget that 

are traditionally difficult to budget for.  It is common practice to create equalisation 
reserves for such items that is used to smooth the impact should an overspend arise.  
Within the Council’s budget there are two particular areas that would benefit from the 
creation of such a reserve, namely the Council’s recycling contract and the cost of 
financing the Councils cashflow. 

 
20. The volatility from the recycling contract emanates from the fact that the greater the level 

of recycling the greater the cost.  In 2005/06 additional payments were made to the 
contractor as recycling rates increased significantly. 

 
21. Within this report reference is made to the additional trading costs incurred as a result of 

the cash position the Council finds itself in.  This position can change year on year 
dependent upon a variety of facts including sales of assets and capital spending. 

 
22. I therefore suggest the following equalisation accounts are created, that will allow some 

headroom in the 2006/07 budgets: 
 

Details £’000 

Recycling contract bonus payments 43.6 

Net financing costs 40.0 
 

83.6 

 
23. The reserve will be replenished when funds allow or alternatively transferred back to 

general reserves should they not be needed. 

 
GENERAL FUND RESERVE AND BALANCES 

 
24. Set out below for Member information is a summary of the levels of reserve and balances 

available to the Council as at the end of the financial year 2005/06 before any slippage or 
use of underspend is approved.  Reserves are set aside to either pay for future known 
expenditure or to guard against financial risk.  The reserves are categorised accordingly 
to the approval mechanism. 

 

Analysis of Reserve   
Those requiring approval by Cabinet   
 General reserves 1.161  
 Building Control reserve 0.050  
 Astley Hall Works of Art 0.011  
 

 1.222 
Those approved for spend by Officers   
 Unit specific reserve 0.153  
 Job Evaluation 0.101  
 E-workforce reserve 0.113  
 Local Development Framework 0.183  
 Elections 0.034  
  0.584 
Those for approval by Member under Delegation   
 Innovation Fund  

0.112 

TOTAL  1.918 

Agenda Item 9aAgenda Page 102



25. Should the Slippage and other reserves be recommended for approval, be approved, they 
will also be shown in the list above. 

   

 
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT OUTTURN 2005/06 
 
Original Estimate 

 
26. The original estimate set was for HRA balances to be £618k at the end of 2005/06.  

During the year I reported that due to additional expenditure being predominantly as a 
result of stock transfer balances were expected to be £534k. 

 
Outturn 2005-06 

 
27. The draft HRA Outturn gives balances of £592 as at 31 March 2006, which is greater than 

anticipated.  
   
28. The main variances from original estimate are: 

 
Expenditure Items 

 
29. Increased Supervision and Management costs include additional employee costs incurred 

due to capacity issues and disruption resulting from some staff being involved in stock 
transfer matters.  Other additional costs came from an adjustment of recharges relating to 
additional work on HRA activities.  The increases in expenditure have been offset by 
savings in other general running costs. 

   
30. The Repairs and Maintenance overspend for the year is £141k, which is mainly due to a 

Trading Account deficit of £101k.  Previous forecasts were for a Trading Account deficit of 
£55k due to the increase in cost of disposal of waste materials, and also to a loss of 
contribution from a reduction in the replacement window programme in the financial year.  
A significant part of the increased deficit can be attributed to an above average amount in 
loss of productive time.  There are a number of reasons for this, including strike action, 
attendance at Stock Transfer events and other miscellaneous corporate activities.  An 
approximation of the loss of income from this is £33k. 

 
31. Other variations in the HRA include: 

 

• A saving from a less than budgeted increase in bad debt provision 

• A small increase in HRA Negative Subsidy 

• Increase in Rent Rebate Subsidy Limitation/Transitional Arrangements 

• A reduction in capital financing costs 

 
Income 

 
32. A significant increase was achieved in rental, mainly from an increase in rental income 

resulting from a slowdown in the number of council house sales.  There were 37 sales in 
the year as opposed to the amount of 130 that was used in the original budget.  In 
addition extra grant was received for the costs of providing supported housing. 

 

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES 

 
33. There are no Human Resources implications associated with this report. 

 
 

Agenda Item 9aAgenda Page 103



CONCLUSIONS 

 
34. Overall the Council managed to deliver the General Fund budget it set itself at the 

beginning of the financial year.  Initial forecasts of overspend were dealt with by the 
Council and as a result general working balances are at the level anticipated and within 
the range set in the Council’s financial strategy. 

   
35. For the Housing Revenue Account the additional income from rents as a result of reduced 

Council House sales offset the overspend on repairs.  The repairs budget has continued 
to be difficult to manage as it is demand led, but given the impending vote on stock 
transfer it is vital that for 2006/07 costs are contained and I shall be working with the 
Director of Housing to ensure this happens. 

 
36. I shall be providing a more detailed review of the Council’s financial position and the final 

accounts for 2006/07.  This will be submitted to the Accounts Committee and 
subsequently to the Executive for consideration. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 
37. Members are asked to: 
 

• Note the contents of the report 

• Approve the slippage as outlined in paragraph 17 of the report 

• Approve the creation of the specific equalisation reserves as outlined in paragraph 
22 of the report 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
(If the recommendations are accepted) 

 
38. To comply with appropriate reporting arrangements and ensure appropriate financial 

reserves are created. 

 

         

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

 
39. None. 

 

    

 
 
GARY HALL 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
 

There are no background papers to this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Gary Hall 5480 13 June 2006 ADMINREP/REPORT 

 

 

Agenda Item 9aAgenda Page 104



APPENDIX 1 

General Fund Revenue Budget Monitoring 2005/06

 Outturn as at March 2006

(1)              

Original 

Budget

(2)              

Agreed 

Changes

(3)                

Original 

Cash Budget

(4)              

Contribution 

to Corporate 

Savings

(5)                  

Cash Budget 

at January

(6)                      

Variances 

forecast in 

January 

monitoring

(7)                      

Budget 

variations 

post 

January 

8)                  

Revised 

Budget

(9)                        

March                                     

Outturn

(10)             

Variance

(11)                

Variance

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ %

Corporate and Policy Services 517,770         -              517,770        (20,070)           497,700        (13,700)         760             484,760        479,850         (4,910)         -0.99%

Customer, Democratic & Office Support 

Services 2,930,540      162,200      3,092,740     (77,160)           3,015,580     (26,580)         46,730        3,035,730     3,075,560      39,830        1.32%

Economic Regeneration 246,140         (11,200)       234,940        (23,970)           210,970        (5,970)           6,880          211,880        184,270         (27,610)       -13.09%

Environmental Services 3,090,290      -              3,090,290     (29,510)           3,060,780     10,220           8,340          3,079,340     3,064,220      (15,120)       -0.49%

Finance 1,144,550      54,300        1,198,850     (55,350)           1,143,500     3,500             (44,650)       1,102,350     1,073,690      (28,660)       -2.51%

Housing Services (GF) 270,090         7,500          277,590        -                  277,590        (15,590)         25,680        287,680        272,170         (15,510)       -5.59%

Human Resources 621,720         90,120        711,840        (65,700)           646,140        22,510           (158,860)     509,790        502,380         (7,410)         -1.15%

Information & Communication 

Technology Svs 905,440         4,000          909,440        (4,500)             904,940        (35,940)         (14,620)       854,380        858,600         4,220          0.47%

Legal Services 100,580         -              100,580        -                  100,580        102,420         5,050          208,050        211,900         3,850          3.83%

Leisure & Cultural Services 1,042,810      38,480        1,081,290     (42,430)           1,038,860     10,270           60,890        1,110,020     1,136,480      26,460        2.55%

Planning Services 467,950         -              467,950        (8,790)             459,160        (30,160)         (147,410)     281,590        257,980         (23,610)       -5.14%

Property Services 80,550           20,000        100,550        (20,510)           80,040          (27,150)         (80,380)       (27,490)         (4,570)           22,920        28.64%

Public Space Services 1,331,330      12,950        1,344,280     (9,000)             1,335,280     16,160           38,460        1,389,900     1,388,850      (1,050)         -0.08%

Trf to/(from) HRA 11,200 11,200 (11,200)       

Less

Corporate Savings Targets

Efficieny/Other Savings (100,000)     (100,000)       281,990          181,990        (280,210)       (98,220)         -                98,220        53.97%

Management of Establishment (228,050)     (228,050)       75,000            (153,050)       257,640         104,590        -                (104,590)     68.34%

Total Service Expenditure 12,749,760    50,300        12,800,060   -                  12,800,060   (12,580)         (241,930)     12,545,550   12,501,380    (44,170)       -0.3%

Non Service Expenditure

Contingency Fund 100,000         (83,000)       17,000          17,000          17,000          -                (17,000)       0.0%

Contingency - Corporate Savings (328,050)       328,050      -                -                -                -              0.0%

Notional Capital Charges 1,168,630      1,168,630     1,168,630     1,168,630     -                (1,168,630)  -100.0%

Revenue Contribution to Capital -                -                -                -                127,035         127,035      0.0%

Net Financing Transactions 70,350           70,350          70,350          70,350          214,303         143,953      204.6%

Parish Precepts 412,562         412,562        412,562        412,562        412,562         -              0.0%

Total Non Service Expenditure 1,423,492      245,050      1,668,542     -                  1,668,542     -                -              1,668,542     753,900         (914,642)     -54.8%

Financed By

Council Tax (6,057,272)    (6,057,272)    (6,057,272)    (6,057,272)    (6,057,272)    -              0.0%

National Non-Domestic Rates (2,945,840)    (2,945,840)    (2,945,840)    (2,945,840)    (2,945,840)    -              0.0%

Revenue Support Grant (3,704,920)    (3,704,920)    (3,704,920)    (3,704,920)    (3,704,920)    -              0.0%

Business Growth Incentive Grant -                -                -                -                (122,053)       (122,053)     

Collection Fund Surplus (47,550)         (47,550)         (47,550)         (47,550)         (48,402)         (852)            -1.8%

Use of Earmarked Reserves (1,167,670)    (295,350)     (1,463,020)    (1,463,020)    12,580           241,930      (1,208,510)    (288,038)       920,472      62.9%

Use of General Balances (250,000)       (250,000)       (250,000)       (250,000)       (250,000)       -              0.0%

Total Financing (14,173,252)  (295,350)     (14,468,602)  -                  (14,468,602)  12,580           241,930      (14,214,092)  (13,416,525)  797,567      5.5%

Net Expenditure -                -              -                -                  -                -                -              -                (161,245)       (161,245)     -1.26%

General Balances Summary Position Budget Outturn

£ £

General Fund Balance at 1.4.05 1,000,000 1,000,000

Variations agreed utilising General 

Fund Balance (250,000)     (250,000)

Housing Stock Transfer Reserve 250,000

Actual  (Over)/Under Spend -              161,245

Outturn General Fund Balance at 31.3.06 750,000 1,161,245

Agenda Item 9aAgenda Page 105



APPENDIX 2 

SERVICE LEVEL BUDGET MONITORING 2005/2006 
        

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT     

        

March        

       £'000 £'000

        

ORIGINAL SURPLUS (-) / DEFICIT (+) FOR YEAR    (174)

BALANCE AS AT 1.4.05      (443)

Add Adjustments for In year cash movements     

         

Slippage from 2004/2005       

Virements for other Services       

Transfer from contingency       

Cabinet approved decisions      

Delegated Authority decisions       

         

ADJUSTED HRA BALANCES EXPECTED at 31.3.05    (617)

         

FORECAST       
        

EXPENDITURE       

Repairs and maintenance (includes 101k trading a/c deficit)         141   

Supervision & Management General              48   

   Special              50   

Provision For Bad Debts     (42) 

Negative HRA Subsidy               11   

Rent Rebate Subsidy Limitation               11   

Rents, Rates, Taxes and Other Charges                3   

Capital charges      (12) 

          

Expenditure under(-) or over (+) current cash budget            210  

         

INCOME         

         

Dwelling Rents       (154) 

Charges for Servs and Facilities (to budget)              10   

Supporting People Payments     (53) 

Investment Income                  8   

Other Income                  4   

         

Income under (+)/ over (-) achieved     (185)

         

FORECAST BALANCES AS AT 31.3.06     (592)

         

Key Assumptions        

         

Key Issues/Variables       

         

Key Actions        

         

 
 

Agenda Item 9aAgenda Page 106



 

 

 

 
 

ADMINREP/REPORT 
 

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Finance Executive Cabinet June 2006 

 

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2006/07 

- REPORT 1 (END OF MAY 2006) 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1. This paper sets out the current financial position of the Council as compared against the 
budgets and efficiency savings targets it set itself for 2006/07 for the General Fund and 
the Housing Revenue Account. 

 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

 
2. This report does not directly relate to the corporate priorities. 
 
RISK ISSUES 
 
3. The issue raised and recommendations made in this report involve risk considerations in 

the following categories: 
 

Strategy � Information  
Reputation � Regulatory/Legal  
Financial � Operational � 

People  Other  

 
4. Actions to manage the budget have the potential to impact on all of the above risk 

categories. 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
5. The Council’s budget for 2006/07 included real cash savings targets of £278,000 from the 

management of the establishment and a further £60,000 of savings to come from 
efficiency and procurement related activities. 

 

CURRENT FORECAST POSITION 

 

6. The appendix 1 shows the summary forecast position for the Council based upon actual 
spending in the first two months of the financial year, adjusted for future spending based 
upon assumptions regarding vacancies and service delivery. No individual service unit 
figures are attached.  These are available for inspection in the Members Room. 

 

7. The unit cash budgets have been amended for proposed slippage from 2005/06 and for 
the allocation of ‘Earmarked Reserves’ for specific initiatives that have already received 
approval from the appropriate committee. The significant additions to the budget include: 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 9bAgenda Page 107



• £19,000 for slippage relating to Consultancy Fees & Hardware in ICT Services    

• £9,400 slippage for Car Park Lighting 

• £21,000 slippage for Contact Centre 

• £28,000 for Property Services outsourcing 

 

8. In the period to the end of May we have identified £188,000 of contributions to the 
corporate savings target of £278,000 for managing the establishment. The savings that 
have been identified are as a result of the Senior Management Review together with 
savings arising from staff vacancies within the Finance, ICT Services and Policy & 
Performance Departments. This is a positive start to the year, and this position will remain 
under constant review. 

 
9. Even at this early stage in the new financial year, savings towards the procurement and 

efficiency target of £60,000 have already been identified. To date, savings of £72,000 
have been achieved from the renewal of the Council’s Insurance Premiums and a further 
£7,000 of savings have been identified from Hospitality budgets following the decision to 
restrict the provision of food for meetings. 

 
10.  Within the Legal Services department, the continued use of agency staff throughout 

2006/07 will result in a current forecast deficit of £41,000.  
 
11. Target bonus payments relating to the refuse collection contract are directly linked to the 

tonnage of recyclate collected.  At this early stage in the monitoring cycle it is too early to 
determine any trend but an increase in recycling is anticipated over the coming weeks 
during the World Cup tournament.  This will result in a current forecast overspend of 
£10,000.  Details of the LCC Cost Sharing Agreement for the refuse collection contract 
have now been finalised with the exact price and quantities used to calculate 
reimbursement now fixed.  The result is a forecast reduction in budgeted income of 
£10,000.  

 

12.  Following the decision to maintain Car Parking fees at their current levels, the increase 
factored into the base budget for inflation will not be implemented.  This will result in a 
forecast income shortfall of £23,000 for 2006/07. 

 
13. Taking into account the points raised above, the current forecast position is that General 

Fund balances will be £82,000 lower than anticipated and further savings are needed to 
balance the budget.  However it is still early in the financial year and there are some risks 
contained in the budget the effect of which will only be known later in the financial year, 
particularly the cost of concessionary travel and the cost of benefits, both of these 
budgets are demand led, volatile and could have a significant impact on the Council’s 
bottom line.  In addition for some key budgets it is still too early in the financial year to 
anticipate the forecast outturn i.e. net financing costs.  Future monitoring statements will 
include reports on these matters.   

 
USE OF RESERVES 
 
14. For 2006/07 a sum of £112k was set aside in an Innovation Fund.  The source of this fund 

was the Local Authority Business Growth Incentive Grant that is non recurrent.  At budget 
time the Council agreed the use of this money for non-recurrent expenditure and that 25% 
of it be used for schemes to improve the public realm.  To date a sum of £12k has been 
provisionally committed to providing Town Centre banners to promote the Council and 
improve the vitality of the Town Centre. 

 

Agenda Item 9bAgenda Page 108



STOCK TRANSFER 
   
15. The Council has previously provided budgets for the stock transfer exercise, the cost of 

which has now been underwritten by the Council’s partner, Adactus.  However these 
funds were provided for pre ballot costs.  Following the vote it may be necessary to incur 
costs associated with the Post Ballot and as there is likely to be a time lapse between the 
result of the ballot and the next Cabinet, the Executive are being asked to approve in 
principal the budget for the next phase of Stock Transfer, subject to the result of the 
ballot. 

   
16. The effect of approving the ballot is cost neutral in revenue terms for the Council in that 

the costs are netted off the receipt paid by Chorley Community Housing for the stock.  
However in the event of a positive vote the Council acts as banker to the new RSL and 
temporarily loans the new organisation cash for set up costs.  The Council requires 
consent from both the executive and the DCLG for this.  Set out below are indicative  
costs but once budgets are finalised I shall report back to Cabinet. 

 

Council 

 £ 
Lead Consultants 28,000 
Legal Advisors 75,000 
VAT Advisors 37,000 
Conveyancing 50,000 
Superannuation Valuation 10,000 
IT Systems 20,000 
Contingency 50,000 
Staffing, say 30,000 

TOTAL 300,000 

 
New Landlord 

 Post Ballot 
£ 

Lead Consultants 140,000 
Legal Consultants 125,000 
HR Consultants 60,000 
Tenants’ Advisors 25,000 
Tenants Communication 35,000 
Valuation Report 30,000 
Business Plan Validation 20,000 
Funding Consultants 30,000 
Funder’s Lawyers 60,000 
Arrangement Fees 750,000 
Land Registry Fees 40,000 
IT Advisors 25,000 
Training 40,000 
NHF Affiliation Fee 25,000 
VAT Advisors 40,000 
Stock condition evaluation 30,000 
Non recoverable VAT 258,000 
Seconded Staff 75,000 
Staffing costs 100,000 

TOTAL 1,908,000 

 

Agenda Item 9bAgenda Page 109



HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 
 
BACKGROUND 

 

17.  The forecast for the HRA at the end of 2005/06 was for balances to be at £534k, however 
the actual outturn position resulted in a higher than expected contribution to balances 
taking them to £592k.  

  
18. In terms of monitoring for 2006/07, there are no significant variations identified at this 

early stage in the year, apart from an additional cost for Job Evaluation. 
 
19. Initially it was unclear whether housing staff would be included in the Job Evaluation 

exercise pending the possible Stock Transfer.  It is now expected that the staff will be 
included and as such the costs of the exercise have increased and the HRA has now 
provided a contribution to these costs of £53,000. 

 

SUMMARY 

 

20. Excellent progress has been made towards the Corporate Savings Target of £278,000 for 
the year. Further savings will be made as the year progresses and more vacancies occur. 

 
21. Contributions towards the Efficiency Savings Target of £60,000 have already been 

achieved. 
 
22. There are a number of areas that will be monitored closely as the year progresses, these 

are: 

• Contribution to Corporate Savings and Efficiency Targets 

• Agency Staff costs 

• Increased refuse collection costs 

• Concessionary travel and benefit costs 

 
23.  No action is proposed at this stage in the year even though further savings are still 

required.  If later in the year the situation requires it, then further steps may be necessary 
and I will advise Members should I feel action is appropriate. 

 
24.  Given the issues referred to above, it is recommended that no further expenditure is 

allocated against the remaining contingency fund without the express permission of the 
Leader of the Council until we can be sure that Corporate Savings targets have been met. 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

25. Executive Cabinet are asked to: 
 

a) Note the contents of the report. 

b) Agree to no additional expenditure financed from the contingency fund at this 
stage. 

c) Agree the use of some of the Innovation Fund for use in the Town Centre. 

d) Agree the provisional Post Ballot Budget for Stock Transfer, subject to there being 
a positive vote, and further clarification. 

e) Give approval to apply for S25 consent, subject to there being a positive vote. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

(If the recommendations are accepted) 
 

26. To ensure the Council’s budgetary targets are achieved. 

Agenda Item 9bAgenda Page 110



 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

 

27. None 

 
 
GARY HALL 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 

There are no background papers to this report. 

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Phil Eskdale-lord 5483 June 2006 ADMINREP/REPORT 

Agenda Item 9bAgenda Page 111



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

 

G
e

n
e

ra
l 

F
u

n
d

 R
e

v
e
n

u
e

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 2
0
0
6

/0
7

F
o

re
c
a
s

t 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 a
s
 a

t 
M

a
y
 2

0
0
7

(1
) 

  
  
  

  
  
  

 

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

  
  
  
  
  

£

(2
) 

  
  

  
  
  

  
 

A
g

re
e
d

 

C
h

a
n

g
e
s
  

  
  
  
  

  

£

(3
) 

  
  

  
  
  
  

  
 

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

C
a
s
h

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

£

(4
) 

  
  

  
  
  
  

 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

C
o

rp
. 

S
a

v
in

g
s

 

(S
ta

ff
in

g
) 

  
  

  
  
  

£

(4
) 

  
  
  
  
  

  
 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

C
o

rp
. 
S

a
v

in
g

s
 

(O
th

e
r)

  
  

  
  
  
  

 £

(5
) 

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

C
u

rr
e
n

t 
C

a
s
h

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  

£

(6
) 

  
  
  
  

  
  
 

F
o

re
c
a

s
t 

  
  
  
  

  
 

O
u

tt
u

rn
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

£

(7
) 

  
  
  

  
  
  

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
  
  

  
  
  

 

£

(8
) 

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

%

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u
ti
v
e

's
 O

ff
ic

e
9
6
6

,0
9
0

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

9
6
6
,0

9
0

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

(8
5

,1
2
0
)

  
  
  
  
  

  
 

(1
,3

7
0

)
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

 
8
7

9
,6

0
0

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

8
8

7
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  
  

  
 

7
,4

0
0

  
  

  
  
  

  
 

0
.8

4
%

C
u

s
to

m
e

r,
 D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 &

 L
e
g

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
,1

0
5

,5
0
0

  
  
  
  

  
 

2
1
,0

0
0

  
  
  

  
  
 

2
,1

2
6
,5

0
0

  
  
  
  

  
 

(7
4
0
)

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
(5

,0
0
0

)
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

 
2
,1

2
0
,7

6
0

  
  
  

  
  
  

2
,1

6
2
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  
  

4
1

,2
4
0

  
  

  
  
  

 
1

.9
4
%

D
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 R
e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

8
9
0

,9
8
0

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

8
9
0
,9

8
0

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

8
9

0
,9

8
0

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

8
9

0
,9

8
0

  
  

  
  
  

  
 

-
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

F
in

a
n

c
e

1
,4

8
1

,7
5
0

  
  
  
  

  
 

-
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
 

1
,4

8
1
,7

5
0

  
  
  
  

  
 

(2
2

,0
3
0
)

  
  
  
  
  

  
 

(1
1

0
)

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

1
,4

5
9
,6

1
0

  
  
  

  
  
  

1
,3

8
8
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  
  

(7
1

,6
1
0

)
  
  

  
  
  

-4
.9

1
%

H
u

m
a
n

 R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

6
9
7

,1
4
0

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

6
9
7
,1

4
0

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

(2
5

0
)

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

6
9

6
,8

9
0

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

6
9

9
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  
  

  
 

2
,1

1
0

  
  

  
  
  

  
 

0
.3

0
%

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 T

e
c
h
n

o
lo

g
y 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

9
3
9

,5
6
0

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

1
9
,0

0
0

  
  
  

  
  
 

9
5
8
,5

6
0

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

(1
9

,0
0
0
)

  
  
  
  
  

  
 

9
3

9
,5

6
0

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

9
4

0
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  
  

  
 

4
4
0

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

0
.0

5
%

L
e
is

u
re

 &
 C

u
lt
u
ra

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

1
,1

9
7

,0
1
0

  
  
  
  

  
 

1
,1

9
7
,0

1
0

  
  
  
  

  
 

(3
7

0
)

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

1
,1

9
6
,6

4
0

  
  
  

  
  
  

1
,1

9
7
,0

1
0

  
  

  
  
  

3
7
0

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

0
.0

3
%

P
o
lic

y 
&

 P
e

rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

5
3
4

,6
8
0

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

5
3
4
,6

8
0

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

(9
,5

9
0

)
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
 

5
2

5
,0

9
0

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

5
2

5
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  
  

  
 

(9
0

)
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

-0
.0

2
%

P
ro

p
e
rt

y 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

3
5

,0
1
0

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

2
8
,0

0
0

  
  
  

  
  
 

6
3
,0

1
0

  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

6
3
,0

1
0

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 

6
8
,9

9
0

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 

5
,9

8
0

  
  

  
  
  

  
 

9
.4

9
%

S
tr

e
e
ts

c
e
n
e

, 
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u

rh
o
o

d
s
 &

 E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t

4
,6

9
6

,6
8
0

  
  
  
  

  
 

9
,4

0
0

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

4
,7

0
6
,0

8
0

  
  
  
  

  
 

(5
1

,4
8
0
)

  
  
  
  
  

  
 

(2
2

0
)

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

4
,6

5
4
,3

8
0

  
  
  

  
  
  

4
,7

0
8
,0

0
0

  
  

  
  
  

5
3

,6
2
0

  
  

  
  
  

 
1

.1
5
%

B
u
d

g
e
ts

 E
x
c
lu

d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 F
in

a
n

c
e

 U
n
it
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

:

B
e
n

e
fi
t 
P

a
ym

e
n
ts

(3
8
1

,0
5
0

)
  

  
  
  

  
  
 

(3
8
1
,0

5
0
)

  
  
  
  

  
  

(3
8

1
,0

5
0
)

  
  
  

  
  
  

 
(3

8
1
,0

5
0
)

  
  

  
  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

C
o

n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 F
a
re

s
5
1
3

,2
5
0

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

5
1
3
,2

5
0

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

5
1

3
,2

5
0

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

5
1

3
,2

5
0

  
  

  
  
  

  
 

-
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

P
e
n

s
io

n
s
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t

2
1
2

,7
3
0

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

2
1
2
,7

3
0

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

2
1

2
,7

3
0

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

2
1

2
,7

3
0

  
  

  
  
  

  
 

-
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

0
.0

0
%

L
e
s
s

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
a

v
in

g
s

 T
a
rg

e
ts

E
ff

ic
ie

n
y/

O
th

e
r 

S
a
v
in

g
s

(6
0
,0

0
0
)

  
  
  

  
  

(6
0
,0

0
0
)

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

7
,3

2
0

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
(5

2
,6

8
0
)

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

-
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
 

5
2

,6
8
0

  
  

  
  
  

 
-1

0
0

.0
0
%

M
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t
(2

7
8
,0

5
0
)

  
  
  

  
(2

7
8
,0

5
0
)

  
  
  
  

  
  

1
8
7

,9
6
0

  
  
  
  
  

  
(9

0
,0

9
0
)

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

-
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
 

9
0

,0
9
0

  
  

  
  
  

 
-1

0
0

.0
0
%

T
o

ta
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
3

,8
8
9

,3
3
0

  
  
  
  

 
(2

6
0
,6

5
0
)

  
  
  

  
1
3
,6

2
8
,6

8
0

  
  
  
  

 
-

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

-
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

1
3
,6

2
8
,6

8
0

  
  
  

  
  

1
3
,8

1
0
,9

1
0

  
  

  
  

1
8
2

,2
3
0

  
  

  
  
 

1
.3

%

N
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

C
o

n
ti
n
g

e
n
c
y 

F
u

n
d

1
0
0

,0
0
0

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

1
0
0
,0

0
0

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

1
0

0
,0

0
0

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

-
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
 

(1
0
0

,0
0
0

)
  
  

  
  

0
.0

%

C
o

n
ti
n
g

e
n
c
y 

- 
S

a
la

ry
 R

e
la

te
d
 S

a
v
in

g
s

(2
7
8

,0
5
0

)
  

  
  
  

  
  
 

2
7
8
,0

5
0

  
  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
 

-
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

0
.0

%

C
o

n
ti
n
g

e
n
c
y 

- 
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n

t 
S

a
v
in

g
s

(3
5

,0
0
0

)
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

3
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  

  
  
 

-
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
 

-
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

0
.0

%

C
o

n
ti
n
g

e
n
c
y 

- 
G

e
rs

h
o
n

 S
a
v
in

g
s

(2
5

,0
0
0

)
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

2
5
,0

0
0

  
  
  

  
  
 

-
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
 

-
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

0
.0

%

N
o

ti
o
n
a

l 
C

a
p
it
a

l 
C

h
a
rg

e
s

1
,1

6
8

,6
7
0

  
  
  
  

  
 

1
,1

6
8
,6

7
0

  
  
  
  

  
 

1
,1

6
8
,6

7
0

  
  
  

  
  
  

1
,1

6
8
,6

7
0

  
  

  
  
  

-
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

0
.0

%

R
e

v
e
n
u

e
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t

o
 C

a
p
it
a
l

-
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

-
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
 

-
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
 

-
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

0
.0

%

N
e

t 
F

in
a
n
c
in

g
 T

ra
n
s
a

c
ti
o
n
s

2
1
9

,2
1
0

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

2
1
9
,2

1
0

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

2
1

9
,2

1
0

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

2
1

9
,2

1
0

  
  

  
  
  

  
 

-
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

0
.0

%

P
a
ri

s
h
 P

re
c
e
p

ts
5
3
5

,3
9
9

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

5
3
5
,3

9
9

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

5
3

5
,3

9
9

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

5
3

5
,3

9
9

  
  

  
  
  

  
 

-
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

0
.0

%

T
o

ta
l 
N

o
n

 S
e
rv

ic
e

 E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
,6

8
5

,2
2
9

  
  
  
  

  
 

3
3
8
,0

5
0

  
  
  

  
 

2
,0

2
3
,2

7
9

  
  
  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

-
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

2
,0

2
3
,2

7
9

  
  
  

  
  
  

1
,9

2
3
,2

7
9

  
  

  
  
  

(1
0
0

,0
0
0

)
  
  

  
  

-4
.9

%

F
in

a
n

c
e
d

 B
y

C
o

u
n
c
il 

T
a
x

(6
,4

9
5

,2
0
1

)
  

  
  
  

  
(6

,4
9
5
,2

0
1
)

  
  
  
  

 
(6

,4
9

5
,2

0
1
)

  
  
  

  
  

(6
,4

9
5
,2

0
1
)

  
  

  
  
 

-
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

0
.0

%

A
g
g

re
g

a
te

 E
x
te

rn
a
l 
F

in
a
n

c
e

(7
,7

4
3

,1
2
7

)
  

  
  
  

  
(7

,7
4
3
,1

2
7
)

  
  
  
  

 
(7

,7
4

3
,1

2
7
)

  
  
  

  
  

(7
,7

4
3
,1

2
7
)

  
  

  
  
 

-
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

0
.0

%

C
o

lle
c
ti
o
n

 F
u
n

d
 S

u
rp

lu
s

(4
8

,5
6
1

)
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

(4
8
,5

6
1
)

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

(4
8
,5

6
1
)

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

(4
8
,5

6
1
)

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

-
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

0
.0

%

U
s
e
 o

f 
E

a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 R

e
s
e

rv
e
s

(1
,2

8
7

,6
7
0

)
  

  
  
  

  
(7

7
,4

0
0
)

  
  
  

  
  

(1
,3

6
5
,0

7
0
)

  
  
  
  

 
(1

,3
6

5
,0

7
0
)

  
  
  

  
  

(1
,3

6
5
,0

7
0
)

  
  

  
  
 

-
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

0
.0

%

U
s
e
 o

f 
G

e
n
e
ra

l 
B

a
la

n
c
e
s

-
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

-
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
 

-
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
 

-
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

0
.0

%

T
o

ta
l 
F

in
a

n
c
in

g
(1

5
,5

7
4

,5
5
9

)
  

  
  
  

(7
7
,4

0
0
)

  
  
  

  
  

(1
5
,6

5
1
,9

5
9
)

  
  
  
 

-
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

-
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

(1
5
,6

5
1
,9

5
9
)

  
  
  

  
(1

5
,6

5
1
,9

5
9
)

  
  

  
 

-
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
 

0
.0

%

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

-
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

-
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
 

-
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

-
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

-
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
8

2
,2

3
0

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 

8
2

,2
3
0

  
  

  
  
  

 
0
.6

0
%

G
e

n
e
ra

l 
B

a
la

n
c

e
s
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 P
o

s
it

io
n

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s

t

£
£

G
e

n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 B

a
la

n
c
e
 a

t 
1
.4

.0
5

7
5
0

,0
0
0

1
,0

0
0
,0

0
0

V
a
ri

a
ti
o

n
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 u

ti
lis

in
g

 G
e
n
e

ra
l 
F

u
n
d
 B

a
la

n
c
e
 

-
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
 

-
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
 

F
o
re

c
a

s
t 

 (
O

v
e

r)
/U

n
d

e
r 

S
p
e

n
d
 

-
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
 

(8
2
,2

3
0
)

F
o

re
c
a

s
t 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
c
e
 a

t 
3

1
.3

.0
6

7
5
0

,0
0
0

9
1
7
,7

7
0

Agenda Item 9bAgenda Page 112



APPENDIX 2 

 

 

SERVICE LEVEL BUDGET MONITORING 2006/2007

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

MAY 2006

£'000

ORIGINAL SURPLUS (-) / DEFICIT (+) FOR YEAR (75)

BALANCE AS AT 1.4.06 (592)

Add Adjustments for In year cash movements

Slippage from 2004/2005

Virements for other Services

Transfer from contingency

Cabinet approved decisions

Delegated Authority decisions

ADJUSTED HRA BALANCES EXPECTED at 31.3.05 (667)

FORECAST

EXPENDITURE

Job Evaluation Costs 53

Expenditure under(-) or over (+) current cash budget 53

INCOME

Rents/Charges

Income under (+)/ over (-) achieved 0

FORECAST BALANCES AS AT 31.3.06 (614)

Key Assumptions

Key Issues/Variables

Repairs and Maint expenditure

Management and Maint Expenditure

Key Actions

Control of above

Agenda Item 9bAgenda Page 113



Agenda Page 114

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Finance (Introduced 
by the Executive Member for 

Resources, Councillor G Morgan)  

Executive Cabinet 29th June 2006 

 

TENDER FOR THE RENEWAL OF COUNCIL INSURANCES 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1. To inform the Executive Cabinet of the results of the recent tender exercise for the supply 
of insurance services. 

 
2. To note the appointment of Zurich Municipal completed under the delegated powers of the 

Leader of the Council.   

 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
3. There are no direct links to the corporate priorities.   

 
RISK ISSUES 

 
4. The issues raised and recommendations made in this report involve risk considerations in 

the following categories: 

 

Strategy  Information  
Reputation  Regulatory/Legal 4 
Financial 4 Operational  

People  Other  

 
5. Insurance is fundamentally a means of controlling some types of financial risk. It is a form 

of risk transfer, whereby insurance companies agree to indemnify the Council against 
certain financial losses, in return for the payment of premiums.  

 
6. Due to a very narrow municipal insurance market, it has become inherently difficult to 

procure cost effective insurance.  Although the Council is required to take out insurance in 
some areas, in others there is more discretion to consider alternative methods of risk 
financing, for example some form of self-insurance.  The specific insurance proposals 
made in this report take account of the various risk-financing options available to the 
Council.                  

 

BACKGROUND 

 
7. The current long-term agreement with our main insurer, Zurich Municipal, ends on 31st 

March 2006.  It was deemed appropriate, when tendering for the renewal of the Council’s 
insurances to also consider the various self-insurance options available. 

 
8. The Executive Cabinet has previously received a report on self-insurance, explaining how 

such arrangements might operate within the Council and agreed to carry out a technical 
evaluation of the various self-insurance options. 

 

Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 115



 
9. The Council appointed specialist consultants, Marsh Ltd to oversee the tender exercise, 

conduct an evaluation of the self-insurance options and to make specific proposals on a 
policy by policy basis.  The exercise included a review of all the base information on which 
the insurance quotations would be made, with the exception of Council buildings which was 
based on indexed valuations.  

 
10. Although several self-insurance options were explored, Marsh have confirmed our own 

view that radical self-insurance solutions should not be considered at this stage on the 
basis that the increase in exposure to financial loss would not be offset by a sufficient 
reduction in insurance premiums.  The thrust of their advice on self-insurance has been to 
ask the market to quote on the current basis and on the basis of the Council accepting 
significantly higher policy excesses/ deductibles in return for potentially significant premium 
reductions.    

 
11. With the exception of two specialist insurance policies (employment practices & 

householders insurance) which were excluded from the tender exercise, tenders were 
sought for the full range of the Council’s insurance needs on the basis of existing and other 
specified policy excesses.  The tender exercise was conducted in full compliance with EU 
Procurement Rules and the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules, following the negotiated 
procedure, allowing post-tender comparisons of the different bases of cover offered by 
insurers. 

 
12. Our existing insurers Zurich Municipal, Risk Management Partners and St. Paul 

International each tendered for the full range of the Council’s insurance requirements.  A 
number of other companies tendered for individual policies, namely Allianz (Engineering), 
ACE (Personal Accident / Travel) and Chubb (Personal Accident / Travel).  

 
13. The tenders were opened on 21st February 2006 and made available to Marsh who 

undertook a detailed evaluation of the quotations received.  The tender submitted by St. 
Paul could not be accepted as they failed to submit their response within the required 
timescale.  In any event St. Paul quoted significantly higher than the other insurers.   

 
 
TENDER RESULTS  
 
14. A Tender Evaluation Report and the section comparing the various premium quotations is 

shown at the Appendix.  The respective insurers did offer some differences in cover, 
including some variations to the terms in the tender specification and these are also shown 
in the Appendix.  

 
15. My recommendation was that all the Council’s insurance covers be renewed with existing 

carriers, Zurich Municipal, for a five year period, in line with their Long Term Agreement 
offering.  

 
16. The annual total saving on 2005/6 budgeted premium levels (inclusive of 5% insurance 

premium tax) is as follows: 

     £ 

Total actual premiums 2005/6   557,256   
Employment practices insurance   (10,526) 
Householders insurance    (14,984)  
       ----------- 
Premiums subject to tender    531,746  
 
Tender received from ZM    433,863 
 
Net annual premium saving      25,868    Housing Revenue Account 

        72,015    General Fund 

Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 116



17. Almost all the savings in premium emanate from the following 4 policies: 
 

 2005/06 
£ 

2006/07 
£ 

Difference 
£ 

Material Damage 121,052 100,528 20,524 
Public Liability 137,753 100,687 37,066 
Employers Liability 95,823 75,632 20,191 
Commercial Vehicles 70,560 54,306 16,254 
 

425,188 331,153 94,035 

 
18. In Marsh’s view, the significant reduction in premium is primarily due to favourable market 

conditions.  The insurance market is quite volatile and fluctuates according to global events 
and confidence.  The market is currently an optimistic or “soft” market, whereas when the 
insurance tender was last awarded 5 years ago the market was significantly “harder” and 
insurers found it difficult to arrange re-insurance which meant passing more of the risk back 
to the customer in the form of higher premiums.  A secondary reason for the lower 
premiums is the organisational changes that are programmed during 2006/7, which will 
reduce levels of exposure across the Council.  

 
19. In our opinion, before the Council considers accepting higher deductibles or transferring 

any of the risk to itself, it needs to analytically review its claims history and introduce more 
targeted risk management action in key areas.  This advice is supported by the recent re-
positioning of the insurance function under the control of the Council’s Audit & Risk 
Manager, in order to develop more effective management of insurable risks. 

 
20. Several other factors have also influenced the re-appointment of ZM on the current basis. 

Marsh have indicated that the insurance market is currently “soft” and premiums are 
relatively low.  A “hardening” of the market and consequential rises in premiums is 
anticipated in the near future.  The quality of service provided by ZM under their current 
contract has also been high and there are operational and administrative advantages of 
continuing with the same provider. 

 
21. The potential transfer of the housing stock and other possible organisational changes over 

the next financial year will mean that the Council’s insurance requirements are also likely to 
change significantly.  Therefore the contract will be awarded on the basis that there will be 
a full re-evaluation of the Council’s insurance needs in 12 months time.  This will entail a 
further review of base information including property re-valuations.         

 
22. Although Marsh Ltd. were initially appointed as a one-off exercise to assist with the tender 

exercise and the self-insurance options appraisal, they have demonstrated that there are 
tangible benefits of developing an ongoing relationship with an independent insurance 
broker / adviser.  The intention therefore is to appoint Marsh on a more formal, ongoing 
basis and agree a Service Level Agreement (SLA) with them, funded from some of the 
savings in insurance premiums. 

 
23. In addition to the provision of general, ongoing insurance advice, Marsh will specifically be 

asked to provide:   
 

� An automated claims management system, enabling analysis and reporting of claims 
data, to support the Council’s efficiency agenda;   

� Support and guidance on the management of insurable risks; 
� An annual review of the Council’s insurance needs and renegotiation of the premium in 

the long-term agreement, including base information. 

 
24. Due to the timing of the renewal, the appointment was made under delegated powers 

by Cllr Wilson on 29th March 2006.  As per the Council’s contract procedure rules this 
approval is being reported to Executive Cabinet. 

Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 117



25. As my recommendation is that the Council at this stage does not pursue the self insurance 
option, this releases a sum of money set aside to finance the self insurance route.  
Therefore a sum of £147k can be released back to the revenue.  This has been taken into 
account during the year end closedown and is included in the Council revenue outturn 
report for 2005/06. 

 
 
COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES 

 
26. Not applicable to this report 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
27. To note the appointment of Zurich Municipal as the Council’s Insurers. 

 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 

 
28. To provide the most appropriate risk financing solution to the Council. 

 
 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

 
29. The alternative risk financing options available have been explored in the body of the 

report. 

 
 
GARY HALL 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 

 

Background Papers 

Document Date File Place of Inspection 

Accounts & Audit Regulations 
2003 

 
Code of Practice for Internal 

Audit in Local Government in the 
United Kingdom 2003 

2003 FINANCE UNIT Gillibrand St Offices 

 

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Garry Barclay 5468 13/03/2006 EC-Report 

 

Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 118



 

1
 

 P
re
m
iu
m
 C
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
 

 C
la

s
s
 

Z
u

ri
c
h

 
R

M
P

 
A

ll
ia

n
z
 

A
C

E
 

C
h

u
b

b
 

M
a
te

ri
a
l 
D

a
m

a
g
e
 

8
4
,5

7
7
.2

3
 

9
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
 

 
 

 

W
o
rk

 I
n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

1
,8

7
3
.2

1
 

1
  
8
,7

7
3
.0

0
 

 
 

 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 I
n
te

rr
u

p
ti
o
n
 

 
 

 
 

 

G
ro

s
s
 R

e
v
e
n

u
e
 

1
,2

2
8
.0

2
 

In
c
 i
n
 a

b
o

v
e
 

 
 

 

A
d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
E

x
p
e
n

d
it
u
re

 
4
,2

7
5
.0

0
 

In
c
 i
n
 a

b
o

v
e
 

 
 

 

A
d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
E

x
p
e
n

d
it
u
re

 
3
,5

4
9
.6

5
 

In
c
 i
n
 a

b
o

v
e
 

 
 

 

M
o
n
e

y
 

 
1
,7

9
6
.7

5
 

In
c
 i
n
 a

b
o

v
e
 

 
 

 

A
ll 

R
is

k
s
 

1
3
,4

2
2
.2

3
 

In
c
 i
n
 a

b
o

v
e
 

 
 

 

C
o
m

p
u
te

r 
5
,2

7
1
.0

0
 

In
c
 i
n
 a

b
o

v
e
 

 
 

 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 O

w
n

e
rs

 
6
,7

2
2
.1

9
 

In
c
 i
n
 a

b
o

v
e
 

 
 

 

F
id

e
lit

y
 G

u
a
ra

n
te

e
 

2
,1

0
5
.5

6
 

3
,0

0
0
.0

0
 

 
 

 

P
e
rs

o
n
a

l 
A

c
c
id

e
n
t 

4
,1

0
7
.6

3
 

4
,4

6
8
.0

0
 

 
3
,5

0
0
.0

0
 

2
,8

6
7
.2

2
 

T
ra

v
e
l 

1
0
0
.0

0
 

In
c
 i
n
 a

b
o

v
e
 

 
In

c
 i
n
 a

b
o

v
e
 

In
c
 i
n
 a

b
o

v
e
 

T
e
rr

o
ri
s
m

 
8
,3

4
1
.0

2
 

7
,3

9
0
.0

0
 

 
 

 

 
1
3
7
,3

6
6
.4

9
 

1
1
6
,6

3
1
.0

0
 (

M
&

D
) 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 119



  P
u
b

lic
 /
 P

ro
d

u
c
ts

 L
ia

b
ili

ty
 

9
5
,6

5
3
.2

4
 

1
8
7
,0

0
0
.0

0
 

E
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

 L
ia

b
ili

ty
 

7
1
,8

5
1
.0

5
 

In
c
 i
n
 a

b
o

v
e
 

 
 

 

O
ff

ic
ia

ls
 I
n
d

e
m

n
it
y
 

3
,1

6
7
.9

5
 

In
c
 i
n
 a

b
o

v
e
 

 
 

 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
N

e
g
lig

e
n
c
e
 

4
,4

5
2
.0

0
 

In
c
 i
n
 a

b
o

v
e
 

 
 

 

L
ib

e
l 
&

 S
la

n
d
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
.0

0
 

In
c
 i
n
 a

b
o

v
e
 

 
 

 

L
a
n
d

 C
h
a
rg

e
s
 

4
,1

9
9
.7

6
 

In
c
 i
n
 a

b
o

v
e
 

 
 

 

 
1
8
0
,3

2
4
.0

0
 

1
8
7
,0

0
0
.0

0
 

 
 

 

M
o
to

r 
V

e
h

ic
le

s
 

5
1
,5

9
1
.0

0
 

5
6
,0

2
8
.0

0
 

 
 

 

L
e
a
s
e
d

 V
e
h
ic

le
s
 

3
2
,4

0
0
.0

0
 

2
7
,9

0
0
.0

0
 

 
 

 

C
la

im
s
 H

a
n
d
lin

g
 

0
.0

0
 

1
1
,2

4
7
.5

0
 

 
 

 

 
8
3
,9

9
1
.0

0
 

9
5
,4

7
3
.0

0
 (

M
&

D
) 

 
 

 

E
n
g

in
e
e
ri
n

g
 I
n
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

2
,0

0
2
.0

0
 

2
,2

4
6
.0

0
 

1
1
,2

4
7
.5

0
 

 
 

E
n
g

in
e
e
ri
n

g
 I
n
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n
 

7
,7

8
2
.2

5
 

1
0
,7

5
7
.0

0
 

In
c
 i
n
 a

b
o

v
e
 

 
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 P

la
n
t 

7
0
5
.0

0
 

7
5
0
.0

0
 

N
/A

 
 

 

 
1
0
,4

8
9
.2

5
 

1
3
,7

5
3
.0

0
 

1
1
,2

4
7
.5

0
 

 
 

T
o

ta
l 

£
4
1
2
,1

7
0
.7

4
 

£
4
1
2
,8

5
7
.0

0
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 120



  D
e
ta
il
e
d
 C
o
v
e
r 
C
o
m
p
a
ri
s
o
n
 

C
a
te

g
o

ry
 

Z
u

ri
c
h

 M
u

n
ic

ip
a
l 

R
M

P
 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a
n

c
y
 D

a
y
s
 

N
o
 d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 d

a
y
s
 

2
 L

o
s
s
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
D

a
ys

 (
lia

b
ili

ty
 c

la
s
s
e
s
) 

A
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 

A
n
n

u
a

l 
a
d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t 
o
n
 L

ia
b
ili

ty
 /
 T

ra
v
e

l 
/ 

E
n

g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
  

P
re

m
iu

m
s
 a

re
 M

in
im

u
m

 a
n
d
 D

e
p

o
s
it
 a

d
ju

s
ta

b
le

 u
p

w
a
rd

s
 

o
n
 d

e
c
la

ra
ti
o

n
 

P
a
c

k
a
g

e
 

Q
u
o
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 o

n
 a

 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
  

Q
u
o
ta

ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 o

n
 a

 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
 b

a
s
is

 

L
o

n
g

 T
e
rm

 A
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
5
 y

e
a
rs

 
  
  
  
3
 y

e
a
rs

 w
it
h
 a

 2
 y

e
a
r 

o
p
ti
o

n
  

P
re

m
iu

m
 P

a
y
m

e
n

t 
P

a
ym

e
n
t 
to

 b
e

 m
a
d
e
 w

it
h

in
 3

0
 d

a
y
s
 

1
%

 p
e
r 

m
o
n
th

 l
a
te

 i
n

te
re

s
t 

c
h
a
rg

e
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 –

 6
0
 d

a
y
 p

re
m

iu
m

 p
a

ym
e
n
t 

w
a
rr

a
n
ty

 
 

IP
T

/V
A

T
 

Q
u
o
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 n

e
t 
o
f 

IP
T

/V
A

T
 a

t 
p
re

v
a
ili

n
g
 r

a
te

s
 

2
0
0
6

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 

- 
IP

T
 £

2
0
,2

1
9
.4

2
 

- 
V

A
T

 £
1
,3

6
1
.8

9
 

Q
u
o
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 n

e
t 
o
f 

IP
T

/V
A

T
 a

t 
p
re

v
a
ili

n
g
 r

a
te

s
 

2
0
0
6

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 

- 
IP

T
 £

2
0
,0

6
5
.6

0
 

- 
V

A
T

 £
3
,9

0
3
.1

2
 

T
e
rr

o
ri

s
m

 (
M

a
te

ri
a
l 

D
a
m

a
g

e
/B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

In
te

rr
u

p
ti

o
n

) 

N
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d
 

Q
u
o
ta

ti
o
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

In
fl

a
ti

o
n

 P
ro

v
is

io
n

 
A

u
to

m
a
ti
c
 i
n
d
e
x
 l
in

k
in

g
 

A
u
to

m
a
ti
c
 i
n
d
e
x
 l
in

k
in

g
 

Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 121



 

 

R
e
g
is

te
re

d
 i
n
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 N

u
m

b
e
r:

 1
5
0
7
2
7
4
, 

R
e
g
is

te
re

d
 O

ff
ic

e
: 

1
 T

o
w

e
r 

P
la

c
e
 W

e
s
t 
  

T
o
w

e
r 

P
la

c
e
  

L
o
n
d
o
n
 E

C
3
R

 5
B

U
 

M
a
rs

h
 L

td
 i
s
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
g
u
la

te
d
 b

y
 T

h
e
 F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

M
a
rs

h
 L

td
 c

o
n
d
u
c
ts

 i
ts

 g
e
n
e
ra

l 
in

s
u
ra

n
c
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

n
 t

e
rm

s
 t

h
a
t 
a
re

 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

"O
u
r 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 a

n
d
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
".

 T
h
is

 m
a
y
 b

e
 v

ie
w

e
d
 o

n
 o

u
r 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 

h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.m
a
rs

h
.c

o
.u

k
/a

b
o
u
tM

a
rs

h
/p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
.h

tm
l 

  

 

 
M
ar
sh
 L
td
 

1 
C
ity
 R
oa
d 
E
as
t 

M
an
ch
es
te
r,
 M
15
 4
P
N
 

 T
el
 0
16
1 
95
4 
72
00
 

F
ax
 0
16
1 
95
4 
72
10
 

 w
w
w
.m
ar
sh
.c
o.
uk
 

-  

Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 122



 1 

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Finance 
(Introduced by the Executive 

Member for Resources 
Greg Morgan) 

Executive Cabinet 29/06/06 

 

EXTERNAL FUNDING STRATEGY, 2006 AND BEYOND 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1. To introduce the draft External Funding Strategy for 2006 and beyond.  
 
2. To seek members’ endorsement for wider consultation. 
 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

 
3. The delivery of the strategy links to a number of Corporate Priorities. 
 

• Reduce pockets of inequality. 

• Get people involved in their local community. 

• Develop the character and feel of Chorley as a good place to live. 

• Ensure that Chorley Borough Council is a performing organisation. 

 
RISK ISSUES 
 
4. The issue raised and recommendations made in this report involve risk considerations in 

the following categories: 
 

Strategy  Information  
Reputation � Regulatory/Legal  
Financial � Operational  
People  Other  

 
 Financial 

 Chorley Borough Council has a new corporate strategy. Key projects are being identified 
 to assist in the delivery of the 5 strategic objectives. However, Chorley Borough Council 
does not have sufficient resources to fulfil all of its aspirations. The external funding 
strategy provides a framework for attracting additional funding into the borough. This is 
designed to mitigate the risk of failing to deliver corporate objectives as a result of limited 
resources. 

 
 Reputation 

 Chorley Borough Council is expected to act as an excellent community leader, delivering 
community aspirations through the efficient use of resources. The funding strategy 
recommends that Chorley Borough Council should enhance this role by taking 
responsibility for brokering relationships between external partners to develop projects 
and associated applications for funding. 

 

 

Agenda Item 11Agenda Page 123



 2 

 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
 

5. Chorley Borough Council first appointed a funding officer in October 2002.  It was an 
experiment in attracting funds to an area without Single Regeneration Budget, 
Neighbourhood Renewal or European Assisted Area status. 

 
Much has been achieved.  Between October 2002 and March 2005, the funding officer 
recorded £746,820 of grant offers to the borough (excluding the Heritage Lottery Fund 
Grant for Astley Park).  The sources of funding ranged from small trusts to major lottery 
distributors, from UK government sources to European Structural Funds. They were 
accessed by a mixture of public, private and voluntary sector organisations.   

 
Council officers have predominantly worked on small scale funding applications with 
community groups. This has resulted in a sizeable income for the borough and facilitated 
the delivery of numerous ‘grass roots’ activities. These ‘quick wins’ have built the council’s 
confidence that it is possible to attract additional funds to a relatively affluent and 
predominantly rural area.  The ‘small scale and reactionary’ approach to funding has now 
served its purpose, and it is time to adopt a more strategic framework for funding activity. 

 
 
THE FUNDING STRATEGY 2006 & BEYOND  –  A FRESH APPROACH 
 
6. The change in approach has been influence by four key issues: 

 
  Maximising Limited Capacity 

 
 The current volume of requests for advice and support means that the funding officer is no 
longer able to assist each project individually. Therefore the following recommendations 
are made: 

 
- External Funding officer works on a small portfolio of high impact partnership projects 
- Unit officers will lead on bids where projects fall wholly within their department 
- Units will be asked to work with partners on small scale bids (typically under £20,000), 

or make referrals to CVS 
- The LSP will be asked to lead  on project/bid development where appropriate 
- A grant database will be available on line enabling partners to undertake their own 

funding research, rather than relying on the Council’s External Funding Officer 
 

 The impact of grant income can be maximised by dove-tailing externally funded projects 
into corporate objectives. A risk analysis on over 80 funding sources was undertaken in 
spring 2006.  Only funds with the potential to support corporate objectives and which also 
carried a medium/high likelihood of success were short listed for inclusion in the Funding 
Strategy. The funding officer’s portfolio of bids for development should be selected from 
this list. 

   
 Partnership Working 

 
7. Partnership working is now a requirement of many funding bodies, so much so, that the  

quality of partnership work can now determine the success or failure of a funding 
application. The Funding Strategy recommends that the Council take advantage of the 
new partnership opportunities which arise from the LSP restructure, the adoption of Local 
Area Agreements and the establishment of a Public Service Board.  As a community 
leader, the council should proactively broker relationships with partners, and initiate 
project/bid development activity.  

Agenda Item 11Agenda Page 124



 3 

 

 Changes in Funding Regimes 

 
8. The funding landscape is in constant flux. Local authority areas which anticipate and 

prepare for changes in funding regimes are at a significant advantage when it comes to 
bidding for funding. During 2006, both the National Lottery and the EU structural funds will 
undergo major changes.  The strategy recommends a number of actions designed to 
prepare Chorley Borough Council and its partners to take advantage of any positive 
opportunities that these changes may bring e.g.  Increased public sector access to Lottery 
funds, changes to the European Assisted Area Map or more generous state aid rules. 

 
 Meeting the Challenges of CPA 

 
9. Chorley has travelled a significant distance in recording and monitoring its external funding 

activity.  The CPIFA External Funding Survey (2005) showed that only 62% of local 
authorities have an external funding strategy.  The majority of these belong to unitary 
authorities and do not contain any measures of performance.  However, it is becoming 
increasingly important to record data on external funding activities.  CPA now makes 
specific reference to external funding and partnerships 

 
 The Strategy recommends developing a set of protocols governing the submission of grant 

applications and claims.  This serves two purposes: 
 

 1. To ensure that the Council complies with Section 151 of the Local Government Act 
(ensuring that the Director of Finance can undertake ‘proper administration of the 
Council’s financial affairs’). 

 
 2. To ensure that the Council has a comprehensive database containing information 

funding activity within the Borough to support the CPA process. 
 
  This will, in turn support Chorley in two CPA Key Lines of Enquiry (5.4 and 8.2).  
 

  5.4 ‘does the Council ensure that it is making its resources work in the best way to 
deliver value for money?’ 

  Councils are expected to demonstrate sound financial management and the flexible 
use of resources (including grant income) in line with council priorities – achieving 
value for money. 

 

 8.2 – Is the Council securing the necessary resources for investment? 
  Councils are expected to demonstrate that they can access external funds to drive 

future improvement in priority areas and that there are clearly identified exit strategies 
in place. 

 
 
CONSULTATION WITH PARTNER ORGANISATIONS 
 
10.  The success of this strategy lies in securing the support of partner organisations. It is, 

therefore, important to seek the views of external bodies on issues such as: 
 

- Is the approach of ‘less, but more targeted’ funding applications the right one for 
Chorley? 

- Are the proposed mechanisms for providing funding advice and support appropriate to 
your organisation? 

- Is your organisation able to contribute to, or lead a partnership bid for any of the funds 
listed in the strategy? 

 
  

Agenda Item 11Agenda Page 125



 4 

11. It is proposed that the funding strategy be shared with partners via the Local Strategic 
Partnership Board, which encompasses public, private and voluntary sector organisations.  

 
 In addition, more in depth discussion will be held with Chorley and South Ribble Council for 
Voluntary Service, as the strategy envisages CVS increasing the amount of advice it gives 
to groups seeking small grants. 

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
12. The Funding Strategy for 2006 and beyond signals a new approach to funding.  There will 

be fewer, but more targeted applications for funding and projects are likely to be developed 
in partnership with two or more organisations. Local organisations will also be given the to 
tools to undertake their own grant research without the intensive support of the council’s 
funding officer, increasing her capacity to work on strategic issues. 

 
 

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
13. There are no direct Human Resources implications related to this report.  However, due 

to the extent of the programme, capacity issues should be taken into consideration when 
comparing the size of the agenda to the resources available to deliver the strategy.  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
14.     To review the funding strategy and to endorse wider consultation with partner 

organisations. 

 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
(If the recommendations are accepted) 
 
15. The Council wishes to adopt a strategic and outward looking approach to securing 

external funding for the borough.  The strategy will be shared with partner organisations 
to assess the level of support for such an approach.  

 
 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
 
16. None 
 
 
 
 
GARY HALL 
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

 

Background Papers 

Document Date File Place of Inspection 

External Funding Strategy 2003 *** *** 
Finance Unit, Gillibrand 

Street 

 

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Sara Jane Cooper 5337 8 June 2006 LEGREP/92749LK 

Agenda Item 11Agenda Page 126



 5 

    

Agenda Item 11Agenda Page 127



Agenda Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank



 

External Funding Strategy 

2006 and Beyond  
 

May 2006 
 

 

 

Agenda Item 11 Agenda Page 129



 
 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

 

 

INTRODUCTION..................................................................................................................................... 3 

 
PRIORITIES FOR 2006 AND BEYOND.................................................................................................. 3 

 
ADOPTING A NEW APPROACH ........................................................................................................... 4 

 
Maximising limited capacity ..................................................................................................................... 4 
 
Partnership working................................................................................................................................. 4 
 
Anticipating changes in funding regimes.................................................................................................. 4 

 
European Structural Funds............................................................................................................. 4 
 
National Lottery .............................................................................................................................. 5 

 
Meeting the challenges of CPA ............................................................................................................... 5 
  
SUMMARY.............................................................................................................................................. 6 

 

 
Appendices 

 

ANNEX 1 - KEY EXTERNAL FUNDING SOURCES – 2006 AND BEYOND……………………………….7 

Agenda Item 11 Agenda Page 130



 
 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 
Chorley Borough Council appointed its first funding officer in October 2002.  It was an 
experiment in attracting funds to an area without Single Regeneration Budget, 
Neighbourhood Renewal or European Assisted Area status. 
 
Much has been achieved.  Between October 2002 and March 2005 grant offers to 
the borough recorded by the external funding officer totalled £746,820.  The sources 
of funding  ranged from small trusts to major lottery distributors, from UK government 
sources to European structural funds. 
 
Factors contributing to this success include: 
 

• Units exchanging knowledge, expertise and project ideas in a corporate 
funding group 

• Research into funding opportunities which do not rely on applicants falling 
within the 10% most deprived of English wards 

• Cultivation of relationships with funders e.g. Football Foundation, ERDF 
Action Plan Partnership, Government Office’s European Objective 3 Unit, 
Lottery Distributors 

• Development of a large number small scale projects  
 
Much of the work to date has been small scale and reactionary. Quick wins were 
secured in order to build the council’s confidence that it is possible to attract 
additional funds to a relatively affluent and predominantly rural area.  Following this 
initial success, it is now time to take a more strategic approach to funding.  The 
Council must continue to seek funding outside of the regular and familiar channels, 
whilst working in partnership with other agencies to achieve the targets laid out in the 
new corporate strategy.   
 
 
PRIORITIES FOR 2006 AND BEYOND 

Three distinct areas of work have been identified with the aim of ensuring that 
Chorley Borough Council is a performing Organisation1 able to deliver 
community aspirations through the efficient use of resources…2 
 

Strategy 

• Identification of a portfolio of key projects in need of additional funds  

• Development and maintainance of strong working relationships with external 
partners 

• Anticipation of, and preparation for changes in funding regimes - 
contextualising national initiatives at a local level 

 
Operations 

• Implementation of protocols for bid development, submission and claims, 
allowing the council to demonstrate to CPA inspectors that is: 

- making its resources work in the best way to deliver value for money 
- securing the necessary resources for investment 
 

                                                           
1
 Strategic objective 6, Corporate Strategy Overview 2006/07 to 2008/09 

2
 Outcome 6.1, Corporate Strategy Overview 2006/07 to 2008/09 

Agenda Item 11 Agenda Page 131



 
 

 

Capacity Building 

• Empower service units and partner organisations to identify funding 
opportunities and submit small scale bids without the intensive support of a 
funding officer 

 
 
ADOPTING A NEW APPROACH 

Maximising limited capacity 
 
Annex 1 provides details of 21 funding streams which have undergone a risk analysis 
to ensure that: 

- bids have a medium to high probability of success 
- projects will not lead the council away from its corporate objectives 
- The links between vital partners already exist to some degree 

 
However, the number of potential bids still outstrips the funding officer’s capacity.   
 
Recommended approach 
 

- External Funding officer works on a small portfolio of high impact partnership 
projects attracting funds outside the mainstream 

- Unit officers will lead on bids where projects fall wholly within their department 
- Units will be asked to work with partners on small scale bids (typically under 

£20,000), or make referrals to CVS 
- The LSP should lead on bid development where appropriate 
- The impact of grant investment is to be maximised by targeting using 

geographical areas and/or themes  
 
 
Partnership working 

New opportunities for partnership working are evolving as a result of the restructure 
of the Local Strategic Partnership, the establishment of a Local Public Service Board 
and the adoption of Local Area Agreements. These developments may see the role 
of the funding officer move further into the realm of ‘special projects and 
partnerships’. 
 
Recommend approach 
 

- The External Funding Officer should support the Director of Policy and 
Performance in brokering relationships with partners, and developing projects 
with shared objective  

 
 
Anticipating changes in funding regimes 

European Structural Funds 
 
The current European Structural Fund programme (2000-2006) is drawing to a close.  
The new EU budget has been set. The North West is to receive 50% less EU funds 
for 2007-13 (circa £1.2b)3. 
 

                                                           
3
 amount proposed by NWRA during consultations with DTI 

Agenda Item 11 Agenda Page 132



 
 

 

However, the shape of the structural funds (2007-13) and the method of distribution 
is still to be decided.  A number of mechanisms are being discussed, including 
distribution of funds via Local Area Agreements (LAAs). Therefore close links 
between funding and policy officers is important. 
 
 
Recommended approach 
 
The External funding officer should work as part of the Lancashire European Network 
to: 
 

• Influence the content of the National Strategic Reference Framework (NSRF), 
encouraging allocation on the ‘theme’ basis rather geography 

• Secure ‘assisted area status’ for as many wards as possible, releasing 
companies from state aid rules  

 
If this is achieved, Chorley may have more success in accessing EU funds than ever 
before, despite the overall drop in EU income for the region. 
 
 
 
National Lottery 
 
The Big Lottery Fund (BLF) was created in 2005. It is now the single biggest Lottery 
Distributor; responsible for distributing 50% of the good cause money (estimated to 
be £600m per year until 2009). 
 
BLF is rolling out its new programmes throughout 2006. Public bodies will now have 
more access to lottery funds than ever before. This is major policy change, and is 
advantageous to Chorley Borough. However, public bodies are expected to develop 
and deliver strong projects in partnership with other public organisations and the third 
sector.  
 
 
Recommended approach 
 
As a community leader, Chorley Borough Council should gather intelligence and 
disseminate it to partners, then initiate project development ahead of the change 
which is to come.  
 

Meeting the challenges of CPA 

Chorley has already travelled a significant distance in recording and monitoring its 
external funding activity. However, it is becoming increasing important to record data 
on external funding activities. CPA now makes specific reference to external funding 
and partnerships. 
 
These local performance indicators will support Chorley in the following CPA Key 
Lines of Enquiry 5.4 and 8.2.  
 

5.4 ‘does the council ensure that it is making its resources work in the best way to 
deliver value for money?’ 
Councils are expected to demonstrate sound financial management, and the flexible 
use of resources (including grant income) in line with council priorities – achieving 
value for money. 
 

Agenda Item 11 Agenda Page 133



 
 

 

8.2 – Is the council securing the necessary resources for investment? 
Councils are expected to demonstrate that they can access external funds to drive 
future improvement in priority areas, and that there are clearly identified exit 
strategies in place. 
 
 
Recommended approach 
 
Protocols should be implemented to ensure that adequate governance arrangements 
are in place for externally funded work 
 
A corporate funding database is to be used to provide evidence for CPA inspectors 
that the return on investments has been maximised  
 
 

 

SUMMARY 

 

The strategic, operational and capacity building approach to funding work is designed 
to ensure that Chorley Borough Council is a performing Organisation able to 
deliver community aspirations through the efficient use of resources… : 

 
This builds on the excellent work, which has already received acknowledgement from 
the audit commission in latest ‘Direction of Travel’ Statement: 

 

“The Council continues to improve as an organisation and has developed a 
confident, outward facing approach. 

It is securing strong and fruitful partnership arrangements. Good collaboration is 
delivering important regeneration projects. 

The Council is beginning to play a greater role in the economic and social 
development of the sub region. Chorley is emerging as a strong partner in county 

wide initiatives such as the Lancashire Shared Contact Centre and takes 
opportunities to facilitate constructive working arrangements across local authority 

boundaries” 
 

[Audit Commission – January 2006] 

 

Agenda Item 11 Agenda Page 134



ANNEX 1 - KEY EXTERNAL FUNDING SOURCES – 2006 AND BEYOND 

7

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE  -  PROSPERITY 

1. PUT CHORLEY AT THE HEART OF REGIONAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT IN THE CENTRAL LANCASHIRE SUB-REGION 

Fund

Amount & Deadline 
Funder’s Key Theme Suggested Lead 

Applicant,
supported by 

Possible Projects Key targets supported 

European Social Fund (Learning and 
Skills Council 
£198,000 
Decision expected May 06 

European Social Fund (Global 
Grants) 
Up to £6,000 
Rolling deadline 

DEFRA – Rural Enterprise Scheme 
50% grant, up to £500,000 
Deadline to be announced May 06 

Improving skills and employability 

Improving skills/employability. 
Development of social enterprise 

Sustainable, diversified and 
enterprising rural economy 

District councils 

Individuals/community 
groups 
Chorley BC  

Rural businesses/ 
community groups 
Chorley BC 

Training for people wishing 
to enter public sector 
employment 

Any community project 
involving skills development 

Establishment of Brinscall 
Baths as a community 
enterprise 

1.4 Reduction in earnings 
gap

1.4 Reduction in earnings     
gap

5.1 % increase in people 
satisfied with the borough 
as a place to live 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE  -  PEOPLE 

2. REDUCE POCKETS OF INEQUALITY

Fund

Amount & Deadline 
Funder’s Key Theme Lead Applicant, 

supported by 
Possible Project Key targets supported 

Big Lottery Fund ‘Community 
Learning’
To be launched in June 06 

Big Lottery Fund ‘Reaching 
Communities’ 
£10,000 to £500,000 
Rolling deadline 

Big Lottery Fund ‘Children’s Play’ 
£211,000  
March 07 

Department of Health ‘Access and 
Systems’ grant 
£12,011,951 
Secured for 2006/07 

Big Lottery Fund ‘Wellbeing’ 
Scheme to launch in May 2006 

Family approach to learning – 
Improving numeracy, language and 
literacy skills 

Reaching those most in need. 
More life chances, stronger 
communities, improved rural/urban 
environments, healthily lifestyles 

Responding to locally identified play 
needs 

Lancs CC secured funding to build 
up community based social care 
services 

Increasing levels of physical 
activity, healthy eating/lifestyles, 
new approaches to mental health 

Local college 
Local Strategic 
Partnership 

Chorley BC  
Voluntary sector and 
LSP

Chorley BC 
Chorley Play 
Partnership 

Local Strategic 
Partnership 

Local Strategic 
Partnership 
Primary Care Trust 

New approaches to  

Any predominantly revenue 
project that provides a 
solution to a locally 
identified need/problem 

Portfolio of projects (capital 
and revenue) to support a 
local play strategy 

Investigate potential to link 
with Lancs CC. Could 
funding be used to support 
‘Staying put’ or Trinity Day 
Centre 

Activities and education 
around tobacco/alcohol 
control and obesity 

2.2 Improved life chances 
for children and young 
people 

2.1 Achieving targets set for 
neighbourhoods in worst 
20%

2.2 See above 
5.1 % of people satisfied 
with the borough as a place 
to live 

2.3 Improved quality of life 
for older people 

2.4 Targets around CHD 
and Cancers 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE  -  PEOPLE 

3. GET PEOPLE INVOLVED IN THEIR COMMUNITIES

Fund
Amount & Deadline 

Funder’s Key Theme Lead Applicant, 
supported by 

Possible Project Key targets supported 

Big Lottery Fund ‘Young People’s 
Fund’
£250 - £150,000 
Rolling programme. Fast track for 
applications under £5,000 

Home Office ‘Future Builders’ 
Grant/loans > £50,000 
Rolling deadline from May 06 

Big Lottery Fund - BASIS 
£10,000 - £500,000  
June 2006 

Small lottery schemes, charitable 
trusts, landfill tax credit schemes 

‘Every Child Matters’ themes of 
‘healthy, safe, enjoyment/achieve, 
positive contribution and economic 
wellbeing 

Investment enabling voluntary 
sector organisations and community 
enterprises to deliver public 
services 

Improving the infrastructure of 
organisations whose main purpose 
is to support the work of voluntary 
and community organisations 

There are 100s of trusts and grant 
making bodies. Details can be 
found on the council’s grant 
database

Young people 
Local Strategic 
Partnership 

Voluntary sector 
Local Strategic 
Partnership 

Chorley & South 
Ribble CVS 
Local Strategic 
Partnership

Community groups 
Chorley BC 

Any capital or revenue 
projects initiated by young 
people 

Trinity Day Centre, other 
projects may cover 
Cohesions, Crime, 
Education, learning, and 
children/young people 

Sub-regional infrastructure 
development for community 
sector 

Chorley BC to keep 
community groups up to 
date with funding 
opportunities 

2.2 Improved life chances 
for children and young 
people 
3.1 % of people who feel 
that their communities are 
places where people get on 
well together 
% of people who have 
worked in a voluntary 
capacity 

3.1 See above 

3.1 See above 

3.1 See above 

Agenda Item 11 Agenda Page 135



ANNEX 1 - KEY EXTERNAL FUNDING SOURCES – 2006 AND BEYOND 

8

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE  -  PEOPLE 

4. IMPROVED ACCESS TO PUBLIC SERVICES 

Fund
Amount & Deadline 

Funder’s Key Theme Lead Applicant, 
supported by 

Possible Project Key targets supported 

ODPM ‘Invest to Save Budget 
2006/07 round not yet launched 

Department of Transport ‘Kick Start’ 
£802,000 secured 
for 2006/07 

New focus – third sector’s role in 
building fairer communities in 
delivery of public services 

Improvement to public transport – 
routes, accessibility, usage 

Local Strategic 
Partnership 
Voluntary/community 
sector and PSB 

Lancs CC 
Stage Coach  

Elements of: 
SOA ,Child/Youth Matters, 
older people or health 
action plan 

Chorley Connect – a nine 
route network in partnership 
with stage coach serving 
Chorley Settlements 

41 % of residents surveyed 
finding it easy to access 
key local services 

4.2 % of residents who 
think that over the past 3 
years public transport has 
improved 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE  -  PLACE 

5. DEVELOP THE CHARACTER AND FEEL OF CHORLEY AS A GOOD PLACE TO LIVE 

Fund
Amount & Deadline 

Funder’s Key Theme Lead Applicant, 
supported by 

Possible Project Key targets supported 

Big Lottery Fund ‘Community 
Buildings’
To be launched in June 06 

North West Development Agency 
Programmes E.g. Remade 

Capital Investment in buildings 
which will provide a community 
facility

Sustainable economic development 
and regeneration. Key priorities: 
Business, People and Jobs, Skills & 
Education, Infrastructure and 
Quality of Life. 

CBC and Local 
Strategic Partnership 

Chorley Borough 
Council (Economic 
Regeneration) 

Brinscall Baths, Chorley 
Community Centre, Trinity 
Church 

Schemes lists in Economic 
Development Strategy 

5.1 % increase in people 
satisfied with the borough 
as a place to live 
5.3 % increase in people 
reporting that the urban 
environment has improved 

5.1 See above 
5.3 See above 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE  -  PERFORMANCE 

6. ENSURE CHORLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL IS A PERFORMING ORGANISATION 

Fund
Amount & Deadline 

Funder’s Key Theme Lead Applicant, 
supported by 

Possible Project Key targets supported 

No suitable national sources were identified. 
However, local opportunities may exist, e.g. ENWIN.

It will be the responsibility of directorates to identify and apply for these. 

Agenda Item 11 Agenda Page 136



QUARTERLY

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

2005/06

EXECUTIVE CABINET MONITORING REPORT 

As at Year End March 2006

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 137



M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S  2 March 2006.v1 

CONTENTS

Page

Introduction 3 

Interpretation 3 - 4 

Performance Data Tables 8 - 21 

Action Plans for Performance that is Not on Track 22 - 39 

Comments on Specific Indicators 40 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 138



M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 3 March 06.v1 

INTRODUCTION

This monitoring report sets out performance against the Council’s Key and Best Value 
Performance Indicators for the year ending 31 March 06.

Quarterly Business Plan monitoring statements have also been produced by Units separately, and 
have been sent to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and panels. 

 The PI’s fall into three main types: 

1. CORPORATE KPI’s – Performance indicators which are used to monitor the Corporate Plan.   
These may be BVPI’s or locally defined indicators. 

2. BEST VALUE KPI’s – National indicators collected in accordance with definitions issued by the 
Office of the Deputy Prime Minister.  These are prefixed by BV in the monitoring tables that 
follow.

3. LOCAL KPI’s – Locally defined performance indicators which are used to monitor performance.  
Indicators prefixed with CBC monitor corporate performance and are not attributable to one 
particular Unit. Indicators measuring Unit performance have a two character prefix denoting the 
service unit to which they relate.

CD   CuDOSS 
CP   Corporate and Policy Services 
LC    Leisure and Cultural Services 
ER   Economic Regeneration 
EN   Environmental Services 
FN   Finance
HS   Housing Services 
HR   Human Resources 
IT     Information Technology 
LG   Legal Services 
PL   Planning Services 
PR   Property Services 
PS   Public Space Services 
CBC Corporate 

INTERPRETATION

Performance Symbols 

Symbols are used in the monitoring tables to provide a quick guide to how the Council is 
performing against a particular indicator: 

Performance is hitting or better than the target set for 2005/06. 

   

Performance is within tolerance.

   

Performance is significantly worse than planned and (where it can be 
compared with last year) is worse than last year. 

The performance symbols denote year end performance against the target.

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 139



M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 4 March 06.v1 

Some indicators are new so have no targets.  To avoid the symbol, the target has been 
estimated from the actual performance.  This position will be reviewed to establish better targets 
for 06/07 monitoring, as appropriate. 

Symbols are also used to show whether performance is improving between reporting periods or 
not.  2004/05 performance is compared with 2005/06 performance: 

Performance is improving between reporting periods, a lower figure is better 

= Performance is improving between reporting periods, a higher figure is better 

= Performance is getting worse between reporting periods, a lower figure is better. 

= Performance is getting worse between reporting periods, a higher figure is better. 

= Performance is the same as last period 

Comparative Data 

Where available, the quartile data is shown for BVPI’s.  Not all BVPI’s have quartile data.  All 
England Best and Worst quartiles for March 2005 are the latest available.

PI’s prefixed CBC or with Unit initials do not have any quartile information, as quartile information is 
only available for national indicators.  If none of the indicators on a page have quartile data, the 
quartile columns have been removed. 

Preferred Direction of Travel

The preferred direction of travel for some measures is unclear. 

Section Indicator Preferred Direction of Travel 

Capacity CBC005 %  Budget spent at year end 
(forecast)

Target is best 

BV106 % New homes built on 
brownfield sites 

Bigger is better Greener

BV 63 Average SAP rating of LA 
dwellings

Bigger is better 

BV014 Early retirements Smaller is better Corporate Health 

BV015 Ill Health retirements Smaller is better 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 140



M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 5 March 06.v1 

SUMMARY AND KEY MESSAGES

Summary  

This report gives the end of the 05/06 year position for Corporate Key Performance Indicators 
(KPI’s) and Best Value Performance Indicators (BVPI’s). 

As it is reporting last year’s information, the Corporate KPI’s relate to the Customer, Capacity, and 
Cleaner, Greener Safer priorities. 

Some indicators have been reported twice as they are BVPI’s and KPI’s.  This is indicated on the 
relevant tables. 

Corporate Priorities 

Looking at the priorities together, we have

18 green stars – ie performance is at or better than target 

19 blue circles – ie performance is within agreed tolerances (in most cases +/- 10%) or if it can be 
compared to last year, it’s better than last year 

7 red triangles -  ie performance is worse than the lowest tolerance or if it can be compared to last 
year, it’s worse than last year. 

For these red triangle indicators, there are action plans showing why performance is worse than 
expected and detailing the action to be taken to ensure it doesn’t continue. 

The KPI figures are shown in the tables on pages 6 –10. 

Best Value Performance Indicators 

The tables on pages 11 to 18 show the BVPI information. 

The BVPI quartile information is for the year ending March 05.  It is the latest available data and 
hasn’t been included in previous monitoring reports.  This is the information we use to compare 
Chorley’s position with the national picture.  The upper quartile is frequently used as a target for 
indicators that haven’t already achieved that level of performance. 

Within the BVPI set, there are a lot of new indicators. These will all show progress against target 
as a blue circle or on track as the target is the same as the actual.  They are not yet comparable 
over time as there is no data for previous years. 

38% of Chorley’s BVPI’s are in the upper quartile, just over 48% are mid range and just under 14% 
are in the lower quartile. 

Just over 37% are performing at or better than target and almost 12% are worse than planned ie 
red triangles.

Looking in the BVPIs, there are

32 green stars – ie performance is at or better than target 

44 blue circles – ie performance is within agreed tolerances (in most cases +/- 10%) or if it can be 
compared to last year, it’s better than last year 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 141



M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 6 March 06.v1 

10 red triangles -  ie performance is worse than the lowest tolerance or if it can be compared to last 
year, it’s worse than last year. 

Again there are action plans for the indicators that are worse than planned. 

Almost half of the BVPI’s can be compared to last year and of these, 50% are improving, 15 % 
have remained the same and 31% have worsened. 

Key Messages 

Overall the message is positive with 88% of BVPI’s and KPI’s outperforming or remaining within an 
agreed tolerance of their target.  For those that haven’t achieved target, an improvement action 
plan is included and there are a number of areas of particular concern.

Impact on CPA

The following are of concern since they are relevant to the proposed CPA Performance Information 
set which will be used to analyse service performance.

BV 3     satisfaction with the Council overall 
BV 89   satisfaction with litter and refuse
BV184b % change in non-decent homes 
BV183b length of stay in hostel accommodation and 
BV179   % standard searches carried out within 10 days 

BV3 and BV89

The CPA set includes 38 indicators, of which 10 relate to customer satisfaction.  Whilst BV 3 is not 
included in the set as it is not service specific, if it is taken to be an approximation of satisfaction 
with specific service areas, it could be that we fail to achieve target on 10 of the 38 indicators.  
However, in the previous best value survey in 2003, satisfaction with individual services did 
outperform general satisfaction.

Three of the satisfaction indicators relate to waste services.  Similarly to the point above, if BV89 is 
viewed as an approximation of all three, the outcome of the survey may fall short of the targets set.

The best value survey is a tri-annual survey and is due to be carried out before the end of this 
year, although the Council voluntarily completes the survey annually.  The Council is aware of the 
potential consequences of poor satisfaction scores and has drawn up a substantial combative 
action plan, the outline of which is given in the latter part of this report.

It is also pertinent to consider that these latest survey results are based on a local survey carried 
out during 2005.  There is no national data with which to compare to identify whether Chorley is 
any better or worse than other councils, to identify national trends or to put the results in context.

BV184b

Performance of this indicator is based on a stock condition survey.  The results of the latest survey 
indicate more non-decent homes than the previous survey anticipated and consequently the target 
has not been met.  Meeting future targets for this service area, is reliant on LSVT of the housing 
stock.  Should the LSVT not go ahead, the Council faces a £3m shortfall in meeting the Decent 
Homes Standard by the government’s target of 2010. 

BV183b

The length of stay in hostel accommodation is usually considered alongside the length of stay in 
bed and breakfast accommodation.  It is an aim of the government to minimise both.  Chorley has 
been very successful in minimising the use of bed and breakfast accommodation but is aware that 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 142



M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 7 March 06.v1 

there is a need to reduce the reliance on hostel accommodation.  A three year draft action plan has 
been prepared to address homeless issues.  Actions for the first year are included in the latter part 
of this report. 

BV179

This indicator is deleted from the BVPI set for 2006/07 however it is included in the CPA set so it is 
important that the Council continues to focus on improvements in this area. 

Performance suffered in the early part of the year, but early actions were put in place to ensure 
performance improved as the year progressed. 

An area of possible tension regarding this indicator is that part of the work is carried out in the 
development control Section of Development and Regeneration.  This section’s work is also 
measured by four other indicators within the CPA set.  Managers will need to ensure work within 
the section is balanced to give each type of work equal emphasis. 

Performance against Corporate Priorities. 

Within the KPI information, there two areas to be highlighted – removal of racist/offensive graffiti 
and removal of abandoned vehicles.  Both are highly visible parts of streetscene and should 
problems in these areas increase there may be an adverse effect on public satisfaction. 

The main focus of corrective action is to tighten arrangements with the contractor carrying out the 
work to ensure timescales are met.  Progress is monitored monthly allowing timely intervention 
should the planned actions prove insufficient. 

Details of all BVPI and Corporate KPI’s are on the tables that follow. 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 143



M
:\
C

P
S

M
A

S
\P

I 
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 M

A
R

 0
5

 O
&

S
  

8
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

.v
1

 

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 D

A
T

A
 T

A
B

L
E

S
 

C
u

s
to

m
e

r
–

 S
e

e
 p

a
g

e
 9

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 H
e

a
lt

h
 B

V
P

Is
–

 S
e

e
 p

a
g

e
 1

6

C
a

p
a

c
it

y
–

 S
e

e
 p

a
g

e
 1

0
 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

B
V

P
Is

–
 S

e
e

 p
a

g
e

 1
7

G
re

e
n

e
r

–
 S

e
e

 p
a

g
e

 1
1

H
o

u
s

in
g

 B
V

P
Is

–
 S

e
e

 p
a

g
e

 1
8

C
le

a
n

e
r

–
 S

e
e

 p
a

g
e

 1
2

H
o

u
s

in
g

 a
n

d
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 T

a
x

 B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 B
V

P
Is

–
 S

e
e

 p
a

g
e

 1
9

S
a

fe
r

–
 S

e
e

 p
a

g
e

 1
3

L
e

is
u

re
 a

n
d

 C
u

lt
u

re
 B

V
P

Is
–

 S
e

e
 p

a
g

e
 2

0

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 B

V
P

Is
–

 S
e

e
 p

a
g

e
 1

4
P

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 L
a

n
d

 C
h

a
rg

e
s

 B
V

P
Is

–
 S

e
e

 p
a

g
e

 2
1

C
o

n
s

e
rv

a
ti

o
n

 B
V

P
Is

–
 S

e
e

 p
a

g
e

 1
5

T
h

e
 K

P
I’
s
 w

h
ic

h
 f

o
llo

w
 w

e
re

 a
g

re
e

d
 a

t 
S

M
G

 f
o

r 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
A

p
ri

l 
0

5
 –

 M
a

rc
h

 0
6

.

S
o

m
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

re
 n

e
w

 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r,
 s

o
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

 t
a

rg
e

ts
. 

 T
o

 a
v
o

id
 t

h
e

 
th

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

a
c
tu

a
l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

. 
 T

h
is

 p
o

s
it
io

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 b

e
tt

e
r 

ta
rg

e
ts

 f
o

r 
2

0
0

6
/0

7
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g

, 
a

s
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

.

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 144



M
:\
C

P
S

M
A

S
\P

I 
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 M

A
R

 0
5

 O
&

S
  

9
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

.v
1

 

C
B

C
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
M

o
n

th
ly

 

P
e
rf

 0
5
/0

6
 

P
e
rf

 v
s
 T

a
rg

e
t

P
e
rf

 0
5
 v

s
 0

6
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
Y

e
a
r 

T
a

rg
e

t
A

ll 
E

n
g
 B

e
s
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5
A

ll 
E

n
g

 W
o

rs
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5

 C
D

0
0

1
 S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 -

 C
o

n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n

tr
e

 
 9

9
.5

0
 

N
e

w
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 9

0
.0

0
 

N
/A

N
/A

 B
V

0
0
8
 %

 I
n
v
o
ic

e
s
 p

a
id

 w
it
h
in

 3
0
 d

a
y
s
 

 8
4
.4

2
 

 9
6
.0

0
 

 9
5
.9

7
 

 8
8
.6

5
 

 B
V

1
5

6
 %

 L
A

 p
u

b
lic

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
 –

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 

 8
3
.0

0
 

 8
8
.0

0
 

 6
4
.8

3
 

 2
1
.0

1
 

 C
D

0
0

8
 %

 C
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 d

e
a

lt
 w

it
h

 a
t 
fi
rs

t 
p

o
in

t 
o

f 
c
o

n
ta

c
t

 9
7
.6

9
 

N
e

w
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 8

0
.0

0
 

N
/A

N
/A

C
B

C
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
- 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

P
e
rf

 0
5
/0

6
P

e
rf

 v
s
 T

a
rg

e
t

P
e
rf

 0
5
 v

s
 0

6
 

T
a

rg
e

t 
0

5
/0

6
A

ll 
E

n
g
 B

e
s
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5
A

ll 
E

n
g

 W
o

rs
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5

 B
V

0
0

3
 %

 S
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 -

 c
o

u
n

c
il 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

 5
3
.0

0
 

 7
2
.0

0
 

 6
0
.0

0
 

 4
9
.0

0
 

 B
V

0
0
4
 %

 S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 -

c
o
m

p
la

in
t 
h
a
n
d
lin

g
 

 3
5
.0

0
 

 3
6
.0

0
 

 3
6
.0

0
 

 2
9
.0

0
 

 B
V

0
8

9
 %

 S
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 -

 L
it
te

r 
a

n
d

 R
e

fu
s
e

 
 5

5
.6

0
 

 7
2
.0

0
 

 6
6
.0

0
 

 5
4
.0

0
 

 B
V

0
9

0
a

 S
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 -

 R
e

fu
s
e

 
 9

2
.0

0
 

 9
2
.0

0
 

 8
9
.0

0
 

 8
1
.0

0
 

 B
V

0
9

0
b

 S
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 -

 R
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 

 7
9
.2

0
 

 8
0
.0

0
 

 7
5
.0

0
 

 6
3
.0

0
 

 B
V

1
1

9
e

.0
2

 S
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 P

a
rk

/O
p

e
n

 S
p

c
 

 8
1
.7

0
 

 7
7
.0

0
 

 7
7
.0

0
 

 6
6
.0

0
 

 C
B

C
0

1
4

 %
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 

 8
4
.0

0
 

N
e

w
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 8

4
.0

0
 

N
/A

N
/A

 C
B

C
0

1
6

 %
 s

a
ti
s
fc

n
 b

o
ro

 a
s
 p

la
c
e

 t
o

 l
iv

e
 

 8
4
.0

0
 

N
e

w
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 8

4
.0

0
 

N
/A

N
/A

N
o
te

: 
B

V
8
 a

n
d
 B

V
1
5
6
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 H

e
a
lt
h
 

 
B

V
8
9
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

C
B

C
 C

le
a
n
e
r 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 145



M
:\
C

P
S

M
A

S
\P

I 
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 M

A
R

 0
5

 O
&

S
  

1
0
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

.v
1

 

C
B

C
 C

a
p

a
c
it
y
 -

 M
o

n
th

ly
 

P
e
rf

 0
5
/0

6
 

P
e
rf

 v
s
 T

a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rf

 0
5
 v

s
 0

6
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
Y

e
a
r 

T
a

rg
e

t
A

ll 
E

n
g
 B

e
s
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5
A

ll 
E

n
g

 W
o

rs
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5

 B
V

0
0
9
 %

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 

 9
8
.5

1
 

 9
8
.6

0
 

 9
8
.3

0
 

 9
6
.3

6
 

 B
V

0
1

2
 D

a
y
s
 /
 s

h
if
ts

 l
o

s
t 
to

 s
ic

k
n

e
s
s
 

 1
0
.1

0
 

 8
.9

0
 

 8
.4

0
 

 1
1
.1

0
 

 H
R

0
0

1
 %

 S
ta

ff
 w

it
h

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
s

 9
2
.0

0
 

 8
0
.0

0
 

N
/A

N
/A

 I
T

0
1

7
 %

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
p

ro
g

 p
ro

js
 u

s
in

g
 m

e
th

 
 3

2
.3

5
 

N
e

w
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 5

0
.0

0
 

N
/A

N
/A

P
o
s
t 
0
5
/0

6
 

P
e
rf

 v
s
 T

a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rf

 0
5
 v

s
 0

6
 

(F
e

b
)

E
n
d
 o

f 
Y

e
a
r 

T
a

rg
e

t

 C
B

C
0
0
5
 %

 B
u
d
g
e
t 
S

p
e
n
t 
-y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

 ?
 

 1
0
0
.0

0
 

C
B

C
 C

a
p

a
c
it
y
 -

A
n

n
u

a
l 

P
e
rf

 0
5
/0

6
P

e
rf

 v
s
 

T
a

rg
e

t
P

e
rf

 0
5
 v

s
 

0
6

Y
e
a
r 

E
n
d
 

T
a

rg
e

t

 C
B

C
0
0
4
 %

 o
f 
S

ta
ff
 w

h
o
 e

n
jo

y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 f
o

r 
C

h
o

rl
e

y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

 7
5
.7

0
 

 7
0
.0

0
 

 C
B

C
0
1
7
 %

 a
n
n
u
a
l 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 

 ?
 

 1
0
0
.0

0
 

 C
B

C
0

1
8

 %
 m

o
n

e
ta

ry
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 G

e
rs

h
o

n
 

 ?
 

 1
0
0
.0

0
 

N
o
te

: 
B

V
9
 a

n
d
 B

V
1
2
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 H

e
a
lt
h
 

 
C

B
C

0
0
5
, 

C
B

C
0
1
7
, 

C
B

C
0
1
8
 F

ig
u
re

s
 u

n
a
v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 

ti
m

e
 o

f 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 b

u
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 a
t 

th
e
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
. 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 146



M
:\
C

P
S

M
A

S
\P

I 
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 M

A
R

 0
5

 O
&

S
  

1
1
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

.v
1

 

C
B

C
 G

re
e

n
e

r

P
e
rf

 0
5
/0

6
 

P
e
rf

 v
s
 T

a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rf

 0
5
 v

s
 0

6
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
Y

e
a
r 

T
a
rg

e
t 

 C
B

C
0

0
8

.0
5

 %
 w

a
s
te

 r
e

c
y
c
le

d
/c

o
m

p
o

s
te

d
 

 3
9
.4

1
 

N
e

w
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 3

5
.0

0
 

C
B

C
 G

re
e

n
e

r 
- 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

P
e
rf

 0
5
/0

6
 

P
e
rf

 v
s
 T

a
rg

e
t

P
e
rf

 0
5
 v

s
 0

6
 

Y
e
a
r 

E
n
d
 

T
a

rg
e

t
A

ll 
E

n
g
 B

e
s
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5
A

ll 
E

n
g

 W
o

rs
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5

 P
L

0
0

5
 A

v
 d

e
n

s
it
y
 n

e
w

 h
s
g

 o
n

 d
e

v
p

ts
 

3
4

.7
0

N
e

w
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 3

0
.0

0
 

 N
/A

 
N

/A

 B
V

1
8

0
a

(i
) 

E
n

e
rg

y
 c

o
n

s
u

m
p

n
 (

e
le

c
tr

ic
)/

m
2

 
 9

7
.3

0
 

 7
5
.0

0
 

 8
3
.0

0
 

N
/A

 B
V

1
8

0
a

(i
i)
 E

n
e

rg
y
 c

o
n

s
u

m
p

n
 (

fo
s
s
il)

/m
2

 
 3

1
.6

0
 

 5
0
.0

0
 

 6
8
.0

0
 

N
/A

 B
V

0
6
3
 A

v
e
ra

g
e
 S

A
P

 r
a
ti
n
g
 o

f 
L
A

 d
w

e
lli

n
g
s
 

 7
1
.0

0
 

 7
0
.0

0
 

 6
8
.0

0
 

 6
0
.0

0
 

N
o
te

: 
B

V
6
3
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 147



M
:\
C

P
S

M
A

S
\P

I 
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 M

A
R

 0
5

 O
&

S
  

1
2
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

.v
1

 

C
B

C
 C

le
a

n
e

r 
- 

M
o

n
th

ly
 

P
e
rf

 0
5
/0

6
 

P
e
rf

 v
s
 

T
a

rg
e

t
P

e
rf

 0
5
 v

s
 0

6
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
Y

e
a
r 

T
a

rg
e

t

 C
B

C
0

1
1

 C
A

L
C

 %
 g

ra
ff

it
i 
re

m
o

v
e

d
 2

8
W

D
 

 9
8
.4

8
 

 9
0
.0

0
 

 C
B

C
0

1
2

.0
5

 R
a

c
is

t/
o

ff
e

n
s
iv

e
 g

ra
ff

it
i 
2

W
D

 
 8

1
.8

8
 

 1
0
0
.0

0
 

 E
N

0
0
1
.0

5
 %

 F
ly

 t
ip

p
in

g
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 2

 W
D

 
 8

9
.0

0
 

N
e

w
 D

e
fi
n

it
io

n
 

 7
5
.0

0
 

C
B

C
 C

le
a

n
e

r 
- 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

P
e
rf

 0
5
/0

6
 

P
e
rf

 v
s
 

T
a

rg
e

t
P

e
rf

 0
5
 v

s
 0

6
 

Y
e

a
r 

E
n

d
 T

a
rg

e
t 

A
ll 

E
n
g
 B

e
s
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5
A

ll 
E

n
g

 W
o

rs
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5

 B
V

0
8

9
 %

 S
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 -

 L
it
te

r 
a

n
d

 R
e

fu
s
e

 
 5

5
.6

0
 

 7
2
.0

0
 

 6
6
.0

0
 

 5
4
.0

0
 

 B
V

1
9

9
a

.0
5

 S
tr

e
e

t 
D

ir
ti
n

e
s
s
 

 5
.0

0
 

 1
2
.0

0
 

 1
1
.0

0
 

 2
4
.0

0
 

N
o
te

: 
B

V
8
9
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

C
B

C
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

 
B

V
1
9
9
a
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 148



M
:\
C

P
S

M
A

S
\P

I 
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 M

A
R

 0
5

 O
&

S
  

1
3
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

.v
1

 

C
B

C
 S

a
fe

r 
- 

M
o

n
th

ly
 

P
e
rf

  
0
5
/0

6
 

P
e
rf

 v
s
 T

a
rg

e
t

P
e
rf

 0
5
 v

s
 0

6
 

E
n

d
 o

f 
Y

e
a

r 
T

a
rg

e
t

A
ll 

E
n
g
 B

e
s
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5
A

ll 
E

n
g

 W
o

rs
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5

 B
V

1
2

6
a

 D
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 B

u
rg

la
ri
e

s
/1

0
0

0
 h

'h
o

ld
s
 

 7
.2

5
 

 8
.4

5
 

 2
7
.6

0
 

 5
6
.9

3
 

 B
V

1
2
7
a
.0

5
 V

io
le

n
t 
C

ri
m

e
 /
 1

,0
0
0
 p

o
p
. 

 1
6
.2

4
 

 1
6
.2

5
 

N
/A

N
/A

 B
V

1
2

8
a

 V
e

h
ic

le
 C

ri
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
0

 p
o

p
 

 7
.9

9
 

 9
.4

5
 

 9
3
.2

4
 

 6
0
.1

4
 

 L
C

0
1
0
: 
%

 P
a
rt

ic
'n

 T
a
rg

e
t 
Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 
 5

4
.0

0
 

 
N

e
w

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 3

0
.0

0
 

N
/A

N
/A

C
B

C
 S

a
fe

r 
- 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

P
e
rf

 0
5
/0

6
 

P
e
rf

 v
s
 T

a
rg

e
t

P
e
rf

 0
5
 v

s
 0

6
 

Y
e

a
r 

E
n

d
 T

a
rg

e
t 

 C
P

0
0

8
a

 %
 F

e
e

lin
g

 s
a

fe
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 d

a
y
 

 7
5
.4

0
 

 7
5
.4

0
 

 C
P

0
0

8
b

 %
 F

e
e

lin
g

 s
a

fe
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 e

v
e

n
in

g
 

 3
1
.0

0
 

 3
1
.0

0
 

 C
B

C
0
1
5
 %

 'f
a
ir
ly

 s
a
fe

' o
r 

'v
e
ry

 s
a
fe

' 
 8

2
.0

0
 

 
N

e
w

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 8

2
.0

0
 

N
o
te

: 
B

V
1
2
6
A

, 
B

V
 1

2
7
a
 a

n
d
 B

V
1
2
8
a
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 149



M
:\
C

P
S

M
A

S
\P

I 
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 M

A
R

 0
5

 O
&

S
  

1
4
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

.v
1

 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 -

 M
o
n
th

ly
 

P
e
rf

  
0
5
/0

6
 

P
e
rf

 v
s
 T

a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rf

 0
4
/0

5
 v

s
 

0
5

/0
6

E
n
d
 o

f 
Y

e
a
r 

T
a

rg
e

t
A

ll 
E

n
g
 B

e
s
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5
A

ll 
E

n
g

 W
o

rs
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5

 B
V

1
2

6
a

 D
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 B

u
rg

la
ri
e

s
/1

0
0

0
 h

'h
o

ld
s
 

 7
.2

5
 

 8
.4

5
 

 2
7
.6

0
 

 5
6
.9

3
 

 B
V

1
2

8
a

 V
e

h
ic

le
 C

ri
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
0

 p
o

p
 

 7
.9

9
 

 9
.4

5
 

 9
3
.2

4
 

 6
0
.1

4
 

 B
V

1
7

4
 R

a
c
ia

l 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
0

 p
o

p
 

 6
.7

9
 

 4
5
.0

0
 

N
/A

N
/A

 B
V

1
7

5
 R

a
c
ia

l 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 -

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
c
ti
o

n
 

 1
0
0
.0

0
 

 1
0
0
.0

0
 

 1
0
0
.0

0
 

 5
7
.1

4
 

N
e
w

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 I
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 0

5
/0

6
 

 
 

 

P
e
rf

  
0
5
/0

6
 

P
e
rf

 v
s
 T

a
rg

e
t 

E
n
d
 o

f 
Y

e
a
r 

T
a

rg
e

t
 

 
 

 B
V

1
2
7
a
.0

5
 V

io
le

n
t 
C

ri
m

e
 /
 1

,0
0
0
 p

o
p
. 

 1
6
.2

4
 

 1
6
.2

5
 

 
 

 

 B
V

1
2

7
b

.0
5

 R
o

b
b

e
ri
e

s
 /
 1

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

. 
 0

.2
3
 

 0
.2

3
 

 
 

 

 B
V

2
2

5
.0

5
 A

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 V

io
le

n
c
e

 
4

5
.0

0
4

5
.0

0
 

 
 

 B
V

2
2
6
a
.0

5
 A

d
v
. 
&

 G
u
id

.:
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 
 1

3
8

2
7

8
.0

0
 

 1
3

8
2

7
8

.0
0

 
 

 
 

 B
V

2
2
6
b
.0

5
 A

d
v
. 
&

 G
u
id

.:
 C

L
S

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 M

a
rk

 
 1

0
0
.0

0
 

 1
0
0
.0

0
 

 
 

 

 B
V

2
2
6
c
.0

5
 A

d
v
. 
&

 G
u
id

.:
 D

ir
e
c
t 
P

ro
v
is

io
n
 

 7
2

4
5

.5
4

 
7

2
4

5
.5

4
 

 
 

N
o
te

: 
B

V
1
2
6
a
, 

B
V

1
2
7
a
 a

n
d
 B

V
1
2
8
a
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

C
B

C
 S

a
fe

r 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 150



M
:\
C

P
S

M
A

S
\P

I 
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 M

A
R

 0
5

 O
&

S
  

1
5
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

.v
1

 

B
V

P
I's

 -
 C

o
n

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
. 
N

e
w

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
  

P
e
rf

 0
5
/0

6
 

P
e
rf

 v
s
 T

a
rg

e
t 

E
n
d
 o

f 
Y

e
a
r 

T
a

rg
e

t

 B
V

2
1

9
a

.0
5

 C
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
 a

re
a

s
 -

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

 9
.0

0
 

 9
.0

0
 

 B
V

2
1

9
b

.0
5

 C
o

n
s
. 
A

re
a

s
 -

 C
h

a
r.

 A
p

p
r.

 
 0

.0
0
 

 0
.0

0
 

 B
V

2
1

9
c
.0

5
 C

o
n

s
. 
A

re
a

s
 -

 M
n

g
m

t 
P

la
n

s
 

 0
.0

0
 

 0
.0

0
 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 151



M
:\
C

P
S

M
A

S
\P

I 
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 M

A
R

 0
5

 O
&

S
  

1
6
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

.v
1

 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 H
e

a
lt
h

P
e
rf

  
0
5
/0

6
P

e
rf

 v
s
 T

a
rg

e
t

P
e
rf

 0
4
/0

5
 v

s
 0

5
/0

6
 
Y

e
a

r 
E

n
d

 T
a

rg
e

t
A

ll 
E

n
g
 B

e
s
t 
Q

 0
4
/0

5
A

ll 
E

n
g

 W
o

rs
t 
Q

 0
4

/0
5

 

 B
V

0
0
2
a
.0

2
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 L
e
v
e
l 

 1
.0

0
 

 1
.0

0
 

N
/A

N
/A

 B
V

0
0
2
b
 T

h
e
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 r
a
c
e
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 

 8
9
.0

0
 

 1
0
0
.0

0
 

 7
2
.0

0
 

 4
2
.0

0
 

 B
V

0
0
8
 %

 I
n
v
o
ic

e
s
 p

a
id

 w
it
h
in

 3
0
 d

a
y
s
 

 8
4
.4

2
 

 9
6
.0

0
 

 9
5
.9

7
 

 8
8
.6

5
 

 B
V

0
0
9
 %

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

T
a
x
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 

 9
8
.5

1
 

 9
8
.6

0
 

 9
8
.3

0
 

 9
6
.3

6
 

 B
V

0
1

0
 %

 N
N

D
R

 c
o

lle
c
te

d
 

 9
8
.8

8
 

 9
8
.6

0
 

 9
9
.1

4
 

 9
8
.0

0
 

 B
V

0
1

1
a

.0
2

 W
o

m
e

n
 i
n

 t
o

p
 5

%
 e

a
rn

e
rs

 
 3

2
.0

0
 

 2
3
.0

0
 

 4
0
.2

3
 

 1
9
.6

3
 

 B
V

0
1
1
b
.0

2
 B

la
c
k
/e

th
n
ic

 i
n
 t
o
p
 5

%
 

 0
.0

0
 

 0
.5

0
 

 3
.4

8
 

 0
.0

0
 

 B
V

0
1
1
c
.0

5
 T

o
p
 5

%
: 
w

it
h
 a

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 

 8
.0

0
 

N
e

w
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 6

.0
0
 

N
/A

N
/A

 B
V

0
1

2
 D

a
y
s
 /
 s

h
if
ts

 l
o

s
t 
to

 s
ic

k
n

e
s
s
 

 1
0
.1

0
 

 8
.9

0
 

 8
.4

0
 

 1
1
.1

0
 

 B
V

0
1
4
 %

 E
a
rl
y
 r

e
ti
re

m
e
n
ts

 
 1

.0
6
 

 0
.1

7
 

 0
.1

6
 

 0
.8

4
 

 B
V

0
1
5
 %

 I
ll 

h
e
a
lt
h
 r

e
ti
re

m
e
n
ts

 
 0

.2
1
 

 0
.1

7
 

 0
.1

2
 

 0
.4

4
 

 B
V

0
1

6
a

 %
 D

is
a

b
le

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 

 3
.1

2
 

 3
.5

5
 

 3
.7

3
 

 1
.4

9
 

 B
V

0
1
6
b
 %

 E
c
o
. 
a
c
ti
v
e
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 i
n
 a

re
a
 

 1
5
.0

9
 

N
/A

 1
5
.0

9
 

N
/A

N
/A

 B
V

0
1

7
a

 %
 E

th
n

ic
 m

in
o

ri
ti
e

s
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 

 1
.5

3
 

 1
.4

5
 

 4
.6

0
 

 0
.9

0
 

 B
V

0
1
7
b
 %

 E
c
o
. 
a
c
ti
v
e
 e

th
n
ic

 i
n
 a

re
a
 

 1
.9

5
 

N
/A

 1
.9

5
 

N
/A

N
/A

 B
V

1
5

6
 %

 L
A

 p
u

b
lic

 b
u

ild
in

g
s
 -

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 
 8

3
.0

0
 

 8
8
.0

0
 

 6
4
.8

3
 

 2
1
.0

1
 

 B
V

1
5
7
 %

 e
-g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

 1
0
0
.0

0
 

 1
0
0
.0

0
 

 8
7
.5

0
 

 6
6
.5

9
 

N
o
te

: 
B

V
8
 a

n
d
 B

V
1
5
6
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

C
B

C
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

 
B

V
9
 a

n
d
 B

V
1
2
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

C
B

C
 C

a
p
a
c
it
y
 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 152



M
:\
C

P
S

M
A

S
\P

I 
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 M

A
R

 0
5

 O
&

S
  

1
7
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

.v
1

 

W
a

s
te

 &
 C

le
a

n
lin

e
s
s
 

P
e
rf

  
0
5
/0

6
 

P
e
rf

 v
s
 T

a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rf

 0
4
/0

5
 v

s
 0

5
/0

6
E

n
d
 o

f 
Y

e
a
r 

T
a

rg
e

t
A

ll 
E

n
g
 B

e
s
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5
A

ll 
E

n
g

 W
o

rs
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5

 B
V

0
8

2
a

i.
0

5
 %

 H
'h

o
ld

 W
a

s
te

 R
e

c
y
c
le

d
 

 1
8
.7

0
N

e
w

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 1

5
.0

0
 N

/A
 N

/A
 

 B
V

0
8

2
a

ii.
0

5
 T

o
n

n
e

s
 H

'h
o

ld
 W

a
s
te

 R
e

c
y
c
le

d
 

 7
2
2
8
.0

0
 

N
e

w
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 7

5
6
0
.0

0
N

/A
N

/A

 B
V

0
8

2
b

i.
0

5
 %

 H
'h

o
ld

 W
a

s
te

 C
o

m
p

o
s
t 

 2
1
.6

2
 

N
e

w
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 2

0
.0

0
 9

.8
0

 1
.5

3
 

 B
V

0
8

2
b

ii.
0

5
 T

o
n

n
e

s
 H

'h
o

ld
 W

a
s
te

 C
o

m
p

o
s
t 

 7
8
8
4
.0

0
 

N
e

w
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 7

8
8
4
.0

0
 N

/A
 N

/A
 

 B
V

0
8

4
a

.0
5

 H
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 W

a
s
te

 C
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 

 3
9
3
.0

0
 4

1
5
.0

0
 N

/A
 N

/A
 

 B
V

0
8

4
b

.0
5

 H
'h

o
ld

 W
a

s
te

 %
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 

 -
1

0
.0

0
 

N
e

w
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 -

1
0

.0
0

 N
/A

 N
/A

 

 B
V

0
8

6
 C

o
s
t 
o

f 
w

a
s
te

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
 /
 h

o
u

s
e

 
 4

5
.1

2
 4

2
.8

5
 3

5
.3

1
 4

8
.1

3
 

 B
V

0
9

1
a

.0
5

 %
 r

e
s
's

 k
e

rb
s
id

e
 r

e
c
y
c
la

b
le

s
 

 9
6
.0

0
 

N
e

w
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 9

5
.0

0
 N

/A
 N

/A
 

 B
V

0
9

1
b

.0
5

 %
 r

e
s
's

 2
+

 k
's

id
e

 r
e

c
y
c
la

b
le

s
 

 9
6
.0

0
 

N
e

w
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 9

5
.0

0
N

/A
N

/A

 B
V

1
9

9
a

.0
5

 S
tr

e
e

t 
D

ir
ti
n

e
s
s
 

 5
.0

0
 1

2
.0

0
 1

1
.0

0
 2

4
.0

0
 

 B
V

1
9

9
b

.0
5

 E
n

v
. 
C

le
a

n
lin

e
s
s
 -

 G
ra

ff
it
i 

 1
.0

0
 

N
e

w
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 1

.0
0

 N
/A

 N
/A

 

 B
V

1
9

9
c
.0

5
 E

n
v
. 
C

le
a

n
lin

e
s
s
 -

 F
ly

-P
o

s
ti
n

g
 

 0
.0

0
 

N
e

w
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 0

.0
0

 N
/A

 N
/A

 

 B
V

1
9

9
d

.0
5

 E
n

v
. 
C

le
a

n
lin

e
s
s
 -

 F
ly

-T
ip

p
in

g
 

 ?
 

N
e

w
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 ?

 N
/A

 N
/A

 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

P
e
rf

  
0
5
/0

6
 

P
e
rf

 v
s
 T

a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rf

 0
4
/0

5
 v

s
 0

5
/0

6
Y

e
a

r 
E

n
d

 T
a

rg
e

t
A

ll 
E

n
g
 B

e
s
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5
A

ll 
E

n
g

 W
o

rs
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5

 B
V

1
6

6
a

 C
h

e
c
k
lis

t 
- 

E
H

 
 1

0
0
.0

0
 1

0
0
.0

0
 9

7
.0

0
 7

9
.1

0
 

 B
V

2
1
6
a
.0

5
 I
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 c

o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 l
a
n
d
 

 6
8
8
.0

0
N

/A
 6

8
8
.0

0
 N

/A
 N

/A
 

 B
V

2
1
6
b
.0

5
 I
n
fo

. 
o
n
 c

o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 l
a
n
d
 

 1
.0

0
N

e
w

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 1

.0
0

 N
/A

 N
/A

 

 B
V

2
1

7
.0

5
 P

o
llu

ti
o

n
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 
 1

0
0
.0

0
N

e
w

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 1

0
0
.0

0
 N

/A
 N

/A
 

 B
V

2
1

8
a

.0
5

 A
b

a
n

d
o

n
e

d
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
-i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
te

 
 1

0
0
.0

0
N

e
w

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 8

5
.0

0
 N

/A
 N

/A
 

 B
V

2
1

8
b

.0
5

 A
b

a
n

d
o

n
e

d
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
-r

e
m

o
v
a

l 
 7

1
.0

0
N

e
w

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 8

5
.0

0
 N

/A
 N

/A
 

N
o
te

: 
B

V
1
9
9
a
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

C
B

C
 C

le
a
n
e
r 

 
B

V
1
9
9
d
.0

5
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
C

le
a
n
lin

e
s
s
 –

 F
ly

ti
p
p
in

g
 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 n
e
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r,
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 f

o
r 

2
0
0
5
/0

6
. 

 T
h
e
 O

D
P

M
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 s

ta
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 o

n
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 d

a
ta

 g
a
th

e
re

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

  
A

s
 t

h
is

 i
s
 a

 n
e
w

 
in

d
ic

a
to

r,
 a

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 g

ra
d
e
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 u
n
ti
l 
a
ft
e
r 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
7
. 

  
 I

n
 t

h
e
 i
n
te

ri
m

, 
a
 s

p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
t 

is
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
ir
 o

w
n
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 D

E
F

R
A

 a
n
d
 F

ly
c
a
p
tu

re
 w

e
b
s
it
e
s
, 

b
u
t 

is
 a

s
 y

e
t 

u
n
a
v
a
ila

b
le

. 
 T

h
e
 r

e
tu

rn
 f

o
r 

th
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 f

o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

ill
 

b
e
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
 a

n
d
 s

e
n
t 

to
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 b

y
 D

E
F

R
A

. 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 153



M
:\
C

P
S

M
A

S
\P

I 
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 M

A
R

 0
5

 O
&

S
  

1
8
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

.v
1

 

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 

P
e
rf

  
0
5
/0

6
 

P
e
rf

 v
s
 T

a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rf

 0
4
/0

5
 v

s
 

0
5

/0
6

E
n
d
 o

f 
Y

e
a
r 

T
a

rg
e

t
A

ll 
E

n
g
 B

e
s
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5
A

ll 
E

n
g

 W
o

rs
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5

 B
V

0
6
3
 A

v
e
ra

g
e
 S

A
P

 r
a
ti
n
g
 o

f 
L
A

 d
w

e
lli

n
g
s
 

 7
1
.0

0
 7

0
.0

0
 6

8
.0

0
 6

0
.0

0
 

 B
V

0
6

4
.0

2
 P

ri
v
 s

e
c
 d

w
e

lli
n

g
s
 r

e
tu

rn
e

d
 t
o

 o
c
c
u

p
a

ti
o

n
 

 1
3
.0

0
 1

7
.0

0
 5

6
.2

5
 4

.0
0
 

 B
V

0
6
6
a
.0

5
 %

 R
e
n
t 
C

o
lle

c
te

d
 /
 R

e
n
t 
O

w
e
d
 

 9
8
.5

9
N

e
w

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 9

8
.9

0
 N

/A
 N

/A
 

 B
V

0
6

6
b

.0
5

 %
 T

e
n

a
n

ts
 >

 7
w

k
s
 G

ro
s
s
 A

rr
e

a
rs

 
 1

.9
9

N
e

w
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 1

.9
9

 N
/A

 N
/A

 

 B
V

0
6

6
c
.0

5
 %

 P
o

s
s
e

s
s
io

n
 N

o
ti
c
e

s
 S

e
rv

e
d

 
 5

7
.3

4
N

e
w

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 5

7
.3

4
 N

/A
 N

/A
 

 B
V

0
6

6
d

.0
5

 %
 T

e
n

a
n

ts
 E

v
ic

te
d

 f
o

r 
A

rr
e

a
rs

 
 0

.4
5

N
e

w
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 0

.4
5

 N
/A

 N
/A

 

 B
V

1
6
4
.0

2
 C

R
E

 C
o
P

 /
 G

P
S

 
 1

0
0
.0

0
 1

0
0
.0

0
 N

/A
 N

/A
 

 B
V

1
8

4
a

 P
'p

n
 L

A
 h

o
m

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 n
o

n
-d

e
c
e

 
 5

.6
9

 6
.0

0
 2

0
.7

5
 4

8
.0

0
 

 B
V

1
8

4
b

 %
 C

h
a

n
g

e
 n

o
n

-d
e

c
e

n
t 
L

A
 h

o
m

e
s
 

 -
1

9
4

.7
0

 5
0
.0

0
 2

3
.8

0
 3

.5
0
 

 B
V

2
1
2
.0

5
 A

v
e
ra

g
e
 T

im
e
 t
o
 R

e
-l
e
t 

 5
0
.2

8
N

e
w

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 5

0
.2

8
 N

/A
 N

/A
 

H
o

m
e

le
s
s
n

e
s
s

P
e
rf

  
0
5
/0

6
 

P
e
rf

 v
s
 T

a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rf

 0
4
/0

5
 v

s
 

0
5

/0
6

E
n
d
 o

f 
Y

e
a
r 

T
a

rg
e

t
A

ll 
E

n
g
 B

e
s
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5
A

ll 
E

n
g

 W
o

rs
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5

 B
V

1
8
3
a
 L

e
n
g
th

 o
f 
s
ta

y
 i
n
 B

&
B

 a
c
c
o
m

'n
 

 0
.0

0
 0

.0
0

 1
.0

0
 5

.0
0
 

 B
V

1
8

3
b

 L
e

n
g

th
 o

f 
s
ta

y
 i
n

 h
o

s
te

l 
a

c
c
o

m
'n

 
 1

3
.5

1
 5

.0
0

 0
.0

0
 1

8
.0

0
 

 B
V

2
0

2
 P

e
o

p
le

 s
le

e
p

in
g

 r
o

u
g

h
 

 4
.0

0
 6

.0
0

 N
/A

 N
/A

 

 B
V

2
1

3
.0

5
 H

A
S

: 
P

re
v
e

n
ti
n

g
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 

 4
.0

0
N

e
w

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 4

.0
0

 N
/A

 N
/A

 

 B
V

2
1

4
.0

5
 R

e
p

e
a

t 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 

 1
.0

5
N

e
w

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 1

.0
5

 N
/A

 N
/A

 

N
o
te

: 
  

B
V

6
3
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

C
B

C
 G

re
e
n
e
r 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 154



M
:\
C

P
S

M
A

S
\P

I 
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 M

A
R

 0
5

 O
&

S
  

1
9
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

.v
1

 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 &

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 

P
e
rf

  
0
5
/0

6
 

P
e
rf

 v
s
 

T
a

rg
e

t
P

e
rf

 0
4
/0

5
 v

s
 

0
5

/0
6

E
n
d
 o

f 
Y

e
a
r 

T
a

rg
e

t
A

ll 
E

n
g
 B

e
s
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5
A

ll 
E

n
g

 W
o

rs
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5

 B
V

0
7

6
a

 N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
c
la

im
a

n
ts

 v
is

it
e

d
 

 1
9
8
.2

0
 

 2
0
0
.0

0
 

 2
8
2
.1

6
 

 6
7
.5

3
 

 B
V

0
7

6
b

 N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
fr

a
u

d
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
to

rs
 

 0
.3

0
 

 0
.3

0
 

 0
.4

4
 

 0
.2

3
 

 B
V

0
7

6
c
 N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
fr

a
u

d
 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
o

n
s
 

 6
3
.9

4
 

 4
0
.0

0
 

 5
3
.4

0
 

 2
5
.1

4
 

 B
V

0
7

6
d

 N
u

m
b

e
r 

p
ro

s
e

c
u

ti
o

n
s
 &

 s
a

n
c
ti
o

n
s
 

 6
5
.7

4
 

 3
6
.0

0
 

 2
1
.2

5
 

 6
.0

0
 

 B
V

0
7
8
a
 A

v
e
 t
im

e
 n

e
w

 c
la

im
s
 (

C
a
l 
d
a
y
s
) 

 2
7
.0

0
 

 2
8
.5

0
 

 2
9
.3

8
 

 5
0
.0

0
 

 B
V

0
7

8
b

 A
v
e

 t
im

e
 f
o

r 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 (

C
a

l 
d

a
y
s
) 

 9
.0

0
 

 1
4
.0

0
 

 7
.4

0
 

 1
5
.3

3
 

 B
V

0
7

9
a

 %
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 
c
a

lc
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

 9
8
.5

0
 

 9
8
.0

0
 

 9
9
.0

0
 

 9
6
.4

0
 

 B
V

0
7
9
b
i.
0
5
 %

 H
B

 R
e
c
o
v
e
re

d
: 
O

v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
t 

 6
2
.0

0
 

N
e

w
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 6

2
.0

0
 

N
/A

N
/A

 B
V

0
7
9
b
ii.

0
5
 %

 H
B

 R
e
c
o
v
e
re

d
: 
O

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 

 2
2
.6

0
 

N
e

w
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 2

2
.6

0
 

N
/A

N
/A

 B
V

0
7
9
b
iii

.0
5
 %

 H
B

 O
'P

a
y
: 
W

ri
tt
e
n
 O

ff
 

 1
.5

7
 

N
e

w
 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 1

.5
7
 

N
/A

N
/A

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 155



M
:\
C

P
S

M
A

S
\P

I 
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 M

A
R

 0
5

 O
&

S
  

2
0
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

.v
1

 

C
u
lt
u
re

 -
 V

is
it
s
 t
o
 A

s
tl
e
y
 H

a
ll 

P
e
rf

  
0
5
/0

6
 

P
e
rf

 v
s
 T

a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rf

 0
4
/0

5
 v

s
 

0
5

/0
6

E
n
d
 o

f 
Y

e
a
r 

T
a

rg
e

t
A

ll 
E

n
g
 B

e
s
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5
A

ll 
E

n
g

 W
o

rs
t 
Q

 
0

3
/0

4

 B
V

1
7
0
a
 V

is
it
s
 t
o
 /
 u

s
a
g
e
 o

f 
m

u
s
e
u
m

s
 

 2
4
7
.1

0
 1

6
9
.1

0
 8

7
6
.7

5
 1

1
6
.0

0
 

 B
V

1
7

0
b

 V
is

it
s
 t
o

 m
u

s
e

u
m

s
 i
n

 p
e

rs
o

n
 

 1
5
9
.3

0
 1

4
9
.0

0
 5

1
4
.2

5
 7

7
.5

0
 

 B
V

1
7

0
c
 P

u
p

ils
 v

is
it
in

g
 m

u
s
e

u
m

s
 &

 g
a

lle
ri
e

s
 1

2
7
2
.0

0
 2

1
0
0
.0

0
 7

0
3
1
.0

0
 5

3
9
.0

0
 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 156



M
:\
C

P
S

M
A

S
\P

I 
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 M

A
R

 0
5

 O
&

S
  

2
1
 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

0
6

.v
1

 

P
la

n
n

in
g

P
e
rf

  
0
5
/0

6
 

P
e
rf

 v
s
 T

a
rg

e
t

P
e
rf

 0
4
/0

5
 v

s
 0

5
/0

6
 

E
n

d
 o

f 
Y

e
a

r 
T

a
rg

e
t

A
ll 

E
n
g
 B

e
s
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5
A

ll 
E

n
g

 W
o

rs
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5

 B
V

1
0

6
 %

 N
e

w
 h

o
m

e
s
 b

u
ilt

 o
n

 'b
ro

w
n

fi
e

ld
' 

 4
6
.0

7
 5

0
.0

0
 9

4
.0

0
 5

7
.1

4
 

 B
V

1
0

9
a

.0
2

 %
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

s
 -

 m
a

jo
r 

 7
3
.0

0
 6

0
.0

0
 6

8
.9

0
 4

6
.8

8
 

 B
V

1
0

9
b

.0
2

 %
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

s
 -

 m
in

o
r 

 6
6
.0

0
 6

5
.0

0
 7

5
.4

0
 6

1
.1

2
 

 B
V

1
0

9
c
.0

2
 %

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
s
 -

 o
th

e
r 

 8
5
.0

0
 8

0
.0

0
 8

8
.0

0
 8

0
.0

0
 

 B
V

2
0

0
a

.0
5

 P
la

n
 m

a
k
in

g
 -

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
p

la
n

 1
0
0
.0

0
N

e
w

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 1

0
0
.0

0
N

/A
N

/A

 B
V

2
0

0
b

.0
5

 P
la

n
 m

a
k
in

g
 -

 m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
 

 1
0
0
.0

0
N

e
w

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 1

0
0
.0

0
N

/A
N

/A

 B
V

2
0

0
c
.0

5
 P

la
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 -

 m
o

n
it
o

r 
re

p
o

rt
 

 1
0
0
.0

0
N

e
w

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
 1

0
0
.0

0
N

/A
N

/A

 B
V

2
0

4
 %

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
e

a
ls

 a
llo

w
e

d
 

 4
0
.7

0
 4

0
.0

0
N

/A
N

/A

 B
V

2
0
5
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
e
c
k
lis

t 
 7

2
.0

0
 6

6
.0

0
 8

8
.9

0
 7

2
.2

0
 

L
a

n
d

 C
h

a
rg

e
s
 

P
e
rf

  
0
5
/0

6
 

P
e
rf

 v
s
 T

a
rg

e
t 

P
e
rf

 0
4
/0

5
 v

s
 0

5
/0

6
 

E
n
d
 o

f 
Y

e
a
r 

T
a
rg

e
t 

A
ll 

E
n
g
 B

e
s
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5
A

ll 
E

n
g

 W
o

rs
t 
Q

 
0

4
/0

5

 B
V

1
7

9
 %

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 s
e

a
rc

h
e

s
 i
n

 1
0

 d
a

y
s
 

 9
7
.9

3
 1

0
0
.0

0
 1

0
0
.0

0
 9

6
.9

6
 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 157



M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 22 March 06.v1 

ACTION PLANS FOR PERFORMANCE THAT IS NOT ON TRACK 

Page

CBC Customer 23
BV003 % satisfaction – Council overall. 

CBC Customer/CBC Cleaner 25
BV089a % satisfaction – litter and refuse 

CBC Capacity/Corporate Health 26
BV012 days/shifts lost to sickness 

CBC Capacity 
IT017 % capital programme projects using the methodology 27 

CBC Greener 
BV180a(i) Energy consumption (electric)/m2 28

CBC Cleaner 
CBC012.05 racist/offensive graffiti removed within 2 working days of report. 29 

Corporate Health 
BV016a % disabled employees 30 

Environment BVPIs 
BV086 cost of waste collection/household 31 
BV218b.05 abandoned vehicles – removal 32 

Housing BVPIs 
Bv064.02 private sector dwellings returned to occupation or demolished 33 
BV184b % non-decent LA dwellings 34 
BV183b length of stay in hostel accommodation 35 

Housing & Council Tax Benefits BVPIs
BV076a number of claimants visited 36 

Leisure & Culture BVPIs
BV170c pupils visiting museums and galleries 38 

Planning BVPIs
BV179 % standard searches in 10 days 39 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 158



CHORLEY B.C. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
ACTION PLAN

M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 23 March 06.v1 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2005 / 2006 

Indicator Number: BV 3 

Indicator Short Name: Satisfaction with the Council overall 

2004/05 2005/06 

Performance Target Performance Target

End of Year 
Target

58 72 53 72 72 

Please explain the reasons why progress has not reached expectations:

It is never easy to predict the outcome of surveys and consequently it is difficult to set targets. The survey in 
2005/06 was our own annual satisfaction survey rather than the BVPI survey which we conduct every three years. 
Consequently there is no national data against which to compare and put our results in context. There are a number 
of possible reasons for the lower than expected results. Locally the new refuse/recyclate collection arrangements (a 
service which everyone uses) had some teething problems and nationally there was an extensive campaign against 
‘high’ council tax.  Individual service results were more pleasing. 

Action planned in next financial year:

A more realistic target has been set within the Corporate Strategy – a 2% increase by 2009.

Plans are well underway to kick off a communications offensive in July with the sole aim of changing residents 
perceptions about the Council, raising awareness about what we actually provide and making sure everyone knows 
what great value for money that represents by breaking down the Council Tax and tying the small Chorley element 
to the most important community success stories that matter most.  

The plans include: 
Installing banners on the lampposts the length of Market Street from the Town Hall to QS Fashions. These 
will create interest and vibrancy in the Town Centre while advertising the Council as a whole – through 
highlighting the services most important to our residents. Where possible they will include a ‘call to action’ – 
for example ‘In 2005 more than 400,000 young people were involved in our leisure activities and juvenile 
crime reduced by 12%. Why don’t you Get Up and Go’ 
Kicking off a mass marketing campaign again focusing on the services we provide and specifically those 
most important to residents and most likely to help change their perceptions of what we do for their money. 
The campaign will look at billboard and bus advertising, direct marketing, PR and other external 
communications channels. 
Branding will come to the fore for the Council in the next few months as we hone our image and make sure 
every thing we do in the community is instantly recognisable. Residents will be forced to link services back 
to the authority and in turn their Council Tax (which they’ll be aware is a small percentage of the total 
amount!) This will include vehicles, signage and uniforms. 

Increasing the number of civic newspapers – to six a year. A key issue will be distributed in 
August just prior to the BVPI survey and focus on re-iterating how we’re improving and focusing 
on the things that matter most. 
Introducing neighbourhood newsletters in the area forum pilot areas, focusing on the issues raised 
at inaugural area forum meetings and what we have done to tackle the issues in the community. 

Please detail corrective action to be undertaken:

No corrective action in year as the survey is an annual exercise. 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 159



CHORLEY B.C. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
ACTION PLAN

M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 24 March 06.v1 

Recreating the perfect website – this will be done in FULL consultation with groups across the 
borough in July and August when we will be asking residents what they want from the Council 
online and ensuring it is reflecting in the final design/creation. Although the end result will not be 
until the end of the year – the consultation enables us an opportunity to raise our profile and 
establish the council as an organisation that listens and cares about what residents think – then 
acts. We’ll be feeding back how their views have been taken into account as soon as possible. 
Increasing media relations – including flooding local media with good news stories in the run up to 
the BVPI survey about the services they are dissatisfied with and what we’re doing to put issues 
right.
Working smarter – making sure the good work being carried out doesn’t go unrecognised by 
residents. This will include developing ‘calling cards’ for work in the community, ensuring staff are 
instantly recognisable and producing A boards for installation at worksites.

Please give an objective assessment as to whether the end target will be met:

The more realistic target should be achieved. 

Action Plan Owner:  Tim Rignall/Shelley Wright 
Unit: Policy and Performance 
Contact Number:  01257 515140 

Date: 30/5/06

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 160



CHORLEY B.C. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
ACTION PLAN

M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 25 March 06.v1 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2005 / 2006 

Indicator Number: BV 89 

Indicator Short Name: Satisfaction with litter and refuse 

2004/05 2005/06 

Performance Target Performance Target

End of Year 
Target

62 72 55.6 72 72 

Please explain the reasons why progress has not reached expectations: 

Survey undertaken in June 05 during implementation of alternate week collections and period of service 
change

Action planned in next financial year:

Closer monitoring of the contract to ensure any areas of non-compliance are dealt with 

Roll out of new improved waste collection containers 

Please give an objective assessment as to whether the end target will be met:

Not applicable 

Action Plan Owner:   John Lechmere 
Unit: Streetscene, Neighbourhoods and Environment 
Contact Number: 01257 515720 

Date: 19 May 06

Please detail corrective action to be undertaken:

Extensive and continued service improvements since implementation of new collection service e.g. 

Operational changes to waste collection procedures 

Improved crew supervision on collection rounds 

NB latest doorstep survey in March 06 indicates 90% satisfaction rate

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 161



CHORLEY B.C. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
ACTION PLAN

M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 26 March 06.v1 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2005 / 2006 

Indicator Number:  BV012 

Indicator Short Name: Sickness Absence – whole organisation 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target 

End of Year 
Target

2.40 2.22 5.06 4.45 7.60 6.67 10.10 8.90 8.90 

Please explain the reasons why progress has not reached expectations: 

There have been a significant number of long term sickness cases the majority being cancer or mental health 
issues.  The target set for 2005/6 was challenging and changes in the organisation with regard to restructuring and 
job insecurity has led to an increase in stress related absence. 
The overall target has not been achieved although the majority of units performed well.  Although the blue collar 
areas continue to be the areas with the highest absence there has been a YOY improvement in these areas. 

Action planned in next financial year:
Training for managers in the new Absence Policy will commence from August 2006. 
A more pro-active approach will be taken to health and the management of health through health promotion 
actions throughout the year. 
A 100% attendance event will be held to recognise those employees who have maintained this level of 
attendance throughout the year.
A new team incentive challenge will take place to recognise teams who raise and maintain their attendance 
levels.
It is envisaged that the introduction of the new flexi system will enable the authority to reduce its current levels 
of absence through the removal of core time.  This will be piloted and monitored for 6 months from June 2006. 

Please give an objective assessment as to whether the end target will be met:

N/A as reporting year end. 

Action Plan Owner:    Senior HR Advisor (Relations) 
Unit:     HR 
Contact Number:   01257 515175 

Date:     19/05/06 

Please detail corrective action to be undertaken:

A new policy has been developed which has more challenging targets for both long and short-term absence.  In 
2005/06, 61% of days lost related to short-term absence and 39% to long-term absence. 
Monthly meetings have been held with Directors whose areas are not achieving the required target.  Action 
plans for those units have been agreed and the appropriate action has been taken.  These meetings ceased 
during the recent re-structuring and will resume from July 2006. 
The implementation of the new Absence Policy has resulted in a significant increase in the number of warnings 
issued to staff members with absenteeism problems.  Members of staff continue to receive support and care 
through Welfare Meetings 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 162



CHORLEY B.C. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
ACTION PLAN 

M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 27 March 06.v1 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2005 / 2006 

Indicator Number:  IT017 

Indicator Short Name: % capital projects using the project management methodology 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target 

End of Year 
Target

7 50 13.04 50 23.53 50 32.35 50 50 

Please explain the reasons why progress has not reached expectations: 

The target was defined without the benefit of any baseline information 

Required appreciable preparatory work both in terms of documentation and providing staff with the support 
required to use it. A good deal of work was also done on governance and the effective monitoring of the project 
portfolio.

The Council undertakes a significant number of projects and therefore the work required to improve in 
percentage terms was substantial from a low starting point. 

Action planned in next financial year:

It is important that the work begun this year continues and establishes the methodology. Importantly, it is no longer 
possible for a new project to gain approval or funding without the necessary project documentation in place. This 
fact, coupled with the drive to bring older projects on board, means we expect to sustain progress towards the 
target.

Please give an objective assessment as to whether the end target will be met:

The year end target will not be met for the reasons given above. 

Action Plan Owner:   Tim Murphy 
Unit:  IT Services 
Contact Number: 5455 

Date: 16 May 2006

Please detail corrective action to be undertaken:

The Project Management Methodology has been, and will continue to be, reviewed to improve clarity and 
usability. Version 5.3 of the toolkit was released in March 2006. 

Monthly drop-in sessions have been arranged to support staff in the use of the methodology and discuss issues. 
Dates can be found on theloop, http://theloop/section.asp?catid=12177&docid=14949.

The Capital Programme board has been established and is scheduled to meet 7 times during the financial year 
with a view to monitoring progress in this area. Meeting dates can be found on theloop, 
http://theloop/section.asp?catid=12334&docid=12690.

In 2005/06 the Project Support Officer (PSO) met with all project managers to promote the use of the tool and 
raise awareness of the targets. This work is ongoing. The PSO will arrange to see project managers as and 
when they are identified. 

A popular and effective training programme is underway with an expectation that over 50 officers will have 
undertaken training by July. The next course is on the 21

st
 June. Courses were held once a month but due to 

demand, two courses a month have now had to be arranged. The courses are arranged a couple of months in 
advance, and will continue for as long as there is demand. The most recent dates are updated on the loop, 
http://theloop/section.asp?catid=12177&docid=14949.

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 163



CHORLEY B.C. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
ACTION PLAN 

M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 28 March 06.v1 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2005 / 2006 

Indicator Number:            180a

Indicator Short Name:   Energy Consumption - electricity 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target 

End of Year 
Target

N/A  N/A  N/A  97.3 75 75 

Please explain the reasons why progress has not reached expectations:

Although our figures remain below the national average for energy consumption our combined electric 
and gas figures rose by 7.9% last year with a proportionately larger rise in electric from 91% of the 
national benchmark to 97%.  The biggest user by far is the All Seasons leisure centre which tends to 
skew our figures & further information is being obtained from CLS to establish trends.

Of the remaining Council buildings the community centres’ consumption has increased significantly.  I am 
investigating the underlying reasons in conjunction with the Director of leisure & Cultural Services. 

Action planned in next financial year: 

The specification for the property services outsourcing requires the partner service provider to draft, 
agree and implement an energy management plan for the Council’s operational buildings with a more 
sophisticated analysis of data and corrective measures. 

Please give an objective assessment as to whether the end target will be met: 

The energy management plan will be in place by mid 2007 with the aim of meeting or re-setting targets 
for energy consumption by March 31 2008.

Action Plan Owner:   Roger Handscombe 
Directorate: Property Services 
Contact Number: 5311 

Date:   22 May 2006

Please detail corrective action to be undertaken: 

Investigation of underlying reasons for the data collected to inform the development of an energy 
management plan for the Council’s buildings. 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 164



CHORLEY B.C. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
ACTION PLAN 

M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 29 March 06.v1 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2005 / 2006 

Indicator Number:  CBC12 

Indicator Short Name: Racist graffiti removed within 2 working days 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 End of Year  

Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target Target

95.33
(1 job from 
11 outside 

target)

100 97.14 
(all 11 jobs 

inside target) 

100 78.21 
(4 jobs from 7 

outside
target)

100 81.88 
(2 jobs from 
11 outside 

target)

100 100 

Please explain the reasons why progress has not reached expectations: 

The performance figure is cumulative, year to date figure.  One missed target is reflected for all subsequent months. 

There were 40 jobs throughout the year and performance in Q3 particularly, dipped due to lapse in contractor 
response.

Action planned in next financial year:

Currently there is no formal contract.  A formal contract will be developed that will require the removal of racist or 
offensive graffiti within 24 hours of report. 

Please give an objective assessment as to whether the end target will be met:

Not applicable 

Action Plan Owner: John Lechmere          
Unit: SNED 
Contact Number: x5720 

Date: 19/5/06

Please detail corrective action to be undertaken:

Improve contractor response through contract negotiation.
If removal within two days continues to be a problem, as an interim measure, the graffiti  could be sprayed out. 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 165



CHORLEY B.C. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
ACTION PLAN 

M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 30 March 06.v1 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2005 / 2006 

Indicator Number:  BV016a 

Indicator Short Name: % Disabled Employees 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 End of Year 

Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target Target 

3.44 3.55 3.48 3.55 3.88 3.55 3.12 3.55 3.55 

Please explain the reasons why progress has not reached expectations: 

There is no national BVPI target for the authority to follow and the differences in the definition of BV016a and BV16b 
has still not been resolved nationally.  As the authority has in place all mitigating actions to ensure it attracts 
members of the disabled community it will be impossible to improve on the current performance figure unless the 
authority takes the decision to actively discriminate in favour of disabled candidates. 

Action planned in next financial year:

HR will actively promote working for the council through advertising, publications and attending relevant events. 
The authority will continue to make reasonable adjusts for staff.
HR will continue to monitor the number of disabled employees within the authority and continue to undertake 
the actions as above. 

Please give an objective assessment as to whether the end target will be met:

N/A as reporting year end. 

Action Plan Owner:   Paula Harris  
Unit:    HR 
Contact Number:  01257 515178 

Date:    19/05/06

Please detail corrective action to be undertaken:

The authority’s recruitment and selection processes continue to be fair and consistent.  All applicants have the 
option of having recruitment materials including the application form in large print, etc. 

Advertisements are placed in various media and all display the two-tick symbol. 

All applicants are asked whether they have any requirements to attend interview and all applicants who meet 
the definition of the DDA are guaranteed an interview if they meet the essential criteria for the role. 

In 2005/06, the Authority advertised 74 jobs, there were 40 applicants who indicated that they had a disability, of 
these 9 were shortlisted and 2 were employed. 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 166



CHORLEY B.C. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
ACTION PLAN 

M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 31 March 06.v1 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2005 / 2006 

Indicator Number:  BV86 

Indicator Short Name: Cost of Waste Collection 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 
End of 
Year

Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target Target

£46

(Estimate)

£42.85 £46 

(Estimate)

£42.85 £46 

(Estimate)

£42.85 £45.12 £42.85 £42.85 

Please explain the reasons why progress has not reached expectations: 

The cost reflects the implementation costs of the Enhanced Recycling Service (£120,000) and the revenue costs of 
capital grant funded schemes. 

The costs of introducing the recycling scheme were a one-off and will not be in the costs for future years. 

Action planned in next financial year:

As above 

Please give an objective assessment as to whether the end target will be met:

Not applicable 

Action Plan Owner:   John Lechmere 
Unit: SNED 
Contact Number: x5720 

Date: 19/5/06

Please detail corrective action to be undertaken: 

Calculation of 06/07 target in accordance with Audit Commission guidance. 

Continued implementation of cost controls: 

Monthly budget monitoring meetings with Finance to enable better budget forecasting

More robust implementation of default provisions in the contract 

Reduced reliance on a third party contractor for rectifying missed collections 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 167



CHORLEY B.C. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
ACTION PLAN 

M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 32 March 06.v1 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2005 / 2006 

Indicator Number:  BV218b 

Indicator Short Name: Abandoned vehicles removed within 24 hours 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 End of Year 

Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target Target

80 85 63 85 70 85 71 85 85 

Please explain the reasons why progress has not reached expectations: 

This was a realistic target, but deficiencies in administration of vehicle removals through a third party contractor 
have led to a shortfall in performance 

Action planned in next financial year:

Introduce a new system of data entry using a small number of designated officers.  This will improve the 
consistency of data recording and allow users to becoming more familiar with the systm and procedures. 

Please give an objective assessment as to whether the end target will be met:

Not applicable 

Action Plan Owner:   John Lechmere 
Unit: SNED 
Contact Number: x5720 

Date: 19/5/06

Please detail corrective action to be undertaken:

The following have already been introduced: 

Strengthen administrative procedures to ensure contractors are ordered to remove vehicles within 24 hours of 
notice expiry 

Introduction of quality checks on data entry to ensure removal details are recorded correctly 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 168



CHORLEY B.C. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
ACTION PLAN 

M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 33 March 06.v1 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2005 / 2006 

Indicator Number:  BV064 

Indicator Short Name: Number of private sector dwellings retuned to occupation 

2004/05 2005/06 

Performance Target Performance Target

End of Year 
Target

7 17 13 17 17 

Please explain the reasons why progress has not reached expectations: 

Improved performance (in comparison with 2004/05 actual) due to financial initiative offered to Landlords in 
2005/06.

Action planned in next financial year:

The targets have been revised.  The new targets are believed to be challenging yet achievable given the current 
private sector housing market in Chorley.

Known empty properties will be visited to assess their condition and if still empty the owners will be contacted to 
ascertain their future plans for the property.

Please give an objective assessment as to whether the end target will be met: 

N/A as reporting year end. 

Action Plan Owner: Dave Bradley 
Unit: SNED 
Contact Number: x5728 

Date: 19/05/06

Please detail corrective action to be undertaken:

Targets to be reviewed by new management unit

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 169



CHORLEY B.C. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
ACTION PLAN 

M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 34 March 06.v1 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2005 / 2006 

Indicator Number: BV184a 

Indicator Short Name: Percentage change in Decent Homes Failures

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 
End of 
Year

Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target Target

-194.7% 50% 50%

Please explain the reasons why progress has not reached expectations: 

The target of 50% for year-end 05/06 was based on the information contained in a stock condition survey carried out 
in 02/03 by Michael Dyson Associates. During 2005/6 Savills carried out, a new stock condition survey, and this 
reported 501 properties failing decent homes (17%). The out-turn figure, for BVPI 184a of –194.7% has arisen 
because of the variance in the two surveys. 

Action planned in next financial year:

The Large Scale Voluntary Transfer (LSVT) of the Council’s housing stock will release the necessary funding in 
future years not only to meet Decent Homes but meet the enhanced ‘Chorley Homes Standard’ 

Please give an objective assessment as to whether the end target will be met:

If all work identified and funded in this year’s programme is carried out then the end target will be met. 

Action Plan Owner:  Mike Wingeatt                   
Unit:    Housing Services
Contact Number: 515954

Date:    12 May 2006 

Please detail corrective action to be undertaken:

Based on the new stock condition survey the Council does not have the funding available to meet the cost of 
properties falling non-decent between now and Government’s target for meeting decent homes by 2010. 

The cost of meeting decent homes, based on the new survey, is estimated to be £12m between now and 2010. 
Capital funding through the Major Repairs Allowance is £9m a shortfall of £3m. 
The ability to deliver Decent Homes is entirely reliant on the success of the proposed transfer to Chorley Community 
Housing.

For this financial year funds will target those properties requiring least costly repairs to achieve the target.

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 170



CHORLEY B.C. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
ACTION PLAN 

M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 35 March 06.v1 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2005 / 2006 

Indicator Number:  BVPI 183b

Indicator Short Name: Length of stay in temporary accommodation (hostel) 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 End of Year 

Performance Target Performanc Target Performanc Target Performanc Target Target 

8.51  12.09  13.13  13.51  12 

Please explain the reasons why progress has not reached expectations:

The difficulty in obtaining suitable permanent move on accommodation within the Borough’s rented stock 
has resulted in the length of stay in hostel accommodation’s increase. 

Action planned in next financial year:

Through Cotswold House Keywork Support Service seek to advocate for homeless clients in order to seek 
suitable appropriate permanent accommodation more quickly and prevent occurrences of future homelessness 

Develop Private Landlord accreditation scheme. Increase the numbers of private landlords that house homeless 
applicants through smartmove 

Increase accommodation provision for Women fleeing domestic violence 

Expand Central Lancashire floating Support Scheme in Chorley 

Please see attached Draft Prevention of Homelessness action Plan (year 1) 

Please give an objective assessment as to whether the end target will be met:

The increase of additional non hostel provision, permanent move on accommodation and the prevention 
of homelessness and Keywork Support services should see a reduction in the length of stay in hostel 
accommodation and continuing good performance in the reduction of numbers of homeless applications

Action Plan Owner:   Strategic Housing Manager 
Unit: Development and Regeneration Directorate 
Contact Number: 01257 515285 

Date: 28th April 2006

Please detail corrective action to be undertaken:

Review of RSL Nominations Agreement to be undertaken by the Strategic Housing Team 

Implement use of alternative temporary accommodation (non Hostel) provision with partner organisations – 
HALS Scheme 

Seek to work with partners to increase in affordable homes for rent within the Borough 

Further actions to be planned through the Prevention of Homelessness Strategy to be reviewed by the Strategic 
Housing Team 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 171



CHORLEY B.C. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
ACTION PLAN 

M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 36 March 06.v1 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2005 / 2006 

Indicator Number:  BV 76a 

Indicator Short Name: Number of claimants visited 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target 

End of 
Year

Target

205 200 174.4 200 189 200 198.2 200 200 

Please explain the reasons why progress has not reached expectations: 

We selected more than enough visits to satisfy our Verification Framework Target but we fell short of completing 13 
of these visits to make the BVPI target. The VF target required 1340 intervention visits to be commenced whereas 
the BV76a required 1400 and only counts the number of 'effective' visits. That is, visits that have been completed 
which have resulted in benefit entitlement being confirmed/amended or referred to fraud. If claimants do not respond 
to our initial attempts to visit it can take up to 2 months to complete the visit as 'effective'.

Explanatory note 

Verification Framework or ‘VF’ is a Department for Work and Pensions’ initiative that the Council signed up to in 
1999. It consists of 3 components; new claims, visits and reviews. The purpose of VF is to provide a secure 
gateway into the benefit scheme by specifying what proofs are acceptable to support new claims. It also specifies 
the number of claims that should be subject to a review (50% of caseload). 20% of the caseload must be reviewed 
by carrying out a home visit with the remaining 30% being reviewed by another method (review form, fraud 
investigation, office interview)

Action planned in next financial year:

Closer monitoring of the number of visits completed on a monthly basis. This will ensure that visits completed 
are correctly recorded as effective. Visiting targets can also be adjusted to ensure the target is met at the end of 
the year. 

Review the procedure of verification visits to speed up process of recording visits as ‘effective’ (ongoing) 

Where capacity allows, utilise assessment staff who are trained to carry out home visits, as an extra resource to 
call on when needed 

Please detail corrective action to be undertaken:

Closer monitoring to be carried out to ensure that visits are being recorded as effective. This will be carried out 
at monthly intervals.

Colleagues on the Quality Control team will also provide assistance to the visiting officer with the administration 
required to complete the process. That is, deal with the assessment of changes in circumstances brought to 
light by the visit to ensure that visits are ‘completed’ quickly. This in turn will give more time to the visiting 
officers to carry out verification visits.  

Two members of the Quality and Control team have also under gone Health and Safety training in order to carry 
out home visits. This will provide an extra resource to cover for periods when the Verification visiting officers are 
on annual or sick leave.. 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 172



CHORLEY B.C. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
ACTION PLAN 

M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 37 March 06.v1 

Please give an objective assessment as to whether the end target will be met:

As we have only narrowly missed out on the target previously and that fact that BVPI and VF require the 
same information for the coming year, the changes put in place should mean that the target will be met 

Action Plan Owner:    Margaret Stansfeild                
Unit:     Finance 
Contact Number:   01257 515424 

Date:     15th May 2006

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 173



CHORLEY B.C. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
ACTION PLAN 

M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 38 March 06.v1 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2005 / 2006 

Indicator Number:  BV170c 

Indicator Short Name: Number of pupils visiting museums and galleries 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target 

End of 
Year

Target

435 450 582 620 1032 1575 1272 2100 2100

Please explain the reasons why progress has not reached expectations: 

The capital works at the Hall restricted the use of the classroom at the beginning of the year. Rather than reduce the 
target at this point we reprofiled the target performance. One of the two Visitor Services Officers left and the post 
was held vacant to contribute towards the corporate savings target.  The second Visitor Service Officer was on long 
term sick during the last three months of the year; this reduced our capacity to correct the performance. 

Action planned in next financial year: 

An educational resource has been prepared with St Michael’s CE High School to enhance the offer to schools. 
This is going to be launched to all secondary schools in Chorley in October 2006 .

Discussions are ongoing with a number of providers to develop a partnership to deliver a new schools 
programme, given our limited capacity. A plan is currently being devised by the Curator and specific Chorley 
schools are being targeted. A programme of research involving a freelance education consultant visiting schools 
to discover why Chorley Schools do not currently use the Hall is proposed for September/October 2006 for the 
initial questioning. By February 2007 we will have a plan in place to work with Chorley primary schools

 We are also planning to link more activities in the park to the Hall, which will have a positive impact on the 
performance target. This will involve parties using the park visiting the Hall for short sessions and will be 
combined with the development of the park regeneration project. This plan is currently being developed and will 
be actioned from September 2006.

Special Christmas sessions for local primary schools which were very successful in 2005 are being organised 
for Christmas 2006, this will see an increase in school visits during this period.

Please give an objective assessment as to whether the end target will be met: 

N/A – at year end 

Action Plan Owner:   Louise McCall, Curator, Astley Hall     
Unit:    Leisure and Cultural Services
Contact Number: 01257 515929

Date:    19 May 2006 

Please detail corrective action to be undertaken: 

See below 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 174



CHORLEY B.C. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
ACTION PLAN 

M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 39 March 06.v1 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2005 / 2006 

Indicator Number:               BV 179

Indicator Short Name:   % Standard searches completed within 10 days 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target 

End of 
Year

Target

93.09 100 96.65 100 97.62 100 97.93 100 100 

Please explain the reasons why progress has not reached expectations: 

Standard searches involve both Legal Services and Development and Regeneration. 
At the start of the year, there were delays within Development and Regeneration and only 93.09% were completed 
within 10 days.  The issue was addressed and performance has increased in each subsequent quarter. 

Action planned in next financial year:

Whilst this is no longer a BVPI for 06/07, it is one of the indicators within the CPA performance information set for 
use in the analysis of service performance information.  The Land Charges function will still continue and liaison will 
continue with the relevant departments to ensure performance is maintained. 

Potential options to improve access to the software have been identified.  Officers from Development and 
Regeneration and IT are working to identify the best option and how best to implement it.

Please give an objective assessment as to whether the end target will be met:

Performance is cumulative.  Once the target has been missed, the year- end target cannot be achieved. 

Action Plan Owner:    Claire Hallwood 
Unit:  Legal Services 
Contact Number:  

Date:23 May 2006

Please detail corrective action to be undertaken:

The issues arising were addressed through improved communication between the units and improved work 
planning in Development and Regeneration.

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 175



CHORLEY B.C. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
ACTION PLAN 

M:\CPSMAS\PI MONITORING REPORT MAR 05 O&S 40 March 06.v1 

COMMENTS ON SPECIFIC INDICATORS 

Missing Data 

Environment BVPIs 

BV199d.05 Environmental Cleanliness – Flytipping 

This is a new indicator, introduced for 2005/06.  The ODPM definition states that performance is 
measured on baseline data gathered from the previous year.  As this is a new indicator, a performance 
grade will not be available until after April 2007.    In the interim, a spreadsheet is being developed to 
allow Local Authorities to monitor their own performance, which is to be made available through the 
DEFRA and Flycapture websites, but is as yet unavailable.  The return for the Audit Commission for this 
indicator will be calculated and sent to authorities by DEFRA. 

Further Information 

For further information, please contact:
Jenny Rowlands Ext 5248, Lindsay Parr Ext 5341, Sarah Dobson Ext 5325. 

Agenda Item 12Agenda Page 176



 

 

 
 

 
 

ADMINREP/REPORT 
 

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Development and 
Regeneration 

(Introduced by Councillor Peter 
Malpas, Executive Member for 
Economic Development and 

Regeneration) 

Executive Cabinet 29 June 2006 

 

STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT: INSPECTOR’S 

REPORT AND ADOPTION 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1. To advise Members on the Inspector’s Report and to seek endorsement to adopt the 
Statement. 

 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

 
2. To engage with all sections of the community will assist in serving our customers better. 

The new approach to plan making requires greater community involvement 
 
RISK ISSUES 
 
3. The issue raised and recommendations made in this report involve risk considerations in 

the following categories: 
 

Strategy 3 Information 3 
Reputation 3 Regulatory/Legal 3 
Financial 3 Operational  

People  Other  

 
4 The new approach to plan making offers numerous opportunities to improve in the above 

areas. The risks identified relate to the possibility of the preparatory process failing to 
deliver these opportunities in an appropriate manner. 

 

BACKGROUND 
 

5. The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that the local planning authority 
must produce a Statement of Community Involvement, as part of the Local Development 
Framework. The Statement of Community Involvement is a document, which sets out the 
various ways and means of ensuring the engagement and involvement of organisations 
and the local community in the preparation of the Local Development Framework. The 
Statement also provides guidance to members of the public, organisations, agents and 
developers about community involvement in the determination of Planning Applications.  

 

 

Agenda Item 13Agenda Page 177



6. The prime purpose of consultation is to improve the planning of development by involving 
a wide range of interested parties and individuals in decision making through both 
creating a “dialogue” and relevant information sharing. 

7 The Council prepared a draft document in June 2004. Following two different six-week 
statutory consultation periods in June 2004 and March 2005, the Council submitted the 
Statement of Community Involvement to the Secretary of State for independent 
examination along with a Statement of Compliance in September 2005. The Council also 
formally invited further representations on the Submitted Statement for a statutory 6-week 
period between 14 September and 26 October 2005.  

 
THE INSPECTOR’S REPORT 
 

8 The Inspector’s report received in May 2006 is binding on the Council and the Inspector’s 
recommendations will be incorporated into the adopted Statement, which is due for 
publication in July 2006.  The Inspector considered 23 representations and the examination 
was based on the 9 tests of soundness set out in Appendix A (Para 4.5, Page 8).  The 
Inspector requested some additional information from the Council and subject to the 
implementation of the recommendations found the Statement of Community Involvement 
(September 2005) to be sound. 

9 The main changes are shown below.  The whole document is attached at Appendix A with 
additions shown in bold and underlined, and deletions shown as strike throughs. 

 

• Include access to Braille (Inside front cover) and details to access this service at 
paragraph 5.16 (Page 24) 

• Insert after paragraph 4.14 new Diagram 2 showing The Development Plan Document 
Process (Page 10) 

• Insert after paragraph 4.15 new Diagram 3 showing The Supplementary Planning 
Document Process (Page 11) 

• Insert into Table 1 the requirement for an additional stage of consultation on alternate 
sites if the DPD is concerned with site suggestions - allocations of land. (Pages 13-19) 

• Amend paragraph 9.1, Statutory Consultation in respect of a planning applications to 
indicate that statutory consultees can make any written observations within 21 days of 
receiving all the information they need to provide an informed response. Also Insert that 
bodies such as English Nature will be allowed a longer period of time to comment on 
applications where this is prescribed by legislation. (Page 27) 

• Insert at paragraph 9.4, Individual Consultations that the results of any such 
consultation will be reported and taken into account in decisions made by, and on 
behalf of, the Council. (Page 28)  

• Insert at Paragraph 11.3 the venues where feedback reports will be made available 
(Page 30) 

• Insert new paragraph 12.4 to indicate The Annual Monitoring Report will reflect on and 
evaluate the community involvement process. (Page 31) 

• Additional Consultees added to the Consultation Database, and replacement of the 
Strategic Rail Authority for Network Rail, Appendix A (Page 35) and  

• Editorial changes where the text has become redundant. 
 

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 

10 The sum of £40,000 has been allowed in the Council’s 2006/07 Continuation Budget for the 
production of the Local Development Framework. The resource requirements identified in 
the Statement of Community Involvement will need to be met from this sum.  

 

COMMENTS OF THE HEAD OF HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
11 There are no Human Resources implications to this report. 
 

Agenda Item 13Agenda Page 178



RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
12 That Members note the report and adopt the Statement of Community Involvement. 
REASONS FOR DECISION 
 
13 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that the local planning 

authority must produce a Statement of Community Involvement, as part of the Local 
Development Framework. The Inspector’s Report on this Statement is binding upon the 
Council. 

 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
 
14. None as subject to statutory regulations as how prepared. 
 
 
JANE E MEEK 
DIRECTOR OF DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 

Background Papers 

Document Date File Place of Inspection 

Local Development Frameworks 

Planning Policy Statement 12 
and  

Planning Policy Statement 
Companion Guide 

 

Pre-Submission Statement of 
Community Involvement 

 

Statement of Community 
Involvement 

 

18. 02. 04 

 

 

 

11.01.05 

 

 

 

30.06.05 

 

FLP14 

 

 

 

FLP14 

 

 

FLP14 

 

Gillibrand Street 

 

 

 

Gillibrand Street 

 

 

 

Gillibrand Street 

 

 

 

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Alison Marland 5281 30 May 2006 N 

    

 

Agenda Item 13Agenda Page 179



Agenda Page 180

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 
 
The Nine Tests of Soundness 
 

1 The local planning authority has complied with the minimum 
requirements for consultation as set out in the regulations; 

 
2 The local planning authority’s strategy for community 

involvement links with other community involvement 
initiatives e.g. the community strategy; 

 

3 The statement identifies in general terms which local 
community groups and other bodies will be consulted; 

 

4 The statement identifies how the community and other 
bodies can be involved in a timely and accessible manner; 

 

5 The methods of consultation to be employed are suitable 
for the intended audience and for the different stages in the 
preparation of local development documents; 

 

6 The resources are available to manage community 
involvement effectively; 

 

7 The statement shows how the results of community 
involvement will be fed into the preparation of development 
plan documents and supplementary planning documents; 

 

8 The authority has mechanisms for reviewing the Statement 
of Community Involvement; and 

 

9 The statement clearly describes the planning authority’s 
policy for consultation on planning applications. 

 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 181



Agenda Page 182

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

APPENDIX B 
 

STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT  
 

SUBMISSION TO SECRETARY OF STATE  

Adopted July 2006 
 

SEPTEMBER 2005 

  

 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 183



 

 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 184



 

 

 

 
This information can be made available to you in larger print, braille or on audio tape, or 
translated into your own language.  Please telephone 01257 515281 to access this 
service. 
 

01257 515823

 

01257 515823 

01257 515822 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 185



 

 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 186



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement. 
1 

OUR PLEDGE TO INVOLVE 
 
 

The Borough Council is committed to Equality and Diversity. 
We will: 

 
� Give as much prior notice of involvement opportunities and advance 

publication of our proposals as possible. 
� Seek to involve everyone who has a comment to make on the documents we 

produce and those affected by planning applications. 
� Go out to easily accessible popular venues in local communities across the 

Borough to explain our proposals and offer advice. 
� Encourage participation in drafting proposals through the use of forum and 

other meetings, focus groups and workshops. 
� Aim to engage with all relevant agencies and representative groups so they 

can be involved, including those that are hard to reach. 
� Work in partnership with other organisations. 
� Give people equal opportunity to contribute. 
� Widely publicise our intentions by way of letters, emails, posters, leaflets, our 

website, notices in local newspapers and through press and other media 
releases. 

� Produce easy to read and attractive publications and offer these in different 
languages and formats. 

� Make our publications available at libraries and sub-post offices in 
settlements without a library. 

� Carefully listen to and read what is put to us. 
� Accurately record and make publicly available the comments that are made. 
� Faithfully report all comments received to those making decisions within the 

Council. 
� Take account of all comments made and learn from the experience. 
� Publicise what decisions are taken and inform respondents. 

 
 
 
 
Councillor Peter Malpas 
Executive Member for Economic Development and Regeneration 
 
 
This Statement has been subject to a full Equality Impact Assessment.  A separate report 
on this is available. 
 
 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 187



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement. 
2 

CONSULTATION ON THIS STATEMENT 
 
 

This Statement has been submitted to the Secretary of State and is on public deposit from 
Wednesday, 14 September 2005 for a six-week period – a duration which is set by statutory 
legislation.  Any person or organisation that has an interest in matters relating to the development 
of the Borough can make representations on this document.  
 
Comments made at the submission stage will be forwarded to the Secretary of State for 
examination by an independent inspector. As such if you feel comments made at the pre-
submission SCI have not been taken in to account, then you must again comment to this effect 
during consultation on the submitted version. 
 
Please complete the specific representation form and return it to arrive no later than 5pm, 
Wednesday 26 October 2005: 
 
By post Planning Policy Section 
  Chorley Borough Council 
  Council Offices 
  Gillibrand Street 
  Chorley 
  Lancs 
  PR7 2EL 
 
By fax  01257 515211 
 
By On-Line An electronic version of this form can be found on the Council’s web site at 

www.chorley.gov.uk/planning. Please type in your response and follow the 
instructions and your comments will be forwarded to the Planning Policy Section 
Alternatively, the form can be printed off and returned via any of the above means. 

 
. 

 
 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 188



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement. 
3 

 
Statement of Community Involvement – Submission to Secretary of State 
 

CONTENTS 
Page Numbers 

BACKGROUND 
1 Introduction         5 
 
2 Purpose and Benefits of Consultation     5 
 
3 National Policy        5 
 
PREPARING PLANNING DOCUMENTS      
4         Key Elements and Progress of the  

Local Development Framework (LDF)     7 
 

5 The Range of Roles to be Played by Different Groups   11 
 
6 Development Control       25 
 
7  What Are the Best Ways of Informing the Community   26 

About Planning Proposals?       
 

8  Record of Community Involvement     27 
 
9     How Does the Council Involve the Community    27 

When a Planning Application is Received?     
 
ENSURING IMPLEMENTATION 
10 Resources and Management      30 
 
11 Feedback         31 
 
12 Evaluating the Consultation Process     31 

 
Tables 
 
Table 1 - Opportunities for Community Development    13 
in the Different Types and Stages of the Local Development Framework  
 
Diagrams 
    
Diagram 1 - Local Development Framework Structure    6 
Diagram 2 - Statement of Community Involvement Process   7 
Diagram 2  The Development Plan Document Process   10 
Diagram 3  The Supplementary Planning Document Process    11 

 
Appendices 
Appendix 1 Glossary of Planning Terms     32 
Appendix 2  List of Consultees       35 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 189



 

 

 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 190



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
5 

BACKGROUND 
 
1. INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1 This document sets out the Borough Council’s proposals for the involvement of the local 

community in the: 
 

• Preparation of the new Local Development Framework - the new name for a Local 
Plan. This will comprise a series of Local Development Documents, which will set out 
policies and proposals relating to the development and use of land in the Borough 
(these documents will replace the current Local Plan). (See Section 4). 

 
And 

 

• In the determination of Planning Applications. (See Section 6-10). 
 
1.2 The aim of the Statement of Community Involvement is to ensure that all sections of the 

community, from individual members of the public through to representative 
organisations, have the opportunity to participate in the preparation of planning proposals 
for the Borough’s towns, villages and countryside. 

 

2. PURPOSE AND BENEFITS OF CONSULTATION 
 
2.1 The prime purpose of consultation is to improve the planning of development by involving a 

wide range of interested parties and individuals in decision making through both creating a 
“dialogue” and relevant information sharing. 

 
2.2 The benefits of involving a wider range of people and organisations in decision-making can 

result in: 

• A greater public ownership and ability to influence the decision making process 

• An enhanced sense of contributing to the community 

• More attention to public priorities 

• Obtaining value for money 

• A better understanding of the way services and the Borough Council work 

• Broader sharing of responsibilities 

• More contribution to problem solving 

• Greater potential for effective and efficient use of resources 

ANNING AND COMPULSORY PURCHASE ACT IMPLICATIONS 
3. NATIONAL POLICY 
  
3.1 The relevant provisions of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, came into force in 

September 2004,The Act takes forward proposals for reform of the planning system.  The 
Act provides for the preparation of Local Development Documents (LDD’s) that constitute 
part of the Local Development Framework (LDF). The Local Development Framework will 
consist of a ‘portfolio’ of Local Development Documents that will comprise the spatial plan 
for the Borough, replacing the current Local Plan Review.  Local Development Documents 
include Development Plan Documents that are part of the statutory development plan and 
non-statutory Supplementary Planning Documents.  The Development Plan also consists 
of the Joint Lancashire Structure Plan.  Eventually this will be replaced with a Regional 
Spatial Strategy, for which the North West Regional Assembly will be responsible for 
preparing.  Appendix 1 contains a Glossary of Planning Terms.  Diagram 1 shows the 
Local Development Framework Structure. 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 191



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
6 

Diagram 1 – Local Development Framework Structure 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 The Act requires that each Council as a local planning authority must produce a Statement 

of Community Involvement, as part of the Local Development Framework.  All Local 
Development Documents must show conformity with the Statement of Community 
Involvement. 

 
3.3 Planning Policy Statements.  These will replace Planning Policy Guidance Notes and 

they are intended to be a more succinct explanation of national planning policy.  Planning 
Policy Statement (PPS) 12: Local Development Frameworks (October 2004) identifies that 
the Statement of Community Involvement should set out the local planning authority’s 
policy for involving the community in the preparation and revision of Local Development 
Documents and in deciding planning applications. Community involvement throughout the 
process of preparing Local Development Documents is essential to achieve local 
ownership and legitimacy for the policies that will shape the future distribution of land uses 
and development in an area. 

 
3.4 Information should be included on how the principles of community involvement apply to 

different types of Local Development Document e.g. Core Strategy, Area Action Plans or 
Site Allocation Development Plan Documents and to Supplementary Planning Documents. 

 
3.5 The Government’s principles for community involvement are that it should be: 
 

• appropriate to the level of planning; 

• concentrated at the beginning of the process i.e. front loading of involvement; 

• involve methods of involvement relevant to the communities concerned; 

• a continuous process, not a one-off event; 

• transparent and accessible; and 

• planned for involvement. 
 
 

Regional Spatial  
Strategy 

replaces  
Joint Lancashire  
Structure Plan 

Local  
Development  

Scheme &  
Annual 

 Monitoring 
Reports 

Supplementary 
Planning 

Documents 
&  

Statement of 
Community 

Development Plan 
Documents 

including: core strategy & 
key diagram, area action 

plans, topic based 
documents, site specific 

allocations, proposals map  

Development 
Plan

 

Local 
Development 
Documents 

Local Development Framework 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 192



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
7 

3.6 Creating Local Development Frameworks: A Companion Guide to PPS12 (November 
2004) provides advice on managing the community involvement and preparing the 
Statement of Community Involvement. The spatial nature of Local Development 
Frameworks and the focus on implementation means that it will be important to achieve 
widespread ownership and community buy-in. Authorities will need to be proactive when 
involving stakeholders and the community, setting out their approach in the Statement of 
Community Involvement. It indicates the Statement of Community Involvement will be 
subject to independent examination but will not be part of the development plan. (See 
Section 4) 

 
3.7 The Guide also covers community involvement in planning applications. It provides an 

opportunity for an authority to set out minimum standards, the statutory requirements for 
publicising such applications as well as the ground rules for community participation.  All 
documents have to be prepared, and planning applications considered, in accordance with 
the adopted Statement of Community Involvement.  The Council will submit a Statement of 
Compliance with each submitted Development Plan Document. 

 

PREPARING PLANNING DOCUMENTS 
 
4. KEY ELEMENTS AND PROGRESS OF THE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK  
 
4.1 The new planning system for plan preparation requires the involvement of local people 

from the earliest stage onwards which is known as “front loading”.  
 

4.2 The Statement of Community Involvement. This is a Local Development Document but 
it is not subject to sustainability appraisal.  Diagram 2 below shows the Statement of 
Community Involvement Process.  Prior to the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
coming into force Chorley Borough Council published a first draft of this Statement of 
Community Involvement and put it out for a limited period of consultation between 29 June 
2004 and 16 July 2004. Participants were specifically asked how they would like to be 
involved in planning proposals for the Borough.  A broad range of people and organisations 
were consulted and 34 responses were received. 

 
Delete Diagram 2 Statement of Community Involvement Process 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Consultation and 
participation on draft SCI 

Scoping 

Representations on 
proposals 

Preparation and Submission 
of SCI 

Representations on 
submitted SCI 

Pre-Exam meeting (if 
required) 

Independent Examination 

Binding Report 

Adoption 

M
O

N
T

H
S

 

0 

3 

6 

9 

12 

Pre 
Production 

Production 

Examination 

Adoption 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 I
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

(a
s
 o

u
tl
in

e
d
 i
n
 P

a
rt

 2
 

R
e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
) 

Reg 25 and Reg 26 

Reg 27 

Reg 28 

Reg 29 

Key 

 

Process 

 

Statutory 
consultation 
(6 weeks) 

TO BE DELETED 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 193



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
8 

4.3 In February 2005 the Council sent a draft Statement for pre-submission consultation to 
neighbouring authorities, parish councils, Lancashire County Council, the Highways 
Agency, and the North West Regional Assembly. in accordance with Regulation 25 of the 
Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2004.  The draft 
Statement was placed on public deposit for a six-week period from 7 March to 18 April 
2005 in accordance with Regulation 26.  A total of 38 responses were received. 
 

4.4 Further representations were sought when tThe document was submitted to the Secretary 
of State for independent examination in September 2005 and the Council invited further 
representations between 14 September and 26 October 2005. accordance with 
Regulation 28.  The Inspector’s report produced by the Inspector  received in May 2006 
is will be binding upon the Council who will adopt and publish the document.  

 
4.5 The Tests of Soundness – The soundness of the Statement of Community Involvement is 

effectively defined by paragraph 3.10 of the Planning Policy Statement 12 (PPS12): Local 
Development Frameworks (September 2004) which sets out nine tests of soundness.  The 
function of an independent examination is primarily to assess the submitted document 
against these nine tests. The presumption will be that the Statement of Community 
Involvement is sound unless it is shown to be otherwise as a result of evidence considered 
at the examination. A hearing will only be necessary where one or more of those making 
representations want to be heard.  

  
The Inspector assessed the Statement of Community Involvement and found it met 
the 9 tests of soundness:  
In assessing whether the Statement of Community Involvement is sound the Inspector will 
determine whether the: 
 

1 The local planning authority has complied with the minimum requirements for 
consultation as set out in the regulations; 

2 The local planning authority’s strategy for community involvement links with other 
community involvement initiatives e.g. the community strategy; 

3 The statement identifies in general terms which local community groups and other 
bodies will be consulted; 

4 The statement identifies how the community and other bodies can be involved in a 
timely and accessible manner; 

5 The methods of consultation to be employed are suitable for the intended audience 
and for the different stages in the preparation of local development documents; 

6 The resources are available to manage community involvement effectively; 
7 The statement shows how the results of community involvement will be fed into the 

preparation of development plan documents and supplementary planning documents; 

8 The authority has mechanisms for reviewing the Statement of Community 
Involvement; and  

9 The statement clearly describes the planning authority’s policy for consultation on 
planning applications. 

 
4.6 The other key elements of the Local Development Framework (LDF) are identified below 

and the Glossary of Terms in Appendix 1 provides further clarification. The existing 
adopted Chorley Borough Local Plan Review will retain its development plan status (i.e. 
be saved) for at least three years from the date of commencement of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act (September 2004). 

 

4.7 Local Development Documents.  The Chorley Local Development Framework will 
comprise a series of Local Development Documents (LDDs) eventually covering all 
planning topics except minerals and waste matters. For these there will be a separate 
Framework, prepared by Lancashire County Council.  Some Local Development 
Documents (DPDs) will have the status of Development Plan Documents and will be 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 194



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
9 

subject to an independent examination (and subsequent mandatory acceptance of the 
Inspector’s Report), whilst others will have the status of Supplementary Planning 
Documents (SPDs). 

 
4.8 Development Plan Documents.  These will not be restricted to matters that may be 

implemented through the planning system, but will also include the spatial aspects of 
other strategies such as the Community Strategy.  Two examples of Development Plan 
Documents are the Core Strategy and Area Action Plans. 

 

4.9 Core Strategy.  A fundamental aim of the reforms to the planning system is to slim down 
the number and content of policies.  Local planning authorities will therefore be required 
to produce shorter, more focused, core policies under the Local Development Framework 
system which set out the broad spatial strategy for the Borough. 

   

4.10 Area Action Plans.  Local planning authorities may also bring forward Area Action Plans 
for small parts of the Borough where there are proposals for major change or 
conservation. 

 
4.11 Supplementary Planning Documents.  These will contain guidance, which elaborates 

on and helps to implement the policies contained within Development Plan Documents 
 

4.12 Sustainability Appraisal.  Documents produced, as part of the Local Development 
Framework will be subjected to a combined strategic environmental assessment and 
sustainability appraisal.  These will test how the proposals may impact on environmental, 
social and economic considerations. The results will be set out in a report and this will be 
subject to community involvement. 

4.13 Local Development Scheme.  To programme the Local Development Framework 
process local planning authorities are required to produce a Local Development Scheme 
setting out a timetable for producing Local Development Documents.  The Local 
Development Scheme was submitted and approved by the Secretary of State in March 
2005. has been approved and covers the period March 2006-March 2009.  

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 195



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
10 

4.14 All Development Plan Documents need to go through the following stages of preparation 
and consultation: 

• Evidence Gathering  

• Identification of Issues and alternative Options for solving them 

• Pre-submission community involvement and consultation on Issues and Options and 
opportunity to make representations 

• Preparation of Preferred Options and opportunity to make representations 

• Submission to Secretary of State and opportunity to make representations 

• Independent Examination 

• Inspector’s Report 

• Adoption 

 
Diagram 2 The Development Plan Document Process 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 196



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
11 

 

4.15 Consultation on Supplementary Planning Documents is a formal requirement before they 
can be adopted but they do not go through the submission, independent examination and 
inspector‘s report stages. 

Diagram 3 The Supplementary Planning Document Process 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 197



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
12 

5. THE RANGE OF ROLES THAT CAN BE PLAYED BY DIFFERENT GROUPS 
 
5.1 As stated the aim of this Statement of Community Involvement is to ensure that all 

sections of the community have an opportunity to participate in the preparation of 
planning proposals for the Borough’s towns, villages and countryside.  

 
5.2 Table 1 starting on the next page identifies when the community will be consulted and 

how this is intended to be done for the different stages of preparing the Local 
Development Documents.  All documents will be placed on the Council’s website as well 
as being available in paper form.  

 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 198



 

C
h
o
rl
e
y 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 L

o
ca

l D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 –
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 I
n
vo

lv
e
m

e
n
t 
- 
S

u
b
m

is
si

o
n
 t
o
 S

e
cr

e
ta

ry
 o

f 
S

ta
te

 
1

3
 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 I

n
v
o

lv
e
m

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 D

if
fe

re
n

t 
T

y
p

e
s
 a

n
d

 S
ta

g
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 L

o
c
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 T
a
b

le
 1

 
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

In
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

: 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

   

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 /

 K
e

y
 

D
ia

g
ra

m
 

In
c

lu
d

in
g

: 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 

A
p

p
ra

is
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

  

O
th

e
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 (
D

P
D

s
) 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

 

•
 

A
re

a
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
s

: 
 

 
(e

.g
. 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
) 

•
 

T
o

p
ic

 b
a

s
e

d
 d

o
c

u
m

e
n

ts
: 

(e
.g

. 
S

u
s

ta
in

a
b

le
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

).
 

•
 

S
it

e
 S

p
e

c
if

ic
 A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 

•
 

P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 M

a
p

  
T

o
 i

n
c

lu
d

e
: 

 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
s

. 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

 

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 (
S

P
D

) 
In

c
lu

d
in

g
 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 S
P

D
; 

•
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

 S
P

D
; 

 T
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
s

 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

 

G
ro

u
p

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

 
H

o
w

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

?
  

H
o

w
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
?

 
H

o
w

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

?
 

H
o

w
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
?

 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 
C

o
u

n
c
il

lo
rs

 

4
 M

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 &

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
4
 M

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 &

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
 

4
 M

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 &

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 
4
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
p

p
ro

v
a

l 

 C
o

u
n

c
il

 U
n

it
s
 

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
/ 

M
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 

a
n

d
 f

o
rm

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
L

D
D

s
. 

  N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

re
 –

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 
S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
p

re
- 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

ta
g

e
 

a
n

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 s

ta
g

e
. 

 In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

E
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 L

o
c
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t.

  

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
/ 

M
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 f
o

rm
u

la
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
. 

 
 N

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
re

 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

(I
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 O
p

ti
o

n
s
 

R
e

p
o

rt
);

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

p
e

ri
o

d
 f

o
r 

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

 
O

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

to
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
, 

a
n

d
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

e
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 s

ta
g

e
 

a
n

d
 S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 s

ta
g

e
. 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 

D
P

D
s
. 

   

 4 444
E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
/ 

M
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 

a
n

d
 f

o
rm

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
D

P
D

s
 

 A
 s

ix
 w

e
e

k
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

 
o

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 s
it

e
s

 i
f 

th
e

 D
P

D
 

is
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
e

d
 w

it
h

 s
it

e
 

s
u

g
g

e
s

ti
o

n
s

 -
 a

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 o
f 

la
n

d
 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

p
e

ri
o

d
s
 f

o
r 

D
P

D
s
  

(I
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 O
p

ti
o

n
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

);
  

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

 f
o

r 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
, 

a
n

d
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

e
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
. 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 s

ta
g

e
. 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 D

P
D

s
 

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
 M

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 &

 f
o

rm
u

la
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

S
P

D
. 

 
  N

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

 f
o

r 
S

P
D

s
. 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

 F
in

a
lis

e
 S

P
D

 a
n

d
 N

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 199



 

C
h
o
rl
e
y 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 L

o
ca

l D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 –
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 I
n
vo

lv
e
m

e
n
t 
- 
S

u
b
m

is
si

o
n
 t
o
 S

e
cr

e
ta

ry
 o

f 
S

ta
te

 
1

4
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 T
a
b

le
 1

 
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

In
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

: 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

   

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 /

 K
e

y
 

D
ia

g
ra

m
 

In
c

lu
d

in
g

: 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 

A
p

p
ra

is
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

  

O
th

e
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 (
D

P
D

s
) 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

 

•
 

A
re

a
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
s

: 
 

 
(e

.g
. 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
) 

•
 

T
o

p
ic

 b
a

s
e

d
 d

o
c

u
m

e
n

ts
: 

(e
.g

. 
S

u
s

ta
in

a
b

le
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

).
 

•
 

S
it

e
 S

p
e

c
if

ic
 A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 

•
 

P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 M

a
p

  
T

o
 i

n
c

lu
d

e
: 

 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
s

. 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

 

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 (
S

P
D

) 
In

c
lu

d
in

g
 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 S
P

D
; 

•
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

 S
P

D
; 

 T
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
s

 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

 

G
ro

u
p

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

 
H

o
w

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

?
  

H
o

w
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
?

 
H

o
w

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

?
 

H
o

w
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
?

 

  C
h

o
rl

e
y
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
(O

v
e

r 
8

0
 l

o
c

a
l 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s

 
w

h
o

 a
im

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 
d

e
li

v
e

ry
 o

f 
s

e
rv

ic
e

s
) 

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
/ 

M
e

e
ti
n

g
s
. 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

re
 –

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 
S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
p

re
- 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

ta
g

e
 

a
n

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 s

ta
g

e
. 

 In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

E
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 L

o
c
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t.

 

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
/ 

M
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
re

 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

(I
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 O
p

ti
o

n
s
 

R
e

p
o

rt
);

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

p
e

ri
o

d
 f

o
r 

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

 
O

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

to
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
, 

a
n

d
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

e
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 s

ta
g

e
 

a
n

d
 S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 s

ta
g

e
. 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 

D
P

D
s
 

 

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
/M

e
e

ti
n

g
s
. 

 A
 s

ix
 w

e
e

k
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

 
o

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 s
it

e
s

 i
f 

th
e

 D
P

D
 

is
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
e

d
 w

it
h

 s
it

e
 

s
u

g
g

e
s

ti
o

n
s

 -
 a

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 o
f 

la
n

d
 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

p
e

ri
o

d
s
 f

o
r 

D
P

D
s
  

(I
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 O
p

ti
o

n
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

);
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

 f
o

r 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
, 

a
n

d
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

e
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
. 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

to
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 s

ta
g

e
  

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 D

P
D

s
 

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
 

N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

s
 f

o
r 

S
P

D
s
 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

 F
in

a
lis

e
 S

P
D

 a
n

d
 N

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 200



 

C
h
o
rl
e
y 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 L

o
ca

l D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 –
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 I
n
vo

lv
e
m

e
n
t 
- 
S

u
b
m

is
si

o
n
 t
o
 S

e
cr

e
ta

ry
 o

f 
S

ta
te

 
1

5
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 T
a
b

le
 1

 
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

In
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

: 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

   

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 /

 K
e

y
 

D
ia

g
ra

m
 

In
c

lu
d

in
g

: 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 

A
p

p
ra

is
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

  

O
th

e
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 (
D

P
D

s
) 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

 

•
 

A
re

a
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
s

: 
 

 
(e

.g
. 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
) 

•
 

T
o

p
ic

 b
a

s
e

d
 d

o
c

u
m

e
n

ts
: 

(e
.g

. 
S

u
s

ta
in

a
b

le
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

).
 

•
 

S
it

e
 S

p
e

c
if

ic
 A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 

•
 

P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 M

a
p

  
T

o
 i

n
c

lu
d

e
: 

 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
s

. 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

 

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 (
S

P
D

) 
In

c
lu

d
in

g
 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 S
P

D
; 

•
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

 S
P

D
; 

 T
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
s

 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

 

G
ro

u
p

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

 
H

o
w

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

?
  

H
o

w
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
?

 
H

o
w

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

?
 

H
o

w
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
?

 

 G
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

N
o

rt
h

 W
e
s
t,

 
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 
b

o
d

ie
s
 a

n
d

 
g

ro
u

p
s
 

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
/ 

M
e

e
ti
n

g
s
. 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

re
 –

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 
S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
p

re
- 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

ta
g

e
 

a
n

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 s

ta
g

e
. 

 In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

E
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 L

o
c
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t.

 

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
/ 

M
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
re

 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

(I
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 O
p

ti
o

n
s
 

R
e

p
o

rt
);

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

p
e

ri
o

d
 f

o
r 

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

 
O

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

to
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
, 

a
n

d
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

e
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

  
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 s

ta
g

e
 

a
n

d
 S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 s

ta
g

e
. 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 

D
P

D
s
 

 

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
/ 

M
e

e
ti
n

g
s
. 

 A
 s

ix
 w

e
e

k
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

 
o

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 s
it

e
s

 i
f 

th
e

 D
P

D
 

is
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
e

d
 w

it
h

 s
it

e
 

s
u

g
g

e
s

ti
o

n
s

 -
 a

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 o
f 

la
n

d
 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

p
e

ri
o

d
s
 f

o
r 

D
P

D
s
  

(I
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 O
p

ti
o

n
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

);
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

 f
o

r 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
, 

a
n

d
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

e
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
. 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

to
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 s

ta
g

e
  

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 D

P
D

s
 

 4 444
N

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

s
 f

o
r 

S
P

D
s
 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

 F
in

a
lis

e
 S

P
D

 a
n

d
 N

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 201



 

C
h
o
rl
e
y 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 L

o
ca

l D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 –
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 I
n
vo

lv
e
m

e
n
t 
- 
S

u
b
m

is
si

o
n
 t
o
 S

e
cr

e
ta

ry
 o

f 
S

ta
te

 
1

6
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 T
a
b

le
 1

 
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

In
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

: 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

   

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 /

 K
e

y
 

D
ia

g
ra

m
 

In
c

lu
d

in
g

: 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 

A
p

p
ra

is
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

  

O
th

e
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 (
D

P
D

s
) 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

 

•
 

A
re

a
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
s

: 
 

 
(e

.g
. 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
) 

•
 

T
o

p
ic

 b
a

s
e

d
 d

o
c

u
m

e
n

ts
: 

(e
.g

. 
S

u
s

ta
in

a
b

le
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

).
 

•
 

S
it

e
 S

p
e

c
if

ic
 A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 

•
 

P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 M

a
p

  
T

o
 i

n
c

lu
d

e
: 

 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
s

. 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

 

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 (
S

P
D

) 
In

c
lu

d
in

g
 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 S
P

D
; 

•
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

 S
P

D
; 

 T
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
s

 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

 

G
ro

u
p

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

 
H

o
w

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

?
  

H
o

w
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
?

 
H

o
w

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

?
 

H
o

w
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
?

 

 G
e
n

e
ra

l 
P

u
b

li
c
, 

L
o

c
a
l 

O
rg

a
n

is
a
ti

o
n

s
 

a
n

d
 H

a
rd

 t
o

 
R

e
a
c
h

 G
ro

u
p

s
 

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
/ 

F
o

c
u

s
 

G
ro

u
p

s
/ 

W
o

rk
s
h

o
p

s
, 

T
o

u
ri

n
g

 
E

x
h

ib
it
io

n
. 

 
 N

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

re
 –

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 
S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
p

re
- 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

ta
g

e
 

a
n

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 s

ta
g

e
. 

 In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

E
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 L

o
c
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t.

 
 

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
/ 

F
o

c
u

s
 

G
ro

u
p

s
/W

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
, 

T
o

u
ri

n
g

 E
x
h

ib
it
io

n
/.

 
 N

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
re

 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

(I
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 O
p

ti
o

n
s
 

R
e

p
o

rt
);

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

 f
o

r 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 

a
n

d
 S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
, 

a
n

d
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

e
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 s

ta
g

e
 

a
n

d
 S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 s

ta
g

e
. 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 

D
P

D
s
 

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
, 

F
o

c
u

s
 

G
ro

u
p

s
/W

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
, 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
R

e
a

l,
 

T
o

u
ri

n
g

 E
x
h

ib
it
io

n
 

 A
 s

ix
 w

e
e

k
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

 
o

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 s
it

e
s

 i
f 

th
e

 D
P

D
 

is
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
e

d
 w

it
h

 s
it

e
 

s
u

g
g

e
s

ti
o

n
s

 -
 a

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 o
f 

la
n

d
 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

p
e

ri
o

d
s
 f

o
r 

D
P

D
s
  

(I
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 O
p

ti
o

n
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

);
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

 f
o

r 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
, 

a
n

d
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

e
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
. 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

to
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 s

ta
g

e
  

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 

P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 M

a
p

 w
h

ic
h

 a
ls

o
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

s
 a

n
y
 s

a
v
e

d
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 

  

 4 444
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
 N

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

s
 f

o
r 

S
P

D
s
 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

 F
in

a
lis

e
 S

P
D

 a
n

d
 N

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 202



 

C
h
o
rl
e
y 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 L

o
ca

l D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 –
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 I
n
vo

lv
e
m

e
n
t 
- 
S

u
b
m

is
si

o
n
 t
o
 S

e
cr

e
ta

ry
 o

f 
S

ta
te

 
1

7
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 T
a
b

le
 1

 
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

In
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

: 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

   

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 /

 K
e

y
 

D
ia

g
ra

m
 

In
c

lu
d

in
g

: 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 

A
p

p
ra

is
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

  

O
th

e
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 (
D

P
D

s
) 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

 

•
 

A
re

a
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
s

: 
 

 
(e

.g
. 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
) 

•
 

T
o

p
ic

 b
a

s
e

d
 d

o
c

u
m

e
n

ts
: 

(e
.g

. 
S

u
s

ta
in

a
b

le
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

).
 

•
 

S
it

e
 S

p
e

c
if

ic
 A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 

•
 

P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 M

a
p

  
T

o
 i

n
c

lu
d

e
: 

 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
s

. 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

 

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 (
S

P
D

) 
In

c
lu

d
in

g
 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 S
P

D
; 

•
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

 S
P

D
; 

 T
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
s

 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

 

G
ro

u
p

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

 
H

o
w

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

?
  

H
o

w
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
?

 
H

o
w

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

?
 

H
o

w
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
?

 

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
/ 

F
o

c
u

s
 

G
ro

u
p

s
/W

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
, 

T
o

u
ri

n
g

 E
x
h

ib
it
io

n
/.

 I
n

fo
rm

a
l 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 I
n

fo
rm

a
l 

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

re
 –

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

ta
g

e
 

a
n

d
 S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
p

re
- 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

ta
g

e
 

a
n

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 s

ta
g

e
. 

 In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

E
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 

N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 L

o
c
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t.

 

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
/ 

F
o

c
u

s
 

G
ro

u
p

s
/W

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
, 

T
o

u
ri

n
g

 E
x
h

ib
it
io

n
/ 

In
fo

rm
a

l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 
In

fo
rm

a
l 
R

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
. 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
re

 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

(I
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 O
p

ti
o

n
s
 

R
e

p
o

rt
);

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

 f
o

r 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 

a
n

d
 S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
, 

a
n

d
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

e
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 s

ta
g

e
 

a
n

d
 S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 s

ta
g

e
. 

 
 N

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 

D
P

D
s
 

    

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
/ 

F
o

c
u

s
 

G
ro

u
p

s
/W

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
 

T
o

u
ri

n
g

 E
x
h

ib
it
io

n
/ 

In
fo

rm
a

l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 I
n

fo
rm

a
l 

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

 A
 s

ix
 w

e
e

k
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

 
o

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 s
it

e
s

 i
f 

th
e

 D
P

D
 

is
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
e

d
 w

it
h

 s
it

e
 

s
u

g
g

e
s

ti
o

n
s

 -
 a

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 o
f 

la
n

d
 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

p
e

ri
o

d
s
 f

o
r 

D
P

D
s
  

(I
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 O
p

ti
o

n
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

);
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

 f
o

r 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
, 

a
n

d
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

e
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
. 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

to
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 s

ta
g

e
  

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 D

P
D

s
 

   

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
 /

 I
n

fo
rm

a
l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 
In

fo
rm

a
l 
R

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

s
 f

o
r 

S
P

D
s
 

   O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

 F
in

a
lis

e
 S

P
D

 a
n

d
 N

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 203



 

C
h
o
rl
e
y 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 L

o
ca

l D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 –
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 I
n
vo

lv
e
m

e
n
t 
- 
S

u
b
m

is
si

o
n
 t
o
 S

e
cr

e
ta

ry
 o

f 
S

ta
te

 
1

8
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 T
a
b

le
 1

 
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

In
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

: 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

   

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 /

 K
e

y
 

D
ia

g
ra

m
 

In
c

lu
d

in
g

: 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 

A
p

p
ra

is
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

  

O
th

e
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 (
D

P
D

s
) 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

 

•
 

A
re

a
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
s

: 
 

 
(e

.g
. 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
) 

•
 

T
o

p
ic

 b
a

s
e

d
 d

o
c

u
m

e
n

ts
: 

(e
.g

. 
S

u
s

ta
in

a
b

le
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

).
 

•
 

S
it

e
 S

p
e

c
if

ic
 A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 

•
 

P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 M

a
p

  
T

o
 i

n
c

lu
d

e
: 

 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
s

. 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

 

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 (
S

P
D

) 
In

c
lu

d
in

g
 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 S
P

D
; 

•
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

 S
P

D
; 

 T
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
s

 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

 

G
ro

u
p

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

 
H

o
w

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

?
  

H
o

w
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
?

 
H

o
w

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

?
 

H
o

w
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
?

 

  

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

/ 
A

g
e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 
L

a
n

d
o

w
n

e
rs

 

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
/ 

F
o

c
u

s
 

G
ro

u
p

s
/W

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
, 

T
o

u
ri

n
g

 
E

x
h

ib
it
io

n
/ 

In
fo

rm
a

l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 

a
n

d
 I

n
fo

rm
a

l 
R

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
. 

 
 N

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

re
 –

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
p

re
- 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

ta
g

e
  

a
n

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 s

ta
g

e
. 

 In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

E
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 L

o
c
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t.

 

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
/ 

F
o

c
u

s
 

G
ro

u
p

s
/W

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
, 

T
o

u
ri

n
g

 E
x
h

ib
it
io

n
/ 

In
fo

rm
a

l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 
In

fo
rm

a
l 
R

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
. 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
re

 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

(I
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 O
p

ti
o

n
s
 

R
e

p
o

rt
);

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

 f
o

r 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 

a
n

d
 S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
, 

a
n

d
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

e
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 s

ta
g

e
 

a
n

d
 S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 s

ta
g

e
. 

 
N

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 

D
P

D
s
 

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
/ 

F
o

c
u

s
 

G
ro

u
p

s
/W

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
, 

T
o

u
ri

n
g

 E
x
h

ib
it
io

n
/ 

In
fo

rm
a

l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 I
n

fo
rm

a
l 

R
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 

to
 

fo
rm

u
la

te
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 
p

o
lic

y
 

in
 

re
la

ti
o

n
 

to
 

A
c
ti
o

n
 A

re
a

 P
la

n
s
  

 A
 s

ix
 w

e
e

k
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

 
o

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 s
it

e
s

 i
f 

th
e

 D
P

D
 

is
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
e

d
 w

it
h

 s
it

e
 

s
u

g
g

e
s

ti
o

n
s

 -
 a

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 o
f 

la
n

d
 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

p
e

ri
o

d
s
 f

o
r 

D
P

D
s
  

(I
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 O
p

ti
o

n
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

);
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

 f
o

r 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
, 

a
n

d
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

e
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
. 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
/ 

In
fo

rm
a

l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 
In

fo
rm

a
l 
R

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
  

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

s
 f

o
r 

S
P

D
s
 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

 F
in

a
lis

e
 S

P
D

 a
n

d
 N

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 204



 

C
h
o
rl
e
y 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 L

o
ca

l D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 –
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 I
n
vo

lv
e
m

e
n
t 
- 
S

u
b
m

is
si

o
n
 t
o
 S

e
cr

e
ta

ry
 o

f 
S

ta
te

 
1

9
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 T
a
b

le
 1

 
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

In
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

: 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

   

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 /

 K
e

y
 

D
ia

g
ra

m
 

In
c

lu
d

in
g

: 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 

A
p

p
ra

is
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

  

O
th

e
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 (
D

P
D

s
) 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

 

•
 

A
re

a
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
s

: 
 

 
(e

.g
. 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
) 

•
 

T
o

p
ic

 b
a

s
e

d
 d

o
c

u
m

e
n

ts
: 

(e
.g

. 
S

u
s

ta
in

a
b

le
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

).
 

•
 

S
it

e
 S

p
e

c
if

ic
 A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 

•
 

P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 M

a
p

  
T

o
 i

n
c

lu
d

e
: 

 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
s

. 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

 

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 (
S

P
D

) 
In

c
lu

d
in

g
 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 S
P

D
; 

•
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

 S
P

D
; 

 T
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
s

 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

 

G
ro

u
p

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

 
H

o
w

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

?
  

H
o

w
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
?

 
H

o
w

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

?
 

H
o

w
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
?

 

to
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 s

ta
g

e
  

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 D

P
D

s
 

 

 O
th

e
r 

In
te

re
s
te

d
 

P
a
rt

ie
s

 

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
/ 

F
o

c
u

s
 

G
ro

u
p

s
/W

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
, 

T
o

u
ri

n
g

 
E

x
h

ib
it
io

n
/ 

In
fo

rm
a

l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 

a
n

d
 I

n
fo

rm
a

l 
R

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
. 

 
 N

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

re
 –

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 
S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
p

re
- 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

ta
g

e
 

a
n

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 s

ta
g

e
. 

 In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

E
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
. 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 L

o
c
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t.

 

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
/ 

F
o

c
u

s
 

G
ro

u
p

s
/W

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
, 

T
o

u
ri

n
g

 E
x
h

ib
it
io

n
/ 

In
fo

rm
a

l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 
In

fo
rm

a
l 
R

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
. 

  N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
re

 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

(I
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 O
p

ti
o

n
s
 

R
e

p
o

rt
);

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

 f
o

r 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 

a
n

d
 S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
, 

a
n

d
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

e
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
. 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

  
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 s

ta
g

e
 

a
n

d
 S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 s

ta
g

e
. 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 

D
P

D
s
 

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
/ 

F
o

c
u

s
 

G
ro

u
p

s
/W

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
, 

T
o

u
ri

n
g

 
E

x
h

ib
it
io

n
/ 

In
fo

rm
a

l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 

a
n

d
 I

n
fo

rm
a

l 
R

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
. 

 
 A

 s
ix

 w
e

e
k

 c
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 p
e

ri
o

d
 

o
n

 a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

 s
it

e
s

 i
f 

th
e

 D
P

D
 

is
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
e

d
 w

it
h

 s
it

e
 

s
u

g
g

e
s

ti
o

n
s

 -
 a

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 o
f 

la
n

d
 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

p
e

ri
o

d
s
 f

o
r 

D
P

D
s
  

(I
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 O
p

ti
o

n
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

);
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

 f
o

r 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
, 

a
n

d
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

e
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
. 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

  
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 s

ta
g

e
 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 D

P
D

s
 

 4
 E

v
id

e
n

c
e

 G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
/ 

In
fo

rm
a

l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 
In

fo
rm

a
l 
R

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

s
 f

o
r 

S
P

D
s
 

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 

 F
in

a
lis

e
 S

P
D

 a
n

d
 N

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 205



 

C
h
o
rl
e
y 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 L

o
ca

l D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 –
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 I
n
vo

lv
e
m

e
n
t 
- 
S

u
b
m

is
si

o
n
 t
o
 S

e
cr

e
ta

ry
 o

f 
S

ta
te

 
2

0
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 T
a
b

le
 1

 
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

In
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

: 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

   

C
o

re
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 /

 K
e

y
 

D
ia

g
ra

m
 

In
c

lu
d

in
g

: 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 

A
p

p
ra

is
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

  

O
th

e
r 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 (
D

P
D

s
) 

in
c

lu
d

in
g

 

•
 

A
re

a
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
s

: 
 

 
(e

.g
. 

T
o

w
n

 C
e

n
tr

e
) 

•
 

T
o

p
ic

 b
a

s
e

d
 d

o
c

u
m

e
n

ts
: 

(e
.g

. 
S

u
s

ta
in

a
b

le
 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

).
 

•
 

S
it

e
 S

p
e

c
if

ic
 A

ll
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s

 

•
 

P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 M

a
p

  
T

o
 i

n
c

lu
d

e
: 

 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
s

. 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

 

S
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ry

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ts

 (
S

P
D

) 
In

c
lu

d
in

g
 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 S
P

D
; 

•
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

 S
P

D
; 

 T
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

•
 

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
il

it
y
 A

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
s

 

•
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

o
n

fo
rm

it
y
 

 

G
ro

u
p

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

 
H

o
w

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

?
  

H
o

w
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
?

 
H

o
w

 C
o

n
s

u
lt

e
d

?
 

H
o

w
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
?

 

   
 T

h
e
 M

e
d

ia
 

 4
P

re
s
s
 R

e
le

a
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 P
u

b
lic

it
y
 

In
v
it
a

ti
o

n
s
. 

  
 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

re
 –

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 
S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 a

n
d

 I
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
E

x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
. 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 L

o
c
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t.

 

 4
N

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

o
re

 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

(I
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 O
p

ti
o

n
s
 

R
e

p
o

rt
);

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

 f
o

r 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 O

p
ti
o

n
s
 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

 
fo

r 
S

u
b

m
is

s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
, 

a
n

d
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

e
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 

D
P

D
s
 

 

 4 444
 N

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

p
e

ri
o

d
s
 f

o
r 

D
P

D
s
  

(I
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 O
p

ti
o

n
s
 R

e
p

o
rt

);
 

c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

 f
o

r 
P

re
fe

rr
e

d
 

O
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 S
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 

S
e

c
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
, 

a
n

d
 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

e
x
a

m
in

a
ti
o

n
. 

 N
o

ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 D

P
D

s
 

 4
N

o
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

e
ri

o
d

s
 f

o
r 

S
P

D
s
 

         

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 206



 

C
h
o
rl
e
y 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 L

o
ca

l D
e
ve

lo
p
m

e
n
t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 –
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
C

o
m

m
u
n
ity

 I
n
vo

lv
e
m

e
n
t 
- 
S

u
b
m

is
si

o
n
 t
o
 S

e
cr

e
ta

ry
 o

f 
S

ta
te

 
2

1
 

 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 207



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
22 

5.4 The text below explains the different types of involvement and how each 
consultation/consultee group will be consulted as referred to in Table 1. Appendix 2 
identifies a broad list of Consultees who will be consulted during the different stages of the 
Local Development Framework. 

 
  Elected Members (Borough Councillors) 

5.5 A cross-party Member Working Group will meet regularly to guide preparation of the 
Local Development Framework and Review of the Community Plan (to be known as the 
Community Strategy). The latter will involve joint work with the Chorley Partnership and 
will set a broad vision for the Borough, which the Local Development Framework will 
implement through spatial planning policies.  The Member Working Group will consider 
issues and proposed solutions after taking account of the comments made by the local 
community.  This group is politically balanced and has no decision-making powers.  It 
reports direct to the Council’s Executive Cabinet and meetings of all Councillors – The 
Full Council.  The Member Working Group will meet as and when the different stages of 
plan preparation are reached.  The meetings are held in private. 

 
5.6 The Council’s Executive Cabinet and the Full Council will make the necessary decisions 

and these meetings of Councillors are held in public. 
 

Council Units 

5.7 There will be joint working by all relevant Council departments (Units) drawing on the 
experience of extensive contacts the staff (Officers) have with the community.  

 

5.8 Planning Policy Officers responsible for preparing the Local Development Framework have 
already held detailed discussions with development control colleagues (who deal with 
planning applications) on the effectiveness of existing planning policies.  Regular 
consultations will be undertaken with development control staff throughout the process. 

 

Parish Councils 
5.9 The Borough Council will consult directly with local Parish Councils and assist them to 

become fully involved.  Some Parishes are preparing Parish Plans and this will provide 
further information, which can be fed into and taken account of in the Local Development 
Framework. 

 
Local People 

5. 10 The public will be able to receive and disseminate information, participate in the 
development of policies, proposals or options for an area, respond to consultation and 
receive feedback from the Council when reporting back on formal representations.  
Participation will be through the following methods of community involvement and 
communication: 

 

• The Chorley Borough News (the Borough’s community newspaper) will ensure that 
the whole community is informed of the key elements of the consultation stages of the 
process. 

 

• The Council’s website (www.chorley.gov.uk/planning) and e-mail.  The Council will 
publish proposals on its website and will invite suggestions.  Representations can be 
submitted online via the website.  All adopted Local Development Documents will also 
be published on the website.  Members of the Planning Policy Team can be contacted 
via e-mail at planning.policy@chorley.gov.uk.  It is acknowledged that not all local 
residents have access to Information Technology, especially the elderly, and therefore 
we will continue to produce paper versions of all documents.  We will also have them 
available for viewing at Chorley Town Hall, the Borough Council Offices at Union Street 
and Gillibrand Street, all libraries in the Borough and at post offices in villages without a 
library.  The Planning Policy Team can be contacted on (01257) 515280/1/2; 515295 
and 515741  

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 208



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
23 

• Focus Groups made up of local people to allow interactive discussion on planning 
issues and possible ways forward.  

 

• Touring an Exhibition of issues, options and proposals around local libraries, 
village halls, leisure centres and other public places where Planning Officers will be 
able to discuss the proposals at specified times.  People will be free to submit 
comments at the exhibitions or use one of the other methods available. 

 

• Workshops at Exhibition Venues will allow people to interact through group working 
to come up with proposals for their area within set planning restrictions e.g. national 
and regional planning guidance.  

 

• The Citizen’s Panel.  This is made up of approximately 1,500 Chorley Borough 
residents, selected at random and is therefore a cross section of the community who 
are asked to comment at intervals on Council initiatives.  The membership of the Panel 
is changed every few years. They will be consulted about planning issues and 
proposals for the Borough.  

 

• Planning for Real.  This approach can be particularly suitable at the local 
neighbourhood level such as when Area Action Plans are proposed.  Under the 
guidance of a facilitator it allows a local community to have “hands on” exercises in 
trying out possible on-the-ground planning and environmental solutions.  

 

• Planning Aid.  The Council has signed up to the Planning Aid concordat.  This means 
it will support and promote the use of Planning Aid for use by local people. This is a 
free independent advice service on all aspects of planning. The aim of the services is 
to enable people to understand the planning system and how best they can make their 
views known.  To contact Planning Aid North West: www.planningaid.rtpi.org.uk and 
telephone (0870) 850 9804. 

 

• Individual Contact.  Members of the public and any organisations can make formal 
objections or supporting representations at the Local Development Framework stages. 
The Council will consider representations. Anyone who makes a comment will be 
included on our electronic database and will automatically be kept informed at all 
subsequent stages of the process.  Unresolved objections to Development Plan 
Documents will be considered by an independent Inspector.  

 
Media 

5.11 The Council will draw attention to what is going on by issuing and publishing: 

• Media releases (for local newspapers and broadcasters) 

• Internet website (www.chorley.gov.uk/planning) 

• Public notices 

• Leaflets 

• Posters. 
 

Local Organisations 
5.12 The Council propose to: 

• Consult.  The Council has an extensive list of consultees made up of representatives 
from the private, public and community/voluntary sector that will be consulted. (See 
table below and Appendix 2)   

 

• Businesses • Councillors 

• Developers/Agents • Parish Councillors 

• Statutory Bodies and Groups • Central, Regional and Local Government 

• Voluntary Sectors • Government Related Agencies and Partnerships 

• The Media • Other Interested Parties 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 209



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
24 

The Council will respond to requests from community groups and organisations by 
undertaking presentations or discussion forums as appropriate. In doing so, the 
Council hopes to be able to exploit significant areas of expertise and local knowledge. 

 

• Involve Forums made up of representatives of local organisations. 
 

• Work with the Chorley Partnership. 
The Government clearly identifies Local Development Documents as one of the key 
mechanisms for delivering Community Strategy (Plan) objectives.  Many of the 
elements of the Community Plan The Community Strategy 2005-2025 for the 
Borough of Chorley 2002-2005 (October 2002) and its Review (which will be adopted in 
June 2005)  will have has spatial aspects that can be addressed through the land use 
planning system.   

 
 The Chorley Partnership is a group of many organisations.  One of its tasks is 

preparing the Community Strategy and driving it forward, as well as monitoring and 
reporting on progress.  Each of the Partnership’s five thematic groups (Sustainable 
Environment, Local Community, Health and Well Being, Life Long Learning and 
Thriving Economy) meet regularly to provide points of access with a range of key 
stakeholders.  In addition to being involved in the Community Strategy the thematic 
groups will be involved in each stage of the Local Development Document preparation.  
The key stakeholders are representatives from the private/public and 
community/voluntary sectors.   
 

Engage Hard to Reach Groups 
5.13 The Council will seek to involve all sections of the community including: 
 

• Young People 

• Ethnic Minorities 

• Older people 

• Mobility Impaired Groups 

• Visually Impaired and Hearing Impaired People 

• Travellers/Gypsies 

• Other Minority Groups 
 

The Council will have regard to the requirements of the Race Relations (Amendment) Act 
2000 to promote racial equality and the Disability Discrimination Act 1995. 
 

5.14 The Council will respond to requests from community groups and organisations by 
undertaking presentations or discussion forums as appropriate.  In doing so, the Council 
hopes to explore significant areas of expertise and local knowledge. 

 

5.15 To engage these groups the Council will take the following action during the consultation 
exercise: 

• Maintain contact with all schools and colleges and work with any school or college that 
is keen to get involved with the process 

• Make effective use of the Chorley District Youth Council 

• Ensure a cross-section of the community is consulted through the Citizens Panel 

• Consult the Chorley and South Ribble Disability Forum 

• Consult the Ethnic Minority Consultative Committee 

• Identify any other similar group and inform them of the Plan process by attending their 
meetings 

• Make proposals available for inspection in a wide variety of locations and different 
formats. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 210



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
25 

5.16 The Council will provide documents when requested in: 
 

• Large Type 

• Braille 

• Audio and 

• Translations. 
 
Please telephone (01257) 515281 to access this service 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 211



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
26 

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 
 

6 Involvement in Planning Applications 
 

How Can A Developer Involve the Community in A Proposed Development? 

 
6.1 The Borough Council received about 1500   over 1100 planning applications in 2004. 

2005. Any person or organisation (including a government department or other public 
authority or body) may support or object to a planning application proposal. The Council is 
committed to involving the community in deciding planning applications.  It is important that 
applicants and their agents play their part in fulfilling this commitment during the 
preparation of their proposals.  The planning system is ‘plan-led’ with planning applications 
determined in accordance with the Development Plan unless material consideration 
indicate otherwise. 

 

6.2 Although community involvement is not a mandatory requirement when submitting a planning 
application, the Council, backed by national guidance, believes that genuine engagement with 
the surrounding community before the submission of a formal application can be beneficial for 
all those involved.  Officers in the Planning Services Unit encourage developers to have pre-
application discussions with them.  Officers can advise on whether proposals would benefit 
from community involvement and if so how it might be carried out through consultation and 
preparing a Record of Community Involvement (See Sections 7 and 8). 

 

6.3 Section 9, sets out the Council’s role in involving the community when a planning 
application is received for determination. 

 

6.4 A developer should start to consider community involvement as early as possible in the 
design of a scheme.  Time should be set aside to allow for adequate community 
involvement in the overall programme of the development scheme. 

 
What are the Benefits to the Developer of Community Involvement? 

 

6.5 A genuine exercise can: 

• Provide an opportunity to explain proposals before minds are made up on the basis of 
possibly inaccurate information; 

• Save time in obtaining a decision on a planning application; 
• Produce more certainty about the outcome; 
• Create a more sustainable and acceptable development; 
• Avoid appeals and call-in procedures. 

Type of Developments that would Benefit from Community Involvement. 
 

6.6 A developer should regard community involvement as an opportunity to explain and refine 
proposals rather than as a constraint on proposals.  Local people are generally interested 
to learn about proposals they feel may affect them.  People also realise there can be 
advantages to new development as well as disadvantages, e.g. more jobs, more facilities, 
improved environment.  Consequently a range of proposals would benefit from community 
involvement.  The following types of planning applications should be subject to community 
involvement: 

 

• Large scale industrial and commercial development; 

• Large scale residential development; 

• Major new educational or institutional buildings; 

• Major infrastructure projects such as roads, pipelines or overhead power lines. 

• Smaller development on sensitive sites; 

• Changes of use of buildings or land for purposes which are likely to be controversial; 

• Developments where opportunities for community benefits may be available (e.g. the 
upgrading of a facility used by the community); 

• Mineral extraction proposals; * 

• Waste processing schemes. * 

*In Chorley these matters are dealt with by Lancashire County Council. 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 212



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
27 

Community Involvement in Planning Applications should also apply: 

• where there are issues of scale and controversy, or are contrary to and/or are out of 
line with the Local Development Framework policy; 

• where the application is broadly in accordance with the Local Development 
Framework but raises controversial issues or detail i.e. those that will require a 
Transport Assessment. 

6.7 Small-scale proposals such as house extensions or advertisements will not require 
community involvement. However, applicants are encouraged to discuss their proposals 
with the occupiers of neighbouring property who will be affected and to take account of 
their concerns where possible. This can reduce the need for changes after the application 
has been submitted to the Council, increase the prospect of planning permission being 
granted and speed up the time taken for proposals to be dealt with. 

 
7 WHAT ARE THE BEST WAYS OF INFORMING THE COMMUNITY ABOUT PLANNING 

PROPOSALS? 
 
7.1 Developers are encouraged to incorporate community involvement into their development 

programme to allow for enough time to be devoted to involve the community in a 
particular scheme.  Enlightened developers should regard community involvement as an 
opportunity to explain and refine their proposals rather than a constraint on their intention.  
The Council will support ways to encourage consultation.  At the pre-consultation stage 
the Council will accept as an option a pre-application consultation plan to be drawn up by 
the applicant with the Council based on an initial appraisal of the proposal. This could 
identify who is to be consulted, via what methods and a timescale which both the 
applicant and Council could work to. This would assist in the preparation of the Record of 
Community Involvement (See Section 8). 

 
7.2 Councillors for the relevant Borough Ward, where the proposal is to be sited, should be 

informed by applicants of proposals no later than the local community and preferably in 
advance.  Larger development proposals may affect more than one Ward. 

7.3 The options are: 

• Arrange a meeting with relevant Ward Councillors; 

• Circulate a letter and statement in the locality explaining proposals with plans or a 
diagram; 

• Circulate a specially prepared leaflet; 

• Arrange an exhibition and invite local people; 

• Arrange a press release/advertisement in local newspapers; 

• Arrange a public meeting; 

• Arrange a meeting with particular groups in the community. 

7.4 A developer should remember to: 

• Have pre-application discussions with planning officers; 

• Give adequate advance publicity to exhibitions, meetings or events; 

• Keep a record of addresses written to and the information supplied;  

• Keep a record of press advertisements, press releases and notices; 

• Keep a record of all persons attending exhibitions and (if possible) meetings; 

• Retain all comment slips filled in by people attending exhibitions or meetings. 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 213



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
28 

8 RECORD OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 
 
8.1 A developer is encouraged to provide a Record of Community Involvement to the 

Borough Council when submitting an application setting out those steps taken to engage 
the local community.  The Record should indicate: 

• The types of community involvement sought; 

• Summary of responses received from the community; 

• Minutes of public meetings 

• Main points of objection; 

• Other matters raised; 

• Developer comments on the responses received; 

• Amendments made to the proposed development as a result of community response. 

8.2 A developer is encouraged to also consider what effects the proposals have on the 
surrounding area.  This should include:  

 

• access arrangements • effect on trees 

• car parking • nature conservation 

• traffic generation • protected species 

• public right of way affected • Listed buildings 

• noise and disturbance • Conservation Area 

• use in unsocial hours • scale of development 

• odours • height/mass of development 

• disruption during construction • attraction of crowds 

• drainage problems • pollution potential 

• ground conditions • effect on watercourse 

• employment potential • other significant effects 

• underground/overhead utility 
infrastructure 

• crime prevention 

 
9 HOW DOES THE COUNCIL INVOLVE THE COMMUNITY WHEN A PLANNING 

APPLICATION IS RECEIVED? 

 
9.1 Statutory Consultation. The Council has a list of bodies that may need to be consulted on 

a planning application. Not all bodies are consulted on each application.  Who is consulted 
will vary with the type of proposal and location.  Statutory consultees (those organisations 
which the Council have to contact) have 21 days in which to respond. can make any 
written observations within 21 days of receiving all the information they need to 
provide an informed response. Bodies such as English Nature will be allowed a 
longer period of time to comment on applications where this is prescribed by 
legislation. 

 
9.2 Wider Community.  The Planning Services Unit sends a weekly list of applications to a 

local newspaper - the Chorley Guardian.  Some applications are publicised in this 
newspaper but this is at the editor’s discretion.  Copies of the weekly list are also sent to 
Councillors.  Interest groups who have requested the weekly list receive these free of 
charge.  All Parish Councils receive two copies of the weekly list.  The weekly list is 
available for viewing on the Council’s website www.chorley.gov.uk/planning 

9.3 The Council also place public notices in the Chorley Guardian referring to development 
proposals that are: a departure from the local development plan; a major application; 
development affecting a right of way; a planning application with an Environmental 
Statement; or a planning application affecting a listed building.  Listed Building 
applications and Conservation Area consent applications are also advertised in the press.  

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 214



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
29 

 In addition a site notice is displayed. 
 
9.4 Individual Consultation.  This is in line with the Council’s Code of Practice.  Occupiers 

of neighbouring premises most likely to be affected by a proposal are notified individually 
by letter that an application has been received. They are invited to inspect the application 
and make any written observations within 21 days. The results of any such 
consultation will be reported and taken into account in decisions made by, and on 
behalf of, the Council. 

 
9.5 Extent of Neighbour Notification. As a general rule the adjoining occupiers to a 

proposal are notified.  In practice, this means properties bordering an application site will 
receive individual notification of that application. Clearly, within a rural area there may be 
no neighbouring properties, so it is left to the case officer’s judgement how far the 
neighbour notification should apply, but site notices are also used where appropriate.  
The Council will also display a site notice if it is unclear who owns the application site.  In 
respect of large applications which may have an impact over a wide area – such a major 
road proposal – many residents will be consulted. 

9.6 In respect of a Listed Building/Conservation Area application, in addition to a site notice 
and press notice, individual neighbour letters will be sent. 

Involvement of the Community during the Processing of a Planning Application 

9.7 Negotiation is a very important and a crucial part of the process of determining a planning 
application. The aim is steering development towards a more acceptable form and 
therefore acting in a positive manner.  This dialogue between planning officers and 
developers/professional advisors is something that the Government and this Council 
actively encourages. 

 
9.8 Certain proposals will generate much public interest and may result in many letters of 

objection. Where amendments are made that make changes to the description of the 
proposal the case planning officer will re-consult the Parish Council, statutory consultees 
and any neighbours.  Bearing in the mind the Government’s expectation that applications 
should be decided in as short a time as possible a reduced response time to re-
notification may be set (normally between 10-14 days).  Significant amendments 
negotiated on Listed Building applications, or applications within Conservation Areas are 
re-advertised.  No re-advertisement would normally take place on minor amendments.  
Essentially re-notification is at the discretion of the case officer within the above 
framework. 

Involvement of the Community After a Decision is Taken on a Planning Application. 

9.9 Wider Community: A letter is sent to any Parish Council who wrote in, to advise them of 
the decision on the planning application (whether or not it was determined by officers 
under delegated powers or at a Committee of Councillors).  Any local interest groups who 
made comments at the planning application stage are also advised by letter of the 
decision.  All planning decisions are published on the Council’s website. 

 
9.10  Individual Notification: All neighbours who wrote in are advised in writing of the decision 

on the planning application. 
 
9.11 If an appeal is lodged against refusal of permission the Council will notify in writing all 

those involved in the original application and advise them of the process to be followed 
and the arrangements for sending in of any representations. 

 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 215



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
30 

9.12 The Council’s Website link – Public Access for Planning – provides details of current 
planning applications. You can follow the progress of an application, make a comment, 
search a weekly list of applications and decisions, view historic applications and view 
property details including maps. 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 216



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
31 

ENSURING IMPLEMENTATION 
 
10 RESOURCES AND MANAGEMENT 
 
10.1 A realistic approach to community involvement must reflect the resources available to the 

Council for involving the community in development plan proposals. The availability of 
resources will have a bearing on the scale and methods of consultation the Council carries 
out. Consideration will therefore be given to staff capacity, timescale, budgets and 
accommodation. 

 
10.2 The Council recognises the risks to delivery of the documents in the timescales set out in 

the Local Development Scheme due to the size of the staff resource. However it is 
committed to achieving the targets it has set itself and believes they are realistic. 

 
10.3 Preparation of the Local Development Documents will be undertaken primarily by the 7 

existing planning policy staff. However should the need arise there are sufficient financial 
resources available to cover the costs of external assistance in the form of studies.  In 
addition staff members are working closely with colleagues and partners to adopt a positive 
approach to involving external groups and individuals. Existing networks linked to other 
plans and strategies such as the Community Strategy are well utilised. A number of officers 
have also been trained in and utilised public engagement and participation skills (known as 
"facilitation skills"), including the design and management of stakeholder consultation 
events.  

 
10.4 The Council has a budget to support the requirements identified in the Local Development 

Scheme including resources to hire premises to hold exhibitions, workshops, focus groups 
and meetings; publicity including statutory notices; and costs associated with statutory 
procedures prior to adoption e.g. public examination costs, independent Inspector's fees 
and legal costs. The Council has a choice in range and size of public and private venues 
that it can hire for community consultation events. 

 
10.5 The Council has used its Planning Delivery Grant to increase investment in the planning 

service in terms of additional staff. The Development Control Section has recently been 
expanded to have the capacity required to deal with an increased level of planning 
applications. It is considered that the requirement for consultation on planning applications 
will be met by the 10 existing development control staff and financial resources available. 

 
11 FEEDBACK 
 

11.1 Feedback is a vital part of any consultation process. It enables people to see how their 
view has been taken into account and what has happened as a result. Participants need to 
know that they have been listened to, and that consultation has made an effective 
contribution, if they are to have confidence in the process and a willingness to take part in 
future initiatives. 

 
11.2 Acknowledgements will be sent to all those submitting formal representations, giving 

details of subsequent stages and dates of preparation where known. The Council will aim 
to respond to any general queries raised in relation to the document preparation process.  

 
11.3 Following each period of consultation on any Local Development Document, the Council 

will prepare a "Responses Report" which will set out the comments received, the Council's 
consideration of the comments and whether any change is requires as a result of the 
comment. It is envisaged that the response will be reported to Executive Cabinet. The 
Report will be published on the Council's website and will also be made available for 
viewing at Chorley Town Hall, the Borough Council Offices at Union Street and 
Gillibrand Street, all libraries in the Borough and at post offices in villages without a 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 217



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
32 

library. Those who have submitted a formal representation will be notified of the Council's 
response to their particular comments." 

 
12 EVALUATING THE CONSULTATION PROCESS 
 
12.1 The consultation process for the preparation of Local Development Documents will be 

subject to ongoing monitoring and evaluating that will consider: 

• what was done to engage stakeholders in terms of consultation processes and 
resources; 

• what was achieved; 

• what has happened as a result of consultation. 
 
12.2 The Council’s staff and members, those participating in face-to-face stakeholder events 

and a sample of those responding to consultation through other means will be invited to 
provide feedback and make any suggestions for improvement. 

 
12.3 This information will help to inform and review future participating processes in respect of 

the Local Development Framework, including a review of the Statement of Community 
Involvement, and consultation on planning applications. 

 

12.4 The Annual Monitoring Report, prepared by the Council to monitor progress in 

preparing the Local Development Framework, will reflect on and evaluate the 
community involvement process. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 218



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
33 

GLOSSARY OF PLANNING TERMS           Appendix 1 

 
Note: This glossary is not in alphabetical order. 
 
 
Local Development Framework A non-statutory term for the various inter-related Local 

Development Documents, which will comprise the 
Framework.  The new system is designed to allow authorities 
to decide which combination of documents best suits their 
circumstances. The ability to produce various documents 
rather than one plan should make it easier to keep policies 
and proposals up to date. 

 
Regional Spatial Strategy Sets out the region’s policies in relation to the development 

and use of land and forms part of the Development Plan for 
the Borough. The North West Regional Assembly, as the 
region’s regional planning body, is responsible for preparing 
the Regional Spatial Strategy 

 
Spatial Planning Approach Local Development Frameworks will be spatial rather than 

purely land use plans. Traditionally, the land use planning 
system has focused upon the regulation and control of the 
use of land. The aim is to go beyond this, to take account of 
the strategies and plans of other agencies not traditionally 
involved in the land use planning system but who also have 
an impact on how sites and buildings are used. 

 
Local Development Scheme  A public statement identifying which documents will be 

produced, in what order and when over a three year rolling 
programme.  It will also identify whether existing Local Plan 
policies will be merged together, replaced or deleted, over 
time. 

 

Statement of Community 
Involvement 

A Statement, which explains to local communities and 
organisations how they can be involved in the preparation 
and revision of Local Development Documents, and 
consideration of planning applications.  It also identifies the 
steps the authority will take to help enable this involvement.  
The Statement of Community Involvement is not a 
Development Plan Document. 

 
Development Plan Documents They are the key documents within a Local Development 

Framework as they have development plan status. As such 
they will be subject to extensive community involvement, 
sustainability appraisal and independent examination. 

Development Plan Documents include: 

• A core strategy; 

• Site specific allocations;  

• Area action plans (where needed); 

• Other development plan documents; 

• A proposals map 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 219



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
34 

Local Development Documents There are two types: 

• Development Plan Documents 

• Supplementary Planning Documents 

 

Supplementary Planning 
Documents 

They are documents, which expand upon policy or provide 
further implementation details to policies in the Development 
Plan Documents.  They do not have development plan status 
and are not subject to independent examination.  They will 
be subject to rigorous procedures of community involvement 
and sustainability appraisal.  They can include design guides, 
site development briefs, or topic-based documents.  They 
cannot be used to allocate land or contain policies that 
should be subject to independent examination. 

 
Core Strategy Sets out the key elements of the planning framework for the 

area. It should comprise a spatial vision and strategic 
objectives for the area; a spatial strategy; core policies and a 
monitoring and implementation framework. It should include 
clear objectives for achieving delivery. It must be kept up to 
date and all other Development Plan Documents must be in 
conformity with it. 

 
Site Specific Allocations The allocation of land for specific uses (including mixed uses) 

must be set out in a Development Plan Document. It will 
allow an authority to update allocations in light of changes to 
other Local Development Documents or implementation on 
the ground.  Site allocations should not form part of the Core 
Strategy. 

 
Area Action Plans Prepared to provide the planning framework for areas where 

significant change or conservation is needed. A key feature 
will be the focus on implementation. They should: 

• Deliver planned growth areas; 

• Stimulate regeneration; 

• Protect areas particularly sensitive to change; 

• Resolve conflicting objectives in areas subject to 
development pressures; or 

• Focus the delivery of area based regeneration initiatives. 

 
Adopted Proposals Map A map, at a registered scale, that illustrates all the policies 

contained in the Development Plan Documents that are 
specific to areas on the ground. The adopted Proposals Map 
has the status of a separate Development Plan Document, 
which must be revised as each new Development Plan 
Document is adopted. 

 
Front-Loading This is more active involvement of community, organisations 

and commercial interests earlier in the plan preparation 
process than has traditionally occurred. The aim is to seek 
consensus on essential issues.  It also offers people and 
organisations a greater opportunity to influence plan content 
by sharing their knowledge and views with planners. 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 220



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
35 

Sustainability Appraisal This is a tool for appraising the social, environmental and 
economic effects of plan strategies and policies from the 
outset of the preparation process. This ensures that 
decisions are made that accord with sustainable development 
objectives. It incorporates the requirements of the Strategic 
Environmental Assessment Directive. 

 
 
Strategic Environmental  This is the process of evaluating the environmental impacts 
Assessment of proposed policies, plans and programmes as required by 

European Directive 2001/42/EC. It is incorporated into the 
Sustainability Appraisal. 

 
 
Saved Policies or Plans Existing adopted development plans are automatically saved 

for three years from the date of the commencement of the 
Act (28 September 2004). Any policies in old style 
development plans adopted after this date will become saved 
policies for three years from their adoption or approval. 
During this three-year period local planning authorities should 
aim to bring forward Local Development Documents to 
replace saved policies in accordance with the Local 
Development Scheme.  However some policies may be 
saved for longer than three years to allow relevant 
Development Plan Documents to be completed and adopted. 

  

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 221



 

Chorley Borough Local Development Framework – Statement of Community Involvement - Submission to Secretary of State 
36 

BROAD LIST OF CONSULTEES   

Any person or organisation that wishes to be notified when Local Development 
Framework documents are under consideration may request to be placed on a 
database of consultees by contacting the Planning Policy Section. The following types 
of organisations are held on this database: 

 

Elected Representatives 
Member for Parliament     District Councillors 
County Councillors     Parish Councils 

 

Government and Related Agencies and Partnerships  

Adjoining Parish Councils    The Home Office 
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 
Department of Work and Pensions   Department of Constitutional Affairs 
Department for Culture, Media and Sport  Office of Government Commerce” 
North West Regional Assembly  English Partnerships 
Government Office for the North West  English Nature 
Northwest Regional Development Agency English Heritage 
Lancashire County Council (various departments)  Health Authority 
Adjoining District/Metropolitan Councils  Sport England 
Police and other emergency services Schools and Colleges 
Environment Agency                            Department of Employment 
Countryside Agency    HM Prison Service 
Health Providers/Primary Care Trust   Strategic Rail Authority Network Rail 

Higher Education Institutions    British Waterways 
Highway Agency      Ministry of Defence 

HM Inspector of Health and Safety (Explosives)  Department of Trade and Industry 
 

Communities/Residents 

Residents Associations, local and adjacent areas 
Residents Associations, general area 

 

Voluntary Sector 
Social housing providers     Racial Equality Council 
Community transport providers    Transport 2000 
CVS       Sport organisations/groups 
Wildlife trusts and societies    Environmental organisations/groups 
Civic Society      Mental health groups 
Disability Groups      Ethnic organisations 

Faith bodies      Womens’ groups 

Elderly person’s groups     Youth Groups 
Pre school providers 

 

Other Consultees 
Water Company      Commission for Racial Equality 
Electricity, gas and telecom providers    Rail companies 
National Grid Company      National Playing Fields Association  
Campaign for the Protection of Rural England   Chambers of Commerce 
Coal Authority      National and local house builders  
Bus companies      Planning consultants  
Friends of the Earth      Professional associations 
National and local businesses/companies  Members of the Citizens Panel 
The House Builders Federation     Estate Agents and developers 
Local/area papers and radio etc    Church Commissioners  
The Gypsy Council     Travellers Association 
Landowners and major land users, including farmers 

Appendix 2 

Agenda Item 13 Agenda Page 222



 

 

 

 
 

Updated Template April 2006  

 

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Development and 
Regeneration 

(Introduced by Councillor Peter 
Malpas the Executive Member for 

Economic Development and 
Regeneration) 

Local Development Framework and 
Community Strategy Working Group 

Development Control Committee 

Executive Cabinet 

19th June 2006 
 

20th June 2006 

29th June 2006 

 

HOUSEHOLDER DESIGN GUIDANCE  

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT (SPD) 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
1. To update Members on the progress of the above document and to seek endorsement for 

the instigation of a formal consultation process in relation to the document which will form 
part of the Local Development Framework. 

 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

 
2. The production and implementation of the guidance within this document will have a direct 

link to the Strategic Objective that seeks to ‘Develop the character and feel of Chorley as 
a good place to live’. 

 
RISK ISSUES 
 
3. The issues raised and recommendations made in this report involve risk considerations in 

the following categories: 
 

Strategy X Information  
Reputation X Regulatory/Legal X 
Financial X Operational X 
People  Other  

 
4. The production of this Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) will contribute to Long 

Term Outcome 5.3 of the Corporate Strategy Overview 2006/07-2008/09, which seeks an 
improved local environment. 

 
5. Members may be aware that the Council is committed to the production of a number of 

Supplementary Planning Documents at specific times within the Local Development 
Scheme. Document production targets have been set out, which the Council is required to 
meet to avoid a risk that the Council will be penalised in the assessment of the next 
Planning Delivery Grant settlement. Linked to this is the potential loss of reputation if 
these agreed targets are missed. 

 
6. The document will extend the guidance and advice available to Council Officers and the 

public, assisting in the interpretation and consistent delivery of design objectives, as held 
within Local Plan Policies DC8A, DC8B & HS9. 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 14Agenda Page 223



 

BACKGROUND 
 

7. Members will be aware, following the 2004 Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, that 
the former Development Plan system has been replaced. No longer are drafts of all the 
policies published in one Local Plan and consulted upon in their totality at Consultation and 
Deposit Draft stages, with subsequent changes to wording made in response to 
representations. 

 
Under the new system the LDF comprises a suite of documents prepared over a period of 
time and the stages through which each document must pass are: 
 
• Issues and Options 
• Preferred Options 
• Submission 

 
8. Early on within the LDF process, it had been noted by Officers that the existing House 

Extension Design Guidelines (HEDG), adopted in 1998 was becoming somewhat out of 
date. More seriously, it was failing to further the Councils aspiration to achieve high 
standards of design throughout the Borough and aspiration supported by a shift in 
Government policy.  

 
9. The purpose of the new guidance is to assist anyone wishing to extend a residential 

dwelling, in either urban or rural areas, and to promote a higher standard of design.  It will 
be used as a guide to how the policies in the Development Plan will be applied to 
householder developments.  It is also expected that the document will assist in the 
interpretation and ensure consistent delivery of design objectives as held within Local 
Plan Policies DC8A, DC8B & HS9, including replacement dwellings and garden 
extensions in the countryside. The published version of the draft guidance will be fully 
illustrated to help understanding. 

 
10. The principle changes can be summarised as: 
 

a) Much more specific guidance regarding the need to ensure that design solutions 
understand and respect their context and achieve cohesion with their 
surroundings. 

b) Detailed guidance regarding the mass, scale and detailing of extensions including 
some new guidelines to help achieve a satisfactory proportional relationship. 

c) Expanded information regarding the need to ensure that extensions do not cause 
detriment to the amenity of neighbours. 

d) New guidance specifically relating to the extension of buildings situated on corner 
plots. 

e) Expansion of guidance relating to extensions in rural areas. 
f) Specific guidance relating to conservatories, balconies and terraces. 
g) Specific guidance relating to renewable energy sources and their impact upon 

domestic buildings. 
h) Greater guidance about outbuildings, boundary treatments and the treatment of 

space. 

 

11. The document has been the subject of some informal consultation, during its drafting.  
The document continues to be circulated within the Council for comments and where 
possible those comments will be incorporated prior to formal consultation taking place.  It 
is not envisaged that any fundamental changes will be necessary. 

 
12. It is emphasised that the images shown within the draft document attached are for 

illustrative purposes only, in order to provide a better understanding of the text. These will 
be altered and improved during and after the consultation process. 

Agenda Item 14Agenda Page 224



 

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
4. There are no HR implications associated with this report. 
 
COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
5. There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
6. That the Executive Cabinet approves the draft document for consultation and community 

involvement purposes subject to ratification by Full Council with any minor textural and 
illustrative amendments being delegated to the Director of Development and 
Regeneration. 

 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
 

7. The only other option considered was to do nothing (retain guidelines in existing House 
Extensions Design Guide SPG). Testing of this option was carried out in April 2006 to 
identify how it performed against social, economic and environmental objectives in the 
Sustainability Appraisal Framework.  Following this it was concluded that the most 
sustainable option for this document was its revision, and thus the Draft SPD prepared. 

 
JANE E MEEK 
DIRECTOR OF DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 
 
 

 

Background Papers 

Document Date File Place of Inspection 

Existing House Extension 
Design Guide 

1998 *** 
Union Street 

Gillibrand Street 

 

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Andrew Tegg 5327 5
th
 June 2006  

 

Agenda Item 14Agenda Page 225



Agenda Page 226

This page is intentionally left blank



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

1 

CHORLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 

DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT HOUSEHOLDER DESIGN GUIDANCE 
SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

JUNE 2006

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 227



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

2 

CONTENTS 

 
1 Introduction................................................................................................................... 4 

 Sustainability Appraisal ............................................................................................ 4 

 Planning Policies...................................................................................................... 5 

 
2 Starting Principles......................................................................................................... 6 

Does it need Planning Permission?.......................................................................... 6 

Other Consents and Regulations ............................................................................. 6 

Processing your Application ..................................................................................... 6 

Issues Considered on a Planning Application .......................................................... 7 

Site Appraisal and Survey – Establishing your Context ............................................ 7 

 
3 General Advice............................................................................................................. 9 

 Siting Principles ....................................................................................................... 9 

 Form and Mass........................................................................................................ 9 

 Detailing your Extension ........................................................................................ 10 

 Neighbour Effects .................................................................................................. 12 

Dominance and Overbearing ................................................................................. 12 

Shadowing ............................................................................................................. 12 

Overlooking............................................................................................................ 12 

 
4 Specific Advice ........................................................................................................... 14 

 
5 Front Extensions .................................................................................................... 14 

 
6 Side Extensions ..................................................................................................... 14 

Semi-Detached and Terraced Houses ................................................................... 15 

Detached Houses .................................................................................................. 15 

Gaps Between Buildings – The Terracing Effect .................................................... 15 

 
7 Rear Extensions..................................................................................................... 16 

Single Storey Extensions ....................................................................................... 16 

Two Storey Extensions .......................................................................................... 16 

 
8 Extensions on Corner Plots.................................................................................... 18 

 
9 House Extensions in Rural Areas........................................................................... 18 

The ‘Original Dwelling’ ........................................................................................... 19 

House Extensions .................................................................................................. 19 

Outbuildings........................................................................................................... 19 

Garden Extensions ................................................................................................ 20 

 
10 Conservatories....................................................................................................... 20 

 
11 Dormers, Rooflights and Roof Extensions.............................................................. 20 

Dormers................................................................................................................. 20 

Rooflights............................................................................................................... 21 

Roof Extensions..................................................................................................... 21 

 
12 Solar Panels and Wind Turbines............................................................................ 22 

Solar Panels .......................................................................................................... 22 

Wind Turbines........................................................................................................ 22 

 
13 Balconies & Terraces............................................................................................. 23 

 
14 Garages and Outbuildings ..................................................................................... 23 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 228



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

3 

 
15 Access and Parking ............................................................................................... 24 

 
16 Works to Front Curtilage Areas .............................................................................. 24 

 
17 Boundary Treatments............................................................................................. 25 

 
18 Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas............................................................... 25 

 
19 Conclusions and Checklist for Avoiding Common Mistakes ................................... 27 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact Details: 
 
Chorley Borough Council 
Union Street 
Chorley 
Lancashire 
PR7 1AL 
 
Tel:  01257 515151 
Fax: 01257 515297 
Email: dcon@chorley.gov.uk 
 
Web: http://www.chorley.gov.uk/planning 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This document is provided prior to being desktop published and all content except the text is for illustrative 
purposes only.  The illustrations are used only as examples of the types of drawings and diagrams that will be 
used in the final version.  These illustrative diagrams have been obtained from a number of sources and the 
copyright of the originals is acknowledged. 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 229



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

4 

1 Introduction 
 
1.1 The Council recognises that people wish to improve their properties to provide 

accommodation that meets their changing needs, provided there is no adverse impact 
on the living conditions of neighbours or the environment. 

 
1.2 Badly designed extensions can spoil a building, equally they can also have an adverse 

effect upon the streetscape in which they are situated, and this imposes upon the wider 
community and affects our enjoyment of the environment.  It is also worth noting that a 
well-designed extension is more likely to add value to your house than a poorly 
conceived example. 

 
1.3 The purpose of this guide is to assist all those who wish to extend a residential dwelling, 

in both urban and rural areas, and to promote a higher standard of design.  It will be 
used as a guide to how the policies in the Development Plan will be applied to 
householder developments.  The information held within the guide can be used to firm 
up ideas that you may already have with regards to extending your property, and will 
hopefully avoid the disappointment of submitting a planning application, which ultimately 
cannot be approved.  This guide does not seek to impose rigid conditions, or stifle 
creative and innovative architecture.  The focus is instead aimed at encouraging good 
design and hopefully identifying features and ideas that can be used to achieve high 
standards. 

 
1.4 The importance of good design is recognised at a national level within government 

guidance.  General principles are set out within Planning Policy Statement 1: ‘Delivering 
Sustainable Development’ which states that ‘good design should contribute positively to 
making places better for people’. 

 
1.5 It must be emphasised that this guide relates to planning issues only.  There are other 

matters that may require consideration including Building Regulations, Party Wall 
Legislation, and Rights of Way legislation etc. All of these should be considered when 
designing your extension.  Guidance on Building Regulation issues should be sought 
from the Council’s Building Control Section; other matters should be discussed with a 
suitably qualified professional, such as a Solicitor or Surveyor. 

 
1.6 The objectives of this guidance document are: 
 

1. To assist in the interpretation and ensure consistent delivery of design objectives 
as held within Local Plan Policies DC8A, DC8B & HS9; 

2. To encourage high quality design which minimises its impact upon sensitive areas 
and protects the residential amenity of neighbouring properties; 

3. To maintain local distinctiveness and enhance local character in order to protect 
the varied qualities of the built environment of Chorley Borough; 

4. To encourage sustainable building practices, which minimise waste and promote 
the use of sustainable energy resources. 

 
1.7 The document supersedes the advice found in the House Extension Design Guide 

adopted in June 1998.  It will be applied to all applications submitted after its adoption.  If 
other properties have had historic extensions that conflict with this guidance it will not set 
a precedent for future decisions. 

 
Sustainability Appraisal 

 
1.8 From 11 November to 16 December 2005 a Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report for 

the Household Extension Design Guide SPD was sent out for consultation to the four 
statutory bodies nominated for this purpose (English Nature, English Heritage, 
Environment Agency and Countryside Agency) and other bodies considered 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 230



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

5 

appropriate.  The Scoping Report sets out a framework to test options and includes 
sustainability objectives.  The options were: 

 
1. Do nothing (retain guidelines in the existing House Extensions Design Guide SPG) 
2. Produce a new SPD that will reinforce policies by: 
 

� Containing more transparent guidelines; 
� Providing greater certainty to applicants regarding the Council’s design 

requirements and aspirations; 
� Covering a wider range of issues than the existing SPG including 

replacement dwellings in the countryside and curtilage extensions. 
 
1.9 Testing of the options was carried out in April 2006 to identify how each performed 

against social, economic and environmental objectives in the Sustainability Appraisal 
framework.  The most sustainable option for this document was then selected, which 
was option 2, and the draft SPD prepared.  The draft SPD was then tested further in the 
Sustainability Appraisal process in order to predict and evaluate its effects. 

 
Planning Policies 

 
1.10 The Council determines planning applications after assessing the application against 

policies in the Development Plan, which are set at a local and regional level.  There are 
three documents which comprise the Development Plan: 

 
(1) Regional Planning Guidance for the North West March 2003 (RSS13); 
(2) The Joint Lancashire Structure Plan 2005; and, 
(3) Chorley Borough Local Plan Review 2003. 

 
1.11 Detailed policies are contained in the Local Plan, which expand upon Policy DP3 of 

RSS13 on “Quality in New Development”.  These detailed policies (see Appendix 1) 
relate to the design of house extensions, and include: 

 
GN5 Building Design and Retaining Existing Landscape Features and Natural 

Habitats 
DC8A Replacement Dwellings and Extensions in the Green Belt 
DC8B Replacement Dwellings and Extensions in Safeguarded Land and Area of 

Other Open Countryside 
HT2 Alterations and Extensions to Listed Buildings 
HT7 New Development in Conservation Areas 
HS9 Residential Extensions in Settlements Excluded from the Green Belt 
TR4 Highways Development Control Criteria 

 
1.12 It is worth bearing in mind however, that there may be other relevant policies, such as 

those related to Listed Buildings.  This guidance does not override other considerations 
that may constrain the size of any extension.  

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 231



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

6 

2 Starting Principles 
 

Does it need Planning Permission? 
 
2.1 The first step when you have decided that you want to extend your property is to 

establish whether or not you require planning permission.  The planning system controls 
all new development.  This includes all construction, engineering and other works.  
Permission can be required for a range of activities from digging a ditch, constructing a 
raised patio or decked area, pruning a tree, erecting a conservatory or extension, or 
constructing a nuclear power station. 

 
2.2 Many houses (but not flats) benefit from what are called ‘Permitted Development Rights’.  

This means that some small alterations and extensions may not require planning 
permission.  There is a leaflet produced by central government entitled ‘Planning – A 
Guide for Householders’ which will provide further guidance in relation to this.  This is 
available free from the Council or can be downloaded from the website 
www.communities.gov.uk. 

 
2.3 The regulations relating to permitted development are complex.  It is advised that if you 

are in any doubt as to whether your property benefits from such rights you contact the 
Council for further advice.  A form that can be completed and submitted to the Council to 
enquire as to whether planning permission is required.  This is available from either the 
Council Offices on Union Street or on the planning pages of the Councils website. 

 
Other Consents and Regulations 

 
2.4 You should also be aware that there are a range of consents may be required in order 

for works to be undertaken.  These can include, for example: 
 

� Building Regulations - This relates to the technical aspects relating to the 
construction of the extension/alteration and is entirely separate from the planning 
system.  Advice should be sought from the Building Control Section on 01257 
515245. 

� Land Owner – You may need consent from previous or adjoining land-owners 
depending on the nature of the works.   Planning permission or any other consent 
does not override rights accrued by ownership or other controls. 

� Party Wall Act – This controls works that are close to, or on, the boundary of your 
property, or affect an existing boundary or party wall.  A leaflet is available from the 
Council and advice can be obtained from an appropriate person, as it is not a 
matter that is controlled by the Council. 

 
Processing your Application 

 
2.5 The Council have prepared a Guidance Document on the validation of applications 

which outlines the level of detail is required for differing types of application.  This 
document together with the necessary application forms is available from the Council 
Offices, or can be downloaded from the website. 

 
2.6 Once the application is received the Council will undertake various consultation, 

including nearby residents who may be affected by the proposal.  For this reason it is 
always advised that you make your neighbours aware of your proposals, and discuss it 
with them prior to submitting your proposal.  

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 232



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

7 

Issues Considered on a Planning Application 
 
2.7 When considering applications for extensions and alterations there are many 

considerations that will be taken into account by the Council.  These include, for 
example: 

 

• The design of the extension; 

• Its impact on the amenity of adjoining properties; 

• Its relationship with adjoining properties; 

• Dominance and overshadowing of adjoining properties; 

• Impact on the streetscene and character of the area; 

• Impact on protected species such as bat and newts; 

• Access, parking and vehicle turning arrangements; 

• Impact on trees and other landscape features such as ponds and hedgerows; 

• Impact on archaeology or other heritage assets. 
 
2.8 Other matters, that are not land use planning matters, will not be taken into account.  

These include, for example: 
 

• The effect on the value of the adjoining property; 

• Whether or not the works can be physically undertaken; 

• Whether or not third party consents are required. 
 

Site Appraisal and Survey – Establishing your Context 
 
2.9 Chorley contains a variety of building types and styles; it is therefore almost impossible 

to impose any hard and fast rules relating to design matters.  However, the key to the 
success of any extension is to ensure that it takes careful note of its surroundings, and 
the building to which it is to be attached. 

 
2.10 The extension should take a lead from its surroundings, and incorporate these principles 

within its overall design, and taking the character into account.  It should also reflect the 
original appearance of your property, its scale, massing and detailing.  A carefully 
analyse of these factors should be undertaken as it will provide a good idea of the type 
of extension which could be acceptable. 

 
2.11 The following matters should be covered as a minimum when establishing the character 

of your site, this is intended as a guide with many of these factors being considered in 
greater detail later on in this document: 

 

• The existing building, including its siting within the plot; 

• Materials and detailing within the building, e.g. eave height, roof shape and pitch, 
pattern of windows and doors; 

• Site boundaries – location and treatments; 

• Ground levels – what is the topography of the site?  

• Any landscaping / vegetation features, e.g. trees and hedges; 

• Location of services, e.g. drains, sewers overhead or underground services; 

• Existing accesses and footpaths within the site. 
 
2.12 Once you have a better understanding of your property you should undertake an 

analysis of its surroundings is undertaken, to establish the wider context of your site.  
Matters to consider include: 

 

• Siting and arrangement of surrounding streetscape – this should identify building 
lines and the scale and mass of surrounding buildings; 

• Local design features and detailing; 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 233



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

8 

• Topography – The surrounding landform can impact upon the degree to which 
your proposal is visible in its wider context; 

• Roads and footways – areas from which your extension may be particularly visible; 

• Any planning permissions granted on surrounding buildings. 
 
2.13 It is worthwhile bearing in mind that not every building can be extended in a manner that 

would be acceptable in planning terms.  There is no right to extend your property and it 
is inevitable that there are occasions where a given property cannot accommodate the 
needs of the existing occupant. 

 
2.14 It is also important to note that simply because similar extensions have been completed 

in the past on a nearby properties does not mean that this should be repeated.  In the 
past, extensions have been granted that might now contradict the guidance in this 
document.  In those circumstances the later advice in this document will take precedent. 

 
Key Points 

• Designs must be based upon a detailed analysis of both the original building 
and the surrounding streetscape. 

• Designers should learn from the mistakes made on surrounding buildings. 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 234



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

9 

 

 

3 General Advice 
 

Siting Principles 
 
3.1 Extensions and new developments should make a positive contribution to the 

streetscape in which they are sited.  They should respect identified building lines and the 
spatial arrangements of the buildings, along with the spaces between them.  The 
following general rules should be taken into account: 

 

• Front extensions are unlikely to be acceptable, unless there is a pattern of such 
features within the surrounding streetscape; 

• Side extensions should not be sited in such a way that fills the space between your 
property and its neighbour (the terracing effect); 

• Corner plots are very prominent and are often difficult to extend; 

• The siting of extensions should avoid excessive levels of overlooking and 
shadowing of neighbouring property; 

• Extensions should not result in an excessive loss of off-street parking or private 
amenity space; 

• Extensions should not lead to a loss of significant landscape features. 
 
3.2 All of the above matters will be considered in greater detail within this document.  It is 

important however, that the issues of siting your extension are fully addressed prior to 
detailed design work being undertaken. 

 
Key Points 

• Siting decisions must be based on the contextual and site analysis 
undertaken. 

• Proposals should respond to identified context and reinforce local character. 

• Proposals should respect spatial arrangements and building lines to 
integrate into the street. 

• Special consideration must be given to neighbour effects when siting 
extensions. 

 
Form and Mass 

 
3.3 Once you have identified a suitable site for 

your extension, the next issue is to consider 
its form and mass.  The form of your building 
is one of the most significant features when 
attempting to achieve a satisfactory standard 
of design.  It is imperative that the chosen 
form reflects the local character and 
distinctiveness, as identified through your 
initial site analysis.   

 
3.4 The extension should be well proportioned 

and sit comfortably with the original building, 
be sympathetic to its scale and not 
overbearing.  Incremental extensions over 
time are rarely acceptable, as they extend 
properties without cohesion or a perceived 
architectural style.  Large extensions, which 
dominate the original building, should be 
avoided.  

 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 235



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

10 

 

 

 

3.5 Roof shape is also a critical issue when 
deciding upon the form of extension, the 
style and scale of roof should always seek 
to complement that of the original building.   
Flat roofs are very rarely acceptable; 
equally hipped roofs should only be used on 
extensions where the original building or 
surrounding buildings are fitted with hips.  
Finally the pitch of the proposed roof should 
match that of the original building. 

 
3.6 There are a number of general rules that 

should help the development of the design, 
when deciding upon the form and mass of 
your extension: 

 

• Extensions should have similar 
proportions to the original building, 
although on a smaller scale; 

• Generally the eaves wall should be 
longer than the gable wall, this 
improves the proportion of the 
extension; 

• Roof pitches utilised on 
the extension should 
match those found on 
the original building; 

• Ridges and eaves 
should be lowered to 
achieve a subservient 
relationship, allowing an 
easy understanding of 
what is original and what 
is extension; 

• The walls of the 
extension should be set 
back at front and rear, to 
emphasise the subservience of the extension and to break up flat elevations. 

 
Key Points 

• Form and mass should take into account the scale of the original building 
along with its surroundings. 

• Extension should share proportional characteristics with the original 
building and never dominate it. 

• Extensions should be subservient to the original building. 

• Roof scale and design should complement that fitted to the original building. 
 

Detailing your Extension 
 
3.7 However well you design your extension in 

terms of the siting, scale and massing, the 
good work can be destroyed if care is not 
taken to ensure that the detail of the design 
is well considered and applied.  

 
3.8 As a general rule, a direct lead should be 

taken from the original building with regards 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 236



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

11 

 

 

to the detailing, as this will achieve a degree 
of cohesion between the original building 
and extension.  However, there may be 
cases, where a sensitive designer can 
assess the local character and reinterpret 
local form and detail in a creative 
contemporary style, to add to the character 
and interest of the area.  There are a number 
of differing detail elements that should be 
considered: 

 
3.9 Materials - They should match those used 

within the original building, in order to 
achieve a degree of cohesion between 
original and extension.  

 
3.10 Detailing Methods – They should reflect 

those employed within the construction of 
the original building, and where appropriate 
these methods should be integrated into the 
extension.  These can include: 

 

• The coursing of the walling material, especially in the case of brickwork; 

• The manner in which slates are laid, e.g. in diminishing or regular courses; 

• The eaves construction and detailing; 

• The cornering technique employed, e.g. quoins; 

• The treatment of windows and doors, including cills, lintels, and jamb design. 
 

3.11 Fenestration - The external appearance of the 
extension should be well proportioned, with 
balanced fenestration, which reflects the style and 
arrangement employed on the original building.  It 
is vitally important that the extent and arrangement 
of the fenestration on the extension is sympathetic 
to that of the original building, this can be 
considered as the ratio between solid wall and 
window.  Excessive windows, to, seeking to 
maximise natural light, will not sit comfortably with 
its neighbours and thus is highly unlikely to be 
acceptable.  The proportional style of the windows 
should be identified and included within the design 
of the extension.  This proportion can be simply 
established by completing a scale drawing of the 
original opening, and then establishing the angle of a diagonal across the window.  This 
angle can then be used to ensure proportionality remains when designing windows of 
differing sizes. 

 
3.12 Chimneys - As well as their purpose to vent fireplaces or gas fires, chimneystacks and 

pots can add character to extensions and add character to the roofscape.  Where stacks 
exist on the original building, the inclusion of new stacks to a similar design can assist in 
achieving a degree of cohesion between original and extension.  

 
Key Points 

• Extensions should normally be constructed of materials that match and 
complement the original building. 

• Detailing should respect local styles and features to maintain local 
distinctiveness. 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 237



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

12 

• Fenestration should be carefully applied taking into account the 
arrangement and proportion of that on the original building. 

• Notwithstanding the above, in certain cases, with great care and sensitivity, 
contemporary design and reinterpreting local character can sometimes be 
used to complement the original building. 

 
Neighbour Effects 

 
3.13 It is regularly the case that the building of an extension will impact on its its neighbours.  

Therefore it is a very important that you consider the impact that any extension will have 
upon your neighbours amenity or living conditions.  Whilst your main concern is always 
likely to be the internal arrangement of the extension, its external scale and appearance 
will be the main concern of your neighbours. 

 
3.14 The simple rule to initially consider when designing an extension is to view it from your 

neighbours’ perspective and ask ‘Would I object if my neighbour proposed a similar 
extension?’  

 
3.15 They key questions to ask are: 
 

• Does it have an overbearing impact? 

• Will it cause overshadowing of the neighbours property? 

• Will it reduce neighbours privacy below acceptable levels? 
 

Dominance and Overbearing 
 
3.16 Problems of dominance come to the fore when the sheer mass and proximity of the 

proposed extension give an oppressive character, and cause severe detriment to the 
amenity of occupiers of the neighbouring property’s.  

 
3.17 Where a proposal is overbearing depends upon a number of factors, including the 

topography of the site, the height of the walls and roof of the extension and the proximity 
of the extension to the boundary.  It is also worth noting that even single storey 
extensions can have an overbearing impact upon their neighbours, if they extend 
excessively along boundary lines. 

 
Shadowing 

 
3.18 This occurs when an extension is of such a size and sited in such a location that it 

causes extensive overshadowing of the neighbouring property and amenity space.  The 
extent of shadowing is often difficult to determine, as it will depend upon the size of the 
extension, the variance in levels across the site and the orientation of the extension. 

 
3.19 Full details of the means to assess the shadowing impact of extensions are held within 

the Building Research Establishment document ‘Site Layout Planning for Daylight’ by P. 
J. Littlefair.  However when initially designing your extension there are a few points to 
consider: 

 

• The sun rises in the east and sets in the west. 

• The sun reaches its maximum height at noon, and will be due south at this point. 

• The sun is higher in summer than winter. 
 

Overlooking 
 
3.20 Unacceptable overlooking occurs when there is an inadequate distance between 

windows of your extension and windows or private amenity space of your neighbour’s 
property.  An extension should not cause significant overlooking of neighbouring 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 238



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

13 

properties.  The guiding principle is that extensions should be suitably located, with 
windows orientated, to prevent direct overlooking of habitable rooms or areas of private 
amenity space on nearby properties.  This overlooking can be accentuated if there are 
differences in ground level.  The following simple rules should guide the development of 
your proposal: 

 

• Windows to habitable rooms at ground floor level should not allow unrestricted 
views into neighbouring windows or garden areas. 

• In general a minimum of 21 metres should be distance for privacy between parallel 
windows of habitable rooms. 

• Windows to habitable rooms at first floor level, which overlook a neighbour’s 
garden, should be a minimum of 10 metres from the boundary they face. 

 
3.21 The distances between windows to bathrooms, which would normally have obscured 

glazing, and kitchens are less sensitive to overlooking and thus distances can often be 
less.  

 
3.22 Overlooking can be overcome in a number of ways; at ground floor level the use of 

screening can often overcome the problems encountered.  Equally there is often scope 
to site windows to provide oblique views of neighbours windows, this can remove the 
danger of direct overlooking.  

 
Key Points 

• Endeavour to be a good neighbour, always consider ‘Would I object if my 
neighbour proposed a similar extension?’ 

• Extensions must avoid causing unacceptable levels of overbearing to 
neighbouring properties. 

• Extensions must avoid causing unacceptable levels of overshadowing of 
neighbouring property. 

• Windows to habitable rooms at ground floor level should not allow 
unrestricted views into neighbouring windows or garden areas. 

• In general a minimum of 21 metres should be distance for privacy between 
parallel windows of habitable rooms. 

• Windows to habitable rooms at first floor level, which overlook a neighbour’s 
garden, should be a minimum of 10 metres from the boundary they face. 

 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 239



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

14 

 

4 Specific Advice 
 
4.1 The following sections provide specific advice to certain types of extension and should 

be read in the context of the relevant policies in the Development Plan, and the advice in 
the preceding general section.  Each proposal will relate to several of the following 
sections and should take account of the advice in each one. 

 
5 Front Extensions 
 
5.1 Extensions that project forward of the original 

building have a significant effect on both the 
building itself and also the wider streetscape of the 
area involved.  Front extensions often upset distinct 
building lines, and appear prominent within the 
streetscape, causing an upset of balance and form.  
Therefore in general terms, they are rarely 
acceptable. 

 
5.2 Front extensions may be acceptable however, in 

cases where there is not distinct building line or 
rhythm of architecture within the locality of the 
original building.  Such examples may be streets 
that have a wide variety of architectural styles.  It is advised that you seek informal 
advice at an early stage from the Council, should you feel that your building might be 
suitable for such an extension. 

 
5.3 The most common form of front extension proposed is a porch.  They can significantly 

alter the principal elevation of the building as they alter its focal point, i.e. the buildings 
entrance.  These are only likely to be acceptable where their inclusion does not cause 
detriment to both the building itself, but also the surrounding street.  The form and scale 
of the proposed porch should respect the proportion of the original building, and should 
complement rather than compete with existing features such as bay windows. 

 
5.4 Porches are unlikely to be acceptable on terraced houses; as such buildings depend 

upon conformity, rhythm and universal design to provide much of their architectural 
integrity.  In such cases an unsuitable porch can cause severe detriment to the whole 
terrace. 

 
Key Points 

• Front extensions are rarely acceptable in suburban areas, where they would 
upset distinctive building line and character. 

• In cases where porches may be acceptable, they should be subservient to 
the original building and complement rather than compete with existing 
features. 

• Porches are rarely acceptable on terraced properties, unless they are 
identified as an original feature of the building. 

 
6 Side Extensions 
 
6.1 Often the side elevation of properties does provide an opportunity for extension.  In such 

cases the success of a design proposal, will generally depend upon its relationship with 
the style and form of the building and surrounding streetscape.  As any form of side 
extension is likely to be viewed in association to the original building, it is important that 
the design is relates to the whole building, whether it is detached, semi-detached or 
terraced. 

 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 240



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

15 

 

 

6.2 Extension should generally be subservient in design to the parent property.  Elevations 
fronting or visible from the surrounding area should be set back by approximately 1 
metre and the ridge height should be lower than the main range.  There should be a 
distance of at least 12 metres between the windows of habitable rooms and any two 
storey blank gable to maintain the amenity of the adjoining property.   

 

Semi-Detached and Terraced Houses 
 
6.3 Such extensions must be subservient to the subject building in order to maintain the 

overall integrity of the streetscape but also not to adversely upset the balance between 
the subject building and its twin.  Subservience can be achieved in many ways, as 
outlined elsewhere in this document, including stepping the front elevation and lowering 
eaves and ridge. 

 
Detached Houses 

 
6.4 There is a greater degree of flexibility when extending such properties, especially where 

there is less of an apparent streetscape pattern.  Subservience remains important, as it 
allows the viewer to appreciate the original building and extension, and ensures that the 
extension does not dwarf the original building. 

 
Gaps Between Buildings – The Terracing Effect 

 
6.5 The gaps between buildings contribute an enormous amount of the aesthetic quality that 

gives the streetscape its character.  Care must therefore be taken, to ensure that this 
character is not eroded, by the loss of the relationship between buildings and spaces. 

 
6.6 Should these spaces be in 

filled with side extensions, 
detriment can be caused 
to the streetscape, as it 
can appear cramped.  This 
effect, known as the 
‘terracing effect’, gives the 
impression when viewed, 
of a constant building with 
no breaks, leading to one 
building blending into its 
neighbours. 

 
6.7 In order to overcome this, two storey extensions should leave a gap of at least 1m 

between the extension and the boundary with the adjacent property.   
 
 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 241



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

16 

 

Key Points 

• Side extensions should not lead to an unacceptable loss of space between 
the original building and its neighbour. 

• Side extensions should not lead to a loss of off-street parking provision. 

• Side extensions should be subservient to the original building. 

• In order to avoid terracing, two storey extensions should leave a reasonable 
gap of at least 1m between the extension and your boundary with the 
adjacent property.  

 
7 Rear Extensions 
 
7.1 Rear extensions whilst often not viewable from the public highway, can have a very 

significant impact upon the amenity of neighbours.  Equally such extensions impact upon 
the space about buildings, which is an important consideration in relation to streetscape 
and amenity. 

 
7.2 Whilst there are variations in terms of what is acceptable between single and two storey 

extensions, the Council uses the ’45-degree rule’.  This seeks to: 
 

• Maintain a satisfactory relationship between the existing buildings and proposed 
extensions. 

• Avoid overbearing impacts on adjacent properties and amenity areas. 

• Prevent excessive loss of daylight or overshadowing of habitable rooms and 
amenity spaces of adjacent properties. 

 
In relation to neighbouring 
conservatories the angle will be drawn 
from the edge of the pane of glass 
closes to the back of the original house.  
Where there is a significant change in 
levels a stricter standard will be applied 

 
Single Storey Extensions 

 
7.3 The Council use the 45 degrees + 3 

metre rule to assess proposals.  This 
means that extensions should not 
project more than 3 metres beyond a 
45-degree line drawn from the near 
edge of any ground floor rear-facing 
window to a habitable room in a 
neighbouring house. 

 
Two Storey Extensions 

 
7.4 Two storey extensions are much more problematical, and due to the close relationship 

between many properties are often not acceptable in suburban situations.  It is often 
impossible to accommodate the necessary scale of a two-storey extension in such 
locations without causing unacceptable detriment to neighbouring properties through the 
mass and scale of the extension. 

 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 242



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

17 

 

 

 

7.5 Two storey projections should not 
cross a 45-degree line drawn from the 
near edge of any ground floor rear-
facing window to a habitable room in a 
neighbouring house. 

 
7.6 Two-storey or first floor extensions 

should not project more than 3 metres 
beyond a 45-degree line drawn from 
the near edge of any first floor rear-
facing window to a habitable room in a 
neighbouring house. 

 
7.7 A further matter to bear in mind when 

designing such an extension is the 
distance between the gable end of 
your extension and the rear of any 
properties that back onto your 
property.  There should be a distance 
of at least 12 metres between the windows of habitable rooms of any adjoining property 
and any two storey blank gable.  There should also be a distance of 21 metres between 
any facing first floor windows, which should also be at least 10 metres from the 
boundary, for any window serving a habitable room. 

 
7.8 Due to the more substantial scale of two-storey rear extensions, greater care must be 

taken with its design and detailing to ensure that a satisfactory relationship is achieved 
between the original building and the extension.  As there are many different styles of 
rear extension, it is important that the design complements the original building, the key 
issue normally being the roof arrangement and design. 

 
Gabled Extensions Perpendicular to House 

 
7.9 In order to achieve subservient design the gable 

width of any extension should be less than the 
gable width of the house.  However a proportional 
relationship should be achieved by ensuring that 
the diagonal angle across the gable from the foot 
of wall on one side to eaves on the other is similar.  
The roof pitch should match that of the original 
building. 

 
Lean-to Extensions 

 

7.10 In order to achieve a satisfactory 
proportion, such features should always 
have a greater eaves length than depth. 

 
Hipped Roof 

 
7.11 Hipped roofs should only be incorporated 

into extensions where the original building 
is fitted with a hipped roof, the only 
exception being in cases where there is a 
strong local design character of hipped 
roofs in the vicinity of your site.  

 
 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 243



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

18 

 

Key Points 

• Single storey extensions should not project more than 3 metres beyond a 45-
degree line drawn from the near edge of any ground floor rear-facing window 
to a habitable room in a neighbouring house. 

• Two storey extensions should not cross a 45-degree line drawn from the 
near edge of any ground floor rear-facing window to a habitable room in a 
neighbouring house. 

• Two-storey or first floor extensions should not project more than 3 metres 
beyond a 45-degree line drawn from the near edge of any first floor rear-
facing window to a habitable room in a neighbouring house. 

• There should be a distance of at least 12 metres between the windows of 
habitable rooms and any blank elevations of the extension, in order to 
maintain the amenity of the adjoining property. 

 
8 Extensions on Corner Plots 
 
8.1 Whilst extensions on corner plots should 

adhere to the guidance outlined elsewhere 
in this document, there are a number of 
further matters that require consideration. 

 
8.2 Corner plots are especially difficult as it is 

normally the case that such extensions will 
need to achieve a degree of streetscape 
cohesion with two differing urban forms.  

 
Key Points 

• Corner extensions are visible from a number of locations, it will therefore be 
especially important that a high standard of design and detailing is 
implemented. 

• There may be distinct building lines for both streets; any extension will need 
to adhere to all building lines to avoid becoming an incongruous feature 
within the streetscape. 

 
9 House Extensions in Rural Areas 
 
9.1 Chorley Borough includes large areas of attractive countryside and special care will be 

taken by the Local Planning Authority when considering applications for the need to 
protect their open and rural character.  The overall aim is to prevent substantial 
additional buildings in open countryside where development is not normally allowed.  
This includes areas shown in the Local Plan as Green Belt, Safeguarded Land and 
Open Countryside.  There may be circumstances in which an extension to an existing 
dwelling, or the replacement of the dwelling, is acceptable providing the new dwelling is 
not materially larger than the original. 

 
9.2 Over-large and poorly designed extensions and outbuildings can diminish the openness 

and attractiveness of these rural areas.  Within the Green Belt Policy DC8A states that 
permission will be granted for the rebuilding and extension of dwellings should not 
detract from the openness of the Green Belt to a greater extent than the original 
dwelling.  Three further criteria apply to all rural dwellings in that they should not detract 
from landscape character, in the case of replacement dwellings be materially larger than 
the building it replaces, and that extensions should not result in a significant increase in 
the volume of the original dwelling.   

 
9.3 Proposals for replacement dwellings will be dealt with on a similar basis as the policy for 

extensions.  In order to retain control over the future development of the site both 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 244



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

19 

policies advise that permitted development rights may be removed in certain 
circumstances.   

 
The ‘Original Dwelling’ 

 
9.4 The policy refers to the concept of the ‘original dwelling’.  The original dwelling is that as 

existing on 1 July 1948 or, if constructed more recent, as originally built.  Where planning 
permission has previously been granted for a replacement dwelling, the term original 
dwelling will refer to that which has been replaced not the new building.  If a dwelling has 
been replaced with a larger property, this may mean that any further extensions are 
inappropriate.  Likewise, where planning permission has been granted and remains 
extant, or extensions to the property have been built, these will be taken into account 
when assessing the appropriateness of further extensions.  

 
House Extensions 

 
9.5 House extension will include any extension of the dwelling, including basements, roof 

conversions, and conservatories.  Basements and roof conversions often need planning 
permission and their impact will be assessed not only on the physical impact of the built 
form, but also on the intensification of the use of the site.  Conservatories, although of 
lighter construction than most conventional buildings, are a common means of providing 
additional habitable rooms and will be treated under the same policies as other forms of 
house extension.  Extensions should not be disproportionate to the original house.  As 
set out in the policies in the Development Plan the main way of assessing the 
appropriateness of extensions will be by comparing the volume of the resultant dwelling 
to that of the original dwelling.  Extensions, including any other built or approved 
extensions, should not exceed more than 50% of the volume of the original house. 

 
9.6 This figure is a maximum and will not be applicable in all circumstances.  For example, 

only very minor alterations and extensions will normally be allowed to converted former 
agricultural buildings, so as to protect their special character.  Equally, on existing very 
large dwellings a 50% extension could have a significant impact.   

 
9.7 Whilst every application will be taken on their individual merits, the following points 

should be borne in mind: 
 

• Irrespective of the 50%, extensions should not normally exceed 375m3; 

• They should be closely related to the scale and form of the main property and 
should not create unduly long elevations; 

• They should not normally exceed the height of the existing dwelling. 
 

Outbuildings 
 
9.8 Any proposed outbuildings (e.g. detached garages, stables, summerhouses etc.) will 

receive careful consideration.  Outbuildings should appear subordinate and 
commensurate in scale and function to the original house.  Outbuildings should normally 
be sited close to the house; otherwise they may intrude into the open rural character of 
the area to which garden areas can make an important contribution.  The size of any 
outbuilding must be commensurate with the replaced or extended property.  It is 
unlikely that planning permission will be forthcoming for more the equivalent of a double 
garage, a small shed, and a small greenhouse on a single dwelling. 

 
9.9 It has been the case in the past that garages have been developed embodying ‘storage’ 

space above which has later been converted to habitable rooms.  This form of covert 
extension would not be acceptable.  Any space above ground floor should be limited 
solely to storage use.  Such space should not be capable of later conversion to 
residential use. 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 245



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

20 

 
Garden Extensions 

 
9.10 Extensions to garden areas and curtilages are inappropriate development in rural areas.  

They change the character and appearance of the land and encourage the erection of 
ancillary structures and domestic paraphernalia that significantly intrudes upon the 
character and appearance of the area.   

 
9.11 Any extension to a dwelling or outbuilding that relies upon an extension of the curtilage 

will not normally be acceptable.  Where permission has historically been given for a 
curtilage extension, and permitted development rights removed, permission not be 
granted for any further structures on the land. 

 
10 Conservatories 
 
10.1 Conservatories are a popular means to extend properties.  As they constitute an 

extension, the design should take into account the guidance within this document to 
ensure a satisfactory relationship with the original building. 

 
10.2 Many buildings may not be capable of extension with a conservatory.  It is often the case 

that small simple dwellings are of insufficient scale and detail to accommodate a 
conservatory, without causing severe detriment to the architectural quality of the 
building. 

 
10.3 Should the principle be acceptable, the design should relate to the original building.  For 

instance a highly detailed conservatory, with fussy period detailing such as finials, is 
unlikely to be suitable for a simple rural building with limited detailing.  Many modern ‘off 
the shelf’ conservatory designs are not suitable for traditional buildings and are unlikely 
to be acceptable. 

 
10.4 Where dwarf walls are to be incorporated into the design they should be of a material 

and finish compatible with the original building. 
 
10.5 Conservatories sited adjacent to a boundary with a neighbour should have a solid side, 

or be obscure glazed, or be screened by a fence or wall.  The elevation facing the 
neighbour should not contain any opening windows. 

 
Key Points 

• Many properties cannot accommodate a conservatory extension due to their 
size or design. 

• Design and detailing of any conservatory should relate to that of the original 
building. 

• Conservatories adjacent to a boundary with a neighbour should have a solid 
side, be obscure glazed, or be screened by a fence or wall.  This elevation 
should not contain any opening windows. 

 
11 Dormers, Rooflights and Roof Extensions 
 

Dormers 
 
11.1 Throughout the Borough, there are many examples of badly designed and executed 

dormer windows; these cause detriment to the character of the buildings to which they 
are attached, due to their prominent position.  

 
11.2 Dormers are unlikely to be acceptable on the front elevations of properties, due to their 

prominence, unless such features are typical of the local area in which the property is 
situated.  Where they are acceptable on the front elevation they should cumulatively fill 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 246



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

21 

 

 

less than 1/3rd of the width of the roof slope on which they are sited.  Rear dormer 
windows should cumulatively fill less than 2/3rds of the width of the roof.  In either 
respect a dormer window should be set at least 1 metre from the flank wall of the house, 
or the boundary line with the adjoining property. 

 

11.3 Dormer windows will not be acceptable if they are built off the house walls or project 
above the ridge of the roof, they should be designed with care, to be subordinate to the 
roof structure.  Flat roof dormers do not sit comfortably with pitched roofs and are 
unlikely to be acceptable, particularly on front elevations.  

 
11.4 Where dormers are considered acceptable, they should be designed to complement the 

original building in terms of style, detailing and materials.  The roof should normally 
match that of the original roof.  The size of the cheeks of dormer windows, i.e. the part 
between the window and the side edge, should be kept to a minimum and should be of 
vertically hanging slate or lead.  The dormer window should also be limited in height, 
normally to that of the height of the window. 

 
Rooflights 

 
11.5 Rooflights often represent an easy opportunity to 

obtain natural light into loft conversions or your roof 
space.  They should wherever possible be 
restricted to the rear or least visible elevations of 
the original building. 

 
11.6 Rooflights should not be used excessively, to avoid 

an unacceptable level of clutter on the roof of the 
original building.  If more than one is proposed on 
any roof plane, they should be the same size and 
symmetrically sited. 

 
11.7 Rooflights should also not be sited opposite each other on both roof slopes.  This is in 

order to prevent light penetrating the roof, giving a ‘hole in the roof’ appearance.  
 
11.8 Flush fitting ‘conservation style’ rooflights should be used wherever possible, and are the 

only type likely to be acceptable on listed buildings and in conservation areas. 
 

Roof Extensions 
 
11.9 Increasing the height of a dwelling by amending the roof pitch of eaves height, will 

significantly affect the character and proportion of the building.  This will impact upon the 
building itself, along with its surrounding streetscape. 

 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 247



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

22 

 

Drawing showing acceptable siting 
of turbines 

11.10 Such extensions are unlikely to 
be acceptable in suburban 
areas, where roof pitches and 
heights are the same, as they 
will cause detriment to the 
streetscape altering its rhythm 
and form.  

 
Key Points 

• Dormers are unlikely to 
be acceptable on the 
front elevations of properties. 

• Dormers should appear subordinate to the roof, complementing its design 
and form. 

• Rooflights should where possible be limited to rear or least visible 
elevations. 

• Excessive numbers of rooflights are not acceptable.  Where more than one is 
proposed they should be of the same size and sited symmetrically. 

 
12 Solar Panels and Wind Turbines 
 
12.1 Chorley Borough Council is committed to the promotion of sustainable energy sources 

being incorporated into domestic dwellings.  Many of the technologies are applicable at 
a micro scale for integration into new and refurbished buildings or ‘retro-fitted’ to existing 
structures. 

 
Solar Panels 

 
12.2 Planning permission is not always required when installing solar panels to existing 

buildings, particularly where roof-mounted panels do not exceed the ridge height or are 
fitted flush with the external plane of any roof slope.  This, however, may not apply within 
Conservation Areas and upon Listed Buildings where planning permission and/or listed 
building consent may be required. 

 
12.3 Where solar panels are proposed their fitting should, wherever possible, follow the same 

principles as rooflights with their being sited on least visible slopes, equally spaced upon 
the roof away from the eaves or verges, and ideally should be flush fitting.  

 
12.4 However as their efficiency is dependent on siting and orientation, rear slope siting may 

not prove effective and thus consideration may be given to their siting on more visible 
slopes.  Wherever they are proposed they should be fitted flat against the roof to ensure 
the minimum impact upon the roofs profile. 

 
12.5 Highly visible solar panels are unlikely to be 

acceptable in sensitive areas such as 
Conservation Areas or on Listed Buildings.  

 
Wind Turbines 

 
12.6 Building mounted and small freestanding turbines 

have a strong contemporary design that will often 
contrast with traditional buildings and streetscapes.  
Where they are to be incorporated into traditional 
forms and layouts care will be needed to ensure 
that their siting does not cause detriment to the 
historic form.  Design solutions should be sought 
that minimise the views of the turbine and avoid 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 248



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

23 

Drawing showing unacceptable 
siting of turbines 

wherever possible their siting in prominent locations.  The location should also be 
selected so as to avoid impacting unduly on neighbouring properties. 

 
12.7 Building-mounted turbines should, so far as 

practicable, be sited so as to minimise their effect 
on the external appearance of the building and 
streetscape, for example upon non-public frontages 
and below the highest part of the roof or chimney.  
This may mean that they have to be sited in location 
that is not as effective as other, more prominent 
locations.  A balance should be sought between the 
visual impact of the proposal and its performance. 

 
12.8 In terms of all forms of sustainable energy device, it 

is advised that you contact the planning department 
at an early stage to discuss design and siting 
issues. 

 
Key Points 

• Solar panels should be sited where possible, on least visible elevations and 
as flat against the roof plane as possible. 

• Highly visible solar panels are unlikely to be acceptable in sensitive areas 
such as Conservation Areas or on Listed Buildings. 

• Building mounted wind turbines should be carefully sited, to minimise any 
impact on the building or streetscape. 

 
 
13 Balconies & Terraces 
 
13.1 The installation of balconies and terraces is always problematic, and in many cases 

unacceptable.  In most suburban areas they will lead to an unacceptable level of 
overlooking of neighbouring properties, exacerbating many of the overlooking issues 
outlined elsewhere in this document.  

 
13.2 One solution that can be considered is to incorporate some form of privacy screen to 

overcome the overlooking of the neighbouring property.  Should this idea be considered, 
it is imperative that you consider the impact any screen will have on your neighbour’s 
property in terms of overbearing and enclosure.  Privacy screens can also significantly 
increase the visual impact of a proposal, particularly in terms of design, bulk and mass, 
and they should be used only in appropriate circumstances.  Ideally they should be 
designed into the fabric of the extension rather than appear as an afterthought addition. 

 
Key points 

• Balconies or terraces, which lead to an unacceptable level of overlooking, 
will not be acceptable. 

 
14 Garages and Outbuildings 
 
14.1 It is important to consider and understand that garages and other outbuildings, whether 

or not they require planning permission, can have similar impacts on the amenity of 
neighbours as other extensions.  Equally as with extensions, such features should 
respect the scale, character and materials of the original property. 

 
14.2 It will rarely be acceptable to site such buildings in front of the original property, as such 

developments would dominate the streetscape, and fail to respect any established 
building lines.  Ideally garages at the side of the original building should be set back from 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 249



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

24 

 

the main building line, with ample space for car 
parking and turning in front of the garage. 

 
14.3 Outbuildings should be constructed in a style that 

reflects the original building, taking a design lead 
from its materials, detailing and proportion.  Garage 
doors should be the width of a single car to 
minimise their visual impact upon their 
surroundings. 

 
14.4 Care must always be taken to ensure that any 

outbuildings do not lead to an unacceptable level of 
overshadowing of neighbouring properties.  

 
Key Points 

• Proposals should respect the design, 
materials and form of the original building 
and surrounding streetscape. 

• The siting of such buildings should 
respect established building lines. 

• A minimum 6 metres length parking space should be provided between any 
garage and the highway. 

 
15 Access and Parking 
 
15.1 The design of extensions must not involve the loss of existing off-street parking 

provision, unless it can be illustrated that such provision can be provided elsewhere 
within the curtilage, without causing detriment to the overall streetscape, an 
unacceptable loss of amenity space, or causing a danger to highway safety.  

 
15.2 Parking should generally be provided at a ratio of 1 space for a single bed dwelling, 2 

spaces for a two or three bed dwelling, and 3 spaces for a larger property.  This will 
include garages.  Car parking spaces are 2.5m by 5.5m.  Parking spaces in front of a 
garage should be 2.5m by 6m.  Relaxation of the parking standards may be accepted in 
highly accessible locations. 

 
15.3 On main through roads, such as classified roads or roads with a speed limit greater than 

30mph, turning should be provided within the site as part of proposals.  Proposals that 
result in the loss of existing manoeuvring facilities are unlikely to be acceptable.  Where 
gates are proposed, they should be set so as to allow a vehicle to pull off the 
carriageway to await their opening.  This allows for both people accessing the premises 
and for visitors and delivery vehicles to park.  In this respect gates should be set at least 
5 metres from the back edge of the footpath and open into the site.  Appropriate visibility 
will also need to be provided, the standards for which will vary depending on the site.   

 
15.4 Further detailed or technical advice can be obtained from the County Council who are 

the Highways Authority for the area. 
 
16 Works to Front Curtilage Areas 
 
16.1 The treatment of frontage boundaries contributes a great deal to the character of 

buildings and the wider streetscape.  Therefore applications to remove or substantially 
alter such features are unlikely to be acceptable due to the detriment that is caused to 
the streetscape.  

 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 250



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

25 

16.2 Associated with this, a popular solution to ever-increasing car parking problems is to 
surface front curtilage areas.  Once again this alters the setting of the building and 
streetscape, often causing detriment and is unlikely to be acceptable. 

 
Key points 

• Proposals to remove front curtilage boundary treatments and surface 
curtilage areas for parking are unlikely to be acceptable. 

 
17 Boundary Treatments 
 
17.1 Boundary treatments, whether traditional or modern, contribute a great deal to the 

streetscape.  They define areas of private space and often make a positive contribution 
to the setting of the building.  Poorly designed boundary treatments can undermine the 
quality of the buildings, and the wider character of the area. 

 
17.2 The removal of such features alters the hierarchy of spaces, making it difficult to identify 

where public space ends and private space starts, this gives the streetscape a very 
confused and awkward rhythm.  

 
17.3 Where new boundary treatments are proposed, care must be taken to ensure that the 

materials and detailing utilised takes a lead from its surroundings.  Care should also be 
taken to ensure that proposed walls and fences do not cause detriment to neighbours, 
avoiding excessive overbearing arrangements.  Such treatments can make it almost 
impossible for your property to engage with the streetscape. 

 
17.4 Where estates are open plan, or have a distinctive sylvan character, walls and fences at 

the front of the property are unlikely to be acceptable.  The character of the estate is 
derived from its open or landscaped environment and physical built barriers will 
significantly detract from that character.  Likewise, such development, which would 
obstruct visibility on adjacent highways, or would otherwise cause highways danger, will 
also be unacceptable. 

 
17.5 In rural areas, walls and fences in prominent locations are most unlikely to be 

acceptable.  Typical treatments that are more likely to be acceptable in these areas are 
agricultural style post and rail or post and wire fencing reinforced with appropriate hedge 
planting (native species). 

 
Key Points 

• The removal or substantial alteration of historic boundary treatments is 
unlikely to be acceptable. 

• Boundary treatments should be designed in materials and details that 
respect the surrounding streetscape. 

• Boundary treatments must not be oppressive and should allow the building 
to remain engaged with the wider streetscape. 

 
18 Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas 
 
18.1 Chorley Borough contains a substantial number of buildings of historical and 

architectural significance; these are designated as Listed Buildings.  Equally there are a 
number of areas of the Borough, which hold historical significance.  These have been 
designated as Conservation Areas, and are listed below: 

 

• St George’s Street, Chorley 

• St Lawrence’s, Chorley 

• Abbey Village 

• Bretherton 

• Brindle 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 251



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

26 

• Croston, as amended in November 2001 

• Rivington 

• White Coppice 

• Withnell Fold 
 
18.2 Tighter planning controls apply to both Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas to 

protect their historic character and significance.  Whilst it may be possible to alter and 
extend your property, such proposals often require a greater understanding and 
assessment of the buildings significance.  Any proposals should also be submitted with a 
justification statement, which demonstrates that your proposal takes into account this 
significance and avoids causing detriment. 

 
18.3 Whilst many of the guidelines within this document will be relevant in such cases it is 

strongly recommended that you contact the Council for advice prior to undertaking 
detailed design works on such buildings. 

 
Key points 

• Extensions should be designed to specifically preserve or enhance the 
special character of Conservation Areas. 

• Extensions to listed buildings should respect the character and scale of the 
original building and be designed to complement that character. 

• Proposals for extensions should be discussed with the Council prior to any 
detailed design works being undertaken. 

 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 252



HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp0.doc 

27 

19 Conclusions and Checklist for Avoiding Common Mistakes 
 
19.1 As emphasised throughout this guide, the key to designing any extension is appreciate 

the character and format of both the building but also the surrounding streetscape.  
Through this assessment a clearer picture can be established of what form of extension 
will sit comfortably in its context.  

 
19.2 Sadly whilst most applications are successful, some are refused, often because 

mistakes have been made during the design process.  In particular care should be taken 
to avoid the following: 

 

• Limited contextual analysis so that the proposal does not respect the building or its 
wider streetscape. 

• Use of a standard design used elsewhere that fails to respect the character of the 
area. 

• Lack of a clear design rationale and concept that takes blends the building into its 
context. 

• Lack of commitment to a quality outcome and consequent failure to respect 
architectural principles or traditions. 

• Competent contextual analysis, but no evidence that this has informed the design 
solution put forward. 

• A lack of clarity in the plans submitted making it very difficult to understand exactly 
what is being proposed. 

• Cases where external design becomes a secondary issue behind internal layout. 

• A proposal that is poorly designed with little interest in its surroundings, 
compromising the streetscape and neighbours amenity. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
Appendices will include: 
 

1 Planning Policies 
2 Definitions/Glossary 
3 An application checklist  

 

Agenda Item 14 Agenda Page 253



Agenda Page 254

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

Updated Template April 2006  

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Development and 
Regeneration (Introduced by 

Executive Member for Economic 
Regeneration and Regeneration) 

Executive Cabinet 29 June 2006 

CENTRAL LANCASHIRE CITY – LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK 
CORE STRATEGY – JOINT ISSUES AND OPTIONS PAPER 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1. To present the joint Issues and Options Paper and to approve it for consultation purposes. 
 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

 
2. This matter particularly relates to the Strategic Objectives to put Chorley at the heart of 

regional economic development in the Central Lancashire Sub-Region and develop the 
character and feel of Chorley as a good place to live. 

 
RISK ISSUES 
3. The issue raised and recommendations made in this report involve risk considerations in 

the following categories: 
 

Strategy � Information � 

Reputation � Regulatory/Legal � 

Financial  Operational � 

People  Other  

 
4. Although there are numerous advantages in working jointly there are risks if the process 

is not properly managed and not done in a transparent way. 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

5. Of all the Local Development Framework (LDF) documents the Core Strategy is of prime 
importance.  It sets the overall strategic planning approach by interpreting the Regional 
Spatial Strategy at the local level.  All other Development Plan Documents that make up the 
LDF have to conform with the Core Strategy. 

 
6. The issues and options stage is the first in the preparation of an LDF Development Plan 

Document.  For Core Strategy preparation it is proposed to do this stage jointly with the 
three Councils working together.  This is because many of the issues appear to be common 
across the combined area and there is the potential to solve these jointly in ways that offer 
greater benefits than would be achieved by trying to pursue them separately. Joint working 
also offers economies of scale, will enable consultees common to the three districts to 
respond once instead of to three separate documents and it enables a consistent approach 
to involvement to be followed. 

 
7. The proposal at this stage is to merely carry out the issues and options stage as a combined 

exercise.  It does not commit the authorities to continue to work up a joint Core Strategy at 
subsequent stages.  However starting in this way will enable a joint Core Strategy to be 
produced and finally adopted but each stage will need separate approval of each Council’s 

 

Agenda Item 15Agenda Page 255



Cabinet (and Full Council).  The Government is supportive of joint working in this way.  Each 
Council will be free to prepare all other Development Plan Documents separately but there 
may well be other opportunities to work jointly if that is subsequently agreed. 

 
8. Joint work on a Core Strategy does raise a number of potential problems.  Chorley have 

already done consultation (in September/October 2004) on potential LDF issues and options 
as the culmination of several months work involved in reviewing the Community Strategy.  
So this would partially be a repeat of that work which may confuse local people and 
organisations in this Borough.  Also combined work may be seen by some as the three 
authorities seeking to prepare the way to become one unitary Council in the future.  Joint 
LDF working does not depend on or presume such a change.  These potential problems 
could distract attention from the planning merits of combined working so they will need to be 
faced head-on to clearly explain the authorities’ intentions. 

 
9. Councils have a lot of discretion on how to consult and involve organisations and individuals 

at the issues and options stage.  There are no set time periods or prescribed techniques 
although the methods of consultation used should conform to the minimum set out in each 
authority’s Statement of Community Involvement.  There is not even a requirement to 
produce an issues and options paper although this is generally what is done to offer some 
ideas and encourage participation and responses. 

 
10. The Government puts great store in extensive community involvement at the early stages of 

Development Plan Document preparation. The issues and options stage should not be seen 
as comprising a single consultation event but be made up of various involvement activities 
forming a continuous process.  The intention is to try to reveal all the relevant issues and 
potential options for solving them before a preferred set of options are selected for the next 
stage of consultation.  Some options will complement one another, others will be in 
opposition.  The most important aspect is not to rule out or foreclose any way forward at this 
stage.  Respondents need to feel encouraged to offer their own ideas without being inhibited 
by what appears in the report. 

 
11. The intention is to start the community involvement in September this year.  At later stages 

of Development Plan Preparation the consultation periods are prescribed as being six weeks 
long.  There is no such regulation at the issues and options stage so a longer period could 
be adopted.  For the three authorities there are no particularly pressing time constraints 
although in Chorley other LDF documents will be out for six weeks consultation in 
September.  Also the Regional Spatial Strategy Examination in Public starts at the very end 
of October so Officer time commitments to prepare for and attend that event need to be 
taken into account.  Officers propose that they be left discretion as to what engagement 
methods are used and how long this first phase of community involvement takes place and 
what types of on going dialogue is pursued. The next, formal stage, of involvement (into 
preferred options) is not due until to take place until September 2007. 

 

ISSUES AND OPTIONS 
 
12. The text of the proposed Issues and Options Paper is attached for Members consideration.  

It is proposed that the published version will be presented in colour with photographs to 
encourage interest. It will also need some maps as well as other graphics to show key 
statistics and trends. Successful involvement also depends on evidence being made 
available to support the substance of the issues. Additional factual information may need to 
be added to the paper or a separate technical annex produced. The paper identifies possible 
issues and options for solving them under eight themes. This is just one way of grouping the 
issues. For future stages it may prove appropriate to present topics in a different way. 
However the themes suggested are: 

 

• Locating new development; 

• Meeting housing needs; 

Agenda Item 15Agenda Page 256



• Fulfilling economic growth; 

• Improving accessibility; 

• Protecting the environment; 

• Improving the quality of life; 

• Sustaining rural areas; 

• Thriving centres. 
 
13. Initial consultation has been carried out as to whether these themes are likely to cover all the 

relevant spatial planning issues in the three authorities’ areas.  Contact has been made with 
the Government Office for the North West, North West Regional Assembly, North West 
Development Agency, Lancashire County Council and the three Local Strategic Partnerships 
covering Chorley, Preston and South Ribble.  Some comments have been received and 
attempts made to reflect the views in the worked up paper. 

 
14. The Government is keen to see Local Development Frameworks well related to Community 

Strategies which is why each local one (plus Ambition Lancashire) are referred to near the 
start of the paper.  Full recognition of other relevant strategies is also set out. A proposed 
vision is suggested although again this is presented as a draft for consultation. 

 
15. Under each theme a summary of the local characteristics is set out leading to an objective 

for the end date (2021) of the Core Strategy, as a lead-in to presenting a number of issues.  
The options under each issue can be combined in some instances or be discrete but 
respondents are each time asked to consider whether anything is missing and suggest their 
own solutions. 

 
16. Sustainability Appraisal (SA), aimed at reducing adverse social, environmental and economic 

impacts and maximising benefits, is a key part of Local Development Framework production.  
For the Core Strategy issues and options paper initial SA scoping work has been done and 
indications of the potential impacts of the options will be included in a separate 
accompanying report and/or as part of the published paper so as to guide respondents. 

 

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
17. There are no immediate Human Resources implications of this report although in future 

there could be a sharing of staff resources with potential savings. 
 
 
COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
18. The existing Local Development Framework budget can meet most of the costs arising 

from joint working including the joint commissioning of appropriate studies.  If further 
funding is needed it could be made available through the Planning Delivery Grant. 

 

CONCLUSION 
 
19. The Issues and Options Paper has been considered by a joint meeting of the three 

authorities Local Development Framework member working groups and aims to identify the 
key strategic spatial planning issues affecting Central Lancashire City.  It tries to do this in a 
thought provoking way to encourage participants to respond to these as well as offering their 
own options for solving problems.  It represents the start of a process that will enable a joint 
Core Strategy to be produced and therefore allow a comprehensive and co-ordinated 
approach to spatial planning across the three authorities. 

 

Agenda Item 15Agenda Page 257



RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
20. That the text of the Issues and Options Paper be approved (subject to Full Council 

ratification) as a consultation document subject to any major changes proposed by either 
Preston or South Ribble Councils being approved by an Executive Member Decision and 
minor revisions of a factual or technical nature being delegated to the Director of 
Development and Regeneration. 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
21. To ensure the paper is fully supported by all three Councils and is properly presented for 

consultation purposes. 
 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
 
22. The only alternative would be to work separately on producing an individual Core Strategy 

for Chorley but this would limit the scope to solve issues and miss the economies of scale 
associated with combined working. 

 
 

JANE E MEEK 
DIRECTOR OF DEVELOPMENT AND REGENERATION 

 
 
 

There are no background papers to this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Julian Jackson 5280 12 June 2006 PLAREP/92779AJS 

 

Agenda Item 15Agenda Page 258



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

1 

CENTRAL LANCASHIRE CITY CORE STRATEGY  
ISSUES AND OPTIONS PAPER 

FINAL DRAFT - JUNE 2006 

 
 
 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The aim of the paper is to stimulate the debate about the key planning issues in the 
three local authority areas of Preston, Chorley and South Ribble and the options for 
dealing with them. It marks the start of the process of planning positively for the 
future of the area.   
 
The three authorities have decided to work together in preparing this document 
because the three individual areas are in fact very closely related and have much in 
common. 
 
All three authorities are committed to engaging with the public, businesses and with 
public and voluntary sector organisations across the whole area right at start of the 
process so your views can be heard and you can help shape the future.       
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Local Development Framework 
 
Recent reforms to the planning system seek to make plan preparation faster, more 
responsive to change and place greater emphasis on community involvement.   All 
three authorities are required to produce a Local Development Framework (known as 
a LDF).  This will be made up of individual documents known as Local Development 
Documents (LDDs).  An early LDD to be produced will be the Core Strategy and this 
will set the framework for the production of subsequent LDDs.  
 
The LDFs will replace the local plans for Preston, Chorley and South Ribble and 
guide development up to 2021. Whilst this paper relates to the Core Strategy, each 
authority has set out its timescales for producing other LDDs in its Local 
Development Scheme (LDS). 
 
Core Strategy 
 
In the case of all three authorities, the Core Strategy is the first main non-topic 
specific document of each LDF to be produced.  It will set out the vision, objectives 
and spatial strategy for the whole area which draws upon the Community Strategies 
and Corporate Plans for each authority and other strategies which have implications 
for the development and use of land. 
 
The three authorities have agreed to work together in producing a Core Strategy as 
the  individual areas are strongly inter-connected in terms of: 
 

• The local housing market 

• The local economy 

• The role of Preston City Centre. 
 
It therefore makes sense to plan positively at the strategic level for the whole area 
rather than three areas in isolation. 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 259



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

2 

 
The Core Strategy is likely to contain policies which will cover key strategic matters 
relevant to the following Themes: 
 

• Locating new development 

• Meeting housing needs 

• Fulfilling economic growth 

• Improving accessibility 

• Protecting the environment 

• Improving the quality of life 

• Sustaining rural areas 

• Thriving centres 
 
These themes have been the subject of initial consultation with the Government 
Office for the North West, North West Regional Assembly, North West Development 
Agency, Lancashire County Council and the Local Strategic Partnerships in Chorley, 
Preston and South Ribble. However depending on the responses received to the 
paper during the wider consultation stages, it may prove appropriate to present future 
policies in a different way to this. 
 
The Core Strategy will be accompanied by a key diagram which illustrates the 
policies.  It will also contain a monitoring and implementation framework. 
 
NEXT STAGES 
 
The publication of this paper marks the start of wide ranging community involvement. 
The creation of the Core Strategy will go through a number of stages of preparation 
after this initial stage of identifying issues and possible options for solving them. The 
intention is that at each stage the content of the Strategy becomes more established 
until it is finalised at the adoption stage. 
 
Preferred Options – preferred ways forward without ruling out alternatives -
September 2007 
Submission of preferred strategy to GovernmentApril 2008 
Examination including possible public inquiryOctober 2008 
Adoption of finalised strategyJuly 2009 
 
 
CONTEXT 
 
The LDF is being prepared by each authority in consultation with its partners and the 
residents and businesses of the area.  The LDFs cannot be prepared in isolation and 
must take account of the following: 
 
National and Regional Planning Policy 
 
Planning Policy Guidance notes (PPGs) and Planning Policy Statements 
(PPSs):  These set out government priorities across a wide range of planning issues. 
 
Northern Way Growth Strategy:  
 
The Northern Way is a government strategy for the three regions of the North of 
England drawn up in an attempt to address the significant difference in economic 
performance between the north and London and the south east. It has a two pronged 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 260



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

3 

approach; one, traditional, with a focus on dealing with areas of need/deprivation, the 
other a recognition that to deliver the transformation required, areas of natural 
economic growth should be fully utilised to fuel growth throughout the northern 
regions. This second part of the approach has been focussed on making maximum 
use of the opportunities that exist in the city regions of the north. In the north-west, 
Central Lancashire, along with Manchester and Liverpool, is identified as a result of 
its strong economic performance particularly in recent times.  
 
Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS):   
 
The Regional Spatial Strategy for North West England is currently being reviewed. 
The new draft RSS was submitted to the Government in January 2006 and was the 
subject of consultation between March and June. It will be examined in 
October/November this year before being approved and issued it its final form in the 
autumn of 2007 when it will replace County Structure Plans. The RSS is part of the 
development plan covering the three districts. The Core Strategy for Preston, Chorley 
and South Ribble – the Central Lancashire City - has to be in general conformity with 
it.   The RSS needs to be aligned with the Northern Way Growth Strategy which 
identifies Central Lancashire as one of the City Regions to generate growth in the 
North of England. The RSS includes a regional transport strategy and takes account 
of the Regional Housing Strategy. 
 
Regional Economic Strategy:  
 
The Northwest Development Agency’s (NWDA) revised Northwest Regional 
Economic Strategy (RES) is a 20 year rolling strategy to shape the future economic 
direction of the Northwest region.  The region has a £98 billion economy, and 
contains 6.8 million people and 230,000 firms.  The strategy is geared towards 
reducing the region’s £13 billion output gap (compared with the average for England) 
and creating and maintaining the conditions for sustainable growth and private sector 
investment.  
 
The objective of the RES is to address three major drivers for growth to achieve the 
strategy’s vision and to close the output gap with the average for England.  The 
drivers are to: 
 
� Improve productivity and grow the market (which accounts for £10 billion of the 

output gap). 

� Grow the size and capability of the workforce (£3 billion of the output gap is due 
to fewer people working). 

� Create and maintain the conditions for sustainable growth. 

 
These are supported by a range of Transformational Actions, comprising a prioritised 
list of major projects. 
 
The RES is being taken forward more locally through a Lancashire Economic 
Strategy and Sub-Regional Action Plan 2006 / 07(LEP) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 261



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

4 

Sub-regional and Local Policies and Strategies 
 
Central Lancashire City Sub Regional Strategy:  
 
The Central Lancashire City Region (CLCR) as defined in the Northern Way covers 
all of Lancashire except for Lancaster and West Lancashire Districts.  The RSS will 
include a sub regional strategy for the CLCR.  Chorley, Preston and South Ribble 
comprise the city ‘core’ of Central Lancashire, and the three councils are concerned 
that these proposals to date do not adequately embrace the opportunity for economic 
growth in the Central Lancashire City Region. They have therefore commissioned a  
Central Lancashire City Sub Regional Study which will be put forward to the regional 
planning body as evidence of the special role that the city of Central Lancashire has 
now and will have in the future in implementing the growth agenda set out in 
Northern Way. Consequently there is some uncertainty as to the eventual form and 
content of that part of the RSS relating to the core of Central Lancashire. The final 
content of the sub regional policies will of course be of vital importance to the Core 
Strategy  and the extent of development in the three districts. 
 
Central Lancashire City Vision:   
 
A new Vision for the City has been developed by the three Councils based on 
independent evidence about the area’s growth potential.  This will form the  be a key 
influence for the Core Strategy.   
 
This Vision includes: 
 

• The development, such as proposed in the Tithebarn Regeneration Area of 
Preston City Centre into a more vibrant place to shop, live and work. New 
development will enable it to function as an alternative to Manchester and 
Liverpool for shopping and leisure. Chorley and Leyland town centres will 
develop to provide a complementary range of services. 

• New jobs in Preston City Centre, at major new developments throughout 
Central Lancashire City, and associated with the potential of the University of 
Central Lancashire. Many of these jobs will be in new and growing sectors of 
the economy.  

• Investment in public transport services, including park and ride, and 
improvements to the road system to relieve congestion and improve access to 
the City and town centres.  

• New housing to support the regeneration of Central Lancashire City, to provide 
a mix of house types to meet everyone’s needs. 

• Making better use of the River Ribble, Riversway Docklands, and the Lancaster 
Canal, with the possibility of new schemes in the longer term Identified in the 
“Riverworks” study. 1 

• Investment in major heritage and cultural assets, including parks and museums.  

• Helping the more deprived areas, including investment to improve peoples’ 
skills so that they can take advantage of the new jobs. 

 
 
 

                                                           
1
 Riverworks is a series of studies looking at ways of enhancing the natural water-based assets of the 

City. Work is ongoing to identify projects that can realistically be accomplished. 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 262



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

5 

Joint Lancashire Structure Plan 2001-2016:  
 
 Adopted in March 2005, the structure plan will remain part of the development plan 
for the area until it is replaced by the RSS. 
 
 
Lancashire Local Transport Plan 2006-2010:  
 
Prepared by the County Council, in association with District Councils, this Plan’s 
proposals cover the whole of Lancashire and include specific local programmes in  
Chorley, Preston and South Ribble. The Plan has 7 key objectives: 
 

• reduce road casualties  

• improve access to jobs and services  

• improve air quality  

• improve the condition of transport infrastructure  

• reduce delays on journeys  

• increase journeys by bus and rail  

• increase active travel. 

Potential Major Schemes in Central Lancashire City are: 

• A59 Penwortham Bypass 

• Preston Access Improvements 

Other initiatives specific to the City are: 

South Ribble 

• Leyland Town Centre Regeneration 

• Tardy Gate Air Quality Management Area Action Plan 

• Bamber Bridge Public Transport Initiatives 

• Accessibility Improvemnts to Employment Areas and Hospitals 

• School Travel plan Package 

Chorley 

• Eaves Green Link Road 

• Chorley Connect – Kickstart Bus Project 

• Buckshaw Railway Station and Park & Ride 

• Chorley Pedestrian Priority, Access and Parking 

• Accessibility Study of Chorley Borough 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 263



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

6 

 

Preston 

• Preston North Park & Ride Schemes 

• CiVITAS Sustainable Transport Project 

• Preston Guild Wheel Cycle Route and Cycle Hub 

• Preston Air Quality Junction Improvements 

• Preston Bus Station 

 
 
Lancashire Minerals and Waste  Development Framework:   
 
The preparation of planning policy relating to mineral extraction and waste disposal is 
the responsibility of the County Council who are currently preparing a Mineral and 
Waste LDF to replace the current Minerals and Waste Local Plan.   
 
 
 
Lancashire West Sub-Regional Housing Strategy Framework:  
 
The Sub Regional Housing Strategy Framework was completed in July 2005.  It 
provides an overview of the housing market in the following local authority areas:   
 
� Blackpool � Preston 

� Chorley � South Ribble 

� Fylde � West Lancashire 

� Lancaster � Wyre 

 
The strategy framework identifies a range of key housing issues and challenges 
facing the area including: 
 
� Inter-relationships between economic growth and diversification, specifically 

looking as higher value housing to attract and retain professionals and managers, 
and affordable housing to accommodate lower paid employees and key workers. 

� Scale and distribution of new housing. 
� Social housing. 
� Stock condition, specifically in the public and private rented sectors and mobile 

homes. 
� Demand issues, specifically looking at the impacts of an ageing population, 

household growth, reduction in household size, BME communities, and student 
housing. 

� Affordability. 
� Homelessness. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 264



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

7 

Community Strategies:  
 
 Each of the three authorities has its own Community Strategy produced by the 
respective local strategic partnership.  The County Council has also produced its own 
Community Strategy; “Ambition Lancashire”.  The LDF is a key component in 
delivering the spatial aspects of the community strategies.  Working with a wide 
range of stakeholders, the community strategies draw on a wide range of other 
strategies (such as housing, neighbourhood renewal, and open space strategies) to 
develop a vision and priorities for the areas.   
 
Ambition Lancashire: 
 

This sets out the strategic vision for the future for Lancashire for the next 20 years. It 
has been prepared by the Lancashire Partnership and the vision has the following 
themes for the County to achieve: 
 

• Economic prosperity through business growth and workforce skills. 

• First class travel accessibility and modern communication links. 

• Dynamic rural economy that is financially, socially and environmentally 
sustainable. 

• Where people choose to live, work and enjoy life. 

• Everyone enjoys learning and gains success. 

• Care, growth and development of children and young people is a top priority. 

• People are enabled to make good choices about their lifestyle and life 
expectancy is not related to income or social class. 

• Diversity is celebrated; tolerance and pride is embedded. 

• Strong sense of community responsibility and involvement. 

• Choice of good quality housing in successful, secure and sustainable 
communities. 

• Cultures that are rich, diverse and belong to all. 

• Cherished landscapes and urban areas playing their part to protect the global 
environment. 

 
 
The visions and priorities from the three district Community Strategies are: 
 
 
Preston 
 
Preston’s community strategy (2003-12) has a “Big Vision” which is: “To make 
Preston the Third City of the North West by 2012”.  Supporting this there are seven 
visions around the themes of culture, the environment, health and wellbeing, 
housing, learning, prosperity, and community safety.  Its three top priorities are: 
 

• the regeneration of the City Centre; 

• the reduction of crime; and 

• supporting and working with young people.  
 

There is an Action Plan which sets out how the Strategy will be implemented by the 
organisations in strategic partnership.  
 
Chorley 
 

Chorley Borough’s Community Strategy vision is : 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 265



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

8 

 
By 2025 Chorley will be recognised as the most sought after place to live and work in 
the North West, offering an excellent quality of life to all its residents, and will be at 
the heart of regional developments whilst retaining its character. 
 
The Priorities for the Future are: 
 

• Put Chorley at the heart of regional economic developments in the Central 
Lancashire sub-region 

• Reducing ‘Pockets Of Inequality’ 

• Getting people involved in their communities 

• Improving access to and take-up of public services 

• To develop the character and feel of Chorley as a good place to live 
 
The first priority is being taken forward in Chorley’s Economic Regeneration Strategy 
and an accompanying Chorley Town Centre Strategy. 
 
South Ribble 
 
The South Ribble’s Community Strategy vision is:   
 
South Ribble – a great place to live, work, visit and play. 
 

• A place to be proud to belong to and which goes from strength to strength 

• A place with a strong identity, making a major contribution to the wider sub-
region. 

• A place with diverse, dynamic communities, which work together for a better 
future. 

 
South Ribble – a place which has/is: 
  

• Safer communities 

• Healthy communities with decent affordable housing and ample cultural and 
leisure opportunities for all 

• A clean, green and sustainable environment. 

• Sustainable integrated transport for all. 

• A thriving and prosperous borough with education, learning and employment 
opportunities for all. 

• Supporting people with differing needs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 266



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

9 

VISION 
 
The Vision for the Core Strategy is influenced by the strategies mentioned in the 
previous section.  A suggested Vision is: 
 

 
The Central Lancashire City - comprising Preston, Chorley and 
South Ribble - will be recognised as Lancashire's economic driver 
where opportunities will be maximised.  It will be a centre of 
learning, have a varied cultural and historic landscape and be 
known for its sustainable communities, innovative and creative 
businesses, retail and leisure opportunities, and fine parks and 
open spaces.  The City will have a range of high quality and 
affordable housing to meet the needs of both existing residents 
and the new residents required to fulfil the City's economic growth 
potential. 

 
 
Question: Is the Vision the correct one for the LDF? 
 
Question: Are there any omissions from the Vision? 
 
Question: Does this Vision accurately portray the aspirations of the Community 
Strategies? 
 
   
Key spatial planning issues facing Chorley, Preston and South Ribble are presented 
on the following pages under 8 themes. Some issues are relevant to more than one 
theme. Each theme is introduced with some background information leading to an 
objective to be achieved by 2021. Each objective aims to contribute to realising the 
Vision. Issues – phrased as questions – are then set out with possible answers – 
suggested options for solving them. Some of the options can be combined; others 
are alternatives. Some initial sustainability appraisal work has been done to assess 
the likely social, economic and environmental impacts of the options. A summary of 
these impacts is set out to help respondents decide what options to support. 
 
It must be emphasised that this paper has been done as a way of encouraging 
involvement. There may well be other issues not referred to here that should also be 
considered and other options for solving these issues than those that appear in this 
paper. At this stage nothing has been ruled out or in. Representations on all matters 
to do with strategic, spatial planning are sought. To help you decide what 
representations to make you are asked to take account of the following questions. 
 
Question – Are there other topics not included in any theme which ought to be 
considered? 
 
Question – Is there a better way of presenting issues rather than in themes? 
 
Question – Are there other issues which have not been included in the paper that are 
of sufficient strategic importance to merit inclusion in the future Core Stategy? 
 
Question – Of the issues in the paper what options for solving them would you 
prefer? 
 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 267



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

10 

 
 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 268



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

11 

 
THEME 1.  LOCATING NEW DEVELOPMENT. 
 
Background 
 
1.1 There is an extensive central urban belt in the plan area from Adlington, 

Chorley and the developing Buckshaw Village in the south, Leyland and 
Bamber Bridge in the centre through to the city of Preston in the north. 
To the east, west and north are rural areas with villages and hamlets of 
various sizes. Most of the open countryside between these urban and 
rural settlements has long been designated as Green Belt.  

 
Settlement Policy 
 
1.2 The draft Regional Spatial Strategy identifies Preston as one of around 

30 Regional Centres/Cities/Towns in the North West where most new 
development will be concentrated. What is not clear however is the role 
the Regional Strategy intends for places immediately adjoining Preston 
such as Penwortham and Walton-le- Dale and connecting settlements as 
far south as Clayton Brook and Whittle-le-Woods as there is no policy 
reference to them. Adlington, Chorley and Leyland are designated as 
Key Service Centres where development in ‘rural areas’ should be 
concentrated. These are in fact urban centres in their own right and 
there are other such settlements in the plan area that similarly act as key 
service centres. The draft Regional Spatial Strategy also recognises that 
some villages act as local service centres and proposes that these be 
designated in Local Development Frameworks. 

 
Green Belt 
 
1.3 The Regional Spatial Strategy expects that the general extent of the 

Region’s Green Belt will be maintained but that it may be necessary for 
substantial changes to its boundaries in Lancashire, and other parts of 
the North West, after 2011. Before then the Strategy acknowledges 
there may be a need to pursue localised small scale Green Belt 
boundary changes through Local Development Frameworks. The Green 
Belt in the Central Lancashire City is long established and has served 
the area well.  However, in order to meet the development needs of the 
City in the most sustainable way, the review of Green Belt boundaries 
should be considered as an option.   

 
Previously Developed and Greenfield Land 
 
1.4 A key development principle of the Regional Spatial Strategy is making 

better use of land, buildings and infrastructure. The first priority is the 
use and re-use of existing buildings within settlements; secondly the use 
of previously developed land within built-up areas; and thirdly the 
development of other land that is well located in relation to houses, jobs, 
other services and infrastructure in settlements.  

 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 269



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

12 

1.5 This last option could include greenfield sites on the edges of urban 
areas, such as on land that has been safeguarded for possible 
development in the longer term. The Regional Spatial Strategy does not 
anticipate new settlements or major urban extensions but neither are 
they ruled out. The identified broad locations for regionally significant 
economic development are referred to later in this Issues and Options 
document, in the Fulfilling Economic Growth Theme. 

 
1.6 The Regional Spatial Strategy, in line with national planning guidance, 

expects most retail, leisure, office and other service development to be 
located within city and town centres. This is picked up in the Thriving 
Centres Theme (Theme 8) of this Issues and Options paper. 

 
 
Objective by 2021 
 
To have a sustainable network of urban and rural settlements, which meets 
development and service demands yet minimises the need to travel, 
particularly by car, and the use of greenfield land. 
 
Issue 1A  – How can urban development requirements best be satisfied? 
 

a) Concentrate most if not all development within Preston (including a 
definition of where this extends to) and the Key Service Centres  of 
Leyland,Chorley andAdlington. 

b) Identify other Key Service Centres and promote significant 
development here; or 

c) Encourage further development at Buckshaw Village; or 
d) Identify new urban extensions and new settlements; or 
e) A combination of the above; or 
f) Other locations? 

 
 
A brief summary of the Sustainability Appraisal work could be included after 
each issue 
 
 
Issue 1B  – How can rural development needs best be met? 
 

a) Designate larger villages as Local Service Centres and only allow 
development in and adjoining these settlements; or 

b) Allow development to meet local needs in each rural settlement not 
covered by Green Belt; or 

c) Allow single plot infilling in villages and hamlets covered by Green Belt; 
or 

d) A combination of the above; or 
e) In some other way? 

 
 
  

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 270



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

13 

Issue 1C  – When greenfield land is required for development what is the 
most appropriate type of site to develop? 
 

a) Unused greenfield sites within built-up areas; or 
b) Accessible non-Green Belt sites (such as safeguarded land) on the 

edge of settlements; or 
c) Land removed from the Green Belt; or 
d) A combination of the above; or 
e) Somewhere else? 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 271



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

14 

 
THEME 2: MEETING HOUSING NEEDS 
 

Background 
 
2.1 A central theme of delivering sustainable communities is to ensure that 

everyone is able to access and afford decent housing suitable for their 
needs.  In such a situation, the housing market could be described as 
“balanced”.  Whilst a balanced housing market depends on a wide range 
of economic factors, the planning system has a key role in contributing to 
this overall aim.   

 
Overall Housing Requirements 
 
2.2 The Central Lancashire City area has been a popular area to live over 

recent decades.  Rates of new housing development have been high 
(over 7,300dwellings in the last 5 years -could insert a graph to illustrate 
the info) with a corresponding growth in population (another graph).  The 
population of the area is forecast to increase by 18 thousand from 2006 
up to 2021.  More significantly for housing requirements, the number of 
households is expected to increase by 21 thousand over the same 
period. Average household size is expected to further decline but in 
some black and minority ethnic communities larger extended families will 
still be the norm. 

 
2.3 Recent house building rates have exceeded requirements set out in the 

current Lancashire Structure Plan which were derived from RPG13.  The 
RPG restricted housing growth in Lancashire to encourage regeneration 
in the major metropolitan areas of Liverpool and Manchester and other 
regeneration priority areas in the region.   

 
2.4 By contrast, the Northern Way and the emerging replacement Regional 

Spatial Strategy (to which the LDFs must conform) recognise the role of 
the Central Lancashire City region in delivering economic growth. An 
essential aspect of delivering this is providing an adequate supply of 
housing to meet the needs of both existing residents and new residents 
who are key in delivering economic growth. To enable this the 
submission RSS indicates significantly higher housing targets for the 
Central Lancashire City than those in the current structure plan which 
have been exceeded.   

 
2.5 A key challenge for the Core Strategy is that it delivers the right type of 

housing to meet these needs whilst managing the supply of housing land 
to ensure that strategic targets are met, in accordance with national and 
regional planning policies.. Consideration will need to be given to what 
extent sites for housing can be identified and ‘allocated’ for development 
and what reliance can be placed on other ‘windfall’ sites coming forward. 
The rate at which sites are developed will also need to be taken into 
account as the phasing of land release may be necessary. 

 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 272



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

15 

Affordable Housing and Special Needs Housing 
 
2.6 A particular issue in the Central Lancashire City area is the continuing and 

increasing demand for affordable housing.  Average house prices across 
the area are above the County average.  Further, prices for terraced 
properties, traditional the realm of first time buyers, are considerably 
above Lancashire as a whole.  It is also recognised that the housing needs 
of everyone will not be met through owner occupation and housing of other 
tenures must be provided to meet those needs. This is particularly difficult 
as government derived funding for rented and shared ownership 
accommodation is limited so the scope to cross-subsidise affordable 
housing from market housing schemes may need to be extended. 

 
2.7  In addition to affordable housing requirements there are also special 

housing needs that require different solutions, private developers can 
profitably meet some of these. With an aging population there will  be 
more elderly people requiring care of one form or another. Traditionally 
this has been provided in sheltered housing and elderly persons homes 
with varying degrees of nursing care. Now a new hybrid type of housing – 
‘extra care’ is being proposed to meet some of this need. Account also 
needs to be paid to the needs of gypsies and other travellers. 

 
2.8 The joint Housing Needs Study was completed in 2004 and subsequent 

detailed surveys of specific areas further quantify the demand for 
affordable housing. Since then the situation appears to be  worsening 
and requires further research including on the issue of extra care 
housing.  Whilst it is recognised that the Local Development Framework 
cannot meet all identified housing need, it has a key role to play in the 
delivery of new affordable housing.  A key challenge is therefore to 
ensure that the Local Development Framework delivers the maximum 
amount of new affordable housing.     

 
Decent and Adaptable Homes 
 
2.9 Although the area is typified by generally good quality housing stock, 

there are pockets of unfitness that require concentrated action . The 
government is promoting a standard by which all homes can be 
assessed as to whether they are ‘Decent’ or not. Progress on this is 
being made but there are particularly acute and extensive problems in 
some privately rented housing where grant aid may be insufficient or 
inappropriate. The worst properties are considered ‘Unfit’, the proportion 
of the housing stock in this category varies across the area, but there are 
particularly high levels in Preston, where 6.7% of private sector stock is 
unfit. Another initiative is to increase the proportion of accommodation 
that is suitable, without major adaptation to ‘lifetime’ living, so enabling 
people as they become more elderly and infirm to stay longer in their 
homes.  

 
 
 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 273



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

16 

Brownfield Targets 
 
2.10 In order to make the most efficient use of land, the government has set a 

target that 60% of new homes should be built on “brownfield” or 
Previously Developed Land (PDL).  The consultation draft of the RSS 
indicates a target of 80% for the City area but the three authorities 
consider this a little ambitious so have suggested a 75% target. The 
achievement of a brownfield target is seldom the sole consideration in 
determining applications for development.  In seeking to deliver 
sustainable communities and economic growth, other factors could 
include; whether the site is in a sustainable location; whether there is an 
impact on overall housing land supply; and whether the development 
would result in the loss of a viable employment use.  

 
Objective by 2021 
 
To provide a managed level of new housing in line with RSS targets which 
facilitates economic growth, meets PDL targets and contributes towards a 
balanced housing market in Central Lancashire City where everyone is able to 
access decent housing suitable for their needs. 
 
Issue 2A:  How can the release of land be best managed to achieve 
overall housing targets? 
 

a)  Allow development on allocated sites only (i.e. no windfall sites); or 
b) Consider applications for development of windfall sites in the light of 

current supply and relative merits over allocated sites; or 
c) Establish clear criteria for the release of windfall sites  
d) Seek to phase the timing of the release of sites; or 
e) A combination of the above; or 
f) By some other means? 

  
 
 
Issue 2B:  How can the Local Development Framework best deliver an 
appropriate range of housing to facilitate economic growth? 
 

a) Set general targets for the types of dwellings to be provided across the 
area which would be taken into account in dealing with all applications; 
or 

b) Set targets for the types of dwellings to be provided on individual 
allocated sites; or 

c) For different areas, identify the range of dwelling types which would be 
acceptable; or 

d) Allow dwelling types which would reflect and complement those of the 
locality; or 

e)Allow the development industry to determine the types of dwellings to be 
provided; or 
f) A combination of the above; or 
g) In some other way? 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 274



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

17 

 
 
Issue 2C:  How can affordable and special housing needs best be met? 
 

a) Require an element of affordable housing on all new developments of 
15 or more dwellings; or 

b) Develop specific targets for individual sites based on evidence of need, 
site suitability and economic viability; or 

c) Require all housing developments to make a contribution, either on site 
or in lieu, to meeting affordable housing needs; or 

d) Identifying sites particularly suitable for meeting special housing needs; 
or 

e) A combination of the above; or 
f) By some other approach? 
 

Issue 2D:  How can PDL targets best be met? 
 
a) In managing supply, always give prime consideration to PDL; or 
b) In addition to allocated sites, only allow further development on 

unidentified (windfall) sites which are PDL; or 
c) Only all further release of unidentified (windfall) sites which are PDL 

where the site is in a sustainable location and would not result in the 
loss of a viable employment use; or 

d) In some other way? 
 
Issue 2E:  How can the state of repair and adaptability of housing be 
tackled through the Local Development Framework?? 
 

a) Pursue an Action Area approach targeting housing improvements in 
those ares of greatest need; or 

b) Encourage smaller housing improvement schemes elsewhere; or 
c) Promote clearance of substandard housing; or 
d) Require developers of market housing schemes to cross-subsidise 

nearby housing improvements; or 
e) Encourage re-use and conversion of housing, particularly vacant 

stock, to provide needed accommodation; or 
f) Require new residential developments to provide a proportion of 

‘lifetime’ homes; or 
g) A combination of these; or 
h) Through other means? 

  
 
 

 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 275



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

18 

THEME 3 – FULFILLING ECONOMIC GROWTH  
 
 Background 

3.1. It is acknowledged in both the Northern Way Growth Strategy and the 
Regional Economic Strategy (RES) that the Central Lancashire City  
economy has performed well.  Its rate of economic growth is well above 
the regional average and close to the national average, whilst the growth 
in the number of jobs exceeds the national and regional rates. This rate 
of growth is projected to continue. The area’s industrial mix of advanced 
manufacturing and engineering, biomedical and environmental 
technologies, and creative industries is growth-oriented so these trends 
are expected to continue and have the potential expand further given the 
right opportunities and stimulation.   

3.2. In line with the Northern Way and the RES, the emerging RSS seeks to 
build on the region’s economic strengths, particularly the opportunities 
that exist in the city regions. To this end, RSS includes a sub-regional 
strategy for the Central Lancashire Sub-Region (Policy CLCR1 – Central 
Lancashire City Region Priorities).  It recognises that Central Lancashire 
provides a significant economic focus for the wider sub-region. It states 
that economic performance is to be raised through a range of plans and 
strategies including:  

• the development and implementation of the “Central Lancashire City 
Vision”  

• the provision of regional investment sites and knowledge nuclei sites  

• the development of sub-regional employment opportunities.  

 

Employment Land Requirements  

3.3. From this, it can be seen that the principal means by which the LDFs can 
promote economic growth is to ensure that there is enough land 
available for new businesses, and to meet the expansion needs of 
existing firms.   

3.4. Central Lancashire has two defined Regional Investment Sites (RIS’s): 
these are at the former Royal Ordnance Factory at Euxton and at 
Cuerden Regional Business Park. They are identified in the Lancashire 
Structure Plan and current Local Plans.  Central Preston is identified as a 
location for a “knowledge nuclei site” to develop knowledge-based 
sectors requiring specific links to the University of Central Lancashire. It 
will be the role of the Preston Site Allocations DPD to identify a 
knowledge nuclei site. 

3.5. In addition to the RIS’s, there needs to be a range of sub-regional and 
local employment sites in Central Lancashire City.  These portfolios of 
land should be balanced in terms of market attractiveness and 
sustainability.  Account must be taken of the types of employment 
development to be promoted given the changing nature of the economy 
– the trend is towards less manufacturing industry and more office/light 
industry. It is likely that additional development sites will be required up 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 276



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

19 

to 2021, although draft RSS does not specify a detailed figure for each 
district.  Instead, sub-regional figures are given (i.e. for Lancashire) and it 
is suggested that the distribution of new development must be agreed by 
Local Authorities, in accordance with local labour market areas.  Chorley, 
South Ribble and Preston together comprise a local labour market area, 
with the majority (84%) of travel to work journeys contained within it.  It 
makes sense, therefore, for the Central Lancashire authorities to 
consider their employment land needs collectively. The Core Strategy 
must set out the broad approach as to where new employment 
development should be located taking account of access for deliveries as 
well as the journeys to work for employees. The detailed definition of 
these sites will be the job of each Council’s Site Allocations DPD.  

3.6. Town centres are the focus of much economic activity, particularly in the 
office, retail and leisure sectors.  This is considered in Theme 8 – 
Thriving Centres.  Issues relating to the development of the rural 
economy are considered in Theme 7 – Sustaining Rural Areas.  

 

Regeneration 

3.7. There are areas within each of the main urban areas which experience 
high levels of deprivation (including high unemployment, low levels of 
economic activity, and low levels of educational achievement – see also 
Theme 6 – Improving the Quality of Life).  It will be important to harness 
Central Lancashire City’s potential for economic growth in a sustainable 
way which meets the needs of all communities. This means that access 
to jobs is a crucial consideration when making decisions about the 
location of employment land.   

3.8. Central Lancashire City’s urban areas have a legacy of older industrial 
areas and buildings. These are often situated adjacent to town centres, 
in the deprived inner areas described above.  Whilst these areas still 
provide accommodation for many businesses, and opportunities for new 
enterprises the changing nature of industry and employment means that 
many buildings are no longer suitable for employment uses.  Evidence 
can be seen of a trend away from employment use in these areas to 
other uses, particularly housing. The future of these older industrial areas 
needs careful consideration given the need for employment in the more 
deprived communities, and the requirement to provide more housing on 
previously developed sites (see Theme 2 Meeting Housing Needs).   

 

 Tourism and Culture/Leisure 

3.9. Tourism in the Central Lancashire context includes day visitors and also 
“business tourism” associated with conferences and business meetings.  
Central Lancashire City is home to a range of high quality heritage and 
tourism assets, including museums and art galleries, theatres, 
conference venues, and historic parks. Facilities for leisure in all its 
guises are an important part of the attractiveness of an area both built 
sports facilities and outdoor play provision.  Much more could be made of 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 277



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

20 

these assets particularly if linked to general public realm improvements 
in Preston City Centre, and the town centres of Leyland and Chorley.   

 

 

 

Objective by 2021 

To maximise Central Lancashire City’s potential for economic growth in a 
manner which adheres to the principles of sustainable development and 
which brings benefits to all communities.  

 

Issue 3A) Where should new employment-related development be 
located? 

a) In areas most attractive to the market i.e. adjacent motorway 
junctions; or 

b) Within the main urban areas (Chorley, Leyland and Preston), on 
previously-developed land; or   

c) Distributed more evenly between the urban areas and the smaller 
towns and key service centres; or 

d) Adjacent to any new housing allocations; or 

e) A combination of the above; or 

f)Somewhere else? 

Depending on the above 

g) Should specific types of employment use (manufacturing, for example) 
be steered towards certain locations?  

h) Should some existing employment sites be de-allocated? 

i)   Should the emphasis be on providing for new and growing 
businesses? 

 

 

 

Issue 3B) To what extent should existing employment areas be 
protected?  

a) Should they be protected in their entirety, with all proposals for change 
of use or redevelopment to non-employment uses resisted; or 

b) Should change of use or redevelopment to non-industrial uses be 
allowed in line with market pressures; or 

c) Should each area be assessed with a view to its suitability for modern 
industrial and business uses; or 

d) Should there be no protection. 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 278



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

21 

 

Issue 3C) How can the Local Development Framework help to 
ensure that jobs are created in the areas of greatest need? 

a) By allowing or encouraging the expansion of successful businesses in 
these areas; or 

b) Through helping to improve access to jobs in other areas; or 

c) A combination of the above; or 

d) By some other means? 

 

Issue 3D) How can the plan help to promote economic development 
through tourism and leisure/culture? 

a) By encouraging improved facilities for visitors, such as hotels: or 

b) Through encouraging the expansion of existing successful visitor 
attractions; or 

c) By promoting appropriate tourism-related development in the 
countryside; or 

d) Through improved sports and play provision; or 

e) A combination of the above; or 

f) In some other way? 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 279



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

22 

 

THEME 4 – IMPROVING ACCESSIBILITY 

 
 

Background 
 
4.1  Accessibility in spatial terms is about physical access to jobs, services 

and other facilities either through travelling or by locating ‘customers’ 
and ‘suppliers’ close to one another so as to reduce the need to travel. 
This Theme concentrates on the issues affecting the more urbanised 
parts of the area. Transport issues are also covered in Theme 7 – 
Sustaining Rural Areas where accessibility is equally important. The 
three authorities plus the County Council have major role to play in fully 
exposing accessibility issues facing all communities and taking forward 
solutions combining iniatives in the Local Transport Plan with LDF work. 

 
4.2 To grow, businesses need to be able to access markets and customers 

need to be able to access business and services.  Employers need 
access to competent and qualified staff, and employees need to be able 
to get to work quickly and easily.  Vibrant, successful city and town 
centres need easy access from broad catchment areas to remain 
competitive.    

 
4.3 Currently, Preston city centre and the major employment areas attract 

many employees who commute from within the city area or in from other 
areas.   A large number of residents commute out from the city, largely 
to access jobs in Greater Manchester and Merseyside.   Whilst public 
transport is used, many of these journeys are by car.   Accessibility 
within the city and out to other places is beginning to be constrained by 
insufficient public transport services and congestion on roads, river 
crossings, and motorways. 

 
 

Reducing the need to travel 
 

4.4 Working patterns are changing.  Many people commute long distances 
to jobs, whilst others are able to adopt more flexible working practices 
such as home working.  The location of many jobs is fixed by the 
building and infrastructure requirements of the employer. 

 
4.5 Depending on their circumstances, people have greater or lesser choice 

over where they access health and educational services, and leisure 
facilities.  The choices made may involve travelling some distance. 

 
4.6 The role and form of city and town centres is changing and specialising.  

Large supermarkets and retail parks are located and designed for ease 
of access by car, whilst accessibility to traditional city and town centres 
is often constrained.  Internet shopping and banking is reducing the need 
for businesses to have a “High Street” presence.   

 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 280



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

23 

4.7 Currently, most jobs, services and facilities are accessible from all parts 
of the city by car but this is being constrained by increased congestion, 
lack of parking, and tougher parking controls.  Accessibility by public 
transport is less convenient, especially away from main routes and at 
certain times of the day.  

 

Promoting more sustainable means of travel and reducing dependency on 
cars 
 

4.8 The City generally has a very high proportion of car ownership and car 
use.  Public transport systems are in place but often do not meet the 
needs of the travelling public. New roads and motorways built over the 
last 40 years are reaching capacity, especially at peak times.  In some 
parts of the city, it is difficult to move from A to B without being delayed 
by having to travel through congested or constrained area.    

 
4.9 Over recent years, new development has largely been located on 

previously developed land within existing urban areas.  This allows for 
new road infrastructure and public transport facilities to be planned, and 
for quality footpaths and cycle routes to be built and extended.   

 
4.10 Currently, it is quite easy to travel around the city by car and the main 

public transport routes, which makes all jobs, services and facilities 
readily accessible.  Travel by walking and cycling is easy within local 
areas, and cycling longer distances may become more viable as more, 
safer routes are implemented.  Growing car ownership and use, and 
further travel demand generated through population increases and new 
development in locations such as the city and town centres is likely to 
make travel more difficult as congestion will increase.   

 
Achieving transport improvements 
 
4.11 Many parts of the city’s road network suffer from peak time traffic 

congestion.  There are major pinch points on the entrances to Preston 
city centre, especially from the motorway network and at the crossing 
points over the River Ribble.  The national motorway network that serves 
the wider City and allows access to other towns and cities (the M6, M61, 
M65 and M55) regularly becomes congested. However, these 
motorways and the railways running through the area are an integral part 
of national networks and also provide direct access to air and sea ports 
for international passenger travel and freight. Local congestion often 
occurs around city and town centres, schools, and hospitals.   

 
4.12 Currently, transport improvements aimed at cutting congestion by 

reducing car use include park and ride facilities, parking controls, and 
bus routes.  Public transport reduces some congestion impacts but the 
general preference for car use is likely to cause increased congestion in 
the future.   

 
 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 281



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

24 

Objective by 2001 
 
To have a level of accessibility to and within the Central Lancashire City that 
promotes economic growth; brings jobs, services and facilities within easy 
reach; enables ease of travel throughreduced congestion. 
 

Issue 4A - What can be done to reduce the need to travel? 
 

a) Locate all new development i in easily accessible areas; or 
b) Ensure that all new developments are mixed and balanced to include 

new or relate to existing services and facilities such as schools, health 
facilities, shops and parks; or    

c) Provide  people with the choice to access a range of jobs in their 
locality; or 

d) Ensure the availability of high quality new business premises for 
companies that could employ more local people and reduce the need 
to commute to other towns and cities; or 

e) A combination of the above; or 
f) Pursue other ways? 
 
 

Issue 4B - What can be done to encourage more sustainable means of 
travel? 
 

a) Encourage the provision of new public transport services; or 
b) Seek a range of public transport services that more effectively meets 

the needs of potential users (e.g. by introducing new routes and 
extended operating hours); or 

c) Develop more park and ride facilities; or 
d) Create more and better cycle paths and facilities; or 
e) Create new railway stations and bus facilities within new 

developments; or 
f) Locate new jobs, services, and facilities within walking distance of main 

city and town centres; or   
g) Increase traffic management and parking controls in city and town 

centres; or 
h) Reduce the availability of parking spaces; or 
i) Require travel generating employers and services to prepare and 

adhere to a Travel Plan (e.g. to promote car sharing); or 
j) Introduce road congestion charging or tolls  ; or 
k) A combination of the above; or 
l) Through other means? 
 
 

 
Issue 4C -  What are the priorities for transport infrastructure 
improvements? 
 

a) Create new dedicated bus routes linking the main residential, business 
and shopping centres; or 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 282



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

25 

b) Create an orbital bus / interchange route around the urban area; or 
c) Create new railway stations and better routes and services; or 
d) Electrify the the Blackpool to Manchester Railway; or 
e) Promote rapid transport/light rail solutions; or 
f) Provide an integrated network of cycling and walking routes; or 
g) Provide new road crossings over the River Ribble; or 
h) Complete the motorway network round the city (e.g. a new junction on 

the M6 to serve Chorley and a link from the M65 to the M55); or 
i) Create more direct links to Manchester and Blackpool airports; or 
j) A combination of the above; or 
k) Pursue other improvements? 

 

 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 283



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

26 

 

THEME 5 – PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT 
 

Background 

5.1. So as to create a place where people choose to live and work, the Local 
Development Framework must seek to protect and enhance Central 
Lancashire City’s most valued environments, both natural and man-
made.  For a long time planning authorities have sought to safeguard  
the countryside from unnecessary development so as to keep it open 
and unspoilt.  An additional benefit of this is that the most important 
landscapes and habitats are protected from urban development. 
However they can still be harmed by farming practices and other rural 
pursuits. In these days of global food sourcing there is less reliance on 
local agricultural produce and less protection of good agricultural land, 
this trend may prove short sighted. The role of the Green Belt is 
explained in Theme1 –  Locating New Development. Within rural and 
urban areas, the most important historic buildings, environments and 
open spaces must continue to be  protected because of the contribution 
they make to the quality of life.   

 

5.2. There is increasing concern about climate change and its impact on 
our environment.  There are a number of ways in which the planning 
system can limit the impact of climate change, and also to tackle its 
causes.  These include encouraging the development of sources of 
renewable energy, and seeking to reduce the risk of flooding.  

 

5.3 New development often has some negative impacts. Where the benefits 
of the development out weigh the harm caused the aim should be to 
minimise these through well sited and well designed proposals. In 
addition environmental losses can be made good through requiring 
developers to do or pay for environmental improvement works nearby. 
The most important features of the environment are protected by law, 
although in many cases the upkeep and enhancement of these sites and 
structures could be better. Features of only local importance are not 
protected in the same way so their future often relies on the approach to 
these taken by local councils. 

 

The Natural Environment 

5.4. National planning policy advocates a top down approach to the 
protection of wildlife habitats. The Core Strategy will need to respect and 
seek to protect the key environmental designations i.e. those which have 
national or international significance. These include the Ribble Estuary 
(which is a “Ramsar” site as well as a National Nature Reserve), and six 
Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI’s) important for their ecological 
or land form significance.  In addition, sites of local or sub-regional 
importance have been identified – these are known as Biological and 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 284



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

27 

Geological Heritage Sites.  Many of these are within the urban areas.  
Policies in the LDF ought to implement the Lancashire-wide Biodiversity 
Action Plan as this aims to improve the variety of natural species.  Open 
spaces, watercourses and woodlands within urban areas are also a 
valuable asset in terms of recreation and nature conservation and 
contribute greatly to the quality of life.   

5.5 Central Lancashire contains areas of distinctive and attractive countryside, 
including part of the Forest of Bowland Area of Oustanding Natural Beauty 
(AONB), to the north of Preston and the West Pennine Moors to the east 
of Chorley. There are other areas of landscape value identified in 
landscape character assessment work carried out by Lancashire County 
Council (Supplementary Planning Guidance on Landscape and Heritage).  
There are a number of initiatives (e.g. REMADE) currently in operation to 
improve degraded landscapes through tree planting and other works.  

 

5.6  Pollution of the environment needs to minimised if it cannot be avoided. 
This particularly applies to maintaining, if not improving, both air and water 
quality. Carbon emissions into the atmosphere are covered under 
Renewable Energy below. In toxic emissions from traffic and industrial 
processes clearly require close control through both planning and 
environmental legislation. Similarly toxic outflows and runoff from 
developments into the ground, water courses and ultimately the sea are to 
be prevented wherever possible. 

 

 The Built Environment 

5.7. Central Lancashire City retains areas of significant historic and 
architectural interest, some stemming from its industrial past. The historic 
environment makes a valuable contribution to the area’s economic and 
social well being, and can provide a focus for regeneration initiatives.  
Collectively, the area  boasts over 1300 Listed Buildings, 26 
Conservation Areas, and anumber of registered parks and gardens of 
historic interest.  There are also a variety of archaeological sites ranging 
from 17 Scheduled Ancient Monuments to sites of more local 
importance.   

5.8. The Core Strategy can set out guiding principles on design quality to 
ensure that all new development improves  townscapes and contributes 
towards an accessible, safe and attractive environment.  This particularly 
needs to take account of the efficient use of land taken up by new 
buildings in terms of the density of development. These guiding 
principles could be expanded upon in development control policies and 
supplementary planning documents.   

 

 Renewable Energy 

5.9. To combat our reliance on fossil fuels, the Government is urging local 
authorities to promote and encourage the development of renewable 
energy resources, including wind, water and solar power.  Whilst wind 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 285



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

28 

turbines are a common site in the upland areas of the north –west 
England, there is now an increasing emphasis on “micro-generation” and 
the promotion of energy efficiency. Micro-generation is where new 
development is built incorporating features to generate a proportion of 
the building’s energy requirements from renewable sources (existing 
buildings can be adapted to achieve this too).  The Core Strategy can set 
out general guidance for this, whilst detailed policy guidance would 
appear in other LDF documents.  Chorley Borough Council had made 
considerable progress on this, and is bringing forward policy documents 
and guidance on sustainable resources ahead of the Core Strategy.  

 

 Flood Risk 

5.10. Climate change brings with it an increased risk of flooding.  The Central 
Lancashire City authorities have commissioned research to identify those 
areas most at risk from flooding in the future. The Core Strategy will 
identify these broad areas, whilst the results of the study will feed into 
decisions about site allocations.  The ideas generated by the Riverworks 
study may help to manage the River Ribble through the urban area.  

 

 

Objective by 2021 

To protect and enhance Central Lancashire City’s environmental assets, 
to make them the focus of urban and rural regeneration, and to promote 
the efficient use of resources.  

 

Issue 5A – What  protection and enhancement should be given to 
sites of local biodiversity and geological importance? 

a) Protect all sites of local biodiversity or geological importance from 
development; or 

b) Allow some development provided that the developer compensates for 
any losses; or 

c) Some other approach? 

 

Issue 5B – How can landscape charater be best protected and 
enhanced? 

a) Protect landscapes based on their amenity and recreational value and 
national designations; or 

b) Protect landscapes which have high agricultural value; or 

c) Both of the above; or 

d) By a different approach? 

 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 286



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

29 

Issue 5C – How can the design quality of new buildings be 
improved and the efficient use of land achieved? 

a) Identify and define a local built-environment character in villages and 
neighbourhoods and require this to be to be respected in all new 
development; or 

b) Allow a more flexible approach to development based on general best 
practice, and promoting high quality, modern design; or 

c) By requiring developments to be built at as high a density as can be 
achieved without compromising good design; or 

d) Through some combination of the above; or 

e) In other ways? 

 

Issue 5D – What is the most appropriate way of conserving and 
enhancing the historic environment? 

a) Designate additional Conservation Areas; or  

b) Concentrate resources on improving existing Conservation Areas; 

c) Both of the above; and/or 

d) Give more protection to buildings listed for their local importance; or 

e) Pursue other approaches? 

 

Issue 5E – How can an increase in sourcing renewable energy be 
feasibly achieved? 

a) Encourage large scale renewable energy schemes only; or 

b) Encourage small-scale renewable energy schemes only, provided 
they are in harmony with surroundings; or 

c) Both of the above; and/or 

d) Set targets for renewable energy capture in all new development of at 
least a minimum threshold size ; or 

e) Promote other ways? 

Issue 5F – What are the most appropriate ways of avoiding flooding 
of developments? 

a) Avoid any new development in areas vulnerable to flooding; or 

b) Assess flood risk as one of a number of factors in a sustainability 
appraisal and allow development in low risk areas; or 

c) Promote major schemes such as Riverworks to manage river flooding 
to such an extent that otherwise unsuitable land could be made available 
for development; of 

d) A combination of the above; or 

e) By other ways? 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 287



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

30 

THEME 6.  IMPROVING THE QUALITY OF LIFE 
 
Background 
 

 

6.1 The quality of life people have depends on many things. Living in a 
decent and affordable home, a good environment, being in employment, 
ability to travel and to otherwise access services all contribute to quality 
of life. These are all dealt with elsewhere in this document. This Theme 
concentrates on other aspects of quality of life such as incidents and 
perceptions of crime, as well as deprivation in terms of educational 
attainment, vocational skills and health. 

 

Crime 
 

6.2 A widespread concern in local communities is crime. Actual levels of 
recorded crime are generally falling but a perceived fear of crime 
remains a worry for many people. Much is being done by various 
agencies to tackle crime and give re-assurance to local people. The 
design and layout of buildings can reduce the opportunities for criminal 
activity and it being undetected. The causes of crime are varied but 
providing scope to engage in constructive behaviour – such as play, 
sport and other community activities – can help reduce crime levels. 
Government and local authority funding for such facilities and services is 
limited but there is scope for new housing developments in particular, to 
help pay for provision and cover future operating costs. 

 
Deprivation 
 
6.3 Pockets of deprivation occur in several places across the plan area. The 

combined occurrence of low educational attainment, the lack of work-
related skills and poor health in some neighbourhoods across the North 
West is recognised in the draft Regional Spatial Strategy. This 
combination of deprivation is present in some places in the Central 
Lancashire City area. It is a situation likely to get worse as people live 
longer and have more health care needs and/or find they have to work 
longer through insufficient pension provision. Numerous agencies 
working together can help tackle these problems but spatial planning can 
help by enabling new and improved service facilities to be located and 
made accessible to the local communities that need them. 

 
Objective by 2021 
 
That the levels of crime are very low and the fear of being a victim of crime is 
similarly reduced from present day levels. Also that access to a wide range of 
community and service facilities has assisted in removing pockets of 
deprivation. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 288



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

31 

Issue 6A  – What spatial planning proposals can best contribute to 
reducing levels of crime and provide opportunities for constructive 
community activity? 
 

a) Pursue improvements in the design and layout of buildings to make it 
harder for criminal activity to occur undetected; or 

b) Seek developer funding for a range of community facilities and related 
initiatives; or 

c) Ensure existing community facilities that are still needed are not lost to 
other uses and are improved where necessary; or 

d) A combination of these; or 
e) Some other approach? 

 
 
 
Issue 6B  – How can spatial planning most appropriately help reduce 
pockets of deprivation? 
 

a) Identify and reserve sites for new educational, training and health 
facilities; or 

b) Allow the redevelopment of existing facilities that are no longer 
required to help enable the rationalisation and relocation of facilities to 
where they are most needed; or 

c) Seek developer funding for educational, training and health facilities; or 
d) Pursue transport improvements that allow better access to facilities; or 
e) A combination of the above; or 
f) An other intiative? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 289



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

32 

THEME 7.  SUSTAINING RURAL AREAS 
 
 

Background  
 

 

7.1 Agriculture remains the main economic activity in rural areas but it is 
experiencing continual change in terms of economic regulation and market 
globalisation. None of the rural parts of the plan area are far from urban 
populations. This represents a threat and an opportunity to rural 
communities and the countryside.  

 
7.2 The draft Regional Spatial Strategy recognises the inter-related pressures 

on rural areas such as the need to diversify economies, protect the 
countryside, provide affordable housing and access to local employment 
and other services. The Lancashire Rural Action Plan also aims to tackle 
these issues. 

 
Rural Economy 
 
7.3 Traditional agriculture is being partially replaced by horticulture aimed at 

providing plants for domestic gardens and uses associated with horse 
riding. The demand for recreation and tourism from urban dwellers 
provides much needed expenditure in rural areas but catering for that 
demand in a ways that do not spoil the attractiveness of the countryside 
raises significant challenges.  

 
Affordable Housing and Local Services 
 
7.4 Many people living in rural areas do not work there and so commute to 

often high paid jobs elsewhere. This causes transport related problems 
and can raise house prices to levels beyond the economic means of 
rural based workers. Similarly affluent mobile incomers are less 
dependent on local services so use of these can fall leading to closures. 
A way of minimising this is to restrict what service buildings can 
alternatively be used for and to target this protection on local service 
centres as referred to in Theme 1 – Locating New Development. 

 
 
 
 
Objective by 2021 
 
To have thriving and sustainable rural areas that are not spoilt by urban 
demands, and villages that are economically viable communities where local 
needs are met. 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 290



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

33 

Issue 7A – How should the economy in rural areas be developed? 
 

a) Farmers should be encouraged to diversify to enable other rural based 
industries to be established; or 

b) Rural recreational and tourism pursuits should be promoted provided 
they do not spoil the appearance of the countryside nor have other 
negative impacts;or 

c) Small scale employment uses unconnected with rural activities should 
be encouraged in local service centre villages; or 

d) A combination of the above; or 
e) In some other way? 

 
 
 
Issue 7B – How can villages continue to meet the day to day needs of 
local communities? 
 

a) Protect existing shops and community buildings from uses that would 
not provide services local people need;or 

b) Allow the dual use of buildings or sites that help provide or retain local 
services; or 

c) Allow appropriate scale market housing and commercial developments 
in local service centres provided they financially support local services; 
or 

d) Link outlying small villages and hamlets with bus services to local 
service centres; or 

e) A combination of the above; or 
f) By other means? 

 
 
 
Issue 7C – In what way can rural affordable housing needs best be met? 
 

a) Through only allowing schemes in or adjoining villages where all the 
units are affordable as an exception to Green Belt and other  policies; 
or 

b) Reserving sites at rural settlements only for affordable housing;or 
c) Allow appropriate scale market housing in local service centre villages 

only where these cross-subsidise a substantial proportion of affordable 
units; or 

d) A combination of the above; or 
e) In an other way? 

 
 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 291



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

34 

 
 

THEME 8: THRIVING CENTRES 
 
Background 
 
8.1 City, town, district and local neighbourhood centres are crucial to the 

social, economic and environmental well-being of the Central Lancashire 
City. They are the life blood of the local economy. The role and function 
of the centres must meet the needs of our community, help to reduce 
social exclusion and create economic opportunities for everybody. They 
also provide a sense of place and involvement which can help to foster 
local identity.  

 
8.2 Government policy is to ensure the continuing vitality and viability of 

town centres through focusing development in the centres in order to 
strengthen and, where appropriate, regenerate them. The government 
requires local councils to actively promote growth and manage change in 
town centres and to identify a hierarchy of centres each performing their 
appropriate function within the area. 

 
8.3 The Central Lancashire City area has wide-range of different sized 

centres each of which performs its own important function. 
 
8.4 Preston city centre is the largest of the three main centres in the plan 

area and, in terms of non-food shopping, is ranked first in the whole of 
Lancashire. It is also the centre of commercial and administrative activity 
within the county and is the seat of Lancashire County Council. It is the 
principal office location within the county. Despite this there is clear 
evidence that, in the face of competing attractions, Preston city centre 
requires further investment, such as that for the Tithebarn Regeneration 
Area, to ensure that its overall health is enhanced and sustained into the 
future. 

 
8.5 Chorley town centre provides the greatest concentration of shops, 

services and entertainment facilities in the southern part of the Central 
Lancashire City area. It is trading relatively well, but could be improved 
and its evening economy tends to be dominated by young people visiting 
pubs and bars. Chorley town centre is well-known for its markets, which 
include the open and covered markets. However, both have recently 
experienced a downturn in stall occupancy rates. Vacant shop units can 
also give the town centre a run-down appearance. 

 

8.6 Leyland is located between Preston and Chorley and is the main town 
centre serving the South Ribble area.  Recently there has been 
considerable development in the food retail sector and the town has a 
market.  However, the town is overshadowed particularly in comparison 
goods terms by Preston to the north and to lesser extent, Chorley to the 
south.  A retail study undertaken in 2004 concluded that the town centre 
was weak and fragmented with a poor environment and public realm.  

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 292



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

35 

The northern part of the town centre is the focus of a pilot regeneration 
area and the Council is about to commission a masterplan to provide a 
framework for improvement and investment in the town centre.  District 
centres at Bamber Bridge, Penwortham and Tardy Gate are also pilot 
regeneration areas and have significant potential to improve quality of 
life, built environment and economic prosperity.    

 
8.7 Government policy is opposed to new ‘out of town’ shopping 

developments and, as such, there is no consideration of this issue in this 
section. 

 
Establishing a Hierarchy of Centres 
 
8.8 Different types of centres perform different functions. Provided this is 

properly recognised in policies which control the types and sizes of new 
development each centre can better meet the needs of customers in 
complementary rather than competing ways. The new draft RSS does not 
fully reflect the need to have a policy hierarchy for different centres. Only 
Preston city centre is specifically named with the area. 

 
 
Trading Performance of Centres  
 
8.9 The government has identified key indicators for measuring centre 

trading performance such as the number of different retailers, the 
proportion of vacant street level property, pedestrian flows, the 
perception of safety, the state of the environment and customers’ views. 

 
8.10 Where there is evidence that there are centres in decline with, for 

example an increasing number of vacant shop units, itmay be necessary 
to assess the scope for consolidating and strengthening those centres. 
This can be done by seeking to focus on a wider range of services, 
promoting diversification and improvements to the environment. Better 
use of existing land and buildings may be achieved by promoting and 
developing a specialist or new role and encouraging specific types of 
use in some centres. 

 
 
Evening and Night-time Economy 
 
8.13 Government guidance states that local planning authorities should 

prepare planning policies to help manage the evening and night-time 
economy of city and town centres. These policies should encourage a 
range of complementary evening and night-time uses which appeal to a 
wide range of age and social groups, ensuring that provision is made 
where appropriate for a variety of leisure and cultural activities. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 293



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

36 

8.14 If there is going to be support for a night-time economy, consideration 
needs to be given to the scale of developments and their likely impact, 
including the cumulative impact on the character and function of  town 
centres, anti-social behaviour, crime and the amenity or nearby residents 

 
 
 
Objective by 2021 
 
To have a thriving city, town, district and local neighbourhood centres 
providing a full range of services and, collectively, the Central Lancashire City 
area will provide a viable alternative sub-regional shopping and leisure 
destination to Manchester and Liverpool. 
 
 
 
Issue 8A – What policy hierarchy for  centres is needed? 
 

a) Leave Preston as the only named centre where most retail, office and 
leisure development should go; or 

b) Identify a full range of city, town, district and local neighbourhood 
centres or 

c) Use some other approach? 
 
 
 
Issue 8B – How should  the number of vacant shops in our centres be 
reduced? 
 

a) Resist the loss of shops or other services to other uses; or 
b) Allow the loss of shops and services where it can be shown that there 

is no longer a demand for the unit; or 
c) Relax restrictions on the amount of non-retail uses allowed in some 

areas; or 
d) Allow more community uses; or 
e) Allow more office uses; or 
f) Allow residential uses; or 
g) A combination of the above 
 h) Let market forces to determine the mix of uses in our centres; or 
i) Through some other approach? 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 294



Draft Core Strategy Issues and Options 

 

37 

Issue 8C – How can the City and Town Centres become attractive to a 
wider cross-section of people? 
 

a) Try to restrict further development of pubs and clubs in the city and 
town centres to discourage more alcohol-related uses; or 

b) Assess the potential for other non alcohol related leisure uses and 
identify city and town centre sites for such uses; or 

c) Improvements in lighting; or 
d) Increased partnerships with the police; or 
e) Designation of ‘alcohol free zones’ and specific ‘drinking areas’; or 
f) A combination of the above; or 
g) By other means? 

 
 
 

Issue 8d - How can the Core Strategy support the regeneration of town 
and district centres? 

 
a) identify sites for appropriate new town centre development; or 
b) restrict the amount of non retail uses in main shopping areas; or 
c) implement improvements to the physical environment; or 
d) encourage town centre living; or 
e) resist out of centre developments;or 
f) a combination of the above; or 
g) some other measure(s)? 
 
 
 
CONCLUSION 
 

Include how to comment, response form, what happens next. 
 
 

Agenda Item 15 Agenda Page 295



Agenda Page 296

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

ADMINREP/REPORT 
 

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Streetscene, 
Neighbourhoods and 

Environment.  
(Introduced by the Executive 
Members  for Resources and 

Streetscene, Neighbourhoods & 
Environment) 

Executive Cabinet 29 June 2006 

 

BUCHANAN STREET CHORLEY  

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENT SCHEME 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1. To make recommendations for the acquisition, disposal and management of land in the 
vicinity of Buchanan St. Chorley to promote a scheme of local environmental 
improvement. 

 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

 
2. A project to develop the character and feel of Chorley as a good place to live and the 

reduction of a pocket of inequality from the poor management and unacceptable use of 
poorly managed land. 

 
RISK ISSUES 
 
3. The issue raised and recommendations made in this report involve risk considerations in 

the following categories: 
 
 

Strategy  Information  
Reputation � Regulatory/Legal � 

Financial � Operational  
People  Other  

 
 
4. This report makes recommendations for the acquisition of land, if necessary by using 

compulsory purchase powers. If exercised and contested then there is the risk of the costs 
of a local hearing or public enquiry. I assess this risk as low. 

 
Land acquired may have inherent risks from pre-existing activities such as contamination 
which might become the responsibility of the Council. With a negotiated acquisition this 
can be modified by warranty or insurance. This is not possible in this instance but, on the 
basis of information from some site investigation, I assess this risk as also low. 
 
No reasonable claim to title has been found by diligent enquiry, however, there is a risk 
that our proposal may flush out an owner, which might result in a higher valuation. I 
assess this risk as low on the basis of existing information and the hazard also as low on 
the basis of the views of the Head of Property Services. 

 

Agenda Item 16Agenda Page 297



 

BACKGROUND 
 
5. Members will be aware that the use of certain parcels of land in the vicinity of Buchanan 

Street Chorley has given rise to anti-social behaviour over a period of years. 
 

To some extent these problems have been modified by obtaining four anti-social 
behaviour orders in December 2005, which have a currency of 4 years unless discharged 
earlier.  In the absence of any other continuing action this is unlikely to ensure a 
permanent solution. 
This report makes recommendations for improving the management by land assembly 
and the carrying out of an environmental improvement scheme after consultation with 
local residents. 

 
6. The various parcels of land are shown on the attached plan at Appendix 1. 

The ownership background of these parcels has been researched and, as far as known is: 
 
Parcel A 
Is subject to the remaining term of a 999 year lease from 12 June 1921 now held by 
Chorley Borough Council, in possession. 
 
Parcel B 
Is subject to the remaining term of a 999 year lease from 1 November 1921 now held by 
Chorley Borough Council. This land has been let on annual licences as allotments and as 
such is protected from development by the Councils planning policies. 
 
Parcel C 
Is subject to the remaining term of a 999 year lease from 1 November 1921 now held by 
Chorley Borough Council, in possession. 
 
Parcel D 
Is subject to the remaining term of a 999 year lease from 1 May 1895 now held by Chorley 
Borough Council, in possession. 
 
Parcel E 
There is no registered title to this land and local enquiries have revealed no claims or 
ownership other than the part which has been incorporated into the garden of no. 20 
Worthy Street which is presumed to have transferred by adverse possession. 
 
Parcel F 
Apart from a sliver of land adjacent to No. 21 Buchanan Street there is no registered title 
to this land. Local enquiries and enquiries from adjacent freeholders has revealed no valid 
claim. 

 
7. The acquisition of Parcels E and F would result in a larger parcel of land all within the 

control of the Council allowing a proper management plan to be delivered. This would 
particularly affect the use of Parcels E and F, which are predominantly misused and give 
rise to anti-social activity and behaviour. 

 
 
IMPROVEMENT PROPOSALS 
 
8. Acquisition by the Council would allow us to: 

 
Carry out an environmental improvement scheme 
Improve and maintain the amenity of the area 

Agenda Item 16Agenda Page 298



To take control of the land and take steps as landlords to reduce repeated occurrences of 
anti-social behaviour  

 
9. As there is no information on the current ownership of the land we may have to 

compulsorily purchase Parcels E and F prior to any works being carried out. 

The most appropriate power under which to compulsorily purchase the land is section 226 
(1) (a) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
This section authorises a local authority to acquire land  "suitable for and required in order 
to secure the carrying out of development, re-development or improvement". 
The intention in this particular case is to secure the improvement of the land. 
The total area of the improvement proposal is 1852m2. The area we need to acquire is 
536m2. 

 
10. Four different schemes for the treatment have been prepared.  This report seeks approval 

to consult with local residents on these schemes. 

Drawings of these schemes are available to view at the Civic Offices and will be available 
for Members at Executive Cabinet. 
The crime prevention officer has been consulted and he supports the intention of the 
scheme, and in particular supports a scheme which makes provision for off-street car 
parking. 

 
11. The schemes differ only in detail and all have the potential to provide improved amenities 

to the residents of Buchanan Street, Blackburn Street and Worthy Street. 

Each scheme envisages the transfer of land in Parcel A to the residents of 21-33 
Buchanan Street for garden extensions, the continuation of the allotment licences in 
Parcel B and the granting of rights of vehicular access only to residents for parking or to 
access their garages over Parcels C,  E and F. 

 
12. Clearly since this scheme is designed to improve the management of this land and reduce 

anti-social behaviour it will be necessary to incorporate residual legal controls over the 
acquired and transferred land which would give the Council ongoing powers to control 
activity on the land and subsequent assignments. 

 
13. The Director of Regeneration and Development has provided the specification and 

drawings for the scheme. The incorporation of land in Parcel A into rear gardens will be a 
change of use and will require Planning Permission which will be sought at the conclusion 
of the consultation exercise. 

 
14. It is intended that Parcels C, F and E remain in the Councils ownership and therefore will 

require ongoing maintenance. Action has been taken in the designs to reduce this 
obligation to a minimum. 

Parcel D is shown here for reference purposes only and will not be affected by these 
present proposals although, in terms of prevention of misuse will require management. 

 
 
15. The Head of Property Services advises that, in view of the third party rights over Parcels E 

and F their value is nominal only though there may be costs associated with compulsory 
acquisition. Provision would need to be made also for the total cost of the works [£8000-
£11000 depending on the selected scheme] and the cost of a public enquiry should there 
be any objections. 

 
16. The Director of Streetscene, Neighbourhoods and Environment assisted by the Councils 

Funding Officer will seek grant assistance towards the cost of the proposed works but will 
prepare a bid to the Capital Programme Board to fund the improvement and associated 
works. 

Agenda Item 16Agenda Page 299



Negotiations with residents will include realisation of some value of the transferred land or 
a contribution to the cost of fencing to private areas. 
The allotments in Parcel B will require amended access, which will be considered as part 
of the consultation. 
As part of the previous problem here has arisen due to previous environmental 
improvement schemes not being maintained and which have not addressed the issue of 
personal defensible space the present proposals are designed to be essentially low 
maintenance and give much more defensible space to residents. Clearly there is a trade 
off here for residents in that they will lose an amenity from the rear access to their houses 
in Buchanan St. 
 The intention is also to secure the agreement of the local residents to undertake minor 
litter clearance and gardening type maintenance of the residual public areas. 
There will however be some minor maintenance obligation on the Council as owner of the 
public areas and this is estimated at £200 per year. 

 

 
 

COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
17. There are no apparent Human Resources implications to this report. 
 
COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 

18.  At this point it is difficult to indicate the likely net cost to the Council of the 
 recommendations. The enhancement works are estimated to cost £8,000 to 
 £11,000, depending on the scheme preferred following consultation with residents. 
 The preferred option should be submitted to the Capital Programme Board for 
 consideration, and the prospect of obtaining external funding towards the scheme 
 should be explored. Should objections to the scheme trigger the need for a public 
 enquiry, the budget implications should be considered. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
19. It is recommended that: 
 
19.1 the Council acquire the land marked F and E on the attached plan either by negotiation or 

compulsorily under s226(1)(a) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 for the 
purposes of undertaking the improvement scheme detailed in this report on terms to be 
approved by the Executive Leader. 

19.2 The Council declares surplus to its requirements parcel A for disposal to adjacent 
residents on terms to be approved by the Executive Member for Resources. 

19.3 Parcels A, C, E and F be developed and managed in accordance with proposals prepared 
by the Director of Development and Regeneration and following consultation with local 
residents. 

 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
(If the recommendations are accepted) 
 
20.      To enable the Council to manage and dispose of land to improve the environment of the 

area and build a sense of neighbourhood pride resulting in reduced incidence of anti-
social behaviour. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 16Agenda Page 300



ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
 
21. The proposals contain 4 alternative improvement plans. 

The alternative of taking no action has not been considered since it produces no realistic 
prospect of improved management. 

 
 
JOHN LECHMERE 
Director of Streetscene, Neighbourhoods and Environment. 
 
 
 
 
 

There are no background papers to this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

John Lechmere 5720 21 April 2006 ADMINREP/REPORT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16Agenda Page 301



 
 

APPENDIX 1 

 

Agenda Item 16Agenda Page 302



 

 

 

 
 

Updated Template April 2006  

 

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Director of Streetscene, 
Neighbourhoods and 

Environment 
(Introduced by the Executive 

Member for Streetscene, 
Neighbourhoods and 

Environment) 

Executive Cabinet 29/06/06 

 

TERMINATION OF LANCASHIRE HIGHWAYS PARTNERSHIP: 

FINANCIAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1. The purpose of the report is to advise Members of progress on completing arrangements 
for the transfer of the LHP and putting in place arrangements for the continuation of 
services subsequent to the termination. 

 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

 
2. The report relates primarily to issues of management of the authority in respect of 

services under the corporate priority of place - to develop the character and feel of 
Chorley as a good place to live. 

 
RISK ISSUES 
 
3. The issue raised and recommendations made in this report involve risk considerations in 

the following categories: 
 

Strategy  Information  
Reputation  Regulatory/Legal 4 
Financial 4 Operational 4 
People  Other  

 
4. The report is provided to complete the analysis of the changes to the Council’s budgets 

arising from the termination of the Lancashire Highways Partnership and to identify any 
changes to the service provision and administration that arise, necessarily, from the 
termination of the Partnership. 

 

BACKGROUND 
 
5. Members received the report of the Head of Public Space Services on the termination of 

the Partnership on the 29 September 2005.  This report set out the broad implications of 
the County Council’s decision and the need for a residual agreement.  On the 3 
November 2005 Members received the report of the Director of Finance on the financial 
implications arising from the termination of the Partnership.  The analysis contained in the 
report formed the basis of the budget for the current financial year.  On the 25 May 2006 
Members received the report of the Director of Streetscene, Neighbourhoods and 
Environment on restructuring within the new directorate and the resulting savings.  These 

 

Agenda Item 17Agenda Page 303



reports, together, have dealt with all of the financial implications of the termination of the 
Highways Partnership except as set out below.  Given that the financial implications 
identified in this report are, effectively, cost neutral there are therefore no significant 
implications for the current year’s budget. 

 
LAND CHARGES 
 
6. The only outstanding financial implication relates to the cost of the disclosure of highways 

information for Land Charges Searches.  Standard highway questions are presently 
answered by Chorley Borough Council staff.  However these staff will shortly transfer to 
the County Council’s Area Office.  It is necessary, therefore, either to provide additional 
resources to research and disclose this information in-house from County Council’s 
systems or to request the County Council to provide the information direct and to pay their 
charges. 

 
7. The Deputy Director of Legal Services is in negotiation with Lancashire County Council 

for them to provide the service, as they do for some other district councils at present.  It is 
likely that the total charge from Lancashire County Council would be of the order of 
£15,000 in a full financial year.  However it is usual to identify highway authority charges 
as part of the search fee and pass the charge on to the customer.  The net financial effect 
on Chorley Borough Council is therefore nil, except for the minor costs of passing the 
information to the County Council (instead of an internal department) and receiving the 
response. 

 
RESIDUAL AGREEMENT 
 
8. Negotiations have taken place since November 2005 on the likely content of a residual 

agreement.  Detailed discussions between the County Council and certain districts have 
led to minor variations in the residual agreement packages being offered to district 
councils.  For example, at present, Chorley Borough Council would wish to continue to 
provide a highway tree maintenance service to the County Council.  In Chorley’s case, the 
County Council is offering a residual agreement which covers the following: 

 
 ● Highway verge and roundabout maintenance, grass cutting, tree maintenance and 

weed control - budget allocation plus 7½% administration. 
 ● Sponsorship of verge and roundabout maintenance - continue existing arrangement. 
 ● Residents parking schemes - CBC to promote within an agreed framework. 
 ● Parkwise agreement - not affected. 
 ● Public rights of way - not part of existing. 
 ● Highway and traffic schemes - permission to be given in individual cases. 
 ● Cycling and pedestrianisation schemes - permission to be given in individual cases. 
 ● District Council owned apparatus - authority to be provided for work on these. 
 ● Traffic Management Act - all district councils required to comply. 
 ● Licences for activities in the highway - minor variation to existing arrangements. 
 ● Floral and other decorations in the highway - authority to be given. 
 ● Sweeping of leaves etc on highway - allocation to be provided in line with existing. 
 ● Communications - County Council to provide funding for administrative costs. 
 ● Training - County Council to establish joint training initiatives as appropriate. 
 ● Emergency mutual aid - County Council to review and liaise with district councils. 
 
9. The first draft of the agreement itself was only received on the 2 June 2006.  It is clear 

that the agreement will need significant amendment before it is acceptable to district 
councils.  At the meeting of the District Council Leaders and Chief Executives on the 5 
June 2006 it was agreed that it would be appropriate for Chorley Borough Council to take 
a lead in seeking to revise the first draft of the agreement insofar as it is applies to the 
majority of authorities.  This work is in hand and progress will be reported at the meeting. 

 

 

Agenda Item 17Agenda Page 304



COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
10. Human Resources issues in relation to the termination of the Lancashire Highways 

Partnership have been dealt with in previous reports and the necessary arrangements are 
all in hand.  This report does not raise further issues. 

 
COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 
 
11. The financial aspects of the transfer have been dealt with in the report to Executive 

Cabinet on the 25 May 2006.  In that report the main financial message was that the 
savings identified at least met the budgeted saving required to fill the funding gap left by 
the transfer.  In relation to the costs of providing a land charges service, which was 
precluded from the report, I am satisfied that the solution outlined will be cost neutral. 

 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
12. It is recommended that the Executive Cabinet: 
 
 i) Authorise the Deputy Director of Legal Services to increase Land Charges Search 

fees to reflect any increase in charges from the Highway Authority, in consultation 
with the Executive Member for Customer, Democratic and Legal Services. 

 
 ii) Authorise the Director of Streetscene, Neighbourhoods and Environment to 

conclude negotiations on the residual agreement with Lancashire County Council, in 
consultation with the Executive Member for Streetscene, Neighbourhoods and 
Environments. 

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
(If the recommendations are accepted) 
 
13. The authorities sought complete a lengthy series of negotiations in which a range of 

options have been considered and they represent the most appropriate or only course of 
action available. 

 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
 
14. The option of establishing an in-house capability to deal with highway search questions 

opens a number of areas of risk in terms both of cost and liability.  It has been concluded 
that it would be inappropriate to pursue the establishment of an in-house capability. 

 
 
 
JOHN LECHMERE 
DIRECTOR OF STREETSCENE, NEIGHBOURHOODS AND ENVIRONMENT 
 
 
 

There are no background papers to this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Keith Allen 5250 9 June 2006 PSSREP/92766LM 

 

Agenda Item 17Agenda Page 305



Agenda Page 306

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 20 Agenda Page 307

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Page 310

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 20 Agenda Page 311

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 20 Agenda Page 312

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report, 2005/06
	5 Decriminalisation of Parking Enforcement Scrutiny Inquiry
	6 Future of Mental Health Services in Lancashire - Consultation
	7 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2006/07
	OSWorkProgrammeApp1
	ScrutinyAppendix2

	8 Capital Programme, 2005/06 - Outturn
	Appendix 1 Capital Outturn
	Appendix 2 Capital Receipts
	Appendix 3 Capital Programme
	Appendix 4 Capital Receipts

	9a Revenue Outturn, 2005/06
	9b Revenue Budget, 2006/07 - Monitoring
	10 Tender for the Renewal of Council Insurances
	11 External Funding Strategy for 2006 and beyond
	ExtFundingStratDoc
	ExtFundingStratDocApp

	12 Quarterly Performance Indicators, 2005/06 - End of Year Monitoring Report
	13 Statement of Community Involvement - Inspector's Report and Adoption
	StateCommInvolve-InspReptAppA
	StateCommInvolve-InspReptAppB

	14 Householder Design Guidance Supplementary Planning Document
	HouseDesGuidSuppPlgDocApp

	15 Central Lancashire City - Local Development Framework Core Strategy - Joint Issues and Options Paper
	CentLancsCityCoreStratIss&Opt

	16 Buchanan Street, Chorley - Environmental Improvement Scheme
	17 Termination of Lancashire Highways Partnership - Financial and Legal Implications
	20 Steps to becoming an excellent Council - Draft Restructure of Policy and Performance Directorate
	RestructurePol&PerfDircteApp


